
           

  
 

City Council Regular Meeting
 

Thursday, April 8, 2021
6:00 p.m.

 

Chandler City Council Chambers
88 E. Chicago St., Chandler, AZ

 

  



  

Our Vision
We are a world-class City that provides an exceptional
quality of life.
Our Brand
A safe community that connects people, chooses innovation
and inspires excellence.

Our Goals
City Council Strategic Policy Goals
1. Being the most connected City
2. Being a leader in trust and transparency
3. Maintaining fiscal sustainability
4. Attracting a range of private sector businesses
5. Fostering a contemporary culture that embraces unity
6. Being safe and beautiful

Pursuant to Resolution No. 4464 of the City of Chandler and to A.R.S. 38-431.02, notice is hereby given to the
members of the Chandler City Council and to the general public that the Chandler City Council will hold a REGULAR
MEETING open to the public on Thursday, April 8, 2021, at 6:00 p.m., in the Chandler City Council Chambers, 88 E.
Chicago Street, Chandler, Arizona. One or more members of the Chandler City Council may attend this meeting by
telephone.

Persons with disabilities may request a reasonable modification or communication aids and services by contacting
the City Clerk’s office at 480-782-2181 (711 via AZRS). Please make requests in advance as it affords the City time
to accommodate the request.

Agendas are available in the Office of the City Clerk, 175 S. Arizona Avenue.

 

Page 2 of 9 Council Regular Meeting



           

Regular Meeting Agenda   

 

 

Call to Order
 

Roll Call
 

Invocation - Reverend Denise Burns, Chandler Church of the Nazarene
 

Pledge of Allegiance
 

Consent Agenda
Items listed on the Consent Agenda may be enacted by one motion and one vote. If a discussion is required by
members of the governing body, the item will be removed from the Consent Agenda for discussion and
determination will be made if the item will be considered separately.
 

Airport
 
 

1. Resolution No. 5452 Authorizing a Grant Agreement with the Federal Aviation Administration (FAA)
to Accept a Coronavirus Response and Relief Supplemental Appropriation Act (CRRSA) Grant

  Move City Council pass and adopt Resolution No. 5452 authorizing a grant agreement with the Federal
Aviation Administration to accept a Coronavirus Response and Relief Supplemental Appropriation Act
(CRRSA) grant not to exceed $57,162 for airport operating purposes; and authorizing the City Manager, or
designee, to execute the grant agreement and all other documents necessary to effect the agreement.

 

 

Page 3 of 9 Council Regular Meeting



 
Council Focus Area(s):

 

City Clerk
 
 

2. March 2021 City Council Minutes
  Move City Council approve the meeting minutes of the Study Session and the Regular Meeting of March 22,

2021, and the Work Session - Budget Workshop and Regular Meeting of March 25, 2021.
 

 
Council Focus Area(s):

 

3. Board and Commission Appointments
  Move City Council approve the Board and Commission appointments as recommended.
 

 
Council Focus Area(s):

 

City Manager
 
 

4. FY 2020-21 One-time Exceptional Performance Awards for Employees
  Move City Council approve a one-time exceptional performance award of $3,000 to each full-time employee

and $1,500 to each part-time employee, employed as of December 31, 2020, and remaining employed
through March 27, 2021, for an estimated cost of $5,530,000 across all Funds; and $3,060,000 in Fund
Contingency Transfers to only be used should vacancy savings appropriation not be sufficient in a specific
Fund/Cost Center combination, including General Fund of $2,800,000, to various Cost Centers within
General Fund, Special Revenue Funds (i.e. Grant-217, Community Development Block Grant (CDBG)-219,

Page 4 of 9 Council Regular Meeting



Public Housing Authority (PHA)-224, 227, 230, 232, 233) and Self Insurance Funds (i.e. Workers
Compensation-736, Insured Liability-737, Uninsured Liability-738, Short Term Disability-739, and
Medical-741); Water Fund 605 of $200,000; and Solid Waste Fund 625 of $60,000.

 

 
Council Focus Area(s):

 

Development Services
 
 

5. Final Adoption of Ordinance No. 4961, PLH20-0023 Pecos and McQueen Retail
  Rezoning

Move City Council adopt Ordinance No. 4961, approving PLH20-0023 Pecos
and McQueen Retail located at the southwest corner of Pecos and McQueen roads, Rezoning from
Agricultural District (AG-1) to Planned Area Development (PAD) for Neighborhood Commercial (C-1)
uses, subject to the conditions as recommended by Planning and Zoning Commission.

 

 
Council Focus Area(s):

 

6. Introduction of Ordinance No. 4968, PLH20-0063 McKinley Glenn (Staff Requests Continuance to the
May 13, 2021, City Council Meeting) 

  Move City Council continue PLH20-0063 McKinley Glenn, located east of the southeast corner of Chandler
Heights and Cooper roads to the May 13, 2021, Council meeting, as recommended by Planning and Zoning
Commission. 

 

 
Council Focus Area(s):

 

7. Introduction of Ordinance No. 4967, PLH20-0052/PLT20-0039 Serene Estates
  Rezoning

Move City Council introduce and tentatively adopt Ordinance No. 4967 approving PLH20-0052 Serene
Estates, Rezoning from Neighborhood Commercial (C-1) to Planned Area Development for single-family
residential, located northwest of the northwest corner of Galveston and Hartford streets, subject to the
conditions as recommended by Planning and Zoning Commission.

Preliminary Development Plan 
Move City Council approve Preliminary Development Plan PLH20-0052 Serene Estates for subdivision
layout and housing product, located northwest of the northwest corner of Galveston and Hartford streets,
subject to the conditions as recommended by Planning and Zoning Commission.

Preliminary Plat
Move City Council approve Preliminary Plat PLT20-0039 Serene Estates, located northwest of the northwest

Page 5 of 9 Council Regular Meeting



Move City Council approve Preliminary Plat PLT20-0039 Serene Estates, located northwest of the northwest
corner of Galveston and Hartford streets, subject to the condition recommended by Planning and Zoning
Commission.

 

 
Council Focus Area(s):

 

8. Use Permit and Entertainment Use Permit, PLH20-0054 BAR @118W
  Move City Council approve Use Permit and Entertainment Use Permit, PLH20-0054 Bar @118W, located

at 118 W. Boston Street, subject to the conditions recommended by Planning and Zoning Commission.
 

 

Council Focus Area(s):
 

9. Preliminary Development Plan, PLH20-0067 The Johnathan
  Move City Council approve Preliminary Development Plan, PLH20-0067 The Johnathan, located at 55 N.

Arizona Place, subject to the conditions as recommended by Planning and Zoning Commission.
 

 
Council Focus Area(s):

 

Economic Development
 
 

10. Resolution No. 5458, Authorizing Support for a Foreign Trade Zone Application for Viavi Solutions,
Inc.; Manufacturing Facility to be Located at 3455 South McQueen Road

  Move to approve Resolution No. 5458, authorizing support for a Foreign Trade Zone application for Viavi
Solutions, Inc.; manufacturing facility to be located at 3455 South McQueen Road; authorizing support for a
property tax reclassification from class one to class six for all new personal property; authorizing a
development agreement between Viavi and the City of Chandler; authorizing the execution of an
Intergovernmental Agreement between the City of Chandler and the City of Phoenix; and authorizing the
Mayor to sign the Resolution and related documents as approved by the City Attorney.

 

 
Council Focus Area(s):

 

Page 6 of 9 Council Regular Meeting



Information Technology
 
 

11. Agreement No. IT8-920-3889, Amendment No. 3, with Neudesic, LLC, for Annual Application Support
Services

  Move City Council approve Agreement No. IT8-920-3889, Amendment No. 3, with Neudesic, LLC, for annual
application support services, in the amount of $123,000, for the period of May 1, 2021, through April 30,
2022.

 

 
Council Focus Area(s):

 

12. Purchase of Microsoft Software Licenses from CDW-G
  Move City Council approve the purchase of Microsoft software licenses, from CDW-G, using the Omnia

Partners Contract No. 2018011-01 in an amount not to exceed $723,139.
 

 
Council Focus Area(s):

 

Management Services
 
 

13. License Series 11, Hotel/Motel Liquor License application for Sonesta International Hotels
Corporation, dba Sonesta Select Phoenix Chandler

  Move for recommendation to the State Department of Liquor Licenses and Control for approval of the State
Liquor Job No. 135943, a Series 11, Hotel/Motel Liquor License, for Andrea Dahlman Lewkowitz, Agent,
Sonesta International Hotels Corporation, dba Sonesta Select Phoenix Chandler, located at 920 N. 54th
Street, and approval of the City of Chandler Series 11, Hotel/Motel Liquor License No. 300649 L11.

 

Page 7 of 9 Council Regular Meeting



 
Council Focus Area(s):

 

Public Works and Utilities
 
 

14. Final Adoption of Ordinance No. 4964 Authorizing the Sale of a Parcel of City-Owned Land at the
Southwest Corner of McQueen Road and Pecos Road

  Move City Council approve final adoption of Ordinance No. 4964 authorizing the sale of a parcel of
City-owned land at southwest corner of McQueen Road and Pecos Road to WNDG, LLC, an Arizona Limited
Liability Company.

 

 
Council Focus Area(s):

 

15. Project Agreement No. WW2003.401 with Garney Companies, Inc., for the Airport Water Reclamation
Facility Headworks Drain Piping

  Move City Council award Project Agreement No. WW2003.401 to Garney Companies, Inc., Pursuant to Job
Order Contract No. JOC1914.401, for the Airport Water Reclamation Facility Headworks Drain Piping, in an
amount not to exceed $391,070.

 

 
Council Focus Area(s):

 

16. Professional Services Agreement No. WW2003.451, with Brown and Caldwell, Inc., for Airport Water
Reclamation Facility Headworks Drain Piping Construction Management Services

  Move City Council award Professional Services Agreement No. WW2003.451, to Brown and Caldwell, Inc.,
for the Airport Water Reclamation Facility Headworks Drain Piping Construction Management Services, in an
amount not to exceed $55,050.

 

 
Council Focus Area(s):

 

Discussion and Possible Action
 

17. Council Public Safety Subcommittee discussion on Public Safety:  Crime Statistics, Call Volume,
Impact of COVID-19 and Future Staffing and Resource Needs, as requested by Councilmember
Orlando.

  

 

Page 8 of 9 Council Regular Meeting



           

Informational
 

18. Study Session & Regular Meeting Minutes of March 3, 2021, Planning and Zoning Commission
 

Council Focus Area(s):
 

Unscheduled Public Appearances
 

Current Events
1. Mayor's Announcements
2. Council's Announcements
3. City Manager's Announcements
 

Adjourn
 

 

Page 9 of 9 Council Regular Meeting



ITEM  1 

City Council Memorandum      City Clerk's Office  Memo No. 
       

Date: April 8, 2021
To: Mayor  and Council
Thru: Joshua Wright, Acting City Manager
From: Erica Barba, Assistant City Clerk 
Subject: Resolution No. 5452 authorizing a grant agreement with the Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) to

accept a Coronavirus Response and Supplemental Appropriation Act (CRRSA) grant not to exceed
$57,162 for airport operating purposes; and authorizing the City Manager, or designee, to execute the
grant agreement and all other documents necessary to effect the agreement.

Proposed Motion:
Move City Council pass and adopt Resolution No. 5452 authorizing a grant agreement with the Federal Aviation
Administration to accept a Coronavirus Response and Relief Supplemental Appropriation Act (CRRSA) grant not
to exceed $57,162 for airport operating purposes; and authorizing the City Manager, or designee, to execute the
grant agreement and all other documents necessary to effect the agreement.

Background:
On December 27, 2020, the President signed the Consolidated Appropriations Act of 2021.  Division M of that
Act is the Coronavirus Response and Relief Supplemental Appropriation Act (CRRSA).  Title IV of CRRSA
provides approximately $2 billion in economic relief to eligible US airports to prevent, prepare for, and respond to
the COVID-19 public health emergency.  CRRSA includes a set aside amount for airports in the federal contract
tower (FCT) program, of which Chandler is included.

On February 12, 2021, the FAA announced that Chandler will be receiving a grant in the amount of $57,162.  The
funding is allocated between a non-primary amount of $23,000 and an FCT amount of $34,162.  The funding
may be used for airport operational expenses, however, the FCT funding must be used for costs associated with
supporting the contract tower operations.  The expenses can include including sanitation program expenses,
payroll, operational, and debt service costs. 

Discussion:
Staff recommends City Council pass and adopt Resolution No. 5452 authorizing a grant agreement with the
Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) to accept a Coronavirus Response and Relief Supplemental Appropriation
Act (CRRSA) grant not to exceed $57,162 for airport operating purposes; and authorizing the City Manager, or
designee, to execute the grant agreement and all other documents necessary to effect the agreement.

Financial Implications:
No City matching funds are required to accept this grant.

Attachments
Resolution 5452 









ITEM  2 

City Council Memorandum      City Clerk's Office  Memo No. 21-005
       

Date: April 8, 2021
To: Mayor  and Council
From:
Subject: March 2021 City Council Minutes

Proposed Motion:
Move City Council approve the meeting minutes of the Study Session and the Regular Meeting of
March 22, 2021, and the Work Session - Budget Workshop and Regular Meeting of March 25, 2021.

Background/Discussion 
Attached for approval are the City Council minutes for the meetings held on March 22, and March 25,
2021.

Attachments
March 22, 2021 Study Session Minutes 
March 22, 2021 Regular Meeting Minutes 
March 25, 2021 Regular Meeting Minutes 
March 25, 2021 Work Session - Budget Workshop Minutes 



 

 
 

CITY OF CHANDLER COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 

Study Session 

Monday, March 22, 2021  

 

MINUTES OF THE STUDY SESSION OF THE HONORABLE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

CHANDLER, ARIZONA, held in the Council Chambers, 88 E. Chicago Street, Chandler, Arizona, on 

Monday, March 22, 2021 

 

THE MEETING WAS CALLED TO ORDER BY MAYOR KEVIN HARTKE AT 6:07 P.M.  

 

The following members were present:  

Kevin Hartke   Mayor  

      *Mark Stewart  Vice Mayor 

OD Harris   Councilmember 

René Lopez   Councilmember  

      Terry Roe   Councilmember 

Christine Ellis   Councilmember 

Matt Orlando   Councilmember 

 

*Vice Mayor Stewart attended the meeting telephonically. 

 

Also in attendance:    Joshua Wright   Acting City Manager  

Debra Stapleton  Assistant City Manager 

      Kelly Schwab   City Attorney 

      Dana DeLong   City Clerk 

 

 

SCHEDULED PUBLIC APPEARANCES 

 

MAYOR HARTKE invited Councilmember Roe to join him for the recognitions. 

 

1. Retirement Recognition 

 

Neighborhood Resources 

Vivian Rivera – 18 years 

 

Community Services 

Claude Cluff -  33 years 

 

2. Service Recognitions 

 

Police Department 

Rebekah Baranoff -10 Years 



Chandler City Council Study Session Minutes 

Monday, March 22, 2021   Page 2 of 8 

 

 

Public Works and Utilities 

Elizabeth Denning – 20 years 

 

3. Achievement of Excellence in Procurement Award 

 

MAYOR HARTKE invited Christina Pryor, Purchasing and Materials Manager, to accept the award and called for 

a staff presentation.  

 

DAWN LANG, Management Services Director, said this distinguished award recognizes an agency’s 

commitment to continuous improvement. The City has received this award for 16 consecutive years and is one 

of only 10 agencies in Arizona and 69 cities in the US and Canada to receive this award. Ms. Lang said 

Chandler’s purchasing division belongs to an elite group of purchasing divisions that operate with the highest 

standards of quality and efficiency and receive the best value with our City tax dollars. 

  

4. Anonymous Code Violation Complaints, Kevin Norwack 

 

Mr. Norwack did not address the Council.   

 

 

CONSENT AGENDA DISCUSSION 

 

COUNCILMEMBER ORLANDO asked for a staff presentation on Consent Agenda Item No. 14.  

 

14. Resolution No. 5450 approving an agreement with Maricopa Medical for the provision of 

ambulance services  

 

TOM DWIGGINS, Fire Chief, introduced the item and presented the following presentation.  

• Current Contract/RFP Process 

o Current contract with American Medical Response (AMR) 

o Contract expires January 2022 

o Two competitive proposals evaluated 

o RFP process results 

• Proposed Contract Highlights 

o Additional 24/7 Ambulance 

o Peak-Time Ambulance Schedule 

o Back-Up Ambulance in Stations 

o Lucas Chest Compression Devices 

o Ambulance Safety Systems 

o Staffing Reimbursement 

• Next Steps  

o Award Contract 

o AZDHS Approval 

o AMR/Maricopa Transition  

 



Chandler City Council Study Session Minutes 

Monday, March 22, 2021   Page 3 of 8 
 

COUNCILMEMBER ELLIS said as a nurse this would take the service to the next level and is a wonderful way to 

get to the community quickly and get them safely to a hospital. Councilmember Ellis thanked staff for working 

on this item.  

 

CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS 

 

1. Professional Services Agreement No. PR2108.201 with J2 Engineering and Environmental Design for 

Pima Park Sidewalk Improvements  

Move City Council award Professional Services Agreement No. PR2108.201 to J2 Engineering and 

Environmental Design, for Pima Park Sidewalk Improvements Design Services, in an amount not to 

exceed $39,308.00. 

  

2. Purchase of Playground Products and Services from Dave Bang Associates, Inc.; Exerplay, Inc.; 

FlexGround, LLC; Miracle Playground Sales, Inc.; Play it Safe Playgrounds & Park Equipment, Inc.; and 

Shade 'N Net of Arizona, Inc.  

Move that City Council approve the purchase of playground products and services, utilizing 1 

Government Procurement Alliance (1GPA) Contracts 18-04P-02, 18-04P-03, 18-04P-04, 18-04P-06, 18-

04P-07 and 18-04P-09, listed respectively, with Dave Bang Associates, Inc.; Exerplay, Inc.; FlexGround, 

LLC; Miracle Playground Sales, Inc.; Play it Safe Playgrounds & Park Equipment, Inc.; and Shade 'N Net 

of Arizona, Inc.; in a combined amount not to exceed $700,000. 

 

3. Resolution No. 5449 Authorizing Modification of the Assessment Diagram; Making a Statement and 

Estimate of Expenses for the Downtown Chandler Enhanced Municipal Services District; Completing the 

Assessment; Setting the Date for the Hearing on the Assessment; and Ordering the Giving of Notice of 

Such Hearing  

Move City Council adopt Resolution No. 5449 authorizing modification of the Assessment Diagram; 

making a Statement and Estimate of Expenses for the Downtown Chandler Enhanced Municipal Services 

District; completing the Assessment; setting the date for the hearing on the Assessment; and ordering 

the giving of notice of such Hearing. 

  

4. Introduction to Ordinance No. 4961, Preliminary Development Plan and Preliminary Plat Approval, 

PLH20-0023/PLT20-0037 Pecos and McQueen Retail, located at the Southwest Corner of Pecos and 

McQueen roads  

  Rezoning 

Move City Council introduce and tentatively adopt Ordinance No. 4961 approving PLH20-0023 Pecos 

and McQueen Retail, located at the southwest corner of Pecos and McQueen roads, Rezoning from 

Agricultural District (AG-1) to Planned Area Development (PAD) for Neighborhood Commercial (C-1) 

uses, subject to the conditions as recommended by Planning and Zoning Commission. 

Preliminary Development Plan 

Move City Council approve Preliminary Development Plan PLH20-0023 Pecos and McQueen Retail, 

located at the southwest corner of Pecos and McQueen roads, subject to the conditions as 

recommended by Planning and Zoning Commission. 

Preliminary Plat 

Move City Council approve Preliminary Plat PLT20-0037 Pecos and McQueen Retail, located at the 

southwest corner of Pecos and McQueen roads, subject to the condition recommended by Planning 

and Zoning Commission. 

  



Chandler City Council Study Session Minutes 

Monday, March 22, 2021   Page 4 of 8 

 

5. Use Permit, PLH21-0004, Move Human Performance Center  

Move City Council approve Use Permit, PLH21-0004, Move Human Performance Center, located 

approximately one-quarter mile east of the southeast corner of Arizona Avenue and Elliot Road subject 

to the conditions recommended by Planning and Zoning Commission. 

  

6. Entertainment Use Permit (EUP), PLH20-0042 Rock Lobster Dining Room Expansion   

  Use Permit or EUP 

Move City Council approve Entertainment Use Permit, PLH20-0042, Rock Lobster Dining Room 

Expansion, located on the southwest corner of Queen Creek and Dobson roads, subject to the 

conditions recommended by Planning and Zoning Commission. 

  

7. Agreement with Atkins North America, Inc., for Facility Space Assessment  

Move City Council award Agreement No. BF1-918-4271 to Atkins North America, Inc., dba 

Faithful+Gould, for a facility space assessment, in an amount not to exceed $85,113.  

  

8. Agreement No. FS0-060-4131, Amendment No.1, for OEM Auto Parts and Service  

Move City Council approve Agreement No. FS0-060-4131, Amendment No. 1, with Tex Chevrolet dba 

Earnhardt Chevrolet; Earnhardt Enterprises dba Earnhardt Toyota Scion; Earnhardt Gilbert Dodge, Inc., 

dba Earnhardt Chrysler Dodge Jeep Ram; Earnhardt Chandler Cadillac, Inc.; Earnhardt Ford Sales 

Company; and Courtesy Auto of Mesa dba Courtesy Dodge for OEM Auto Parts and Service, for a 

period of one year, April 1, 2021, through March 31, 2022, in a combined total amount not to exceed 

$350,000. 

 

9. Agreement No. AS8-405-3826, Amendment No.1, with Senergy Petroleum, LLC; Supreme Oil Co.; and 

Western Refining Southwest dba Flyers Energy, LLC, for Fuel  

Move City Council approve Agreement No. AS8-405-3826, Amendment No. 1, with Senergy Petroleum, 

LLC; Supreme Oil Co.; and Western Refining Southwest dba Flyers Energy, LLC; for the purchase of fuel , 

for a three-year period, April 1, 2021, through March 31, 2024, in a combined total amount not to 

exceed $7,800,000 for the three-year term. 

  

10. Agreement No. BF1-910-4275, with FiveOliver, LLC; Classic Roofing, LLC; National Waterproofing & 

Roofing, LLC; and Sprayfoam Southwest, Inc., dba Global Roofing Group; for Roofing Repairs and 

Maintenance  

Move that City Council approve Agreement No. BF1-910-4275, with FiveOliver, LLC; Classic Roofing, 

LLC; National Waterproofing & Roofing, LLC; and Sprayfoam Southwest, Inc., dba Global Roofing Group; 

for Roofing Repairs and Maintenance in a combined amount not to exceed $860,000, for a one-year 

term, April 1, 2021, through March 31, 2022. 

  

11. Competition Impracticable Purchase of Building Assessment Services from Faithful + Gould, Inc.  

Move City Council approve the competition impracticable purchase of building assessment services 

from Faithful + Gould, Inc., in the amount of $64,405.  

 

12. Resolution No. 5444 authorizing the submission of projects for consideration under the 2022 

Governor's Office of Highway Safety Grant Program for the Child Safety Seat Clinic program  

Move City Council pass and adopt Resolution No. 5444, authorizing the submission of  a Governor's 

Office of Highway Safety Grant, for the Child Safety Seat Clinic program, in the amount of $49,114, and 



Chandler City Council Study Session Minutes 

Monday, March 22, 2021   Page 5 of 8 
 

authorizing the City Manager, or designee, to perform grant-specific negotiations and submit 

documentation on behalf of the City of Chandler. 

  

13. Resolution No. 5445 adopting an agreement with HonorHealth to train Chandler Fire Department 

paramedic students during their required clinical rotations  

Move City Council pass and adopt Resolution No. 5445, authorizing the City of Chandler to enter into 

an agreement with HonorHealth to train Chandler Fire Department paramedic students during their 

required clinical rotations. 

  

14. Resolution No. 5450 approving an agreement with Maricopa Medical for the provision of ambulance 

services  

Move City Council pass and adopt Resolution No. 5450, approving an agreement between the City of 

Chandler and Maricopa Medical for the provision of ambulance services. 

  

15. Agreement No. FD9-345-4024, Amendment No. 2, for Fire Emergency Medical Supplies  

Move City Council approve Agreement No. FD9-345-4024, Amendment No. 2, with Bound Tree Medical, 

LLC, for fire emergency medical supplies, in an amount not to exceed $150,000, for the period of April 1, 

2021, through March 31, 2022.    

  

16. Resolution No. 5446 adopting an agreement with Dignity Health to train Chandler Fire Department 

paramedic students during their required clinical rotations  

Move City Council pass and adopt Resolution No. 5446, authorizing the City of Chandler to enter into 

an agreement with Dignity Health to train Chandler Fire Department paramedic students during their 

required clinical rotations. 

  

17. Resolution No. 5447 adopting an agreement with Banner Health to train Chandler Fire Department 

paramedic students during their required clinical rotations  

Move City Council pass and adopt Resolution No. 5447, authorizing the City of Chandler to enter into 

agreement with Banner Health to train Chandler Fire Department paramedic students during their 

required clinical rotations. 

  

18. Agreement No. HR9-962-4000, Amendment No. 2, with Devau for Temporary Staffing Services  

Move City Council approve Agreement No. HR9-962-4000, Amendment No. 2, with Devau Human 

Resources, for temporary staffing services, in an amount not to exceed $1,097,000, for a one-year 

period, April 1, 2021, through March 31, 2022.   

  

19. Purchase of Servers and Storage from vCore Technology Partners  

Move City Council approve the purchase of servers and storage from vCore Technology Partners 

utilizing Omnia Partners Contract No. R191902 in the amount of $320,000. 

  

20. Agreement No. IT1-910-4232, Amendment No. 1, with WorkGroup Connections, Inc., for Office 365 

Implementation and Migration Design Plan  

Move City Council approve Agreement No. IT1-910-4232, Amendment No. 1, with WorkGroup 

Connections, Inc., for Office 365 Implementation and Migration Design Plan, in the amount of $140,000, 

for additional email data migration services. 

  

21. Agreement No. WH7-670-3783, Amendment No. 4, for Plumbing and Irrigation Supplies  



Chandler City Council Study Session Minutes 

Monday, March 22, 2021   Page 6 of 8 

 

Move City Council approve Agreement No. WH7-670-3783, Amendment No. 4, with Sprinkler World of 

Arizona, Inc.; Ewing Irrigation and Landscape Supply; Horizon Distribution, LLC; and Best Plumbing 

Specialties for the purchase of plumbing and irrigation supplies, for a period of one year, March 23, 

2021, through March 22, 2022, in a combined total amount not to exceed $250,000. 

 

22. New License Series 12, Restaurant Liquor application for Blacksheep Wine, LLC, dba Blacksheep Wine & 

Merchant  

Move for recommendation to the State Department of Liquor Licenses and Control for approval of the 

State Liquor Job No. 135786, a Series 12, Restaurant Liquor License, for Lauren Kay Merrett, Agent, 

Blacksheep Wine, LLC, dba Blacksheep Wine & Merchant, located at 98 S. San Marcos Place, and 

approval of the City of Chandler, Series 12, Restaurant Liquor License No. 300235 L12. 

  

23. Purchase of Office Supplies from Staples Business Advantage  

Move City Council approve the purchase of office supplies from Staples Business Advantage, utilizing 

the Sourcewell Contract No. 012320-SCC, for the period of April 1, 2021, through March 31, 2022, in an 

amount not to exceed $133,000. 

  

24. Project Agreement No. AZ0001.401 with Caliente Construction, Inc., for Neighborhood Resources 

Capital Renovations   

Move City Council award Job Order Project Agreement No. AZ0001.401 to Caliente Construction, Inc.,  

Pursuant to Job Order Master Agreement No. JOC1910.401, for Neighborhood Resources Capital 

Renovations in an amount not to exceed $128,037.08. 

  

25. Agreement No. PD6-680-3619, Amendment No.5, with Universal Police Supply Company for Police 

Supplies  

Move City Council approve Agreement No. PD6-680-3619, Amendment No. 5, with Universal Police 

Supply Company, for police supplies, in an amount not to exceed $266,549.25, for the period of July  1, 

2020, through June 30, 2021 

 

26. Resolution No. 5453 Pertaining to the Submission of Projects for Consideration in Arizona's 2021 

Highway Safety Plan  

Move City Council pass and adopt Resolution No. 5453 pertaining to the submission of projects for 

consideration in Arizona's 2022 Highway Safety Plan, and authorize the Chief of  Police to conduct all 

negotiations and to execute and submit all documents necessary in connection with such grant. 

  

27. Introduction of Ordinance No. 4964 Authorizing the Sale of a Parcel of City-Owned Land at the 

Southwest Corner of McQueen Road and Pecos Road  

Move City Council introduce and tentatively adopt Ordinance No. 4964 authorizing the sale of a parcel 

of City-owned land at southwest corner of McQueen Road and Pecos Road to WNDG, LLC, an Arizona 

Limited Liability Company. 

  

28. Purchase of Refuse and Recycling Containers and Parts from Otto Environmental Systems  

Move City Council approve the purchase of refuse and recycling containers and parts, from Otto 

Environmental Systems, utilizing City of Mesa Contract No. 2018048, in an amount not to exceed 

$325,000. 

 



Chandler City Council Study Session Minutes 

Monday, March 22, 2021   Page 7 of 8 
 

29. Professional Services Agreement No. WW1901.201, Amendment No. 2, with Wilson Engineers, LLC, for 

the Water Reclamation Facility Improvements  

Move City Council award Professional Services Agreement No. WW1901.201, Amendment No. 2, to 

Wilson Engineers, LLC, for additional design services, for the Water Reclamation Facility Improvements, 

in the amount of $222,570, for a revised contract amount not to exceed $4,122,380. 

  

30. Resolution No. 5448, Approving an Intergovernmental Agreement with the Flood Control District of 

Maricopa County for the City of Chandler Stormwater Management Master Plan Study  

Move City Council pass and adopt Resolution No. 5448, approving an Intergovernmental Agreement 

with the Flood Control District of Maricopa County for the City of Chandler Stormwater Management 

Master Plan Study and Authorizing the Mayor to execute the agreement. 

  

31. Project Agreement No. WW2014.402, with FPS Civil, LLC, for the Sewer Manhole Rehabilitation  

Move City Council award Project Agreement No. WW2014.402, to FPS Civil, LLC, pursuant to Job Order 

Contract No. JOC1902.401, for the Sewer Manhole Rehabilitation, in an amount not to exceed 

$1,046,278.53. 

  

32. Professional Services Agreement No. WW2014.452, with Dibble CM, LLC, for the Sewer Manhole 

Rehabilitation Construction Management Services  

Move City Council award Professional Services Agreement No. WW2014.452, to Dibble CM, LLC, for the 

Sewer Manhole Rehabilitation Construction Management Services, in an amount not to exceed 

$175,000. 

  

33. Resolution No. 5451, Approving the Intergovernmental Agreement with the Flood Control District of 

Maricopa County for Detroit Basin Area Drainage Improvements  

Move City Council pass and adopt Resolution No. 5451, approving the Intergovernmental Agreement 

with the Flood Control District of Maricopa County for the Detroit Basin Area Drainage Improvements, 

and Authorizing the Mayor to Execute the Agreement 

 

34. Project Agreement No. ST2017.402, with DBA Construction, Inc., for the Quiet Zone Improvements, 

Phase 2  

Move City Council award Project Agreement No. ST2017.402 to DBA Construction, Inc., Pursuant to Job 

Order Contract No. JOC1916.401, for the Quiet Zone Improvements, Phase 2, in an amount not to 

exceed $1,322,738.40. 

 

PUBLIC HEARING 

 

35.  Annexation Public Hearing, Approximately 9.0 Acres located East of the Southeast Corner of Cooper 

and Chandler Heights Roads 

1.  Open Public Hearing 

2.  Staff Presentation 

3.  Council Discussion 

4.  Discussion from the Audience 

5.  Close Public Hearing  

 

36.  Annexation Public Hearing, Approximately 5.11 Acres located at the Southeast Corner of Arizona 

Avenue and Appleby Road 



Chandler City Council Study Session Minutes 

Monday, March 22, 2021   Page 8 of 8 

 

1.  Open Public Hearing 

2.  Staff Presentation 

3.  Council Discussion 

4.  Discussion from the Audience 

5.  Close Public Hearing  

 

ADJOURNMENT:  The meeting adjourned at 6:28 p.m. 

 

ATTEST:  _______________________  ______________________________ 

                       City Clerk                                                   Mayor 

 

Approval Date of Minutes:  April 8, 2021 

 

CERTIFICATION 

 

I hereby certify that the foregoing minutes are a true and correct copy of the minutes of the Study Session of 

the City Council of Chandler, Arizona, held on the 22nd day of March 2021.  I further certify that the meeting 

was duly called and held and that a quorum was present. 

 

DATED this _______ day of April, 2021. 

 

      __________________________ 

                                                                    City Clerk 



 

      

 
 

CITY OF CHANDLER COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 

Regular Meeting 

Monday, March 22, 2021 

 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE HONORABLE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF CHANDLER, ARIZONA, held in the City of Chandler Council Chambers, 88 E. Chicago St., Chandler, 

Arizona, on Monday, March 22, 2021. 

 

THE MEETING WAS CALLED TO ORDER BY MAYOR KEVIN HARTKE AT 6:02 P.M. 

 

The following members answered roll call:  

      Kevin Hartke   Mayor 

      *Mark Stewart  Vice Mayor 

René Lopez   Councilmember 

OD Harris   Councilmember 

      Christine Ellis   Councilmember 

      Terry Roe   Councilmember 

Matt Orlando   Councilmember    

 

*Vice Mayor Stewart attended the meeting telephonically.  

 

Also in attendance:    Joshua Wright   Acting City Manager   

      Debra Stapleton  Assistant City Manager 

Kelly Schwab   City Attorney 

      Dana DeLong   City Clerk 

 

INVOCATION:  The invocation was given by Pastor Sean Eddy, Chandler Bible Church. 

 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Councilmember Orlando led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

CONSENT AGENDA – DISCUSSION 

 

MAYOR HARTKE talked about Consent Agenda Item No. 2 and said a significant amount of money was set 

aside from the AZCares Act to assist small businesses and this program was renewed in January for a second 

round. Mayor Hartke said this item is to continue to help the businesses and thanked staff for their work on 

this item to get money back into the community.  

 

COUNCILMEMBER LOPEZ said it was a great program to get dollars into the community and help the 

businesses.  

 

CONSENT AGENDA – MOTION AND VOTE 

 



CHANDLER CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

Monday, March 22, 2021   Page 2 of 8 

 

COUNCILMEMBER LOPEZ MOVED TO APPROVE THE CONSENT AGENDA OF THE MARCH 22, 2021, CITY 

COUNCIL MEETING; SECONDED BY COUNCILMEMBER ROE.  

 

MOTION TO APPROVE THE CONSENT AGENDA CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY (7-0). 

 

CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS  

 

1. February 2021 Council Minutes   

Move to approve the Council meeting minutes of the Study Session of February 22, 2021, the Special 

Meeting of February 25, 2021, and the Regular Meeting of February 25, 2021. 

 

2. Resolution No. 5455 Authorizing the Allocation of AZCares Grant Funds in the Amount of $250,000 to 

the Economic Development Division to Assist Chandler Businesses Impacted by COVID-19  

Move City Council pass and adopt Resolution No. 5455 authorizing the al location of $250,000 from 

Grant Fund, Non-Departmental Cost Center, AZCares Reserve Account, AZCares program 

(217.1290.5926.3AZ000), to the Grant Fund, Economic Development Cost Center, Professional Services 

Account, Business Hiring/Retention Program (217.1520.5219.3.3AZ002), to assist Chandler businesses 

impacted by COVID-19. 

 

BACKGROUND FROM COUNCIL MEMO: 

On July 16, 2020, City Council authorized the allocation of $9,500,000 of AZCares funds to assist 

Chandler businesses impacted by COVID-19 through a new program called the “I Choose Chandler 

Business Hiring and Retention Program.” Distribution of the funds was intended to provide a direct 

benefit to the citizens of Chandler by supporting Chandler businesses that are keeping workers on 

payroll as they adjust to revenue losses and business disruptions caused by COVID-19. Qualifying 

businesses could apply to receive relief funding based on employee retention, employee hiring, and use 

of independent contractors. Individual funding awards ranged from $1,300 to $10,000.  

 

The "I Choose Chandler Business Hiring and Retention Program" launched on August 17, 2020. Between 

the launch date and the 2020 application period end date of November 2, 2020, 544 Chandler 

businesses were awarded a total of $3,996,350 in funding. Following this, City Council authorized the 

relaunch of the program in 2021 to provide additional support to the business community. Between 

January 7, 2021, and February 25, 2021, 728 Chandler businesses were awarded a total of $5,328,600 in 

funding.  

 

To date, $9,324,950 in program funds has been awarded to Chandler businesses and another $171,390 

will be paid to the Arizona Community Foundation for program administration services. More than 99 

percent of the $9,500,000 authorized for the program has been exhausted, with approximately $3,660 

remaining. The Economic Development Division requests an additional $250,000 be allocated to the “I 

Choose Chandler Business Hiring and Retention Program.” The funds would support 37 businesses that 

submitted a complete application prior to the February 25, 2021, application deadline, but could not be 

approved for funding due to lack of available funds. The program will terminate after the relief funding 

is distributed. Any unused funds will be returned to the General Fund. 

 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: 

AZCares Grant Funds of $250,000 would be transferred from the Grant Fund, Non-Departmental Cost 

Center, AZCares Reserve Account, AZCares program (217.1290.5926.3AZ000), to the Grant Fund, 



CHANDLER CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

Monday, March 22, 2021   Page 3 of 8 

 

Economic Development Cost Center, Professional Services Account, Business Hiring/Retention Program 

(217.1520.5219.3.3AZ002), to assist businesses impacted by COVID-19. 

 

3. Final Adoption of Ordinance No. 4958 PLH19-0063 Elux at McQueen  

Rezoning 

Move City Council adopt Ordinance No. 4958 approving PLH19-0063, Elux at McQueen, Rezoning from 

AG-1 to PAD for multi-family residential located at the southeast corner of McQueen Road and the 

Loop 202 Santan Freeway, subject to the conditions as recommended by the Planning and Zoning 

Commission. 

 

BACKGROUND FROM COUNCIL MEMO: 

Approximately 12.87 net acres, Subject site zoned AG-1 and undeveloped, General Plan designates the 

site as Neighborhoods and within a Growth Area, Chandler Airpark Area Plan (CAAP) designates the site 

as High-Density Residential (HDR) 12.1-18 units per acre (du/ac) The project consists of 162 units 

totaling 12.59 du/ac, During the February 25, 2021, City Council meeting, three additional Preliminary 

Development Plan stipulations were added to further enhance the development (see attached Council  

action) 

Ordinance introduced and tentatively adopted on February 25, 2021. 

 

Surrounding Land Use Data: 

North Loop 202 Santan Freeway, then single-

family residential 

South Single-family residential (6.7 du/ac) 

East Multi-family (17.94 du/ac) West McQueen Road, then vacant 

agricultural 

 

General Plan and Area Plan Designations: 

 

 Existing Proposed 

General Plan Neighborhoods & Growth Area No Change 

Chandler Airpark Area Plan High Density Residential (HDR) 12.1-18 du/ac No Change 

 

Proposed Development 

Proposed Land Use Multi-family dwelling units 

162 Units 

12.59 dwelling units per acre (du/ac) 

Building Design Height 17’ 6”  single-story buildings 

27’ 6”  two-story buildings; max 30 feet 

As measured to top of highest point of roof 

Roof Design and 

Material 

Gable roofs and flat parapets 

Concrete roof tiles 

Façade Materials Modern architectural style 

Stucco 

Tile cladding 

Building Accents Four different sizes of tempered glazed windows 

Metal trim/fascia   

Tile cladding 



CHANDLER CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

Monday, March 22, 2021   Page 4 of 8 

 

Canopy at front-door and rear patios 

Building Access Direct ground-floor walk-up access to each unit 

Site Design & Open 

Space 

Detached and attached single-family-like rental units 

108  1-story units 

 54 2-story units 

Private gated yards for each unit, 192-248 sq. ft. typ. 

Pool, ramadas, pickle ball court, indoor community gym, dog park, and 1-

story club house 

2.88 acres of shared open space 

Full signalized access along McQueen Road with secondary access from 

Senate Street to the east; the development will be gated 

Parking 300 parking spaces required 

327 parking spaces provided including private garages, covered and 

uncovered spaces, and guest parking 

 

Review and Recommendation 

Planning staff finds the proposal is consistent with the General Plan and more specifically consistent 

with the 1998 Chandler Airpark Area Plan (CAAP) designation of High-Density Residential. Densities up 

to 18 dwelling units per acre can be considered for properties adjacent to arterial streets, freeways, 

and/or employment corridors. The subject site abuts the Loop 202 Santan freeway and existing multi -

family to the east. The proposed single unit detached and attached units offer a transition between low-

medium density single-family residential to the south and the freeway to the north while aligning with 

the vision of the CAAP. Although the proposal is for multi-family residential, its design and function are 

similar to single-family residential. Staff finds the proposal to be consistent with the goals of the 

General Plan and the CAAP and recommends approval subject to conditions. 

 

Economic Analysis  

An economic and fiscal impact analysis was conducted based on project details provided by the 

applicant and staff assumptions. The analysis determined the project will generate a positive net f iscal 

impact for the City. Net income to the City resulting from the project is estimated at approximately 

$843,336 over 10 years. This total includes revenues from property taxes, building permit and plan 

review fees, transaction privilege tax on construction, real property rental tax, state shared revenues, 

and local spending by residents.  

 

Traffic Analysis 

The applicant for the proposed development has worked with City staff regarding access to the site via 

McQueen Road. As surrounding properties developed to the east and south, traffic circulation was 

considered. Senate Street, a public street, was constructed during the development of the Horizon 

subdivision to the south, allowing full access to the southeast corner of the subject site. The applicant 

provided a Traffic Impact Analysis (TIA) to the City’s Transportation Engineer detailing traffic patterns of 

the proposed residential. The counts returning to the site via the recommended route (Senate Street) 

raised concerns about residents making unprotected u-turns at Germann Road or the entry to the 

Horizon subdivision to access what was previously planned to be a right-in/right-out only access on 

McQueen Road.  The solution for this development and the larger area, including future office uses 

west of McQueen Road, is signalizing Armstrong Way at McQueen Road.  As such, a traffic signal 

allowing full movement on McQueen Road is proposed and supported by staff in order to reduce traffic 



CHANDLER CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

Monday, March 22, 2021   Page 5 of 8 

 

on Senate Street and to facilitate traffic circulation for future industrial properties on the west side of 

McQueen Road.  The TIA has been reviewed and accepted by the City’s Transportation Engineer. 

  

The proposal exceeds the parking requirements of the City Zoning Code by providing twenty-seven 

additional spaces. Further, the site layout does not include any tandem parking spaces. Tandem parking 

spaces may cause a heavier demand to be placed on guest parking spaces by the residents. Avoiding 

the use of tandem parking spaces further ensures that the number of provided spaces will adequately 

accommodate the proposed units. 

 

Public / Neighborhood Notification 

This request was noticed in accordance with the requirements of the Chandler Land Use and Zoning 

Code. To comply with CDC social distancing guidelines, the applicant hosted a digital neighborhood 

meeting via Zoom on September 30, 2020. Five (5) households attended the virtual meeting and had 

general questions about the proposal and buffer between the multi-family and the existing subdivision 

to the south. No opposition was expressed. Planning staff has received one phone call from a Horizon 

resident, whose home fronts Senate Street, with traffic concerns from the proposed development. Staff 

stated Senate Street was built for access to the subject site and a majority of proposed traffic from the 

new development will use the McQueen Road entry.  As of writing this memo, Planning staff has not 

received any opposition regarding the request. 

 

Airport Commission Conflict Evaluation 

Airport Commission meeting November 18, 2020. 

Motion to find conflict with existing or planned airport operations. 

In Favor: 5 Opposed: 0 Absent: 2 (Siegel, Kruse)   

 

The Airport Commission reviewed the request in accordance with the Airport Conflicts Evaluation 

Process. The Airport Planning Administrator has issued a conflicts evaluation report indicating that the  

Airport Commission determined that the proposed development does constitute a conflict with existing 

or planned airport operations. A copy of the Airport Planning Administrator's report detailing the 

Airport Commission’s findings is attached to this memo. The Airport Commission's recommended 

mitigation measures to address the operational conflict are included as stipulations of the rezoning. 

  

Planning and Zoning Commission Vote Report 

Planning and Zoning Commission meeting January 6, 2020. 

Motion to Approve. 

In Favor: 6 Opposed: 0 Absent: 1 (Heumann) 

 

Recommended Conditions of Approval 

Rezoning 

Planning and Zoning Commission recommends the City Council approve rezoning from AG-1 to PAD 

multi-family residential, subject to the following conditions: 

1. Development shall be in substantial conformance with the Development Booklet, entitled “Elux  at 

McQueen” and kept on file in the City of Chandler Planning Division, in File No. PLH19-0063, 

modified by such conditions included at the time the Booklet was approved by the Chandler City 

Council and/or as thereafter amended, modified or supplemented by the Chandler City Council. 

2. The multi-family apartment manager shall display, in a conspicuous place within the rental office, a 

map illustrating the location of the development Elux at McQueen in the context of the Chandler 



CHANDLER CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

Monday, March 22, 2021   Page 6 of 8 

 

Airpark Area Plan. The map shall identify the Airport Impact Overlay District, the noise contours and 

over flight patterns as depicted in Exhibit 6A in the FAR Part 150 Noise Compatibility Study 

document as adopted by Chandler City Council (Resolution No. 2590, 11-5-98), and the noise 

contours as identified in the Chandler Airpark Area Plan. Such map or aerial photo shall be a 

minimum size of 24” x 36”. Compliance with this condition shall be demonstrated by the property 

owner or multifamily apartment manager submitting to the Zoning Administrator of a signed 

affidavit and photograph that acknowledges such map is on display prior to beginning any rental 

activity. 

3. Prior to execution of any lease, prospective apartment tenants shall be given written disclosure in 

their lease and in a separately signed disclosure statement acknowledging that this apartment 

community is located proximate to the Chandler Municipal Airport that includes a heliport, aircraft 

engine testing facility, and an aircraft storage facility, that an avigational easement exists on the 

property, the property lies within the Chandler Municipal Airport Impact Overlay District, and that 

the property is subject to aircraft noise and over flight activity. The requirement for such disclosure 

shall be confirmed in an avigation notice covenant that runs with the land and is recorded with the 

Maricopa County Recorder prior to issuance of the first building permit for this development. 

4. The developer shall provide the city with an avigational easement over the subject property in 

accordance with Section 3004 of the City of Chandler Zoning Code. 

5. Prior to building permit issuance for any structures the developer shall provide a DETERMINATION 

OF NO HAZARD TO AVIATION approval as issued by the FAA after filing an FAA Form 7460, Notice 

of Proposed Construction or Alteration. 

6. The Final Plat shall contain the following statement on the cover sheet in a prominent location and 

in large text: “This property is located within the Chandler Municipal Airport Impact Overlay District 

and is subject to aircraft noise and frequent over flight activity, and is encumbered by an avigational 

easement to the City of Chandler.” 

7. All leases at Elux at McQueen shall provide that all questions, concerns, or complaints any tenant 

may have about the Chandler Municipal Airport or the operation of aircraft landing at, taking off 

from, or operating at or on Chandler Municipal Airport shall be directed solely to the manager of 

Elux at McQueen development and not to the Chandler Municipal Airport, the City of Chandler, the  

FAA, any aircraft owner, or any pilot. All leases shall also provide that it shall be within the sole and 

absolute discretion of the manager of Elux at McQueen (and not the tenant) to determine (after the 

manager’s due consideration of all airport related acknowledgments and disclosures that are 

required by the Zoning Stipulations and consideration of all information known to Elux at 

McQueen’s Manager) whether or not, when, and how to communicate any tenants question, 

concern, or complain to the manager of the Chandler Municipal Airport. 

8. All apartment buildings shall be designed and built to achieve an interior noise level not to exceed 

45 decibels (Ldn) from aircraft noise.  A professional acoustical consultant, architect or engineer 

shall certify that the project’s construction plans are in conformance with this condition. 

9. In the event the multi-family residential is platted to allow unit ownership, prior to the time of 

making any lot reservations or subsequent sales agreements, the 

subdivider/homebuilder/developer shall provide a written disclosure statement, for the signature of 

each buyer, acknowledging that this subdivision lies within the Chandler Municipal Airport Impact 

Overlay District, as specified in the Chandler Zoning Code.  The disclosure statement shall 

acknowledge the proximity of this subdivision to the Chandler Airport and that an avigational 

easement exists and/or is required on the property, and further, shall acknowledge that the property 

is subject to aircraft noise and overflight activity and other externalities.  This document signed by 

the homebuyer shall be recorded with Maricopa County Recorder’s Office upon sale of the property. 

The “Public Subdivision Report”, “Purchase Contracts”, CC&R’s, and the individual lot/unit property 



CHANDLER CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

Monday, March 22, 2021   Page 7 of 8 

 

deeds shall include a disclosure statement outlining that the site is adjacent to or nearby an existing 

municipal airport, and the disclosure shall state that such uses are legal and should be expected to 

continue indefinitely. This responsibility for notice rests with the subdivider/homebuilder/developer 

and shall not be construed as an absolute guarantee by the City of Chandler for receiving such 

notice. 

10. Multi-family dwelling units shall be permitted up to a maximum density of 12.6 dwelling units per 

acre. 

11. The developer shall be responsible for the design and installation of a traffic signal at the 

intersection of McQueen Road and Armstrong Way during the initial phase of construction. 

12. Completion of the construction of all required off-site street improvements including but not 

limited to paving, landscaping, curb, gutter and sidewalks, median improvements and street lighting 

to achieve conformance with City codes, standard details, and design manuals. 

13. The developer shall be required to install landscaping in the arterial street median(s) adjoining this 

project. In the event that the landscaping already exists within such median(s) the developer shall be 

required to upgrade such landscaping to meet current City Standards.  

14. Right-of-way dedications to achieve full half-widths, including turn lanes and deceleration lanes, per 

the standards of the Chandler Transportation Plan. 

15. Minimum setbacks shall be as provided below and further detailed in the development booklet:  

Property Line Location    Minimum Building Setback 

McQueen Road    50’ 

North Property Line     10’ 

East Property Line    10’ 

South Property Line    35’ 

 

INFORMATIONAL 

1. Study Session and Regular Meeting Minutes of January 20, 2021, Planning and Zoning Commission 

Meeting  

 

2. Study Session and Regular Meeting Minutes of February 17, 2021, Planning and Zoning Commission 

Meeting  

 

ADJOURNMENT:  The meeting was adjourned at 6:07 p.m. 

 

ATTEST:  __________________________  ______________________________ 

                  City Clerk                                                   Mayor 

 

 

Approval Date of Minutes:  April 8, 2021 

 

 

CERTIFICATION 

 



CHANDLER CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

Monday, March 22, 2021   Page 8 of 8 

 

I hereby certify that the foregoing minutes are a true and correct copy of the minutes of the Regular Meeting 

of the City Council of Chandler, Arizona, held on the 22nd day of March, 2021.  I further certify that the meeting 

was duly called and held and that a quorum was present. 

 

 

DATED this _______ day of April, 2021. 

 

       ___________________________ 

                                                           City Clerk 



 

      

 
 

CITY OF CHANDLER COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 

Regular Meeting 

Thursday, March 25, 2021 

 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE HONORABLE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF CHANDLER, ARIZONA, held in the City of Chandler Council Chambers, 88 E. Chicago St., Chandler, 

Arizona, on Thursday, March 25, 2021. 

 

THE MEETING WAS CALLED TO ORDER BY MAYOR KEVIN HARTKE AT 6:02 P.M. 

 

The following members answered roll call:  

      Kevin Hartke   Mayor 

      Mark Stewart   Vice Mayor 

OD Harris   Councilmember 

René Lopez   Councilmember 

      Terry Roe   Councilmember 

Christine Ellis   Councilmember 

Matt Orlando   Councilmember    

 

Also in attendance:    Joshua Wright   Acting City Manager   

      Debra Stapleton  Assistant City Manager 

Kelly Schwab   City Attorney 

      Dana DeLong   City Clerk 

 

INVOCATION:  The invocation was given by Pastor Victor Hardy, Congregational Church of the Valley. 

 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Councilmember Lopez led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

CONSENT AGENDA – MOTION AND VOTE 

 

COUNCILMEMBER ORLANDO MOVED TO APPROVE THE CONSENT AGENDA OF THE MARCH 25, 2021, CITY 

COUNCIL MEETING; SECONDED BY VICE MAYOR STEWART.  

 

MOTION TO APPROVE THE CONSENT AGENDA CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY (7-0). 

 

CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS  

 

1.  Professional Services Agreement No. PR2108.201 with J2 Engineering and Environmental Design 

 for Pima Park Sidewalk Improvements 

  

Move City Council award Professional Services Agreement No. PR2108.201 to J2 Engineering and 

 Environmental Design, for Pima Park Sidewalk Improvements Design Services, in an amount not to 

 exceed $39,308.00. 

  



CHANDLER CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

Thursday, March 25, 2021   Page 2 of 17 

 

 BACKGROUND FROM COUNCIL MEMO: 

 Pima Park is a 31.75-acre Community Park located at 625 North McQueen Road, within the square 

 mile bordered by Ray Road, Cooper Road, Chandler Boulevard, and McQueen Road.  Pima Park  was 

initially developed in 1980 and later expanded in 1999.  The park offers numerous  recreational 

opportunities including youth ball fields, playground, restroom, lighted walking paths,  group ramadas and a 

parking lot.  As part of the 1999 expansion, approximately 5,310 linear feet  of 6-foot wide asphalt walking 

paths were installed throughout the park.  The existing asphalt  walking paths have deteriorated due to use, 

time and the quality of the asphalt material used.   Despite the repairs that have been made, cracks continue to 

re-appear as the paths have  outlasted their expected lifespan.  As a part of the City's Americans with Disabilities 

Act Transition  Plan, the walking paths at Pima Park were audited.  The audit noted several ADA deficiencies 

 related to the asphalt walkways' slope and surface condition. 

 

 The project scope of work for this contract consists of preparation of a survey, construction 

 documents for demolition, grading, horizontal control, and hardscape improvements, special 

 provisions, and opinion of probable cost to replace the asphalt walking paths with a concrete  sidewalk 

and ensure that the improvements comply with ADA accessible standards. The contract  completion time is 120 

calendar days following Notice to Proceed. 

  

 Evaluation: 

 The City's selection process was conducted in accordance with City policy and procedure and State 

 law. This project is being performed under the On-Call Consultant Pre-Qualified List for Design  Services. 

Staff recommends approval of this agreement with J2 Engineering and Environmental  Design based on 

qualifications, relevant firm experience, team experience, project understanding,  and project approach. 

  

 Fiscal Impact 

 Account No.   Fund Name    Program Name    

 401.4580.6210.6PR530 General Government Capital  Existing Comm Park Imp / Repairs 

Dollar AmountCIPFunded Y/N 

 $39,308   Y 

 

2.  Purchase of Playground Products and Services from Dave Bang Associates, Inc.; Exerplay, Inc.; 

 FlexGround, LLC; Miracle Playground Sales, Inc.; Play it Safe Playgrounds & Park Equipment, Inc.;  and 

Shade 'N Net of Arizona, Inc. 

 Move that City Council approve the purchase of playground products and services, utilizing 1 

 Government Procurement Alliance (1GPA) Contracts 18-04P-02, 18-04P-03, 18-04P-04, 18-04P-06, 

 18-04P-07 and 18-04P-09, listed respectively, with Dave Bang Associates, Inc.; Exerplay, Inc.; 

 FlexGround, LLC; Miracle Playground Sales, Inc.; Play it Safe Playgrounds & Park Equipment, Inc.;  and 

Shade 'N Net of Arizona, Inc.; in a combined amount not to exceed $700,000. 

 

 BACKGROUND FROM COUNCIL MEMO: 

  

The City frequently uses outside vendors for repairs and maintenance of playgrounds, ramadas,  and park 

amenities.  These contracts will provide the City with six (6) contractors for repairs and  replacement of 

ramadas, park amenities, shade structures, playground surfacing, and  playgrounds within Chandler's parks.  

Sunset Park, Tumbleweed Park, Fox Crossing Park, and  Pima Park have all been identified for ramada, 

playground equipment or amenities replacement  for Fiscal Year (FY) 2020-21. 

 Evaluation: 



 
CHANDLER CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

Thursday, March 25, 2021   Page 3 of 17 

 The Pinal County Education Service Agency, as a lead agency for 1GPA, competitively solicited and 

 awarded a contract to Dave Bang Associates, Inc.; Exerplay, Inc.; FlexGround, LLC; Miracle Playground 

Sales, Inc.; Play it Safe Playgrounds & Park Equipment, Inc.; and Shade 'N Net of  Arizona, Inc.; for playground 

products and services.  The City has a current intergovernmental  Agreement with 1GPA allowing for 

cooperative use of its contracts.  

 

 Staff recommends use of this contract based on price, quality, service and warranty provided. This 

 contract provides a wide range of products and services at competitive pricing.  The contracts are 

 valid through November 15, 2022.  

  

 Fiscal Impact 

 Account No.  Fund Name Program Name      Dollar Amount CIP Funded Y/N 
 420.4580.6611.6PR044 Park Bonds Tumbleweed Regional Park Dev    $200,000  Y 
 420.4580.6210.6PR530 Park Bonds Existing Community Park Improv  $300,000  Y 
 420.4580.6210.6PR049 Park Bonds Existing Neighborhood Park Improv  $200,000  Y 

 

3.  Resolution No. 5449 Authorizing Modification of the Assessment Diagram; Making a Statement  and 

Estimate of Expenses for the Downtown Chandler Enhanced Municipal Services District;  Completing the 

Assessment; Setting the Date for the Hearing on the Assessment; and Ordering  the Giving of Notice of 

Such Hearing 

 Move City Council adopt Resolution No. 5449 authorizing modification of the Assessment 

 Diagram; making a Statement and Estimate of Expenses for the Downtown Chandler Enhanced 

 Municipal Services District; completing the Assessment; setting the date for the hearing on the 

 Assessment; and ordering the giving of notice of such Hearing. 

 

 BACKGROUND FROM COUNCIL MEMO: 

 On November 17, 2005, City Council adopted Resolution No. 3905, creating the Downtown 

 Chandler Enhanced Municipal Services District with the mission to provide marketing, promotion, 

 security, enhanced beautification, and district management within the Downtown.  The City 

 subsequently executed a master contract with the Downtown Chandler Community Partnership  (DCCP) 

to perform such services for a period of 10 years and has renewed the agreement every  year thereafter. Fiscal 

Year 2021-22 represents the 16th operating year of the District. 

 

 As part of the annual assessment procedures each year, the Assessment Diagram and Assessment 

 Roll need to be updated due to changes in ownership, plats, and land uses.  Additionally, a public 

 hearing must be held, along with the opportunity for District property owners to file objections. 

 Discussion: 

 The following documents are submitted with this memorandum:  (i) Resolution No. 5449; (ii)  Notice 

of Hearing on Assessments; (iii) Boundary Map; (iv) Statement and Estimate of Expenses for   

 

the District; (v) Modified Assessment Diagram; and (vi) the District Assessment Roll proposed for 

 Fiscal Year 2021-22. 

 

 The purpose of Resolution No. 5449 is to set the Public Hearing to notify property owners of the I

 ntent to modify the Assessments for property in the District, a required formal step.  This Resolution also 

authorizes the City Council to make an estimate of the expenses for the District for  2021-2022, to set the 

date for the hearing on the Assessment, and to give the Public Notice of the  hearing date. 

 



CHANDLER CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

Thursday, March 25, 2021   Page 4 of 17 

 

 As a result of Resolution No. 5449, the hearing for the setting of the Assessments will be held May 

 13, 2021, at 6:00 p.m., in the City Council Chambers.  DCCP staff will appropriately notify all  property 

owners within the District boundary, and the City will publish the notice of the hearing in a  daily newspaper 

for five consecutive days, as required by state statute. 

 

 Assessments in the District will be based on three weighted factors, including assessed value,  building 

square footage, and land square footage.  All properties will be assessed at the same rate,  with the 

exception of buildings along the Historic Square, which will be assessed double the  building square 

footage rate. Additional resources are spent in this area due to increased  pedestrian traffic. Downtown parking 

garages are exempt from the building square footage  calculations, but are still assessed on the other two 

factors (assessed value and land square  footage).  

 

 In May, staff will return with a Resolution to approve the Annual Assessment Roll, which will 

 memorialize the amount assessed to each parcel and property owner. After City Council approval, 

 the roll will be sent to the Maricopa County Assessor for inclusion on the fall property tax bills. In 

 June, staff will present the Chandler Enhanced Municipal Services Agreement with the DCCP for  Fiscal 

Year 2021-22, which will include an Operating Plan and District Budget. 

  

4.  Introduction to Ordinance No. 4961, Preliminary Development Plan and Preliminary Plat Approval, 

 PLH20-0023/PLT20-0037 Pecos and McQueen Retail, located at the Southwest Corner of Pecos and 

 McQueen roads Rezoning 

 Move City Council introduce and tentatively adopt Ordinance No. 4961 approving PLH20-0023  Pecos 

and McQueen Retail, located at the southwest corner of Pecos and McQueen roads,  Rezoning from 

Agricultural District (AG-1) to Planned Area Development (PAD) for Neighborhood  Commercial (C-1) uses, 

subject to the conditions as recommended by Planning and Zoning  Commission. 

 Preliminary Development Plan 

 Move City Council approve Preliminary Development Plan PLH20-0023 Pecos and McQueen Retail, 

 located at the southwest corner of Pecos and McQueen roads, subject to the conditions as 

 recommended by Planning and Zoning Commission. 

 Preliminary Plat 

 Move City Council approve Preliminary Plat PLT20-0037 Pecos and McQueen Retail, located at the 

 southwest corner of Pecos and McQueen roads, subject to the condition recommended by  Planning 

and Zoning Commission. 

 

 BACKGROUND FROM COUNCIL MEMO: 

• The site is approximately 3.5 acres 

 

• The applicant is currently working with the City to acquire an approximate 2,660 sq. ft. City of 

Chandler-owned parcel located at the immediate corner of the intersection(an ordinance 

authorizing the sale of this parcel also appears as a separate item on this agenda)  

• Site is currently vacant 

 

 Surrounding Land Use Data: 

North Pecos Rd., then commercial South Single-family residential 

 

East 

McQueen Rd., then single- 

family residential and vacant 

commercial 

 

West 

 

Single-family residential 



 
CHANDLER CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

Thursday, March 25, 2021   Page 5 of 17 

 

General Plan and Area Plan Designations: 

 Existing Proposed 

General Plan Neighborhoods No Change 

Chandler Airpark Area Plan Neighborhood Commercial No Change 

 

 Proposed Development 

Site area 
3.5 acres plus future acquisition of approximate 2,660 sq. ft. City parcel 

 

Building Area 

Pad A: 2,306 sq. ft. (restaurant) Pad B: 

2,800 sq. ft. (restaurant) Pad C: 13,000 

sq. ft. (daycare) Total : 18,106 sq. ft. 

Building Height (max.) 22 ft. 

 

 

Building Setbacks 

Required: Arterial landscaped intersection 50 ft. by 250 ft Proposed: 35 

ft. min. by 223 ft. along Pecos Rd. 

23 ft. min. by 250 ft. along McQueen Rd. 

West: 20ft. Accessory structure 

50 ft. Main building 

South: 50 ft. 

Parking Required 101 parking spaces 

Parking Provided 112 parking spaces 

Building Architecture Contemporary with stucco, brick veneer, metal railings, and steel 

Comprehensive Sign 

Program 
One development sign, two monument signs, wall-mounted signs 

 

Review and Recommendation 

Planning staff finds the proposal is consistent with the General Plan designation of Neighborhoods and 

the Chandler Airpark Area Plan designation of Neighborhood Commercial. The General Plan land use 

designation allows Neighborhood Commercial uses within developments located at arterial 

intersections to serve commercial needs of low-density residential communities. 

 

 

The site layout provides three pad sites, including two proposed restaurants and a daycare. Pad site A is 

proposed as a Starbucks drive-through. Pad site B is proposed as a future restaurant/drive- through and 

a daycare is proposed for Pad C. Building architecture is  

 

contemporary. Building and site layout comply with the intent of the Commercial Design Standards. 

 

Late-hour business policy defines any restaurant that opens its doors to the public one or more hours 

between midnight and 6 a.m., one or more days a week. Also, the policy is applicable when commercial 

development is within 300 ft. of existing residential zoning. The proposed Starbucks anticipates business 

hours from 4:30 a.m. to 10 p.m., daily. These hours and building distance of approximately 206 ft. to the 

west residentially-zoned parcels require approval of the proposed businesses hours from 4:30 a.m. to 6 

a.m. Mitigation proposed includes an 8 ft. tall solid wall along the entire site perimeter and several 

landscaped areas. 

 

The applicant requests relief from the Zoning Code requirement that initial construction include a 



CHANDLER CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

Thursday, March 25, 2021   Page 6 of 17 

 
minimum of 12,000 sq. ft. of building area in Phase One. The request is to allow the flexibility to 

construct Pads B and C in future phases. Development Booklet Attachment A (see attached) identifies 

improvements that will be completed during phase one, which includes Pad A and all si te improvements 

including landscaping, driveways, and parking except for Pad B building area on the south and Pad C 

and associated parking area to the north of Pad C. Pad sites B and C would be covered with 

decomposed granite until market conditions allow development. 

 

The second request is to reduce the 50 ft. by 250 ft. landscape intersection along both Pecos and 

McQueen roads. The reduced landscaped intersection allows the two drive-through pad sites additional 

distance from existing residential and the proposed daycare. The applicant is currently working with the 

City's Real Estate division to purchase the City owned parcel of approximately 2,660 sq. ft. located at the 

immediate corner of the site. 

 

Staff supports the requested waivers due to the infill nature of the site, site acreage and driveway 

location constraints. Staff finds the proposal to be consistent with the goals of the General Plan and 

recommends approval subject to conditions. 

 

Traffic Analysis 

A Traffic Impact Analysis was prepared to analyze existing conditions and traffic with the proposed 

development. Based on the analysis, traffic impacts of the proposed development could be mitigated by 

making adjustments to the existing traffic signal timing at the McQueen Road/Pecos Road inter section 

to maintain acceptable levels of service. Additionally, the Transportation Engineering Division will 

continue to work with the applicant to establish a circulation plan for the Day Care/Pre- 

K. This is being done in an effort to document pick-up/drop-off procedures and minimize potential 

implications to the adjacent public roadways that have occurred with similar land uses. Staff 

recommends a stipulation to address the future daycare's drop off/pick up circulation plan. 

 

Public / Neighborhood Notification 

• This request was noticed in accordance with the requirements of the Chandler Zoning Code. 

• A virtual neighborhood meeting was held on July 21, 2020. Ten residents attended virtually to obtain 

project information. Questions and concerns voiced relate to traffic, construction timing, existing 

irrigation ditch, drive through locations, vehicle exhaust, land uses, and children's safety (daycare). 

No opposition to the request was stated. 

• Planning staff received letters from residents in opposition to the proposed Starbucks stating they 

would rather support local businesses. 

Planning and Zoning Commission Vote Report 

Planning and Zoning Commission meeting March 3, 2021. 

Motion to Approve. 

In Favor: 5 Opposed: 1 (Pekau) Absent: 1 (Kimble) 

 

At the January 20, 2021, Planning and Zoning Commission meeting, the case was continued to conduct a 

Design Review Committee (DRC). On February 3, 2021, the DRC provided the applicant suggestions on 

revising the site plan which include shifting Pad sites A and B further away from the proposed daycare. 

The applicant requested further continuance to the March 3, 2021, Planning and Zoning Commission 

meeting to allow additional time to address the DRC's guidance. At the March 3 

meeting, the Planning and Zoning Commission modified Preliminary Development Plan stipulation 

number 9 by adding "e", effectively requiring all offsite and onsite improvements during phase one 



 
CHANDLER CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

Thursday, March 25, 2021   Page 7 of 17 
except for building pads B and C. The drive-through lane for Pad B is included as an exception to the 

required phase one improvements. 

 

Recommended Conditions of Approval 

Rezoning 

 

1. Development shall be in substantial conformance with the Development Booklet, entitled "Pecos and 

McQueen Retail" and kept on file in the City of Chandler Planning Division, in File No. PLH20-0023, 

modified by such conditions included at the time the Booklet was approved by the Chandler City 

Council and/or as thereafter amended, modified or supplemented by the Chandler City Council.  

2. Completion of the construction of all required off-site street improvements including but not limited 

to paving, landscaping, curb, gutter and sidewalks, median improvements and street lighting to 

achieve conformance with City codes, standard details, and design manuals. 

3. Right-of-way dedications to achieve full half-widths, including turn lanes and deceleration lanes, per 

the standards of the Chandler Transportation Plan. 

4. Late hour businesses shall not be open to the public from 10 p.m. to 4:30 a.m., seven days a week. 

Preliminary Development Plan 

1. Development shall be in substantial conformance with the Development Booklet, entitl ed "Pecos and 

McQueen Retail" and kept on file in the City of Chandler Planning Division, in File No. PLH20-0023, 

modified by such conditions included at the time the Booklet was approved by the Chandler City 

Council and/or as thereafter amended, modified or supplemented by the Chandler City Council. 

2. The site shall be maintained in a clean and orderly manner. 

3. The landscaping in all open-spaces shall be maintained by the property owner or property owners' 

association, and shall be maintained at a level consistent with or better than at the  time of planting. 

4. The landscaping in all rights-of-way shall be maintained by the adjacent property owner or property 

owners' association. 

5. Landscaping plans (including for open spaces, rights-of-way, and street medians) and perimeter walls 

shall be approved by the Planning Administrator. 

6. Solid walls no less than 48 inches in height shall be constructed to screen all drive-through lanes. 

7. Prior to issuance of a building permit, a circulation plan shall be approved by the City's Traffic 

Engineering Division for a daycare/Pre-K business. 

8. No more than two drive-through pad sites shall be permitted. 

9. Phase 1 on-site improvements shall at a minimum include the following: 

a. Construction of Pad A building, associated parking and landscaping 

b. All perimeter landscaping 

c. Driveways to Pads A and B and landscaping along said driveways 

d. Parking areas for Pad B and landscaping within said parking areas 

e. Landscape and parking north and east of Pad C. 

10. Sign packages, including free-standing signs as well as wall-mounted signs, shall be designed in 

coordination with landscape plans, planting materials, storm water retention requirements, and utility 

pedestals, so as not to create problems with sign visibility or prompt the removal of  required 

landscape materials. 

11. Preliminary Development Plan approval does not constitute Final Development Plan approval; 

compliance with the details required by all applicable codes and conditions of the City of Chandler 

and this Preliminary Development Plan shall apply. 

Preliminary Plat 

1. Approval by the City Engineer and Planning Administrator with regard to the details of all 

submittals required by code or condition. 



CHANDLER CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

Thursday, March 25, 2021   Page 8 of 17 

 

 

 

5.  Use Permit, PLH21-0004, Move Human Performance Center 

 Move City Council approve Use Permit, PLH21-0004, Move Human Performance Center, located 

 approximately one-quarter mile east of the southeast corner of Arizona Avenue and Elliot Road  subject 

to the conditions recommended by Planning and Zoning Commission. 

 

6.  Entertainment Use Permit (EUP), PLH20-0042 Rock Lobster Dining Room Expansion 

 Use Permit or EUP 

 Move City Council approve Entertainment Use Permit, PLH20-0042, Rock Lobster Dining Room 

 Expansion, located on the southwest corner of Queen Creek and Dobson roads, subject to the 

 conditions recommended by Planning and Zoning Commission. 
  

7. Agreement with Atkins North America, Inc., for Facility Space Assessment 

 Move City Council award Agreement No. BF1-918-4271 to Atkins North America, Inc., dba 

 Faithful+Gould, for a facility space assessment, in an amount not to exceed $85,113. 

 

 8. Agreement No. FS0-060-4131, Amendment No.1, for OEM Auto Parts and Service 

 Move City Council approve Agreement No. FS0-060-4131, Amendment No. 1, with Tex Chevrolet 

 dba Earnhardt Chevrolet; Earnhardt Enterprises dba Earnhardt Toyota Scion; Earnhardt Gilbert  Dodge, 

Inc., dba Earnhardt Chrysler Dodge Jeep Ram; Earnhardt Chandler Cadillac, Inc.; Earnhardt  Ford Sales 

Company; and Courtesy Auto of Mesa dba Courtesy Dodge for OEM Auto Parts and  Service, for a period 

of one year, April 1, 2021, through March 31, 2022, in a combined total  amount not to exceed $350,000. 

  

9.  Agreement No. AS8-405-3826, Amendment No.1, with Senergy Petroleum, LLC; Supreme Oil Co.; 

 and Western Refining Southwest dba Flyers Energy, LLC, for Fuel  

 Move City Council approve Agreement No. AS8-405-3826, Amendment No. 1, with Senergy 

 Petroleum, LLC; Supreme Oil Co.; and Western Refining Southwest dba Flyers Energy, LLC; for the 

 purchase of fuel, for a three-year period, April 1, 2021, through March 31, 2024, in a combined  total 

amount not to exceed $7,800,000 for the three-year term. 

  

10.  Agreement No. BF1-910-4275, with FiveOliver, LLC; Classic Roofing, LLC; National Waterproofing & 

 Roofing, LLC; and Sprayfoam Southwest, Inc., dba Global Roofing Group; for Roofing Repairs and 

 Maintenance 

 Move that City Council approve Agreement No. BF1-910-4275, with FiveOliver, LLC; Classic Roofing, 

 LLC; National Waterproofing & Roofing, LLC; and Sprayfoam Southwest, Inc., dba Global Roofing 

 Group; for Roofing Repairs and Maintenance in a combined amount not to exceed $860,000, for a 

 one-year term, April 1, 2021, through March 31, 2022. 

  

11.  Competition Impracticable Purchase of Building Assessment Services from Faithful + Gould, Inc. 

 Move City Council approve the competition impracticable purchase of building assessment 

 services from Faithful + Gould, Inc., in the amount of $64,405. 
  

12.  Resolution No. 5444 authorizing the submission of projects for consideration under the 2022 

 Governor’s Office of Highway Safety Grant Program for the Child Safety Seat Clinic program  

 Move City Council pass and adopt Resolution No. 5444, authorizing the submission of a  Governor’s 

Office of Highway Safety Grant, for the Child Safety Seat Clinic program, in the amount  of $49,114, and 



CHANDLER CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

Thursday, March 25, 2021   Page 9 of 17 

 

 

authorizing the City Manager, or designee, to perform grant-specific negotiations  and submit 

documentation on behalf of the City of Chandler. 

 

13.  Resolution No. 5445 adopting an agreement with Honor Health to train Chandler Fire Department 

 paramedic students during their required clinical rotations 

 Move City Council pass and adopt Resolution No. 5445, authorizing the City of Chandler to enter 

 into an agreement with Honor Health to train Chandler Fire Department paramedic students  during 

their required 

 clinical rotations. 

 

14. Resolution No. 5450 approving an agreement with Maricopa Medical for the provision of 

 ambulance services 

 Move City Council pass and adopt Resolution No. 5450, approving an agreement between the City 

 of Chandler and Maricopa Medical for the provision of ambulance services. 

 Council Focus Area(s): 

 

15.  Agreement No. FD9-345-4024, Amendment No. 2, for Fire Emergency Medical Supplies 

Move City Council approve Agreement No. FD9-345-4024, Amendment No. 2, with Bound Tree Medical, 

LLC, for fire emergency medical supplies, in an amount not to exceed $150,000, for the period of April 1, 

2021, through March 31, 2022. 

 

16.  Resolution No. 5446 adopting an agreement with Dignity Health to train Chandler Fire Department 

 paramedic students during their required clinical rotations 

 Move City Council pass and adopt Resolution No. 5446, authorizing the City of Chandler to enter 

 into an agreement with Dignity Health to train Chandler Fire Department paramedic students  during 

their required clinical rotations. 

 

17.  Resolution No. 5447 adopting an agreement with Banner Health to train Chandler Fire  Department 

paramedic students during their required clinical rotations 

 Move City Council pass and adopt Resolution No. 5447, authorizing the City of Chandler to enter 

 Into agreement with Banner Health to train Chandler Fire Department paramedic students during 

 their required clinical rotations. 

 

18.  Agreement No. HR9-962-4000, Amendment No. 2, with Devau for Temporary Staffing Services 

 Move City Council approve Agreement No. HR9-962-4000, Amendment No. 2, with Devau Human 

 Resources, for temporary staffing services, in an amount not to exceed $1,097,000, for a one-year 

 period, April 1, 2021, through March 31, 2022. 

 

19.  Purchase of Servers and Storage from vCore Technology Partners 

 Move City Council approve the purchase of servers and storage from vCore Technology Partners 

 utilizing Omnia Partners Contract No. R191902 in the amount of $320,000. 

  

20.  Agreement No. IT1-910-4232, Amendment No. 1, with WorkGroup Connections, Inc., for Office 365 

 Implementation and Migration Design Plan 

 Move City Council approve Agreement No. IT1-910-4232, Amendment No. 1, with WorkGroup 

 Connections, Inc., for Office 365 Implementation and Migration Design Plan, in the 

 amount of $140,000, for additional email data migration services. 



CHANDLER CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

Thursday, March 25, 2021   Page 10 of 17 

 

 

 

21.  Agreement No. WH7-670-3783, Amendment No. 4, for Plumbing and Irrigation Supplies 

 Move City Council approve Agreement No. WH7-670-3783, Amendment No. 4, with Sprinkler  World 

of Arizona, Inc.; Ewing Irrigation and Landscape Supply; Horizon Distribution, LLC; and Best  Plumbing 

Specialties for the purchase of plumbing and irrigation supplies, for a period of one  year, March  23, 

2021, through March 22, 2022, in a combined total amount not to exceed  $250,000. 

 

22.  New License Series 12, Restaurant Liquor application for Blacksheep Wine, LLC, dba Blacksheep  Wine 

& Merchant 

 Move for recommendation to the State Department of Liquor Licenses and Control for approval of 

 the State Liquor Job No. 135786, a Series 12, Restaurant Liquor License, for Lauren Kay Merrett,  Agent, 

Blacksheep Wine, LLC, dba Blacksheep Wine & Merchant, located at 98 S. San Marcos Place,  and approval 

of the City of Chandler, Series 12, Restaurant Liquor License No. 300235 L12. 

 

23.  Purchase of Office Supplies from Staples Business Advantage 

 Move City Council approve the purchase of office supplies from Staples Business Advantage, 

 utilizing the Sourcewell Contract No. 012320-SCC, for the period of April 1, 2021, through March 

 31, 2022, in an amount not to exceed $133,000. 

 

24.  Project Agreement No. AZ0001.401 with Caliente Construction, Inc., for Neighborhood Resources 

 Capital Renovations 

 Move City Council award Job Order Project Agreement No. AZ0001.401 to Caliente Construction, 

 Inc.,Pursuant to Job Order Master Agreement No. JOC1910.401, for Neighborhood Resources  Capital 

Renovations in an amount not to exceed $128,037.08. 

  
25.  Agreement No. PD6-680-3619, Amendment No.5, with Universal Police Supply Company for Police 

 Supplies 

 Move City Council approve Agreement No. PD6-680-3619, Amendment No. 5, with Universal Police 

 Supply Company, for police supplies, in an amount not to exceed $266,549.25, for the period of  July 1, 

2020, through June 30, 2021 

 

 26.  Resolution No. 5453 Pertaining to the Submission of Projects for Consideration in Arizona’s 2021 

 Highway Safety Plan 

 Move City Council pass and adopt Resolution No. 5453 pertaining to the submission of projects for 

 consideration in Arizona’s 2022 Highway Safety Plan, and authorize the Chief of Police to conduct 

 all negotiations and to execute and submit all documents necessary in connection with such grant. 

  
27.  Introduction of Ordinance No. 4964 Authorizing the Sale of a Parcel of City-Owned Land at the 

 Southwest Corner of McQueen Road and Pecos Road 

 Move City Council introduce and tentatively adopt Ordinance No. 4964 authorizing the sale of a  parcel 

of City-owned land at southwest corner of McQueen Road and Pecos Road to WNDG, LLC,  an Arizona 

Limited Liability Company. 

  

28.  Purchase of Refuse and Recycling Containers and Parts from Otto Environmental Systems 

 Move City Council approve the purchase of refuse and recycling containers and parts, from Otto 



CHANDLER CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

Thursday, March 25, 2021   Page 11 of 17 

 

 

 Environmental Systems,utilizing City of Mesa Contract No. 2018048, in an amount not to exceed 

 $325,000. 

  

29.  Professional Services Agreement No. WW1901.201, Amendment No. 2, with Wilson Engineers, LLC, 

 for the Water Reclamation Facility Improvements 

 Move City Council award Professional Services Agreement No. WW1901.201, Amendment No. 2, to 

 Wilson Engineers, LLC, for additional design services, for the Water Reclamation Facility 

 Improvements, in the amount of $222,570, for a revised contract amount not to exceed  $4,122,380. 

 

30.  Resolution No. 5448, Approving an Intergovernmental Agreement with the Flood Control District 

 of Maricopa County for the City of Chandler Stormwater Management Master Plan Study 

 Move City Council pass and adopt Resolution No. 5448, approving an Intergovernmental 

 Agreement with the Flood Control District of Maricopa County for the City of Chandler Stormwater 

 Management Master Plan Study and Authorizing the Mayor to execute the agreement. 

  

31.  Project Agreement No. WW2014.402, with FPS Civil, LLC, for the Sewer Manhole Rehabilitation 

 Move City Council award Project Agreement No. WW2014.402, to FPS Civil, LLC, pursuant to Job Order 

Contract No. JOC1902.401, for the Sewer Manhole Rehabilitation, in an amount not to  exceed $1,046,278.53. 

  

32.  Professional Services Agreement No. WW2014.452, with Dibble CM, LLC, for the Sewer Manhole 

 Rehabilitation Construction Management Services 

 Move City Council award Professional Services Agreement No. WW2014.452, to Dibble CM, LLC, for 

 the Sewer Manhole Rehabilitation Construction Management Services, in an amount not to  exceed 

$175,000. 

  

33.  Resolution No. 5451, Approving the Intergovernmental Agreement with the Flood Control District 

 of Maricopa County for Detroit Basin Area Drainage Improvements 

 Move City Council pass and adopt Resolution No. 5451, approving the Intergovernmental 

 Agreement with the Flood Control District of Maricopa County for the Detroit Basin Area Drainage 

 Improvements, and Authorizing the Mayor to Execute the Agreement 

  

34.  Project Agreement No. ST2017.402, with DBA Construction, Inc., for the Quiet Zone Improvements, 

 Phase 2 

 Move City Council award Project Agreement No. ST2017.402 to DBA Construction, Inc., Pursuant to 

 Job Order Contract No. JOC1916.401, for the Quiet Zone Improvements, Phase 2, in an amount not 

 to exceed $1,322,738.40. 

 

PUBLIC HEARINGS:  

 

35.  Annexation Public Hearing, Approximately 9.0 Acres located East of the Southeast Corner of  Cooper 

and Chandler Heights Roads 

 

1. Open Public Hearing 

 

MAYOR HARTKE opened the Public Hearing. 

 

2. Staff Presentation 



CHANDLER CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

Thursday, March 25, 2021   Page 12 of 17 

 

 

 

MR. CERECERES introduced the item. Mr. Cereceres said the property is located east of the southeast corner of 

Chandler Heights and Cooper roads.  He said the site is approximately nine acres, currently zoned Rural 43, and 

contains a single family home which will be removed. The site is bordered by county land and zoned Rural 43 

to the west, east and south, with existing single-family lots, zoned Planned Area Development to the north and 

southeast of the proposed site. The General Plan designates this site as Neighborhood and more specifically 

the Southeast Chandler Area Plan designates the land use of rural/Agrarian.  City services are available from 

Chandler Heights Road.  The applicant has submitted a rezoning and preliminary development plan for a 22 

single-family lot subdivision, which is currently being reviewed by staff and will appear on an upcoming 

agenda. Upon annexation, initial City zoning will be AG-1 (Agricultural District).  The site was posted for public 

hearing and staff has not received any inquiries. 

 

3. Council Discussion 

 

COUNCILMEMBER ORLANDO asked what the time frame is for the home project coming forward. 

 

MR. CERECERES responded that there is no set date yet. 

 

4. Discussion from the Audience 

 

MAYOR HARTKE asked if there was any public comment. There was none. 

 

5. Close Public Hearing 

 

MAYOR HARTKE closed the public hearing. 

 

36.  Annexation Public Hearing, Approximately 5.11 Acres located at the Southeast Corner of  Arizona 

Avenue and Appleby Road 

 

 1. Open Public Hearing 

 

MAYOR HARTKE opened the Public Hearing. 

 

 2. Staff Presentation 

 

MR. MEHLHORN introduced the item. He said the property is located at the southeast corner of Arizona 

Avenue and Appleby Road.  He said the parcel is approximately 5.11 acres and currently zoned Rural 43 within 

Maricopa County. A single-family home currently exists on the site to be demolished upon redevelopment. The 

abutting land uses are as follows; Appleby Road to the north, a vacant lot owned by an existing church and a 

single-family sub-development currently under construction; to the east is the Union Pacific Railroad track and 

further east is a large unincorporated lot currently being utilized as a commercial nursery; to the south is a 

single-family subdivision zoned PAD for single family and to the west is Arizona Avenue and Hamilton High 

School.  This request was noted and three signs were posted on site.  Staff has not received any comments in 

regards to this annexation. Utilities are available off of Arizona Avenue. A rezoning and preliminary 

development plan request for a multi-family development has also been submitted for the site and is currently 

being reviewed by staff. This will be appear on a forthcoming Council agenda, with the date to be determined. 

The initial City zoning upon annexation will be Agricultural.  



CHANDLER CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

Thursday, March 25, 2021   Page 13 of 17 

 

 

 

 3. Council Discussion 

 

COUNCILMEMBER ORLANDO asked if this has gone through the public hearing process and if it is a multi-

family project. 

 

MR. MEHLHORN responded that it has not, and that it is potentially a multi-family project. 

 

VICE MAYOR STEWART stated this is being presented as an annexation for multi-family housing. He asked if 

staff knows what type of density the housing would look like. 

 

MR. MEHLHORN responded that given it has not gone through any public process yet, it is subject to change.  

As of the most recent plan 78 units are being proposed on 5.1 acres, which is medium density. 

 

 4. Discussion from the Audience 

 

MAYOR HARTKE asked if there was any public comment. There was none. 

 

5. Close Public Hearing 

 

MAYOR HARTKE closed the public hearing. 

 

UNSCHEDULED PUBLIC APPEARANCES 

MAYOR HARTKE asked Kelly Schwab, City Attorney, if there was on-going litigation related to Mr. Wessell’s 

subject regarding the Chandler Municipal Airport. 

 

MS. SCHWAB responded that there is on-going litigation as well as a complaint with the FAA that is being 

processed. 

 

MARVIN WESSELL JR., 100 S. Stellar Parkway, Chandler, AZ 85226. Said he is a stakeholder in the Chandler 

Municipal Airport. He stated he’s already made aware that it is the City’s obligation to file the FAA registrants 

packet. He has worked with City Management for several years to improve the City’s compliance.  He said that 

the City’s resistance to comply left him with no choice but to file an informal complaint with the FAA. The 

formal signed response to the FAA from the City contained untruthful statements.  He thought the person who 

submitted these statements, the FAA knows some of those statements are false, committed perjury. At this 

time he did not know if he was dealing with a dishonest person from the City or a dishonest City. As a long-

term resident of Chandler, he hoped that he would find that it is only a few bad apples. He said he discovered 

at a personal level, the fire protection services provided at the Chandler Airport are disgraceful, less than 

standard, especially since that is consistently ranked top 20 busiest general aviation airports in the country. He 

said he has attempted to let City management be aware of this for several years, and hopefully he was getting 

his point across to someone who can implement positive changes. Mr. Wessell said that the FAA grant also 

requires the City to undertake reasonable consultation with affected parties using the airport at which projects 

are proposed. The web revitalization project completed last year was done so without consultation.  The end 

product are aircraft tie downs that are ineffective and degraded the value of the usefulness of the ramp. The 

current Airport Master Plan Planning Advisory Committee excluded several hundred users at the airport such as 

private hangar owners, City hangars and City tie down tenants. Why this has excluded a majority of the airport 

users from actively participating is unknown to the users. The only opportunity for airport users to participate 



CHANDLER CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

Thursday, March 25, 2021   Page 14 of 17 

 

 

in the Airport Master Plan is to leave comment cards or leave comments on the website after watching the fully 

prepared YouTube presentation. Approximately six airport users label it as an impromptu meeting on a Friday 

morning. That one hour meeting was nothing more than an argument about fire protection or the lack there of. 

The current Airport Master Plan is a $100 million plan that can only be described by the users as ridiculous. 

Suggesting to move the airport terminal 50 yards for the cost of $8 million, and zero dollars for any upgrade to 

improve fire access or add a fire station are examples of the obscurity of the plan.  He said if the current plan is 

voted upon favorably by the City, he would do my best to see that it will be ligated by the FAA due to failure to 

comply with the FAA regulations.  This will give the airport the opportunity to be active participants in the 

Airport Master Plan.  

 

VICTOR HARDY, 2220 E. Spruce Drive, Chandler, AZ 85286, thanked the Council for the honor to speak briefly 

regarding For Our City Chandler, a group of non-profits, faith based, social service groups, business volunteer 

and the City of Chandler.  He said that For Our City Chandler focuses on three things; collaboration, 

compassion and community.  As the executive director of For Our City he would like to give the Council an 

update of the activities from 2020 and plans for 2021. He said 2020 was a productive year for their groups as 

for many of the projects were smaller and focused more on helping non-profits with resources to serve 

Chandler residents. They had a few notable successes. One was helping to allocate $90,000 to Chandler non-

profits going above and beyond during the pandemic and another was putting on a drive through Operation 

Back to School event. The event was located at four schools in Chandler and included distribution of 3,309 

socks, 2,315 masks, 3,000 backpacks, 1,200 uniforms, 2,000 community bags and 691 shoes. He said 180 

volunteers helped with 627 volunteer hours, which makes a total relative value of $17,000. The total added 

back to the to the community was $149,153. This can only happen with over 40 community partners. He said 

they also work with Title 1 school counselors and Fans Across America for more socks, shoes and underwear.  

In 2021, they are excited to share the For Our City Chandler Board, it has officially been created and has begun 

meeting. They will soon be kicking off their 2021 Operation Back to School event campaign and planning 

committee.  Hs said they have also distributed a resource guide for residents. In the book people will find 

resources for fifteen partners that include childcare resources, domestic violence shelters, dental services, 

employment and education, food assistance, legal assistance, medical assistance, special needs programs, 

transportation, emergency housing, emergency home repair and other services.    

 

CURRENT EVENTS 

 

1. Mayor's Announcements 

 

MAYOR HARTKE shared Governor Ducey’s new Executive Order regarding the wearing of face coverings 

amongst a number of other guidelines. He said that the City is looking at how this will be implemented. Mayor 

Hartke expressed that he is extremely grateful for the actions of our Chandler businesses and residents have 

done to reduce the spread of COVID-19 over this past year and we continue to see positive signs as the end of 

the pandemic is near, with people being able to be vaccinated and the number of cases decline in our 

community. He stated as of today we will comply with the Governor’s guidelines and will be encouraging best 

practices including social distancing, vaccinations, wearing face coverings when you do not have the 

opportunity to social distance as well as hand washing as this moves across the state from a mandate to  

encouragement. He stated businesses are able to establish their own measure, as well as non-profits and other 

enterprises can set and enforce their own policies. Mayor Hartke stated it’s going to be confusing and shared 

that a number of emails have been received asking for clarification. He mentioned that there is mixed 

messaging and asks everyone to respect their neighbors and the policies that are set by different 

establishments, until further clarification is defined as we work together in this community and across this state.  



CHANDLER CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

Thursday, March 25, 2021   Page 15 of 17 

 

 

 

MAYOR HARTKE announced earlier this week he had the pleasure of attending Intel’s announcement of its $20 

billion expansion at their Ocotillo campus in south Chandler. This is the largest private investment of any kind 

in Arizona history. The construction of the two new fabrication facilities is slated to start later this year. More 

than 21,000 direct, indirect and construction jobs will be supported by this project.  This is an incredible 

investment in our community, and a great example to the innovative and world changing technology that is 

created right here in Chandler. Mayor Hartke thanked Acting City Manager, Josh Wright, Economic 

Development Director, Micah Miranda, and Public Works and Utilities Director, John Knudson for working 

swiftly with Intel to make this possible. He also thanked Intel on their continued partnership with the City of 

Chandler. 

 

2. Council's Announcements 

 

COUNCILMEMBER HARRIS shared that he kicked off Women’s History Month by hosting a roundtable with 

women from all over the community to discuss their needs and concerns.  He thanked Mayor Hartke for 

proclaiming March 8th as International Women’s Day in Chandler. He also thanked the women who 

participated. Councilmember Harris said he looks forward to continuing discussions throughout the rest of this 

year with other groups in the community. 

 

COUNCILMEMBER HARRIS shared this past weekend he was acknowledged by the Veterans, asking him to 

come to their post and speak. He shared his appreciation to Post 75 for their recognition and mentioned they 

were celebrating their 103 birthday in Chandler. 

 

COUNCILMEMBER HARRIS shared this past weekend he was joined by hundreds of people from across the 

Valley for the “Stop Asian Hate” rally at City Hall. This peaceful and powerful demonstration shows our 

commitment to supporting the many cultures our diverse community is home to, and our intolerance toward 

discrimination against any of our neighbors. He thanked Mayor Hartke, former Councilmember Sam Huang, 

and all those who came out in support. 

 

COUNCILMEMBER LOPEZ acknowledged Intel’s announcement and recognized them for being a great partner 

and their involvement in the community.  

 

COUNCILMEMBER LOPEZ shared that the Chandler Jazz Festival is scheduled for April 8–10, and it returns to 

Downtown Chandler just in time to celebrate Jazz Appreciation Month. To ensure the health and safety of jazz 

aficionados and Downtown visitors alike, this year’s free festival will take place over three days at four open 

areas throughout Chandler’s Historic Square. The complete entertainment schedule is available on line.    

 

VICE MAYOR STEWART said now that the weather is starting to warm up, it is the perfect time to get outside 

and enjoy everything Chandler has to offer. He shared the Chandler’s Annual Easter Celebration is coming up 

on April 3. Registration is still open through March 31 for the Chandler Family Bike Ride, which wil l  take place 

April 10-18. Vice Mayor Hartke also mentioned the Downtown’s weekly Farmer’s Market continues each 

Saturday. Check out Visit Chandler’s event calendar for all the fun ways to experience our community this 

spring. He also thanked Intel, GPEC, ACA and our staff for continuing to create opportunities for our 

community. 

 

COUNCILMEMBER ROE mentioned that Council met earlier this month to review the progress made toward our 

Strategic Framework goals and to discuss how we could improve upon our Focus Areas. This working retreat 



CHANDLER CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

Thursday, March 25, 2021   Page 16 of 17 

 

 

was very valuable for both the experienced Councilmembers and those new to this dais. There were a lot of big 

ideas and great suggestions made, and he looks forward to continuing those discussions so we can do our best 

in planning for the future. He also thanked Intel and the incredible City staff for all their efforts and 

professionalism.   

 

COUNCILMEMBER ROE also acknowledged Victor and Cynthia Hardy for their presence and involvement in the 

community. 

 

COUNCILMEMBER ELLIS shared that as part of the kick off for Women’s History Month, she had the pleasure of 

meeting Girl Scout Troop 3599. She stated they were interested in learning about democracy and she spent the 

whole time discussing it with them and answering their detailed questions. 

 

COUNCILMEMBER ELLIS recognized the women working in the City and those women married to our 

Councilmembers. She recognized each Councilmembers’ wife and presented each Councilmember with a small  

gift to give to their wives. 

 

COUNCILMEMBER ORLANDO mentioned Northrop Grumman announced this week they have been awarded a 

contract by the Missile Defense Agency for the Next Generation Inceptor program. This is a $3.9 billion contract 

for the rapid development and flight test of an interceptor designed to defend the nation against the most 

complex long-ranged threats. He mentioned that he was in the industry, now unclassified, when we conducted 

the first intercept missile and it was his team, at that time Northrop Grumman was Space Data. Northrop 

Grumman has teamed up with Raytheon Missiles & Defense to deliver this solution on an accelerated schedule.  

Northrop Grumman in one of Chandler’s largest employers, and with this contract will be adding hundreds of 

job opportunities. Congrats to Northrop Grumman!  

 

COUNCILMEMBER ORLANDO thanked City employees for their services, especially during the pandemic. He 

stated the announcement tonight is not a declaration of victory, just that we’re moving to the next stage.  

Councilmember Orlando mentioned to the Acting City Manager that the policies set forth to protect the 

employees runs parallel with what employees have mentioned to him. 

3. City Manager’s Announcements 

ACTING CITY MANGER WRIGHT had no announcements. 

 

ADJOURNMENT:  The meeting was adjourned at 6:39 p.m. 

 

ATTEST:  __________________________  ______________________________ 

                  City Clerk                                                   Mayor 

 

Approval Date of Minutes:  April 8, 2021 

 

CERTIFICATION 

 

I hereby certify that the foregoing minutes are a true and correct copy of the minutes of the Regular Meeting 

of the City Council of Chandler, Arizona, held on the 25th day of March, 2021.  I further certify that the meeting 

was duly called and held and that a quorum was present. 



CHANDLER CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

Thursday, March 25, 2021   Page 17 of 17 

 

 

 

 

DATED this _______ day of April, 2021. 

 

       ___________________________ 

                                                           City Clerk 



 

 
 

CHANDLER CITY COUNCIL  

Work Session Meeting Minutes 

Thursday, March 25, 2021 

 

MINUTES OF THE WORK SESSION MEETING OF THE HONORABLE MAYOR AND CITY 

COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CHANDLER, ARIZONA, held on Thursday, March 25, 2021, in the 

Chandler City Council Conference Room, 88 E. Chicago Street, Chandler, Arizona.  

 

THE MEETING WAS CALLED TO ORDER BY MAYOR KEVIN HARTKE AT 4:31 P.M. 

 

The following members of the Council were present:  

Kevin Hartke   Mayor 

      Mark Stewart   Vice Mayor 

René Lopez    Councilmember 

      OD Harris   Councilmember 

      Christine Ellis   Councilmember 

      Terry Roe   Councilmember 

      Matt Orlando   Councilmember 

 

City staff present: Josh Wright, Acting City Manager; Kelly Schwab, City Attorney; Dana DeLong, City 

Clerk; Debra Stapleton, Assistant City Manager; Matt Burdick, Communications and Public Affairs 

Director; Dawn Lang, Management Services Director; Matt Dunbar, Budget Manager; Ryan Peters, 

Governmental Relations & Policy Manager; Micah Miranda, Economic Development Director 

 

DISCUSSION  

 

1.  Budget Workshop #2 

 

JOSH WRIGHT, Acting City Manager, introduced the item and called for a staff presentation.  

 

DAWN LANG, Management Services Director, presented the following presentation.  

• FY2021-22 Budget theme 

o “Moving Forward Together” 

o Our vision 

▪ We are a world-class City that provides an exceptional quality of life 

• 01 – Assessed Valuation and Property Tax Update 

o 02 – Public Safety Personnel Retirement System (PSPRS) Pay-Down Commitment 

o 03- FY2021-22 General Fund Operating Budget Update 

o 04- Proposed 5-Year One-time General Fund Balance Forecast 

o 05- Proposed 10-Year Capital Improvement Program ( CIP) 

 



Chandler City Council Work Session  

Thursday, March 25, 2021  Page 2 

 

 

COUNCILMEMBER ORLANDO asked when Council would look at the $30 million from the Federal 

Government.  

 

MR. WRIGHT said that would be presented to Council at the next strategic planning meeting for 

direction on how Council would like to use those funds.  

 

COUNCILMEMBER ORLANDO asked when the meeting would be. 

 

MR. WRIGHT said mid-April.  

 

a. Assessed Valuation and Property Tax Update 

 

MATT DUNBAR, Budget Manager, continued the presentation.  

• Assessed Valuation and Property Tax Update 

• Property Valuation and Tax Rate History  

o Tax rate was increased during declining values, and decreased during periods of increasing 

values 

 

VICE MAYOR STEWART asked if this included 2020. 

 

MR. DUNBAR said this included the current year. 

 

MS. LANG said this provides a historical look compared to the current year. 

 

VICE MAYOR STEWART said in the last six months property values have increased and if this includ ed 

that change. 

 

MS. LANG said yes.  

 

MR. DUNBAR continued the presentation.  

• Property Tax Rate Comparison  

o FY2020-21 per $100 of Assessed Valuation 

• Breakdown of $1 of Typical Chandler Property Tax Bill  

o Typical Tax Bill Cents from Every Dollar Taxed 

▪ City of Chandler 9.8 cents 

▪ Maricopa County and Special Districts 22.7 cents 

▪ Public Schools and Community College Districts 67.5 cents 

 

MAYOR HARTKE asked when the information would be available regarding the community colleges 

and school districts about their totals. 

 

MS. LANG said during the summer before the property tax bill comes out.  

 

MAYOR HARTKE asked if that would be in the next fiscal year.  



Chandler City Council Work Session  

Thursday, March 25, 2021  Page 3 

 

 

MS. LANG said yes.  

 

MR. DUNBAR continued the presentation.   

• Assessed Valuation Impacts with Rates Unchanged 

 

COUNCILMEMBER ROE asked about seniors with certain income and if they could freeze their 

property taxes. 

 

MR. DUNBAR said there are certain qualifications for reduced rates on property taxes by impacting 

their assessed values. Mr. Dunbar said this does not affect the City’s rate.   

 

MR. DUNBAR continued the presentation.  

• Assessed Valuation Impacts with Reduced Primary Rates 

o Lowering the Primary Rate from .2501 to .2426 to eliminate tax increase from appreciation 

would result in a $259,834 reduction in ongoing property tax levy.  

• Impact of Increase to Median Value Homeowner 

o $0.01 increase to Property Tax Rate brings $346K additional levy to the City  

o Should primary tax rate remain flat or be reduced, lowering ongoing revenue and 

eliminating need for Truth-in-Taxation process? 

o Note: Last time Truth-in-Taxation process was required was FY 2009-10 

 

COUNCILMEMBER ORLANDO asked if this included the primary and secondary rate.  

 

MR. DUNBAR said yes. 

 

COUNCILMEMBER ORLANDO confirmed they still have to do publications anyway about the tax rate. 

 

MR. DUNBAR said yes, they have to post when they set the levy but there is an additional post when 

taxes go up.  

 

COUNCILMEMBER ORLANDO said they have done those in the past.  

 

MR. DUNBAR said yes, in fiscal year 2009 2010. 

 

COUNCILMEMBER ORLANDO asked if they did two postings for an additional $0.13 cents per month, 

they could hire additional public safety officers.  

 

COUNCILMEMBER ELLIS asked if the median value of homeowners is $272,000 and asked where.  

 

MR. DUNBAR said they look at all the homes in Chandler and this is the middle so half the homes are 

under this amount and half the homes are over this amount. The full cash value is not truly reflective 

of market value. 

 



Chandler City Council Work Session  

Thursday, March 25, 2021  Page 4 

 

COUNCILMEMBER ORLANDO said the assessed value is different than the sale value which would be a 

lot higher.  

 

COUNCILMEMBER ELLIS said the market still impacts the assessed value. 

 

MR. DUNBAR said yes, the property value has gone up and would impact their assessed value. Mr. 

Dunbar said the primary rate still applies and the decision is to determine if there should be a 

reduction to keep taxes the same or keep the tax rate the same and get additional funds.  

 

COUNCILMEMBER ORLANDO said they could receive additional dollars without increasing the rate 

because of the assessed value.  

 

COUNCILMEMBER LOPEZ said if you drop the rate you lose some funding.  

 

MR. DUNBAR said there is growth in the City which also increases the properties that are taxed.  

 

MAYOR HARTKE asked for negative impacts by keeping the rate flat.  

 

MR. DUNBAR said if they keep the rate flat, the Truth-In-Taxation states that they are in effect causing 

a tax increase because the property valuation has gone up. Mr. Dunbar said that is why there would be 

an additional posting would be required.  

 

MAYOR HARTKE said the choice is to give the appearance of raising taxes or lowering slightly and 

losing some funds. Mayor Hartke asked if there were other steps to be completed. 

 

MS. LANG said there would be a press release, an additional posting, and only if the increase was 15% 

would there need to be a unanimous vote but since this would not be that it would just be a regular 

vote.  

 

COUNCILMEMBER ORLANDO said the last time this was done was during the recession. 

Councilmember Orlando asked if it was left the same and if Council gave direction for it to be used for 

Public Safety. 

 

MS. LANG said yes, that would be Council’s decision.  

 

MAYOR HARTKE said he would want to see all the other needs in the City before deciding.  

 

VICE MAYOR STEWART said he would support the rate decrease as there has not been a meaningful 

increase in social security.  

 

COUNCILMEMBER ORLANDO said those who qualify could reduce their property taxes as 

Councilmember Roe mentioned.  

 

COUNCILMEMBER ROE said he would be in favor of a decrease.  

 



Chandler City Council Work Session  

Thursday, March 25, 2021  Page 5 

 

COUNCILMEMBER HARRIS said he would be in favor of a decrease. 

 

COUNCILMEMBER ELLIS said they would be using ongoing revenue that they could do something 

with and there are needs across the City.  

 

COUNCILMEMBER ROE asked how much of the property taxes makes up the ongoing budget. 

  

VICE MAYOR STEWART said Chandler’s culture of being a low tax community and providing great 

service has created an environment that is generating more sales tax in the community.  

 

COUNCILMEMBER ORLANDO said this could be applied for public safety and for $0.13 cents a month 

there would be 2.5 more officers.  

 

COUNCILMEMBER ELLIS said they would have to find money somehow because there is a need and 

that money would have to come from somewhere. Councilmember Ellis was in support of a lower rate.  

 

MAYOR HARTKE said he was in support of lowering the rate. There were 6 in support of lower and 1 in 

support of remaining the same.  

 

MS. LANG said the primary property tax revenue is 3.06% of the total ongoing money.  

 

b. Public Safety Personnel Retirement System (PSPRS) Pay-Down Commitment.  

 

MS. LANG continued the presentation. 

• Public Safety Personnel Retirement System (PSPRS) Pay-Down Commitment 

• PSPRS Actuarial Report Results 6/30/20 

o Unfunded Liability decreased $9.4M from Prior Year’s total of $180.5M 

▪ Police $114.4M 

▪ Fire $56.7M 

▪ Total $171.1M 

o Employer Contribution decreased $340K from Prior Year’s total of $19.4 M 

▪ Police $12.8M 

▪ Fire $6.3M 

▪ Total $19.1M 

o Normal portion of contribution 31% 

o Unfunded portion of contribution 69% 

 

COUNCILMEMBER LOPEZ asked if this was just the City’s portion. 

 

MS. LANG said yes.  

 

MS. LANG continued the presentation.  

• PSPRS Net Unfunded Liability balances Update 

 

COUNCILMEMBER ORLANDO asked if ASRS increased.  



Chandler City Council Work Session  

Thursday, March 25, 2021  Page 6 

 

 

MS. LANG said yes, slightly.  

 

COUNCILMEMBER ORLANDO asked if the act passed by Congress that impacted pensions and asked 

if this impacted the City at all. 

 

MR. WRIGHT said that bucket was set up for a particular class of pensions for private employers, but 

was not for municipal pensions.  

 

MS. LANG continued the presentation. 

• PSPRS Employee/Employer Rates Comparison Fire 

• PSPRS Employee/Employer Rates Comparison Police 

• PSPRS One-Time Funding Forecast 

o Total One-time Funding in millions 

o $5.5M of payment goes towards Employer Contribution 

o Chandler’s Pension Commitment: 

▪ Make additional annual one-time payments to reduce PSPRS pension liability 

▪ Increase projection when possible to offset investment losses and lower payroll 

growth 

• Increased forecast by $12M 

 

COUNCILMEMBER LOPEZ said they did not make the target this year and asked if the target was 

reached last year. 

 

MS. LANG said last year it was closer than this year and they had a very bad year this year. Ms. Lang 

said this year the rates are much better and are anticipating a significant offset. Ms. Lang said when 

they worked with the modeler they did not put in that target number and instead used more 

conservative numbers.  

 

MS. LANG continued the presentation.  

• FY 2021-22 PSPRS Unfunded Liability Pay-Down Benefits 

o Updated Actuarial Assumptions in new PSPRS Modeler 

o Started with 20 year amortization, and now have 16 years remaining 

o Continuing additional payments 

▪ Unfunded Liability pay-down is accelerated and fully funded within timeline Achieve 

annual Employer Contribution reductions of almost $100M through 2036 

 

VICE MAYOR STEWART asked if there were people on the Board that are genuinely interested in 

seeing this lowered.  

 

MS. LANG said yes, there have been positive changes in PSPRS.  

 

COUNCILMEMBER ORLANDO said there have been payments made of $37 million and asked for 

clarification about what staff is proposing for this year.  

 



Chandler City Council Work Session  

Thursday, March 25, 2021  Page 7 

 

MS. LANG said for 2020-21, the payment was $20.5 million and of that $5.5 million was employer 

contributions. Ms. Lang said they are proposing in the new fiscal year for a total payment of $19.2 and 

$5.5 million is for employer contributions.  

 

COUNCILMEMBER ORLANDO asked if they modeled putting in more money.  

 

MS. LANG said yes, they were able to see benefits at this amount that would reflect in the later years.  

 

COUNCILMEMBER ORLANDO asked if staff was looking for direction to increase the payment using 

one-time dollars.  

 

MS. LANG said it is an option that has been discussed. Ms. Lang said there are some additional dollars 

and it would be a positive thing to do.  

 

COUNCILMEMBER ORLANDO said there had to be a balance between this and other projects like CIP. 

 

MS. LANG said there are restrictions on certain funds and once they receive further clarification on 

some federal dollars the City is receiving then there may be a way to make up the one-time dollars 

being used.  

 

COUNCILMEMBER ORLANDO asked how much of the AZCares dollars was left. 

 

MS. LANG said about $8 million. 

 

MAYOR HARTKE said he was cautions about putting all of those funds towards this. 

 

COUNCILMEMBER ORLANDO said he wanted to know all the options available.  

 

MS. LANG said yes, it would be possible.  

 

COUNCILMEMBER ROE said this needs to be paid and those in the future would appreciate what 

Council could do today. Councilmember Roe said they need to pay this off while they have the means.  

 

VICE MAYOR STEWART said the one-time dollars paid now would free up $1 million dollars in the 

future or potentially more that could support other areas.  

 

MS. LANG said this forecast is based conservative numbers, but it is hard to say what will happen in 

the future.  

 

MAYOR HARTKE said he is hearing some of the Council say they want to use one-time dollars to free 

up ongoing dollars in the future.  

 

COUNCILMEMBER LOPEZ said this is not the only place that needs attention so there needs to be a 

balance between this and other areas.  

 



Chandler City Council Work Session  

Thursday, March 25, 2021  Page 8 

 

MAYOR HARTKE asked when staff needs Council’s recommendation. 

 

MS. LANG said these are staff’s recommendations and if there is a desire to add more than that 

direction could be given after more information comes from the State.  

 

c. FY 2021-22 General Fund Operating Budget Update 

 

MS. LANG continued the presentation.  

• FY 2021-22 General Fund Operating Budget Update 

• FY 2021-22 Ongoing Decision Package Recommendations (All Funds) 

o All Funds 

▪ $7.3M in requests 

▪ $5.5M recommended 

▪ *$5.1M net of revenue offsets 

o General Fund (GF) 

▪ $6.1M in requests 

▪ $3.8M recommended 

▪ *$3.4M net of revenue offsets 

o 9 FTE GF additions 

▪ *4 Fire (3 ambulances and 1 rover Fire Fighters) 

▪ *2 Police (SRO Police Officer and Mental Health Coordinator)  

▪ *1 City Magistrate (Mental Health Court) 

▪ *1 Neighborhood Resources (Homeless Navigator) 

▪ *1 Devl Services (Fiber) 

 

COUNCILMEMBER ORLANDO asked if the SRO position was partially funded. 

 

MS. LANG said there is a grant offset.  

 

COUNCILMEMBER ORLANDO asked if the Mental Health Coordinator was partially funded. 

 

MS. LANG said that was fully funded. 

 

COUNCILMEMBER ORLANDO asked about the City Magistrate funding. 

 

MS. LANG said it was fully funded.  

 

MAYOR HARTKE asked how many vacant positions there currently are.  

 

MR. WRIGHT said there are 111 vacancies Citywide and there is discussion around some things to do 

to speed up the process and fill the vacancies.  

 

MAYOR HARTKE asked how many were in the Police Department. 

 



Chandler City Council Work Session  

Thursday, March 25, 2021  Page 9 

 

MR. WRIGHT said he did not have the information broken down by department, but would provide 

that information.  

 

MR. DUNBAR continued the presentation. 

• FY 2021-22 One-Time Decision Package Recommendations (All Funds) 

o All Funds 

▪ $9.5M in requests 

▪ $7.5M recommended 

▪ *$7M net of revenue offsets 

o General Fund  

▪ $8.1M in requests 

▪ $6.2M recommended 

▪ *$5.7M net of revenue offsets 

o Significant Enhancements  

▪ Court technology Projects 

▪ City-wide Technology Projects 

▪ Enhanced Street Maintenance 

▪ Police Investigative and Technology Equipment 

 

VICE MAYOR STEWART asked if they right size departments and move personnel as needed. 

 

MR. WRIGHT said yes, to a limited degree. Every time there is a vacant position there is analysis to 

verify the position is needed or if there is another need.  

 

d. Proposed 5-Year One-time General Fund Balance Forecast 

 

MS. LANG continued the presentation.  

• Proposed 5-Year One-Time General Fund Balance Forecast 

• 5-Year One-Time general Fund Balance Forecast Page 1 

• 5-Year One-Time general Fund Balance Forecast Page 2 

 

COUNCILMEMBER ROE asked about wage compression and if that has been considered. 

 

MS. LANG said for the wage compression and market analysis, in one of the decision packages, there 

is a study that staff is hoping to complete in 2021-22. Ms. Lang said the changes recommended would 

be ongoing in nature and there would be a small amount set aside to address those 

recommendations.  

 

COUNCILMEMBER ORLANDO asked for clarification on the total numbers and reserves.  

 

MS. LANG explained the allocated balance and the reserves.  

 

MS. LANG continued the presentation.  

• 5-Year One-Time general Fund Balance Forecast Page 3 

• General Fund Balance Reserves/Contingencies  



Chandler City Council Work Session  

Thursday, March 25, 2021  Page 10 

 

o Total FY 2021-22 Estimated year End General Fund Balance $137,684,594 

▪ Unassigned 

• $39.2M  

• 15% General Fund Contingency ($38.9M) and Council Contingency ($325K) 

▪ Assigned 

• $97.2M 

• Budget Stabilization Reserve ($10M) Minimum Reserve Target  

• Represents 4 months of budgeted operating revenues $86,433,000 (63%) 

• Capital and Econ Devl Reserves 

• Personnel Reserves 

• Public Safety Reserves 

• Fuel/Utility Reserves 

• Domestic Violence and Photo Red Light designations 

▪ Restricted 

• $1.3M 

• Court Enhanced Funds (CEF) 

 

MR. DUNBAR continued the presentation.  

• Proposed 5-Year One-Time General Fund Balance Forecast 

o General Fund Balances by Fiscal Year End  

• Proposed 5-Year Enterprise Fund Balance Projections 

o Water Rate Plan 

▪ FY 2021-22 +2% 

▪ FY 2023-24 +2.5% 

▪ FY 2025-26 +4.0% 

▪ Maintains 20% Operating Reserve 

▪ Focus on maintaining aging infrastructure: facilities, wells, water mains, and filters 

▪ Intel estimate incorporated 

o Wastewater Rate Plan 

▪ FY 2021-22 +8% 

▪ FY 2023-24 +8% 

▪ FY 2025-26 +6% 

▪ Maintains 20% Operating Reserve 

▪ Focus on maintaining aging infrastructure: facilities, wastewater mains 

▪ Intel estimate incorporated 

o Reclaimed Water Rate Plan 

▪ FY 2021-22 +8% 

▪ FY 2023-24 +7% 

▪ FY 2025-26 +7% 

▪ Maintains 20% Operating Reserve 

▪ Rates support operating only, water planning, and conservation 

▪ Advanced treatment planned in later years 

o Solid Waste Rate Plan 

▪ FY 2021-22 +6% 

▪ FY 2023-24 +5% 



Chandler City Council Work Session  

Thursday, March 25, 2021  Page 11 

 

▪ FY 2025-26 +5% 

▪ Maintains 15% Operating Reserve 

▪ Addresses increased hauling contract and nationwide recycling impact 

▪ Recycling Solid Waste Coll. Center (RSWCC) under review 

o Cost of Study Service in process to ensure each customer class is paying based on usage 

characteristics 

 

 

THE MEETING RECESSED AT 5:57 P.M. 

 

THE MEETING RECONVENED AT 6:44 P.M., ALL PRESENT, COUNCILMEMBER HARRIS ATTENDED 

TELEPHONICALLY.  

 

 

e. Proposed 10-Year Capital Improvement Program (CIP)  

 

• Proposed 10-Year Capital Improvement Program (CIP)  

• Capital Improvement Program (CIP) Guidelines 

o Maintain existing infrastructure 

o Finish planned construction of streets and parks 

o Limit new projects that add ongoing operations and maintenance 

o Address public needs 

o CIP guidelines support financially sustainable goal 

• 10-Year CIP Overview 

o 2022-2031 CIP total is $1,297,063,520 (132.8M more than the 2021-2030 CIP) 

o Bond sales are planned in FY 2021-22 to fund projects 

o 75% of increase is maintenance of existing infrastructure 

o Additional bond authorization needed to complete the 10-Year plan 

• Summary of Proposed Key Capital Projects in the 1st 5 Years 

o Community/Regional Park Improvements  

▪ Regional Park Development  

▪ Winn Park Site 

▪ Library Facility Improvements 

▪ Existing Community and Neighborhood Park Imp. 

▪ Lantana Ranch Park Site 

o Technology 

▪ Microsoft Office 365 Platform 

▪ Police Virtual Private Network 

▪ Wi-Fi Access Points 

o Development Services 

▪ Citywide Fiber Upgrades 

o Building and Facilities 

▪ Significant additions to maintenance 

o Police 

▪ Forensic Facility 



Chandler City Council Work Session  

Thursday, March 25, 2021  Page 12 

 

o Remaining Arterial Street Projects 

▪ Cooper Road/Insight Loop Extension 

▪ Lindsay Road (Ocotillo Rd to Hunt Hwy) 

▪ Chandler Heights Rd (McQueen Rd to Val Vista Dr) 

▪ Other Street Projects 

• Boston St 

• Alma School Rd 

• LED Upgrade Streetlight Conversion 

• Frye Rd Protected Bike Lanes 

• Highline Canal Shared Use Path 

• Kyrene Canal branch Shared Use Path 

o Airport 

▪ Santan Apron Construction 

▪ Tower Transceiver Radios 

▪ Airfield Lighting Improvements 

• Proposed 10-Year CIP Debt Service Year-End Fund Balance Projection 

 

COUNCILMEMBER ROE asked if this law was relatively new in the past few years. 

 

MS. LANG said yes, in 2017.  

 

MR. DUNBAR continued the presentation and presented the following spreadsheet.  

• Refer to Proposed 10-Year Capital Improvement Program (CIP) List 

• FY 2022-31 Proposed Capital Improvement Program 

o Building and Facilities 

o Development Services 

o Information Technology 

o Community Services 

o Cultural Development 

o Fire  

o Police 

o Streets/Traffic  

o Transportation Policy 

o Economic Development 

o City Magistrate  

o Neighborhood Resources 

o Airport 

o Solid Waste 

o Water 

o Wastewater 

 

COUNCILMEMBER ORLANDO asked why GEO bonds were being used to buy fire trucks and pol ice 

vehicles. 

 



Chandler City Council Work Session  

Thursday, March 25, 2021  Page 13 

 

MS. LANG said this went to the Bond Exploratory Committee to review and it is a large expenditure 

that would be an easy discussion with the community to get bond authorization for the potential use 

of buying the vehicles. As with any purchase, staff would weigh if it is better to use bonds or general 

fund dollars. This allows for more flexibility. 

 

COUNCILMEMBER ORLANDO said he was against using bonds for the vehicles.  

 

MS. LANG said they would not exceed the useful life of the fire truck as they use a shorter 

amortization if they use bonds.  

 

COUNCILMEMBER ORLANDO asked about CCTV traffic cameras and why they would use bonds.  

 

MS. LANG said staff would look at that item as it is not something they would normally use bonds for.  

 

COUNCILMEMBER ROE said there were concerns regarding AJ Chandler Park and relook at the design 

of the park.  

 

VICE MAYOR STEWART asked if Council said no to the design in the past. 

 

MAYOR HARTKE said there was a pause on the design and this was reviewed wi th the Bond 

Committee. 

 

MR. WRIGHT said this was one of the top projects for the Bond Committee. Mr. Wright said the last 

time the City went to the public for input was 2016-2017. Mr. Wright said having this planned a little 

further out gives Council time for additional planning for this park.  

 

COUNCILMEMBER ORLANDO said they would get more feedback as well when they go out for the 

bonds.  

 

VICE MAYOR STEWART said they have invested a lot of money in the downtown area and there are 

other areas in the City that need funding.  

 

COUNCILMEMBER ORLANDO said there are other items on the list that utilized one-time dollars and 

not bonds. Councilmember Orlando said there were other items that were dropped off the list and 

asked if some of those could be added back on the list.  

 

MAYOR HARTKE said dollars repurposed may pay for these, but these items can be put as a 

placeholder as it changes each year.  

 

COUNCILMEMBER ORLANDO said there were concerns about sending this to the voters when there 

were other things that needed attention that did not make the list. 

 

MS. LANG said it is unusual for Chandler to include these items on the list for bond funding. Ms. Lang 

said when there is a downturn in the economy it is nice to have the ability to choose bonds versus 



Chandler City Council Work Session  

Thursday, March 25, 2021  Page 14 

 

General Fund if there are other needs. Ms. Lang said some of the projects on the list did not make 

sense to put on the list because of the ongoing costs.  

 

MAYOR HARTKE asked if some of the projects may qualify for MAG dollars.  

 

MS. LANG said yes, they have calculated in the grants that are anticipated.  

 

MAYOR HARTKE asked about the street improvement needed for the new Intel project. 

 

MR. DUNBAR said that project has not been included yet.  

 

MAYOR HARTKE asked when that improvement needed to be done. 

 

MR. WRIGHT said 2024. 

 

COUNCILMEMBER ORLANDO asked if State funds could be used for that. 

 

MR. WRIGHT said that is part of the current conversation right now.  

 

COUNCILMEMBER ORLANDO asked when the new project would begin reflect in the budget. 

 

MAYOR HARTKE said towards the end of the year around October.  

 

COUNCILMEMBER ROE asked about the multi-generational facility. 

 

MR. WRIGHT said it is not in there, but it is something they are discussing and would bring more 

information to Council in a few weeks.  

 

MAYOR HARTKE talked about the regional sales tax and there is a tech pieces that is part of that. 

Mayor Hartke asked if there were projects to show the City is investing in tech as well.  

 

MS. LANG said the fiber project would allow the City to handle the technology.  

 

COUNCILMEMBER LOPEZ asked when Veteran’s Park would be complete. 

 

MS. LANG said this year.  

 

MR. DUNBAR continued the presentation. 

• Key Budget Dates 

o Citizen budget Survey Completed 

o Council Budget Kickoff Completed 

o Workshop One with Mayor and Council Completed 

o Budget Input Time (BIT): Citizen Outreach Media Events Completed 

o Workshop Two with Mayor and Council Today 

o All Day budget Brief April 23, 2021 



Chandler City Council Work Session  

Thursday, March 25, 2021  Page 15 

 

o Council Meetings 

▪ Amendment Discussion May 13, 2021 

▪ Tentative Adoption May 27, 2021 

▪ Public Hearing and Final Adoption June 10, 2021 

▪ Adoption of Tax Levy June 24, 2021 

 

VICE MAYOR STEWART asked if there were plans to annex land for parks and around Tumbleweed 

Park.  

 

MR. DUNBAR said there is an item to finalize some of the amenities at Tumbleweed Park depending 

on the Parks Master Plan outcome.  

 

MR. WRIGHT said the Parks Master Plan would bring recommendations. 

 

VICE MAYOR STEWART asked if there were discussions to annex land.  

 

MR. WRIGHT said he has not seen the final recommendations and see if that is recommended.   

 

COUNCILMEMBER ORLANDO said he agreed with putting a placeholder to purchase land.  

 

VICE MAYOR STEWART said he would like to discuss it further.  

 

MR. WRIGHT said they would bring the recommendations to Council once the Master Plan was 

completed.  

 

 

ADJOURNMENT:  The Work Session was adjourned at approximately 7:31 p.m. 

 

 

ATTEST:  __________________________  ______________________________ 

                        City Clerk                                                   Mayor 

 

 

Approval Date of Minutes:  April 8, 2021 

 

CERTIFICATION 

 

I hereby certify that the foregoing minutes are a true and correct copy of the minutes of the Work 

Session of the City Council of Chandler, Arizona, held on the 25th day of March 2021.  I further certify 

that the meeting was duly called and held and that a quorum was present. 

 

 

DATED this ___ day of April, 2021. 

                      

        __________________________ 



Chandler City Council Work Session  

Thursday, March 25, 2021  Page 16 

 

                                                                                City Clerk 

 



ITEM  3 

City Council Memorandum      City Clerk's Office  Memo No. 21-005
       

Date: April 8, 2021
To: Vice Mayor and City Council
From: Mayor Kevin Hartke
Subject: Board and Commission Appointments

Proposed Motion:
Move City Council approve the Board and Commission appointments as recommended.

Airport Commission                    
Reappoint Dave Siegel
Appoint Chad Wakefield

Arts Commission
Reappoint Michelle Hirsch
Appoint Linnsey Amores 

Board of Adjustment
Reappoint Manuel Ramirez
Reappoint Chad Wakefield

Board of Appeals
Reappoint Jeff Cullumber

Citizen’s Panel for Review of Police Complaints and Use of Force
Reappoint Betty McGee
Reappoint Holly Mesnard
Reappoint Sandra Woods 
Appoint Christopher Heo 

Cultural Foundation
Reappoint Susan Baker
Reappoint Mike Halle
Reappoint Christian Lopez
Reappoint Julia Marreel

Domestic Violence Commisison
Appoint Polly Knape, Arizona’s Children Association
Appoint Chelsea Grieve 
Appoint Teresa Ferguson



Economic Development Advisory Board
Reappoint Julie Trujillo
Reappoint Cecilia Ashe
Reappoint Mike Spangenberg
Reappoint Nick Woodruff
Appoint Chase Farnsworth
Appoint Kari Zurn

Health Care Benefits Trust Board
Reappoint Val Gale

Historic Preservation Commission
Reappoint Matt Eberle
Reappoint Jeff Velasquez

Housing and Human Services Commission
Reappoint Heather Mattisson
Appoint Ryan Magel
Appoint Julie Martin

Human Relations Commission
Reappoint Jacob Bello
Appoint Garry Ong
Appoint Pamela Morris

Industrial Development Authority
Reappoint Charles Ertl
Reappoint Lee Kroll
Reappoint Shannon Wilson

Library Board
Reappoint Karla Palafox
Reappoint Maria Munoz
Appoint Dylan Martin
Appoint Michael McElhany

Mayor’s Committee for People with Disabilities
Reappoint Marguerite Smith
Reappoint Ted Maish
Reappoint Janet Rosen

Merit Board
Reappoint Lon Miller

Museum Foundation
Reappoint Maris Ann Thomas
Reappoint Joshua Askey
Reappoint Martin Sepulveda
Reappoint Michelle Reid
Appoint Calvenea Malloy

Neighborhood Advisory Committee
Reappoint Amber Hutchinson
Reappoint Peter Cwik



Parks and Recreation Board
Reappoint Tim Johnson
Appoint John David

Planning and Zoning Commission
Reappoint Matt Eberle
Reappoint Gregg Pekau

Transportation Commission
Reappoint Ron Hardin
Appoint David Heineking 

Workers’ Compensation Trust Board
Reappoint Val Gale



ITEM  4 

City Council Memorandum      City Clerk's Office  Memo No. CM21-79
       

Date: April 8, 2021
To: Mayor  and Council
Thru: Joshua H. Wright, Acting City Manager
From: Erica Barba, Assistant City Clerk 
Subject: FY 2020-21 One-time Exceptional Performance Awards for Employees

 

Proposed Motion:
Move City Council approve a one-time exceptional performance award of $3,000 to each full-time
employee and $1,500 to each part-time employee, employed as of December 31, 2020, and remaining
employed through March 27, 2021, for an estimated cost of $5,530,000 across all Funds; and
$3,060,000 in Fund Contingency Transfers to only be used should vacancy savings appropriation not
be sufficient in a specific Fund/Cost Center combination, including General Fund of $2,800,000, to
various Cost Centers within General Fund, Special Revenue Funds (i.e. Grant-217, Community
Development Block Grant (CDBG)-219, Public Housing Authority (PHA)-224, 227, 230, 232, 233) and
Self Insurance Funds (i.e. Workers Compensation-736, Insured Liability-737, Uninsured Liability-738,
Short Term Disability-739, and Medical-741); Water Fund 605 of $200,000; and Solid Waste Fund 625
of $60,000.

Background/Discussion
In FY 2020-21, based on the potential impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic, a decision was made to
hold ongoing market increases for general employees until the City was able to fully realize the impact
the pandemic would have on City revenues and operations.  As has been reported through budget
briefings, the City of Chandler has performed better than the revised budget during this unprecedented
time.  Additionally, vacant City positions were held for several months as part of the budget
considerations, which placed additional responsibilities on employees. In a typical year, the City
anticipates vacancy savings of 1.5% of total personnel costs.  During FY 2020-21, Chandler is
estimating vacancy savings of over 3.0% ($5M) in General Fund or over 4% ($8M) in all funds due to
the high number of vacant positions. In addition to the pandemic, other challenges were faced by the
City and its employees. Team Chandler rose to the occasion and maintained a high level of service to
Chandler residents while keeping City operations and services functioning.  

In light of City employees' outstanding performance over the past year, I am recommending employees
who were employed as of December 31, 2020, and who have remained employed through March 27,
2021, receive a one-time exceptional performance award to be included in the April 15, 2021, regular
pay check.  This award includes 1,522 full-time employees at $3,000 each and 29 regular part-time
employees at $1,500 each. The total cost, with employer benefits, is estimated to be $5,530,000 in
one-time funding across all funds. Although vacancy savings exists from budgeted positions, Fund
Contingency Transfers totaling $3,060,000 are needed in various funds to ensure adequate
appropriation in the cost centers where payments will be applied. If approved, a City-wide



communication will be provided prior to the payment with additional details.



ITEM  5 

City Council Memorandum      City Clerk's Office  Memo No. 21-011c
       

Date: April 8, 2021
To: Mayor  and Council
Thru: Joshua H. Wright, Acting City Manager

Debra Stapleton, Assistant City Manager
Derek D. Horn, Development Services Director

From: Erica Barba, Assistant City Clerk 
Subject: Final Adoption of Ordinance No. 4961 PLH20-0023 Pecos and McQueen Retail
Request: Rezoning from Agricultural District (AG-1) to Planned Area Development (PAD) for Neighborhood

Commercial (C-1) uses
Location: Southwest corner of Pecos and McQueen roads
Applicant: Reese Anderson, Pew and Lake PLC

Proposed Motion:
Rezoning
Move City Council adopt Ordinance No. 4961, approving PLH20-0023 Pecos
and McQueen Retail located at the southwest corner of Pecos and McQueen roads, Rezoning from
Agricultural District (AG-1) to Planned Area Development (PAD) for Neighborhood Commercial (C-1)
uses, subject to the conditions as recommended by Planning and Zoning Commission.

Background Data:
The site is approximately 3.5 acres
The applicant is currently working with the City to acquire an approximate 2,660 sq. ft. City of
Chandler-owned parcel located at the immediate corner of the intersection (an
ordinance authorizing the sale of this parcel also appears as a separate item on this agenda)
Site is currently vacant

Ordinance introduced and tentatively adopted on March 25, 2021.

Surrounding Land Use Data:
North Pecos Rd., then commercial South Single-family residential

East
McQueen Rd., then
single-family residential and
vacant commercial

West Single-family residential

General Plan and Area Plan Designations:
  Existing Proposed
General Plan Neighborhoods No change
Chandler Airpark Area Plan Neighborhood Commercial No change



Proposed Development
Site Area 3.5 acres plus future acquisition of approximate 2,660 sq. ft. City parcel
Building Area Pad A:  2,306 sq. ft. (restaurant)

Pad B:  2,800 sq. ft. (restaurant)
Pad C: 13,000 sq. ft. (daycare)
Total :  18,106 sq. ft. 

Building Height (max.) 22 ft.
Building Setbacks Required: Arterial landscaped intersection 50 ft. by 250 ft

Proposed: 35 ft. min. by 223 ft. along Pecos Rd.          
                   23 ft. min. by 250 ft. along McQueen Rd.
West:         20ft.  Accessory structure                  
                   50 ft. Main building
South:        50 ft.

Parking Required 101 parking spaces
Parking Provided 112 parking spaces
Building Architecture Contemporary with stucco, brick veneer, metal railings, and steel
Comprehensive Sign Program One development sign, two monument signs, wall-mounted signs

Review and Recommendation
Planning staff finds the proposal is consistent with the General Plan designation of Neighborhoods and
the Chandler Airpark Area Plan designation of Neighborhood Commercial. The General Plan land use
designation allows Neighborhood Commercial uses within developments located at arterial
intersections to serve commercial needs of low-density residential communities.  

The site layout provides three pad sites, including two proposed restaurants and a daycare. Pad site A
is proposed as a Starbucks drive-through. Pad site B is proposed as a future restaurant/drive-through
and a daycare is proposed for Pad
C. Building architecture is contemporary. Building and site layout comply with the intent of
the Commercial Design Standards.

Late-hour business policy defines any restaurant that opens its doors to the public one or more hours
between midnight and 6 a.m., one or more days a week. Also, the policy is applicable when
commercial development is within 300 ft. of existing residential zoning. The proposed Starbucks
anticipates business hours from 4:30 a.m. to 10 p.m., daily. These hours and building distance of
approximately 206 ft. to the west residentially-zoned parcels require approval of the proposed
businesses hours from 4:30 a.m. to 6 a.m. Mitigation proposed includes an 8 ft. tall solid wall along the
entire site perimeter and several landscaped areas. 

The applicant requests relief from the Zoning Code requirement that initial construction include a
minimum of 12,000 sq. ft. of building area in Phase One.  The request is to allow the flexibility to
construct Pads B and C in future phases.  Development Booklet Attachment A (see attached) identifies
improvements that will be completed during phase one, which includes Pad A and all site
improvements including landscaping, driveways, and parking except for Pad B building area on the
south and Pad C and associated parking area to the north of Pad C. Pad sites B and C would be
covered with decomposed granite until market conditions allow development.  

The second request is to reduce the 50 ft. by 250 ft. landscape intersection along both Pecos and
McQueen roads. The reduced landscaped intersection allows the two drive-through pad sites additional
distance from existing residential and the proposed daycare. The applicant is currently working with the



City’s Real Estate division to purchase the City owned parcel of approximately 2,660 sq. ft. located at
the immediate corner of the site.

Staff supports the requested waivers due to the infill nature of the site, site acreage and driveway
location constraints. Staff finds the proposal to be consistent with the goals of the General Plan and
recommends approval subject to conditions.

Traffic Analysis
A Traffic Impact Analysis was prepared to analyze existing conditions and traffic with the proposed
development. Based on the analysis, traffic impacts of the proposed development could be mitigated by
making adjustments to the existing traffic signal timing at the McQueen Road/Pecos Road intersection
to maintain acceptable levels of service.  Additionally, the Transportation Engineering Division will
continue to work with the applicant to establish a circulation plan for the Day Care/Pre-K. This is being
done in an effort to document pick-up/drop-off procedures and minimize potential implications to the
adjacent public roadways that have occurred with similar land uses. Staff recommends a stipulation to
address the future daycare’s drop off/pick up circulation plan.

Public / Neighborhood Notification
This request was noticed in accordance with the requirements of the Chandler Zoning Code.
A virtual neighborhood meeting was held on July 21, 2020. Ten residents attended virtually to
obtain project information. Questions and concerns voiced relate to traffic, construction timing,
existing irrigation ditch, drive through locations, vehicle exhaust, land uses, and children’s safety
(daycare).  No opposition to the request was stated.
Planning staff received letters from residents in opposition to the proposed Starbucks stating
they would rather support local businesses.

Planning and Zoning Commission Vote Report
Planning and Zoning Commission meeting March 3, 2021
Motion to Approve
In Favor: 5   Opposed: 1 (Pekau)  Absent: 1 (Kimble) 

At the January 20, 2021, Planning and Zoning Commission meeting, the case was continued to conduct
a Design Review Committee (DRC).  On February 3, 2021, the DRC provided the applicant suggestions
on revising the site plan which include shifting Pad sites A and B further away from the proposed
daycare. The applicant requested further continuance to the March 3, 2021, Planning and Zoning
Commission meeting to allow additional time to address the DRC’s guidance.  At the March 3 meeting,
the Planning and Zoning Commission modified Preliminary Development Plan stipulation number 9 by
adding "e", effectively requiring all offsite and onsite improvements during phase one except for building
pads B and C. The drive-through lane for Pad B is included as an exception to the required phase one
improvements.

Recommended Conditions of Approval
Rezoning

Development shall be in substantial conformance with the Development Booklet, entitled
“Pecos and McQueen Retail” and kept on file in the City of Chandler Planning Division, in File No.
PLH20-0023, modified by such conditions included at the time the Booklet was approved by the
Chandler City Council and/or as thereafter amended, modified or supplemented by the Chandler
City Council.

1.

Completion of the construction of all required off-site street improvements including but not
limited to paving, landscaping, curb, gutter and sidewalks, median improvements and street
lighting to achieve conformance with City codes, standard details, and design manuals.

2.



Right-of-way dedications to achieve full half-widths, including turn lanes and deceleration
lanes, per the standards of the Chandler Transportation Plan. 

3.

Late hour businesses shall not be open to the public from 10 p.m. to 4:30 a.m., seven days a
week.

4.

Attachments
Ordinance No. 4961 
Vicinity Maps 
Development Booklet, Exhibit A 



ORDINANCE NO.  4961 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF CHANDLER, ARIZONA, AMENDING 
THE ZONING CODE AND MAP ATTACHED THERETO, BY REZONING 
PARCELS FROM AGRICULTURAL DISTRICT (AG-1) TO PLANNED AREA 
DEVELOPMENT (PAD) FOR NEIGHBORHOOD COMMERCIAL (C-1) USES 
AS REPRESENTED IN CASE PLH20-0023 (PECOS AND MCQUEEN 
RETAIL) LOCATED AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF PECOS AND 
MCQUEEN ROADS WITHIN THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF 
CHANDLER, ARIZONA; PROVIDING FOR THE REPEAL OF CONFLICTING 
ORDINANCES; AND PROVIDING FOR PENALTIES. 

 
WHEREAS, the application for rezoning certain property within the corporate limits of Chandler, 
Arizona, has been filed in accordance with Article XXVI of the Chandler Zoning Code; and 
 
WHEREAS, the application has been published in a local newspaper with general circulation in 
the City of Chandler, giving fifteen (15) days’ notice of the time, place, and date of the public 
hearing; and 
 
WHEREAS, a notice of such hearing was posted on the property at least seven (7) days prior to 
the public hearing; and 
 
WHEREAS, a public hearing was held by the Planning and Zoning Commission as required by 
the Zoning Code. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Chandler, Arizona, 
as follows: 
 
Section 1. Legal Description of Property: 
  As described in EXHIBIT ‘A’ 
 

Said property is hereby rezoned from Agricultural District (AG-1) to Planned Area 
Development (PAD) for Neighborhood Commercial (C-1) uses, subject to the following 
conditions: 

 
1. Development shall be in substantial conformance with the Development 

Booklet, entitled “Pecos and McQueen Retail” and kept on file in the City of 
Chandler Planning Division, in File No. PLH20-0023, modified by such 
conditions included at the time the Booklet was approved by the Chandler City 
Council and/or as thereafter amended, modified or supplemented by the 
Chandler City Council. 

2. Completion of the construction of all required off-site street improvements 
including but not limited to paving, landscaping, curb, gutter and sidewalks, 
median improvements and street lighting to achieve conformance with City 
codes, standard details, and design manuals. 



Ordinance No. 4961 
Page 2 

3. Right-of-way dedications to achieve full half-widths, including turn lanes and 
deceleration lanes, per the standards of the Chandler Transportation Plan. 

4. Late hour businesses shall not be open to the public from 10 p.m. to 4:30 a.m., 
seven days a week.  

Section 2. The Planning Division of the City of Chandler is hereby directed to enter such 
changes and amendments as may be necessary upon the Zoning Map of said Zoning 
Code in compliance with this Ordinance.  

 
Section 3. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with the provisions of this 

Ordinance, or any parts hereof, are hereby repealed. 
 
Section 4. In any case, where any building, structure, or land is used in violation of this 

Ordinance, the Planning Division of the City of Chandler may institute an 
injunction or any other appropriate action in proceeding to prevent the use of such 
building, structure, or land.  

 
Section 5. If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase or portion of this Ordinance is 

for any reason held to be invalid or unconstitutional by the decision of any court of 
competent jurisdiction, then this entire ordinance is invalid and shall have no force 
or effect. 

 
Section 6. A violation of this Ordinance shall be a Class 1 misdemeanor subject to the 

enforcement and penalty provisions set forth in Section 1-8.3 of the Chandler City 
Code.  Each day a violation continues, or the failure to perform any act or duty 
required by this Ordinance or the Zoning Code, shall constitute a separate offense. 

  



Ordinance No. 4961 
Page 3 

INTRODUCED AND TENTATIVELY APPROVED by the City Council of the City of Chandler, 
Arizona, this ____ day of ______________, 2021. 
 
ATTEST: 
 
______________________________  ______________________________ 
CITY CLERK      MAYOR 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Chandler, Arizona, this _____ day 
of _______________, 2021. 
 
ATTEST: 
 
______________________________  _______________________________ 
CITY CLERK      MAYOR 
 

 
CERTIFICATION 

 
I HEREBY CERTIFY that the above and foregoing Ordinance No. 4961 was duly passed and 
adopted by the City Council of the City of Chandler, Arizona, at a regular meeting held on the 
____ day of _____________, 2021, and that a quorum was present thereat. 
 
      __________________________ 
       CITY CLERK 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
      
CITY ATTORNEY  
 
Published: 
 

 
 
 
 

 
  



Ordinance No. 4961 
Page 4 

EXHIBIT ‘A’ 
Legal Description 

 

 



E PECOS RD

S M
CQ

UE
EN

 R
D

E GERONIMO PL

E GUNSTOCK RD

E MORELOS ST

S J
ES

SE
 P

L

S B
ED

FO
RD

 PL

E BROWNING PL

S J
ES

SE
 S

T

S C
RO

SS
CR

EE
K P

L

S W
ILL

IAM
S P

L

E SPRINGFIELD PL

E DERRINGER WYS B
ED

FO
RD

 D
R

S M
ON

TE
 VI

ST
A S

T E SARAGOSA ST

E LONGHORN CR

S B
ED

FO
RD

 D
R

City of Chandler Planning Division

Mc
Qu

ee
n R

d.

Proposed Project Details
Rezone/PDP/Pre-Plat
3.5 Acres
Neighborhood Commercial Center

chandleraz.gov/planning
For more information visit:

Pecos Rd.

https://gis.chandleraz.gov/planning

PAD
Monterey Vista

PAD
Nantucket Village

Unit 1

PLH20-0023/PLT20-0037 Pecos and McQueen Retail ´

^

C-2

SF-33
Ranchos de Chandler

Unit 2

PAD

AG-1

PAD
Maracay

at
Pecos Unit 1

PAD
Willis Ranch

Unit II

PAD

Project Site



E PECOS RD

S M
CQ

UE
EN

 R
D

E GERONIMO PL

E GUNSTOCK RD

E MORELOS ST

S J
ES

SE
 P

L

S B
ED

FO
RD

 PL

E BROWNING PL

S J
ES

SE
 S

T

S C
RO

SS
CR

EE
K P

L

S W
ILL

IAM
S P

L

E SPRINGFIELD PL

E DERRINGER WYS B
ED

FO
RD

 D
R

S M
ON

TE
 VI

ST
A S

T E SARAGOSA ST

E LONGHORN CR

S B
ED

FO
RD

 D
R

City of Chandler Planning Division

Mc
Qu

ee
n R

d.

Proposed Project Details
Rezone/PDP/Pre-Plat
3.5 Acres
Neighborhood Commercial Center

chandleraz.gov/planning
For more information visit:

Pecos Rd.

https://gis.chandleraz.gov/planning

PAD
Monterey Vista

PAD
Nantucket Village

Unit 1

PLH20-0023/PLT20-0037 Pecos and McQueen Retail ´

^

C-2

SF-33
Ranchos de Chandler

Unit 2

PAD

AG-1

PAD
Maracay

at
Pecos Unit 1

PAD
Willis Ranch

Unit II

PAD

Project Site



Development Team 

Developer 
Diversified Partners 
Scott Hintze 
7500 E. McDonald Drive, Ste. 100A 
Scottsdale, AZ 85250 

Legal Representation 
Pew & Lake, PLC 
Reese L. Anderson & Jon Gillespie 
1744 S. Val Vista Drive, Suite 217 
Mesa, AZ 85204 
Phone: (480) 461-4670 
reese.anderson@pewandlake.com 

Architect 
RS Sherman Architecture 
Robert S. Sherman 
7416 Doe Ave. 
Las Vegas, NV 89117 

Civil Engineer & Landscape Architect 
EPS Group 
Daniel “Ox” Auxier 
1130 N. Alma School Rd., Ste. 120 
Mesa, AZ 85201 

Rezoning Case Number:  PLH20-0023 

PECOS AND MCQUEEN RETAIL 
Preliminary Development Plan 

March 3, 2021 



Contents 
1. Narrative ............................................................................................................................................... 3 

2. Aerial Map ........................................................................................................................................... 15 

3. Conceptual Site Plans .......................................................................................................................... 17 

4. Conceptual Phasing Plan ..................................................................................................................... 19 

5. Conceptual Daycare Mitigation Measures .......................................................................................... 21 

6. Conceptual Landscape Plan ................................................................................................................ 23 

7. Conceptual Building Elevations and Floor Plans ................................................................................. 25 

8. Wall Elevations and Site Details .......................................................................................................... 32 

9. Color and Materials Palette ................................................................................................................ 35 

10. Preliminary Grading and Drainage Plan .............................................................................................. 37 

11. Preliminary Plat ................................................................................................................................... 40 

12. Perspective Renderings ....................................................................................................................... 42 

13. Signage ................................................................................................................................................ 50 



1. Narrative



PECOS AND MCQUEEN RETAIL 2 

INTRODUCTION 
Pew & Lake, PLC, on behalf of Diversified Partners, LLC, is pleased to submit this project 
narrative and related exhibits in support of developing 3.54 net acres of vacant real property located 
at the southwest corner of Pecos Road and McQueen Road in Chandler, Arizona (APN 303-28-
252C).  The development would provide 18,106 sq. ft. of commercial improvements with 
neighborhood commercial (C-1) type uses as more fully described in this narrative. 

Both the northwest and northeast corners of the busy Pecos Road and McQueen Road intersection 
are already developed with commercial retail and the southeast corner is currently vacant but has 
commercial C-2 zoning.  Figure 1 below provides an aerial of the subject property and surrounding 
areas. 

Figure 1 – Site Aerial 



 

 
PECOS AND MCQUEEN RETAIL 3 

 

      

REQUESTS 
The specific requests to the City of Chandler include the following: 

1. Rezone the property from AG-1 to PAD with Neighborhood Commercial (C-1) 
Uses; and  

2. Obtain approval of:  

(a) a new Preliminary Development Plan (“PDP”) for approximately 18,106 sq. 
ft. of commercial improvements, including: (i) a 2,306 sq. ft. Starbuck’s 
restaurant with a drive-through and patio, (ii) a 2,800 sq. ft. restaurant pad 
with a drive-through, and (iii) a 13,000 sq. ft. daycare building, including 
site layout and building architecture; and  

(b) a waiver to the amount of minimum square footage that must be constructed 
in the first phase of construction due to the unique conditions and small size 
of the property (See Section 35-1902(8)(c)(2)). 

SITE CONDITIONS AND SURROUNDING PROPERTIES 
As noted, the property is located at the southwest comer of Pecos Road and McQueen Road, which 
are two significant arterial roads in the City of Chandler.  The property is also approximately one-
half mile north of the McQueen Road and Loop 202 Freeway interchange.  The site is 
unremarkable in its topography and has been vacant for decades, which is why it still holds its  
AG-1 zoning status from when this property was annexed into the City of Chandler.  The current 
zoning in the area is provided on Figure 2 below. 

Figure 2 – Existing Zoning Map 

 



 

 
PECOS AND MCQUEEN RETAIL 4 

 

      

To the south and west of the property is existing single-family residential homes that exist on 
property that is zoned SF-33.  A table providing additional information on the surrounding uses is 
provided below. 

Figure 3 – Surrounding Uses Table 

Direction General Plan/Area Plan Designation Existing Zoning Existing Use 

North Neighborhood/Residential Low-
Density (0-6 DU/Acre) PAD Pecos Road/CVS 

Pharmacy/Various Retail 

East Neighborhood C-2 and PAD 
McQueen 

Road/Vacant/Single-Family 
Residences 

South Neighborhood SF-33 Single-Family Residences 

West Neighborhood SF-33 Single-Family Residences 

Project Site Neighborhood AG-1 Vacant 

 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION 
As seen on the proposed site plan in Figure 3 on the next page, the 3.54 acre site is intuitively 
designed to support commercial uses by encouraging direct access from both Pecos Road and 
McQueen Road.  The proposal includes approximately 18,106 sq. ft. of commercial improvements, 
more specifically (i) a 2,306 sq. ft. Starbuck’s restaurant with a drive-through, (ii) a 2,800 sq. ft. 
restaurant pad with a drive-through, and (iii) a 13,000 sq. ft. daycare building.   

Proposed Uses 
Demand for drive-through uses at this location is largely driven by the site’s prime position in 
relation to the Loop 202 Freeway.  Starbucks coffee is a primary component of the development 
of this site and has completed its due diligence to identify the site as a premier development 
location. 

A day care use at this site will support surrounding Chandler residents who need childcare 
assistance as they work at various industrial and commercial businesses in the larger area.  The 
day care building is located in the southwest corner of the site to help shield the building from 
noise already emanating from the busy arterial streets and will help provide an appropriate 
transition from the uses occurring on this site to surrounding residential.  The residential properties 
adjacent to the day care building all built their homes over 50 feet from the shared property line.  
With the additional 50 feet setback provided to the daycare building, in addition to the to-be-built 
8-foot wall, the buffer to surrounding properties is more than adequate.  



 

 
PECOS AND MCQUEEN RETAIL 5 

 

      

The day care is designed for walk-in drop-off of children with parking provided directly adjacent 
to building entrances.  Regular daytime hours are proposed for day care operators.  The anticipated 
number of children and childcare specialists is not known at this time but will comply with local 
and state rules including occupancy limits. 

The proposed site plan shows building setbacks in excess of 50 feet on the side and rear of the 
project.  These building setbacks conform with typical C-1 building setbacks per Chandler Zoning 
Code Section 35-1902(8)(a) which requires 43 feet (25 feet plus 18 feet for the height of the 
building).  Please note that a shade structure to be used in conjunction with the daycare building 
is shown 20 feet off the property boundary.  The developer requests flexibility with the location of 
the shade structure so long as the structure is placed in conformance with Chandler Zoning Code.  
The shade structure, though not considered a building under Chandler definitions, is being located 
20 feet from the property line to meet the intent of Chandler Zoning Code Section 35-1203(3) 
which requires a minimum twenty-foot side yard for commercial development. 

Given the size of this lot, it certainly does not make sense to develop with AG-1 uses, nor to 
develop it with residential uses.  The best use for this land is something consistent with C-1 uses.  
The conceptual Site Plan is shown in Figure 4 below. 

Figure 4 – Conceptual Site Plan 

 



 

 
PECOS AND MCQUEEN RETAIL 6 

 

      

Circulation 
Ingress and egress to the property will be from the adjacent arterial streets.  Given the relatively 
small size of the site, traffic generated from this site will not appreciably impact adjacent 
businesses or neighborhoods. 

A traffic study was performed to analyze the traffic impacts from the proposed development and 
to also analyze the traffic impacts absent the proposed development.  In sum, the traffic engineer 
has proposed traffic light signal timing changes at the Pecos and McQueen intersection to mitigate 
existing and anticipated deficiencies.  Additionally, the new northbound left turn lane on McQueen 
necessitates that the southbound left turn queuing lane on Gunstock be reduced to 100 feet which 
will still sufficiently accommodate the existing and anticipated traffic.  The measures suggested in 
the traffic analysis have been incorporated into the site plan and will sufficiently mitigate traffic 
impacts. 

Internal site circulation includes a coordinated 25-foot wide drive aisle which connects Pecos Road 
to McQueen Road with an additional loop providing access to the drive-through entrances and 
parking areas.  A logical flow of drive-thru entries and exists will make for harmonious 
development. 

Phasing 
The project is anticipated to be built in phases with Phase 1 including construction of the Starbucks 
improvements along with offsite improvements, perimeter landscaping and construction of the 
main drive aisle.  The development of pads B and C from the site plan will follow but will be 
landscaped with decomposed granite, certain curb finishes, and placement of shrubbery as shown 
on the Phasing Plan exhibit attached to this submittal. 

Parking 
The total number of required parking spaces on site is 101 and the total provided is 112.  This 
meets the requirement for a parking ratio of 5.5 spaces per 1,000 SF of building area for shopping 
centers under 10 acres (6.8 spaces per 1,000 SF provided).  Patron parking is placed near buildings 
so that significant walking is not required.  Overall, the site parking satisfies the code and is 
suitable for business purposes. 

Architecture 
The proposed single-story buildings reflect a high-quality building façade which establishes a 
modern design theme which is complementary with the existing developments across Pecos Road.  
Balanced use of stucco, glass and brick helps to enhance the overall project. 

The buildings have been carefully designed to ensure compliance with the City of Chandler’s 
Architectural Standards.  The intent of the design is to provide a creative, innovative, and 
pedestrian friendly space for all visitors.  The building materials have been carefully chosen to 
provide a heightened design aesthetic on all four sides of the building.  More than just aesthetics, 
these materials will provide the building with minimal maintenance over the long term and will be 
a timeless structure for many years to come.  



 

 
PECOS AND MCQUEEN RETAIL 7 

 

      

The building utility, roof drainage and roof top mechanical units, have been integrated into the 
building to help clear away some of the less attractive utilities a building requires to function.  
While these utilities need to be accessible, the design uses parapet screens, landscaping or door 
panels to mask their appearance.  Overall, the building design includes an attractive modern look 
and appropriately screens utility and mechanical units.  

Landscape and Open Space 
Landscaping is provided along the site’s exterior boundaries.  Please note that the proposed 
daycare building is setback more than 50 foot from the adjacent property lines and will include 
appropriately sized trees, as an additional means of screening.  The proposal, as a whole, has been 
designed to fit the site and mitigate against any potential impacts on adjacent properties.  The site 
plan complies with the arterial building and landscaping setbacks.  Strategically locating the 
buildings, landscaping and decorative screen walls will also help reduce noise heard from residents 
emanating from this busy intersection.   

The 50-foot landscape area continues along most of the southern boundary before transitioning to 
a 29-foot area to accommodate parking and expanding again to 50 foot as it approaches McQueen.  
There is a 99-foot building setback to Pad B which provides significant buffering for the benefit 
of the residences to the south. 

The landscape plan will incorporate arid-region, drought-tolerant trees, shrubs, cacti and ground 
covers, all from the City of Chandler’s Approved Plant List, to provide shade, seasonal color and 
interesting textures, enhance positive views and screen negative views and enhance the visitor’s 
experience at the restaurants. 

An active irrigation ditch is located on the surrounding residential properties adjacent to the entire 
property line on the south and west, but not on the subject site.  An 8-foot block wall will be built 
along the property line which will protect the irrigation ditch, ensure the safety of commercial 
patrons and provide a nice buffer for existing residents.  Access to the irrigation ditch will not be 
affected by the wall as the ditch remains solely on the resident’s properties.   

We note that the City of Chandler currently owns the immediate corner of the McQueen and Pecos 
Road intersection.  The developer is in discussions with the City to add that small parcel to this 
plan.  In any event, the developer is willing to landscape that area and include it on the final 
landscape plan. 

A conceptual Landscape Plan illustrating perimeter landscape intent along with the mixture of 
plants and materials on the site is shown in Figure 5 on the next page.  We note that the Landscape 
Plan which will be approved by the Planning Commission will accurately align with the Site Plan 
shown in Figure 4 and attached to this submittal.  



 

 
PECOS AND MCQUEEN RETAIL 8 

 

      

Figure 5 – Conceptual Landscape Plan 

 

Hours of Operation 
The development intends to accommodate the Starbucks which is a late hour business occupancy 
as defined under City of Chandler late night policy.  Starbucks drive-throughs may be open from 
as early as 4:30am to as late as 10:00pm.  Under the policy, a “late-night policy” exception is 
necessary because the drive-through will be open from 4:30am to 6:00am.  Our belief is that an 
exception for an earlier opening is better received than an exception for staying open later. 

Early morning use at the Starbucks will primarily be devoted to users who are circulating the drive-
through.  Therefore, a negligible amount of noise is being added because there is not significant 
car starting, doors closing, etc. occurring.  During certain times of the year the sun has already 
risen during a portion of these hours which makes headlight glare less of an issue.  The proposed 
8-foot walls and distance of separation will eliminate the potential effects of headlight glare.  With 
regard to traffic, users of the Starbucks are considered “pass-by” users because Starbucks is not an 
end destination but rather is typically used as patrons “pass-by” in route to work or other 
obligations.  Site maintenance activities such as waste pick-up or landscaping are not anticipated 
to fluctuate based on a 4:30am store opening. 



 

 
PECOS AND MCQUEEN RETAIL 9 

 

      

Given the minimal impact of Starbuck’s being open from 4:30am as opposed to opening at 6:00am 
and the efforts to protect neighbors already in place under the development plan, we propose that 
the site be approved to conduct business from 4:30am to 6:00am (and continuing until closing at 
10 pm) under the City late hours policy.  

Signage 
Signage for the property is provided through the comprehensive sign package that accompanies 
this submittal.  All signs shall be consistent with the architectural style and colors of the main 
buildings.   

A total of three (3) freestanding monument signs for the entire site are anticipated with monument 
tenant signs placed on each arterial street frontage near the main entrances and one sign featuring 
the generic name of the center at the arterial corner.  The monument signs will be shared by the 
various users of the site.  The design of these monument signs will match the building architecture 
and will be placed out of all sight visibility triangles and out of public right-of-way.  In addition to 
the monument signs, it is anticipated that there will be wall signage on the buildings. 

The drive-through menu boards will be located out of the view of any of the adjacent residential 
property owners and will also be constructed of the same materials and colors as the primary 
building they are servicing.  Finally, we anticipate that there will also be smaller signage on the 
windows and buildings stating hours of operation, business logos and products, along with parking 
and directional signage.  

If a daycare is developed on site then additional directional signage will be provided to mitigate 
the traffic flow and ensure daycare patron safety.  

Neighborhood Outreach 
This project, including the proposed uses, development standards, circulation plan, and other 
details, was presented to neighbors at a July 21, 2020 neighborhood meeting.  Neighbors were 
given an opportunity to ask questions about the development and to voice any concerns.  No major 
concerns were raised by neighbors and questions about traffic, building height, and treatment of 
the existing irrigation ditch were sufficiently answered.  There is no know opposition to the case. 

DEVELOPMENT STANDARD DEVIATIONS 
We kindly ask for the following Site Development Waivers as part of our PDP request: 

1. Chandler Zoning Code, Section 35-1902(8)(c)(2), requires each developer to construct 
a minimum of 12,000 sq. ft. in the first phase of any project on sites less than ten (10) 
acres in size.  Due to the unique nature of this site, its location and the uncertainty of 
timing of construction, we are requesting a waiver to this requirement to allow the 
construction of the Starbucks building only in the first phase of development as allowed 
under Section 35-1902(8)(c)(3).  The daycare building and other restaurant pad, along 
with their associated on-site improvements, driveways and landscape, will be 
constructed as soon as market conditions dictate. 



 

 
PECOS AND MCQUEEN RETAIL 10 

 

      

At 3.54 acres, this site is relatively small compared to typical commercial developments 
and insufficient to allow a larger planned center.  For example, the sites directly north 
of Pecos Road are approximately 12.7 and 10.7 acres respectively.  The small size of 
the site restrains it to only having space for around three buildings.  Full buildout of the 
site is necessary for the developer, but timing of that buildout can vary according to 
market demand.  Developers of these smaller sites often need to develop cash flow 
before completing buildout of a site. 

Development of the Starbucks building, along with associated open space, parking and 
drive aisles, will attract users to the site given its popularity and credible brand.  The 
potential operation of a lone Starbuck’s building will improve the now vacant site and 
not create an undue amount of vacant land.  

2. Chandler Zoning Code, Section 35-1902(4)(a)(2)(a), requires arterial intersections to 
provide a landscape setback measuring 50 feet from the right-of-way for a distance of 
250 feet along both arterial streets.  Due to the small size of the commercial site, 
anticipated right-of-way dedications, the Planning Commissions preference for the 
Starbuck’s to be moved to the arterial corner, and the limited locations where drive 
aisles can be placed, a waiver to this requirement is being sought to allow for a 
landscape setback which provides a 26’2” landscape setback along Pecos Road.    This 
landscape setback will be continued for 223’6” parallel along Pecos Road.  Along 
McQueen Road, the request is for a 32’11” landscape setback standard which will 
continue for 226’1”.  We note that additional landscape will be provided within the 
ROW which provides for an as-built condition more than 50 feet along Pecos and 
approximately 46 feet along McQueen.  There are no site visibility conflicts and the 
ROW landscape ensures the intent of the setback is met. 

GENERAL PLAN CONFORMANCE 
The proposed development concepts are consistent with the intent of the City of Chandler General 
Plan.  The area is designated as Neighborhood under the General Plan which allows for 
neighborhood commercial uses.  Neighborhood commercial uses are primarily encouraged “at the 
intersection of major arterial roads and other strategically situated areas to serve the commercial 
needs of the low-density residential areas.”  See Chandler General Plan 2016 page 17. 

In this case, the compatibility with and transition from surrounding commercial and residential 
properties warrants approval.  As illustrated in the surrounding uses table, the site is a bypassed 
parcel located between land uses which vary from single-family residence to Community 
Commercial (C-2).  Additionally, the projects generous building setbacks and attention to 
appropriate transitions, including the use of landscaping, merit approval.  

The proposed development is highlighted by its achievement of the following Community 
Placemaking Policies in the General Plan: 



 

 
PECOS AND MCQUEEN RETAIL 11 

 

      

Land Use and Development (Section 1.1.1.a)  Emphasize developing a balance of land uses that 
support community building and a healthy lifestyle while ensuring a positive overall community 
benefit. 

As stated above, neighborhood commercial is encouraged at the intersections of major arterial 
roads and areas where the low-density residential uses need commercial uses.  The major arterial 
intersections within 1 mile of the site do not have commercial uses.  Therefore, providing 
additional commercial uses on this corner will contribute to providing needed services to 
residences in the area and will be appropriately grouped together.  

Land Use and Development (1.1.1.f)  Encourage compatible infill projects. 

The site could be considered infill because it is surrounded by development on three sides which 
has existed for at least 15 years.  The site has lain vacant for these years while surrounding parcels 
have developed.  

Design and Aesthetics (1.1.3.f)  Continue to promote excellence in building and site design. 

The quality of elevations is illustrated with the Starbuck’s renderings provided.  The Starbuck’s 
brand requires high-quality architecture which utilizes various materials in a visually attractive 
way.  The site design is intuitive and promotes effective traffic flow and access to site offerings. 

Building a World-Class Economy (1.5.b)  Continue to optimally use remaining vacant land to 
ensure the highest and best use for economic opportunities. 

This proposal is the highest and best use for the land because it presents a financially feasible 
development that promotes practical development of the land, and much better than what could be 
developed using the AG-1 development standards. 

Building a World-Class Economy (1.5.h)  Continue to encourage and facilitate the redevelopment 
or reuse of vacant or deteriorating commercial properties. 

This long vacant parcel is now ready for commercial development.  Market demand justifies 
utilization of the parcel. 

PAD REZONING ANALYSIS 
This development meets the intent, objectives, and general requirements of the PAD designation 
based on its innovative site planning, usable open space, fulfillment of General Plan policies, and 
maintenance of reasonable quality of living standards.   

Adjacent to the site and within the immediate surrounding area, there are various commercial 
developments with zoning congruent with this proposal.  The proposed development will integrate 
into the surrounding area and enhance growth patterns in this area while maintaining appropriate 
transitions to existing residential development. 



 

 
PECOS AND MCQUEEN RETAIL 12 

 

      

CONCLUSION 
In summation, the development team has worked to provide a high-quality comprehensive 
development plan for this bypassed parcel.  The ultimate development of this site will provide an 
excellent opportunity to offer much needed neighborhood facilities and provide a visually 
appealing project on this corner that has remained vacant for decades. 



2.  Aerial Map 
  



Maricopa County GIO, Maricopa County

O

4/21/2020  10:46:49 AM

Map



3. Conceptual Site Plan





4.  Conceptual Phasing Plan



susanfi
Stamp



5. Conceptual Daycare Mitigation 
Measures





6. Conceptual Landscape Plan



susanfi
Stamp



7. Conceptual Building 
Elevations and Floor Plans



EXTERIOR COLORS SCHEDULE 

PAD A (STARBUCKS): 

□ 
® STUCCO FELD - IO I """'"'"""' ""'""-. 

@ DAFIKBAONZEPAM 
(EraaAO'NaCOU""'­
BEAMSw>dFW....NClS) 

@ STlJCCO FELD - ICI t .,.,,,,,,...., """"". 

EXTERIOR KEYNOTES 

0 snxxo. smD FINISH 

■ 

® DAFIKBAONZEPAHT """"''°'"""' 
IAETALSCfeNOECK) 

A 
REVEAL J'.JIITT, 1 -1/2" WIDE, EXTRUDED ALUM.

0 FRY REGLH DCS 50-150, DARK BRONZE ALUM. 

FINISH. 0 FLASHING,24GA., fAIITTTOMATCHWALL 

0 SIGNAGE BY TENAITT 

rDPCfPl'-RAPET $B.al1'-0' 

flHSHFLCl:'.f: a=W-0' 

I WEST ELEVATION! 
1/8"=1'-0" 

1 3 

2fJ 

TOPCfPNW'ET �$�B.�a ��-O'� -------------
$���;-

$TOPCRR((f a=m-3" METN..P/\ EYWCNI 

!EAST ELEVATION!
1/8"=1'-0" 

TOPCfPNUll'ET $B.all0-0' $TOl'<>'PfR/ffi EL:116'-0" 

C0 TOl'<>'Eilll 
\ \ B.a00-0' 

®---$TOl'a'ROCf El=1""3" 
@ STEaCQUMN 

ANSHFlCl:'.f: El=W-0' 

0 5' 2fJ 

smms SIG-Va. lWFY Cf) <a,\&5111' BYTEIMT / /_ _ : 

METN. Pi\TlO EYEBROW 

I NORTH ELEVATION I 
1/8"=1'-0" " 2fJ 

TOPCf PNW'ET $B.al1'-0' $TOl'(Ht<,\J'Ef El=t16'-0' 
METi'iPJ\00 EYEBROW 
STEB.WJ.IMN 

FlNSHFLCO::: a=W-0' 

TOPCfP,W,f'ET $ELa�-O' $TOl'a'PM,\Pff El=t16'-0" 

' FINSHFLCXJ'. 

I SOUTH ELEVATION! 
1/8"=1'-0" 2fJ 

_J 

<{ �
I- 0 

w 
_J 
0: 

a: 0: 
0 
0 

ti 
w w .,, 

:s: C\I 
w IC\I 

f- "' 

:) 
::::) 00 

0 <( (.'J OOzz �o 0 0 ON _J ... 
() - <( ii: - 0 al�<(_ =>-

� :s: z 0: 
wW w w _J z ::::>0 

0 oz() <( 
z 

::;;I 
-0 0 

<{ 
0 

0 0 
0 

0 
w 

w 
0.. 

■ 

R E VISIONS 

& 

£, 

& 

File No.ne, CHANDLER SITE Job No= Date 
Seo.le, Drown• GS Checked: Sheet No 
A-2













8. Wall Elevations and Site 
Details







9. Color and Materials Palette





10. Preliminary Grading 
and Drainage Plan



Pecos Road

M
cQ

ue
en

 R
oa

dFF = 1223.20

FF = 1223.20
8.

0'
PU

E

8.0'
PUE

33
.0

'
D

ED
IC

A
T

ED
R

O
A

D
W

A
Y

75
.0

'
R

/W65
.0

'
R

/W

79.0'
R/W

7.0'
HIGHWAY
EASEMENT

2

BOUNDARY LINE

CATCH BASIN (TYP)

STORM DRAIN (TYP)

P
re

lim
in

ar
y 

G
ra

di
ng

 a
nd

 D
ra

in
ag

e 

PRELIMINARY GRADING PLAN
FOR

PECOS MCQUEEN RETAIL

20

scale

0 20 40

feet

BASIS OF BEARING

PROJECT TEAM

BENCHMARK

THE BASIS OF BEARING IS THE MONUMENT LINE ON MCQUEEN ROAD, ALSO
BEING THE EAST LINE OF THE NOTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 23.

SAID BEARING IS SOUTH 00°27'30" WEST PER THE DESCRIPTION.

A CITY OF CHANDLER BRASS CAP FLUSH FOUND SOUTHWEST OF THE
INTERSECTION OF ARIZONA AVENUE AND PECOS ROAD.

EL.=1216.85 NGVD-88 (CITY OF CHANDLER DATUM)

EPS GROUP, INC.
1130 N. ALMA SCHOOL ROAD, SUITE 120
MESA, AZ   85201
TEL:  (480)-503-2250
FAX:  (480)-503-2258
CONTACT:  DANIEL AUXIER

dan.auxier@epsgroupinc.com

LEGEND

VICINITY MAP

N.T.S.

PECOS ROAD

M
C

Q
U

EE
N

 R
O

AD

GERMANN ROAD

FRYE ROAD

AR
IZ

O
N

A 
AV

EN
U

E 

SITE

C
O

PP
ER

 R
O

AD

SANTAN FREEWAY

RS SHERMAN ARCHITECTURE
TEL:  (702)-321-4383
CONTACT: ROBERT S. SHERMAN

nvarchitect@outlook.com

N.T.S.

Pr
oj

ec
t:

Sheet No.

Job No.

Dial 8-1-1 or 1-800-STAKE-IT (782-5348)
In Maricopa County: (602)263-1100

w
 w

 w
 .

 e
 p

 s
 g

 r
 o

 u
 p

 i 
n 

c 
. 

c 
o 

m
T:

48
0.

50
3.

22
50

F:
48

0.
50

3.
22

58
|

20
-0

29
8 

- 
Pe

co
s 

M
cQ

ue
en

 R
et

ai
l -

 P
re

lim
in

ar
y 

Pe
co

s 
M

cQ
ue

en
 R

et
ai

l
SW

C
 o

f E
. P

ec
os

 R
oa

d 
an

d 
S.

 M
cQ

ue
en

 R
d.

C
ha

nd
le

r,
 A

ri
zo

na

EPS

EPS

C
.O

.C
. L

og
 N

o.
: P

R
E2

0-
00

18
1

PG01

NOTE :
ALL BASINS AND UNDERGROUND RETENTION ARE COMBINED BY EQUALIZER PIPES.

RETENTION CALCULATIONS
REQUIRED
VOLUME:

AREA= 216,306 SF
C = 0.90
P = 2.20 IN
Vr = 39,313 CF

RETENTION :

UGR   (150 LF) Vp = 11,781 CF -           -
BASIN 1 Vp = 762  CF -           -
BASIN 2 Vp = 3,419 CF -           -
BASIN 3 Vp = 401 CF -                     -
BASIN 4 Vp = 1,207 CF -                     -
BASIN 5 Vp = 5,172 CF -           -
BASIN 6 Vp = 235 CF -           -
BASIN 7 Vp = 550 CF -           -
BASIN 8 Vp = 16,169 CF -           -
TOTALS =           Vp = 39,695 CF                 Vr = 39,313 CF EXCESS VOLUME = 382 CF



M
cQ

ue
en

 R
oa

d

BOUNDARY LINE

FF = 1223.20

FF = 1223.20

BUBBLE-UP (TYP)

EQUALIZER PIPE (TYP)

OUTFALL
LOCATION

1221.70

1

71.0'
R/W

65.0'
R/W

8.0'
PUE

Pr
oj

ec
t:

Sheet No.

Job No.

Dial 8-1-1 or 1-800-STAKE-IT (782-5348)
In Maricopa County: (602)263-1100

w
 w

 w
 .

 e
 p

 s
 g

 r
 o

 u
 p

 i 
n 

c 
. 

c 
o 

m
T:

48
0.

50
3.

22
50

F:
48

0.
50

3.
22

58
|

20
-0

29
8 

- 
Pe

co
s 

M
cQ

ue
en

 R
et

ai
l -

 P
re

lim
in

ar
y 

Pe
co

s 
M

cQ
ue

en
 R

et
ai

l
SW

C
 o

f E
. P

ec
os

 R
oa

d 
an

d 
S.

 M
cQ

ue
en

 R
d.

C
ha

nd
le

r,
 A

ri
zo

na

EPS

EPS

C
.O

.C
. L

og
 N

o.
: P

R
E2

0-
00

18
1

PG02

P
re

lim
in

ar
y 

G
ra

di
ng

 a
nd

 D
ra

in
ag

e 

LEGEND

20

scale

0 20 40

feet

RETENTION CALCULATIONS
REQUIRED
VOLUME:

AREA= 216,306 SF
C = 0.90
P = 2.20 IN
Vr = 39,313 CF

RETENTION :

UGR   (150 LF) Vp = 11,781 CF -           -
BASIN 1 Vp = 762  CF -           -
BASIN 2 Vp = 3,419 CF -           -
BASIN 3 Vp = 401 CF -                     -
BASIN 4 Vp = 1,207 CF -                     -
BASIN 5 Vp = 5,172 CF -           -
BASIN 6 Vp = 235 CF -           -
BASIN 7 Vp = 550 CF -           -
BASIN 8 Vp = 16,169 CF -           -
TOTALS =           Vp = 39,695 CF                 Vr = 39,313 CF EXCESS VOLUME = 382 CF

NOTE :
ALL BASINS AND UNDERGROUND RETENTION ARE COMBINED BY EQUALIZER PIPES.



11. Preliminary Plat



Pecos Road

M
cQ

ue
en

 R
oa

d

5.0'
24" RECLAIMED

WATER

20.8'
36" WATER

LINE

49.2'
GAS LINE

68.5'
12" WATER

LINE

14.0'
24" SEWER

22.5'
12" WATER

LINE

79.0'
R/W

71.0'
R/W

12
.5

'
U

T
IL

IT
Y

 A
N

D
IR

R
IG

A
T

IO
N

EA
SE

M
EN

T

7.0'
HIGHWAY
EASEMENT

8.
4'

12
" 

W
A

T
ER

LI
N

E

31
.0

'
12

" 
W

A
T

ER
LI

N
E

10
.2

'
FI

BE
R

 O
PT

IC
LI

N
E

V
A

R
IE

S
12

" 
W

A
T

ER
LI

N
E

23
.2

'
G

A
S 

LI
N

E
33

.0
'

D
ED

IC
A

T
ED

R
O

A
D

W
A

Y

38
.5

'
EL

EC
T

R
IC

LI
N

E

15
.4

'
12

" 
R

EC
LA

IM
ED

W
A

T
ER

44
.9

'
12

" 
R

EC
LA

IM
ED

W
A

T
ER

75
.0

'
R

/W

65
.0

'
R

/W

VARIES
ELECTRIC

LINE

32.8'
36" STORM

DRAIN

8.0'
PUE

8.
0'

PU
E

P
re

lim
in

ar
y 

P
la

t

PRELIMINARY PLAT
FOR

PECOS & MCQUEEN RETAIL

30

scale

0 30 60

feet

N.T.S.

VICINITY MAP

N.T.S.

PECOS ROAD

M
C

Q
U

EE
N

 R
O

AD

GERMANN ROAD

FRYE ROAD

AR
IZ

O
N

A 
AV

EN
U

E 

SITE

C
O

PP
ER

 R
O

AD

SANTAN FREEWAY

PROJECT DATA
A.P.N.: 303-28-252C
CURRENT LAND USE UNDEVELOPED
EXISTING ZONING AG-1
PROPOSED ZONING PAD

GROSS AREA +/- 4.6090 ACRES (200,770 SF)
NET AREA +/- 3.4662 ACRES (150,986 SF)

NO. OF LOTS: 3

NARRATIVE STATEMENT
THIS PROJECT REQUEST IS FOR PRELIMINARY PLAT REVIEW TO CONSTRUCT A RETAIL
DEVELOPMENT ON APPROXIMATELY 3.4 NET ACRES LOCATED AT THE SOUTHWEST
CORNER OF PECOS AND MCQUEEN ROADS AND WILL CONSIST OF 3 LOTS.

ARCHITECT:
RS SHERMAN ARCHITECTURE
2804 GOLFSIDE DRIVE
LAS VEGAS, NV 89134
TEL:  (702) 321-4383
CONTACT: ROBERT S. SHERMAN
EMAIL: NVARCHITECT@OUTLOOK.COM

PROJECT TEAM
DEVELOPER
DIVERSIFIED PARTNERS, LLC
7500 E. MCDONALD DR., STE. 100A
SCOTTSDALE, AZ 85260
TEL: (480) 947-8800
CONTACT:  SCOTT HINTZE
EMAIL: SCOTT@DPCRE.COM

UTILITIES

WATER CITY OF CHANDLER
SEWER CITY OF CHANDLER
GAS SOUTHWEST GAS
ELECTRIC SALT RIVER PROJECT
TELEPHONE CENTURYLINK / COX COMMUNICATION
REFUSE CITY OF CHANDLER
CABLE TV CENTURYLINK / COX COMMUNICATION

BASIS OF BEARING

THE BASIS OF BEARING IS THE MONUMENT LINE ON MCQUEEN ROAD, ALSO BEING THE
EAST LINE OF THE NOTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 23.

SAID BEARING IS SOUTH 00°27'30" WEST PER THE DESCRIPTION.

ENGINEER:
EPS GROUP, INC.
2045 S. VINEYARD, SUITE 101
MESA, AZ   85210
TEL:  (480)-503-2250
CONTACT:  DAN 'OX' AUXIER
EMAIL: DAN.AUXIER@EPSGROUPINC.COM

BENCHMARK
CITY OF CHANDLER VERTICAL CONTROL BENCHMARK #36A

SECTION 4, T2S, R5E, 3” BRASS CAP IN CONCRETE, 150’ SOUTH, 75’ WEST OF INTERSECTION
OF ARIZONA AVE AND PECOS RD; 4’ WEST OF BACK OF SIDEWALK.

NGVD 29 ELEVATION  = 1215.120'
NAVD 88 ELEVATION (NGVD 29 ELEV + 1.732') = 1216.85'

NOTE:  ELEVATIONS DEPICTED ON THIS PLAN ARE BASED ON NAVD88

RETENTION VOLUME
RETENTION VOLUME REQUIRED = 29,746 CUBIC FEET
RETENTION VOLUME PROVIDED = 30,890 CUBIC FEET

GENERAL NOTES

1. THIS SUBDIVISION IS WITHIN THE CHANDLER MUNICIPAL AIRPORT IMPACT OVERLAY
DISTRICT. AN AVIATION OR AVIGATION EASEMENT SHALL BE PROVIDED AT THE TIME
OF FINAL PLATTING.

2. THE IMPROVEMENTS ON THIS PLAT WILL NOT BE FULLY APPROVED BY THE CITY AND
THE CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY OR ACCEPTANCE WILL NOT BE ISSUED UNTIL THE
OVERHEAD UTILITY LINE UNDERGROUND REQUIREMENTS HAS BEEN SATISFIED.

3. THE IMPROVEMENTS SHOWN OF THIS SET OF PLAN WILL NOT BE FULLY APPROVED BY
THE CITY AND THE CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY WILL NOT BE ISSUED UNTIL
IRRIGATION FACILITY UNDERGROUND REQUIREMENTS HAS BEEN SATISFIED.

4. THE FINAL PLAT FOR THIS SUBDIVISION WILL NOT BE APPROVED OR RECORDED
UNTIL A RECLAIMED WATER USE AGREEMENT IS EXECUTED BY THE DEVELOPER AND
APPROVED BY THE CITY.

5. THERE ARE NO EXISTING WELLS ON SITE.
6. DRAINAGE CONCEPTS ARE SHOWN ON THE PRELIMINARY GRADING AND DRAINAGE

PLAN.

NOTE:
VISIBILITY EASEMENTS RESTRICTIONS: ANY OBJECT, WALL STRUCTURE, MOUND OR
LANDSCAPING (MATURE) OVER 24" IN HEIGHT IS NOT ALLOWED WITHIN THE EASEMENT
EXCEPT TREES TRIMMED TO NOT LESS THAT 6' ABOVE GROUND. TREES SHALL BE SPACED
NOT LESS THAN 8' APART.

LOT 50
APN 303-28-089

OWNER: JOHN/CLARA BARNETT
NOT A PART

LOT 49
APN 303-28-08

OWNER: WILLIAM/ANN DAVID VEGH
NOT A PART

Pr
oj

ec
t:

Sheet No.

Job No.

Dial 8-1-1 or 1-800-STAKE-IT (782-5348)
In Maricopa County: (602)263-1100

w
 w

 w
 .

 e
 p

 s
 g

 r
 o

 u
 p

 i 
n 

c 
. 

c 
o 

m
T:

48
0.

50
3.

22
50

F:
48

0.
50

3.
22

58
|

20
-0

29
8 

- 
Pe

co
s 

M
cQ

ue
en

 R
et

ai
l -

 P
re

lim
in

ar
y 

Pe
co

s 
M

cQ
ue

en
 R

et
ai

l
SW

C
 o

f E
. P

ec
os

 R
oa

d 
an

d 
S.

 M
cQ

ue
en

 R
d.

C
ha

nd
le

r,
 A

ri
zo

na

EPS

EPS

C
.O

.C
. L

og
 N

o.
: P

R
E2

0-
00

18
1

PP01



12. Perspective Renderings





 













13. Signage



Pecos Corner

PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN
COMPREHENSIVE SIGN PROGRAM

OWNER INFORMATION
WNDG, LLC

7500 E McDonald Dr #100A
Scottsdale AZ 85250

Owner Representative
Diversified Partners, LLC

7500 E McDonald Dr #100A
Scottsdale AZ 85250

Office: (480) 947-8800 

SIGN CONSULTANT
Indie Signage Sales, LLC dba Indie Signage 

20118 N 67th Ave, Ste 300-218
Glendale AZ 85308

Jose Villanueva, President
(623) 302-4545

jose@indiesignage.com



Introduction & General Requirements 

Specifications Tenant Signs & Design Requirements

General Construction Requirements, Sign Lighting & Prohibited Signage 

Cross Section Details

Sign Type 1

Sign Type 2

Pad A - North Elevation

Pad A - South Elevation

Pad A - East Elevation

Pad A - West Elevation

Pad A - Floor Plan

Pad B - North Elevation

Pad B - South Elevation

Pad B - East Elevation

Pad B - West Elevation

Pad B - Floor Plan

Pad C - North Elevation

Pad C - South Elevation

Pad C - East / West Elevation

Pad C - Floor Plan

Site Location

Site Map - Monument Sign Types 1 & 2 Locations

Colors & Materials

Table Contents

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23



Introduction

The intent of this Sign Criteria is to provide guidelines necessary to achieve a visually coordinated, 
balanced, and appealing signage environment at Pecos Corner for the mutual benefit of all tenants 
and the public, regulations of the City of Chandler sign ordinance, building and electrical codes of 
any government authority having jurisdiction. 

Conformance of the Sign Criteria shall be rigorously enforced and any non-conforming sign(s) 
shall be removed or brought into conformance at the sole cost and expense of the tenant. 

This criteria is subject to final approval by the City of Chandler as part of a Preliminary 
Development Plan. If a conflict is found to exist between these criteria and the final criteria 
approved by the City of Chandler, the latter shall prevail.

All signage shall comply with signage criteria found within the I. General Requirements, II. 
Specifications - Tenant Signs, III.  Design Requirements, IV. General Construction Requirements, 
V. Sign Lighting & VI. Prohibited Signage below, and meet all applicable local codes. Tenant will
be responsible for submitting sign permit application, shop drawings, and all other necessary
paperwork with the City of Chandler.

The tenant shall obtain all necessary permits, and shall be the owner of record for all signs, shall 
pay for all signs their installation (including permit fees, engineering fees, final connection, 
transformers, and other labor, materials, maintenance).

PAGE 1

I. General Requirements

A. Tenant shall submit or cause to be submitted to Landlord, for approval, prior to fabrication,
detailed drawings indicating the location, size, layout, design color, illumination materials
and method of attachment of the signage plans shall be designed on an 11" x 17" size PDF,
the drawings shall be clearly legible and may be delivered by email to the designated
representative of the Landlord. Should the Tenant decide to deliver a printed set of drawings,
the Tenant shall submit or cause to be submitted to Landlord, four (4) copies of detailed
drawings as described above, printed in full color on 11" x 17" paper.

B. Tenant or Tenant's representative shall obtain all permits for signs and their installation.

C. All signs shall be constructed and installed at Tenant's sole expense.

D. Tenant shall be responsible for the fulfillment of all requirements and specifications, including
those of the local municipality.

E. All signs shall be reviewed for conformance with these criteria and overall design and quality.
Approval or disapproval of sign submittals based on aesthetics of design shall remain the sole
right of Landlord or Landlord's authorized representative.

F. Tenant shall be responsible for the installation and maintenance of Tenant's sign. Should
Tenant's sign require,maintenance or repair, Landlord shall give Tenant thirty (30) days
written notice to effect said maintenance or repair. Should Tenant fail to do the same, Landlord
may undertake repairs and Tenant shall reimburse Landlord within ten (10) days from receipt
of Landlord's invoice.

G. Advertising devices such as attraction boards, posters, banners and flags shall not be permitted.



PAGE 2

II. SPECIFICATIONS - TENANT SIGNS

A. General Specifications
1. No animated, flashing or audible signs shall be permitted.
2. All signs and their installation shall comply with all local building and electrical

codes.
3. No exposed raceways, crossovers or conduit shall be permitted.
4. All cabinets, conductors, transformers, power drivers, power supplies and other equipment

shall be concealed.
5. Painted lettering shall not be permitted except as approved by the Landlord and the

City of Chandler.
6. Any damage to  the sign band face or roof deck resulting in Tenant's sign installation shall

be repaired at Tenant's sole cost.

B. Location of Signs
1. All signs or devices advertising an individual use, business or building shall be on

same building as leased space, but not required to be over actual leased space.
Specific sign location to be directed by Landlord.

III. DESIGN REQUIREMENTS

A. Individual illuminated letters and logos may include pan channel metal letters with acrylic sign
faces, reverse pan channel "backlit" illuminated letters, or any combination thereof. Electrical
connections shall be concealed to remote power supply. All signage shall be installed in
compliance to City of Chandler electrical code and UL2161/UL 48 specifications. Any sign
installation found to be non-compliant shall be repaired immediately by the Tenant at Tenant's
sole expense.

B. Sign Area/Multi-Tenant Building
Signs shall not exceed two (2) square feet in area for each linear foot of business frontage. Said
signs shall be wall- or window-mounted, on or under an architectural projection. The sign shall
not project more than two (2) feet from the building, or structure to which it is attached. No
attached sign shall exceed two hundred (200) square feet in area.

C. Letter Style or Logo Restrictions
Copy and/or logos utilized shall be Tenant's choice, subject to the approval of Landlord and/or
Landlord's agents and the City of Chandler, with respect to surrounding area and existing signage.
Signage is to be aesthetically pleasing in, but not limited to, letter/architectural style, and
placement.

D. Cabinet signs, other than corporate logos, shall be prohibited. Signs shall be integrated with
building facades and shall be proportional to the scale of the facades so that they are not the
dominant architectural features.

E. Traffic directional signs are permitted, provided they are no higher than three (3) feet. The sign
may be internally illuminated or non-illuminated.



PAGE 3

Illumination
Tenant building signage shall be internally illuminated, either face-lit, or back-lit to 
create a silhouette, or a combination of both face-lit and back-lit is allowed. No exposed 
neon or other lighting method allowed.

Non-Illumination
Non-illuminated signage is not allowed.

IV. GENERAL CONSTRUCTION REQUIREMENTS

A. All exterior signs shall be secured by concealed fasteners, stainless steel, or nickle or
cadmium plated.

B. All signs shall be fabricated using full welded construction.

C. All penetrations of the building structure required for sign installation shall be neatly sealed
in a watertight condition.

D. No labels or other identification shall be permitted on the exposed surface of signs except
those required by local ordinance, must be readily visible from public property or property
accessible to the public after the sign is erected.

E. Tenant shall be fully responsible for the operations of Tenant's sign contractors and shall
indemnify, defend and hold Landlord harmelss for, from and against damages or liabilites
on account thereof.

V. SIGN LIGHTING

A. All lighting to tenants signage shall be controlled by a 24-hour time clock photo
sensor.

B. Sign illumination shall be internal and self-contained.

C. All electrical and install methods must meet UL standards and contain UL labels.
UL Labels are not required to be visible from the ground.

VI. PROHIBITED SIGNAGE
- signs using poor-quality materials, i.e. plastic applique letters, non-fade resitant materials, etc
- light boxes, cabinet signs, formed plastic or injection-molded letters
- flashing, moving, audible, or odor making signage
- cluttered signs
- banners, penants, inflatable displays or sandwich boards
- 2nd story signs above the parapet
- rooftop signage
- awnings with printed letters
- window decals such as credit card acceptability
- advertising or promotional signs on parked vehicles
- exposed neon or any other exposed light source
- signs with exposed conduit, tubing, raceways, conductors, transformers or other such equipment
- pre-manufactured signs, such as franchise signs, that have not been modified to meet these
criteria
- no cloth, paper, cardboard, or similar stickers or decals around or on surfaces on the storefront.

F.

G.



PAGE 4

INPUT: 
AC 100 - 240 V  
50/60Hz
CONDUIT 
W/ SHIELD WIRE

OUTPUT: 12VDC  

ALUMINUM

RETURNS

LED UNITS 

CONNECTION
WIRE

CLASS 2 
POWER SUPPLY

ALUM. BACK

ALL ELECTRICAL

APPROVED

ACRYLIC 

PLASTIC FACE

DRAIN HOLE

5”

TRIMCAP 1/4” BOLT 

WITH ANCHOR

 MINIMUM FOUR

(4) PER LETTER

TO 120V 
PRIMARY / J-BOX

WALL

LISTED
CONDUIT

DISCONNECT 
SWITCH

V. Cross Section Details

PC Letter / LED Illumination / Face-Lit

5”

RPC Letter / LED Illumination / Halo-Lit / Reverse-Lit



PAGE 5



PAGE 6 SIGN TYPE 2



PAGE 7

PAD A



PAGE 8

PAD A



PAGE 9

PAD A



PAGE 10

PAD A



PAGE 11

PAD A



PAGE 12

PAD B



PAGE 13

PAD B



PAGE 14

PAD B



PAGE 15

PAD B



PAGE 16

PAD B



PAGE 17

PAD C



PAGE 18

PAD C



PAGE 19

PAD C



PAD C

PAGE 20



Site Location 

PAGE 21



Si
te

 M
ap

 - 
M

on
um

en
t S

ig
n 

T
yp

e 
1 

&
 2

 L
oc
at
io
ns

SIGN TYPE 1

SIGN TYPE 1

Monument Sign Type 2

PAGE 22



Colors & Materials

PAGE 23



ITEM  6 

City Council Memorandum      City Clerk's Office  Memo No. 21-021
       

Date: April 8, 2021
To: Mayor  and Council
Thru: Joshua H. Wright, Acting City Manager

Debra Stapleton, Assistant City Manager 
Derek D. Horn, Development Services Director

From: Erica Barba, Assistant City Clerk 
Subject: PLH20-0063/PLT21-0008 McKinley Glenn

Introduction and Tentative Adoption of Ordinance No. 4968
Request: Rezoning from Agricultural (AG-1) district to Planned Area Development (PAD) for single family

residential
Preliminary Development Plan (PDP) for subdivision layout
Preliminary Plat approval for a 22-lot subdivision

Location: East of the southeast corner of Chandler Heights and Cooper roads
Applicant: Alex Stedman; RVi Planning + Landscape Architecture 

Proposed Motion:
Move City Council continue PLH20-0063 McKinley Glenn, located east of the southeast corner of
Chandler Heights and Cooper roads to the May 13, 2021, Council meeting, as recommended by
Planning and Zoning Commission. 

Background Data:
At the March 17, 2021, Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting, staff recommended a continuance
to allow the applicant more time to complete the preliminary plat for the proposed development. 

Surrounding Land Use Data:
N/A

Review and Recommendation
Planning and Zoning Commission recommends the City Council continue PLH20-0063/PLT21-0008
McKinley Glenn to the May 13, 2021, City Council meeting. 

Planning and Zoning Commission Vote Report
Planning and Zoning Commission meeting March 17, 2021
Motion to Approve continuance to the April 21, 2021, Planning & Zoning Commission meeting

In Favor: 5 Opposed: 0 Absent: 2 (Rose, Pekau)

Recommended Conditions of Approval
N/A



N/A

Attachments
Vicinity Maps 



S C
OO

PE
R 

RD

S 1
30

TH
 ST

E CHANDLER HEIGHTS RD

E MEAD PL

S S
AL

T C
ED

AR
 ST

E CEDAR PL

E LYNX PL

E TEAKWOOD PL

E BEECHNUT PL

E SAN CARLOS PL

E VIA DE PALMAS

E MAHOGANY PL

E BLUE RIDGE WY

E POWELL WY E POWELL PL

E NOLAN PL

E BARTLETT PL

S L
AF

AY
ET

TE
 D

R

S S
OH

O 
LN

E VIA DE ARBOLES RD

S S
AL

T C
ED

AR
 PL

S A
SH

LE
Y D

R

E MEAD DR

S VERNON DR

E NON-DEDICATED

S D
AN

IE
LS

ON
 W

Y

E CEDAR PL

E POWELL PL

E LYNX PL

E SAN CARLOS PL

E VIA DE PALMAS

E BARTLETT PL

S A
SH

LE
Y D

R

E SAN CARLOS PL

S S
OH

O 
LN

S D
AN

IE
LS

ON
 W

Y

City of Chandler Planning Division

Project Site

Co
op

er 
Rd

.

Proposed Project Details
REZONE/PDP
9 acres
22 Lot Single Family
2.4 dwelling units per acre (du/ac)

chandleraz.gov/planning
For more information visit:

Chandler Heights Rd.

https://gis.chandleraz.gov/planning

PLH20-0063/PLT21-0008 McKinley Glenn ´

^

COUNTY

COUNTY

PAD
Tierra Linda

PAD

SF-10/PAD
Creekwood Ranch

PAD
Countryside Estates

PAD
Chandler Heights

AG-1

COUNTY

COUNTY COUNTY

SF-33
Circle G at Riggs

Homestead Ranch
CO

UN
TY

PAD



S C
OO

PE
R 

RD

S 1
30

TH
 ST

E CHANDLER HEIGHTS RD

E MEAD PL

S S
AL

T C
ED

AR
 ST

E CEDAR PL

E LYNX PL

E TEAKWOOD PL

E BEECHNUT PL

E SAN CARLOS PL

E VIA DE PALMAS

E MAHOGANY PL

E BLUE RIDGE WY

E POWELL WY E POWELL PL

E NOLAN PL

E BARTLETT PL

S L
AF

AY
ET

TE
 D

R

S S
OH

O 
LN

E VIA DE ARBOLES RD

S S
AL

T C
ED

AR
 PL

S A
SH

LE
Y D

R

E MEAD DR

S VERNON DR

E NON-DEDICATED

S D
AN

IE
LS

ON
 W

Y

E CEDAR PL

E POWELL PL

E LYNX PL

E SAN CARLOS PL

E VIA DE PALMAS

E BARTLETT PL

S A
SH

LE
Y D

R

E SAN CARLOS PL

S S
OH

O 
LN

S D
AN

IE
LS

ON
 W

Y

City of Chandler Planning Division

Project Site

Co
op

er 
Rd

.

Proposed Project Details
REZONE/PDP
9 acres
22 Lot Single Family
2.4 dwelling units per acre (du/ac)

chandleraz.gov/planning
For more information visit:

Chandler Heights Rd.

https://gis.chandleraz.gov/planning

PLH20-0063/PLT21-0008 McKinley Glenn ´

^

COUNTY

COUNTY

PAD
Tierra Linda

PAD

SF-10/PAD
Creekwood Ranch

PAD
Countryside Estates

PAD
Chandler Heights

AG-1

COUNTY

COUNTY COUNTY

SF-33
Circle G at Riggs

Homestead Ranch
CO

UN
TY

PAD



ITEM  7 

City Council Memorandum      City Clerk's Office  Memo No. 21-020
       

Date: April 8, 2021
To: Mayor  and Council
Thru: Joshua H. Wright, Acting City Manager

Debra Stapleton, Assistant City Manager 
Derek D. Horn, Development Services Director

From: Erica Barba, Assistant City Clerk 
Subject: PLH20-0052/PLT20-0039 Serene Estates

Introduction and Tentative Adoption of Ordinance No. 4967 
 

Request: Rezoning from Neighborhood Commercial (C-1) district to Planned Area Development (PAD) for
single-family residential 
Preliminary Development Plan (PDP) for subdivision layout and housing product 
Preliminary Plat approval for a 15-lot subdivision 

Location: Northwest of the northwest corner of Galveston and Hartford streets
Applicant: Charles Huellmantel; Huellmantel & Affiliates 

Proposed Motion:
Rezoning
Move City Council introduce and tentatively adopt Ordinance No. 4967 approving PLH20-0052 Serene
Estates, Rezoning from Neighborhood Commercial (C-1) to Planned Area Development for
single-family residential, located northwest of the northwest corner of Galveston and Hartford
streets, subject to the conditions as recommended by Planning and Zoning Commission.

Preliminary Development Plan 
Move City Council approve Preliminary Development Plan PLH20-0052 Serene Estates for subdivision
layout and housing product, located northwest of the northwest corner of Galveston and Hartford
streets, subject to the conditions as recommended by Planning and Zoning Commission.

Preliminary Plat
Move City Council approve Preliminary Plat PLT20-0039 Serene Estates, located northwest of the
northwest corner of Galveston and Hartford streets, subject to the condition recommended by Planning
and Zoning Commission.

Background Data:
Approximately 2.3 net acres and undeveloped
Site zoned C-1, allowing for commercial uses to support the immediate neighborhood
Subject site wraps an existing commercial corner with a laundromat, convenience store, and
restaurant
A Use Permit to allow a U-Haul facility on a portion of the subject site was denied in 2012
General Plan designates the site as Neighborhoods and is considered infill



Project consist of 15 lots totaling 6.4 du/ac

Surrounding Land Use Data:
North Alley then single family South Galveston Street then single-family and two-story

apartments
East Hartford Street then two-story

apartments
West Alley then single family

General Plan and Area Plan Designations:
  Existing Proposed
General Plan Neighborhoods  No Change 
     

Proposed Development
  Single family subdivision
# of Lots 15 single family lots
Density 6.4 dwelling units per acre
Building Setbacks (min.)

Front – 8.6 ft. to livable, 20 ft. to garage from back of
sidewalk 
Sides – 5 ft. & 5 ft. 
Rear - 10 ft., designated lots in exhibit allow for
single-story, attached patios to encroach 5 ft. into 10 ft.
setback 

Lot Size Lots range from 3,612 sq. ft. to 6,748 sq. ft. 
Lot Coverage (max.) 65 percent
Building Height (max.) All homes two-story; 28 ft. to midpoint of peak
Architecture Theme Contemporary and Farmhouse  
Number of Elevations  6 
House Size  1,795 sq. ft. to 2,292 sq. ft. 
Number of Floor Plans  3 
Parking Spaces 

Each lot provides a two-vehicle garage with driveways
On-street parking provided on both sides of street;
subdivision is not gated 

Review and Recommendation
Planning staff finds the proposal consistent with the General Plan. Due to the infill nature of the site, the
lots are smaller than adjacent single-family homes to the west and north. However, a twenty-foot alley
separates the existing homes and the proposed development. The proposed two-story product is an
appropriate transition from the neighborhood commercial to the single family lots. The proposed single
family subdivision will provide a public local street through the development, which allows for parking
on both sides of the street for guests and residents. An amenity is not proposed due to size constraints
of providing a public street, but a public park (Navarrete Park) and two schools are within walking
distance of the proposed development.

Due to the infill nature of the site, the Residential Development Standards (RDS) for subdivision layout



are not applicable. However, the RDS guidelines remain applicable to the architectural design of the
homes. The proposed single family residential subdivision meets the intent of development standards
and residential design guidelines. In order to provide private covered patios for each lot, eight lots
request to encroach five (5) feet into the rear yard setback to provide an adequate patio cover. Some to
these lots have the ability to build the private patio in the side yard with the appropriate floor plan. As
recommended by Planning staff, all lots are required to provide a covered patio in either the rear or side
yard at the time of construction.

Staff finds the proposal to be consistent with the goals of the General Plan and Planning & Zoning
Commission recommends approval subject to conditions.
 

Public / Neighborhood Notification
This request was noticed in accordance with the requirements of the Chandler Land Use and
Zoning Code.
To comply with CDC social distancing guidelines, the applicant hosted a digital neighborhood
meeting on February 10, 2021. Ten (10) households attended the virtual meeting; two residents
asked questions about the proposal. One resident asked about the proposed walls along the
alley, construction timelines and cost of homes. The other resident had concerns with two-story
homes adjacent to single-story homes regarding privacy issues, as well as concerns with having
a Homeowner’s Association (HOA) for the new subdivision as they thought it meant excluding the
proposed subdivision from the City’s rules. 
Planning staff has received one phone call after the neighborhood meeting from the concerned
resident who attended the meeting and asked questions. Staff discussed their concerns
regarding: the proposed architecture of the homes is “too modern” for the surrounding
neighborhood; two-story homes adjacent to single-story; and the resident thought the property
should develop as a community center or library for the neighborhood children. The resident is
opposed to the request and has surveyed adjacent homeowners: four letters are attached.
Additionally, a video was made by the resident and emailed to Mayor and Council. 
Planning staff has received a letter of support from a resident who attended the neighborhood
meeting: their statement of support is attached.

Planning and Zoning Commission Vote Report
Planning and Zoning Commission meeting March 17, 2021
Motion to Approve

In Favor: 5 Opposed: 0 Absent: 2 (Rose, Pekau)

During the Planning and Zoning Commission Study Session, additional Preliminary Development Plan
stipulations 10-15 were added to enhance the proposed housing elevations and add monument signs at
both entries. Both items will be reviewed by staff administratively. 

Recommended Conditions of Approval
Rezoning
Planning and Zoning Commission recommends the City Council approve of rezoning from C-1 to PAD
for single family residential, subject to the following conditions:
  

Development shall be in substantial conformance with the Development Booklet, entitled,
“Serene Estates” and kept on file in the City of Chandler Planning Division, in File No.
PLH20-0052, modified by such conditions included at the time the Booklet was approved by the
Chandler City Council and/or as thereafter amended, modified or supplemented by Chandler City
Council.

1.



Council.

  

Completion of the construction of all required off-site street improvements including but not limited
to paving, landscaping, curb, gutter and sidewalks, median improvements and street lighting to
achieve conformance with City codes, standard details, and design manuals.

2.

  

The developer shall be required to install landscaping in the arterial street median(s) adjoining
this project. In the event that the landscaping already exists within such median(s) the developer
shall be required to upgrade such landscaping to meet current City Standards.

3.

  

Right-of-way dedications to achieve full half-widths, including turn lanes and deceleration lanes,
per the standards of the Chandler Transportation Plan.

4.

  

Minimum setbacks shall be as provided below and further detailed in the development booklet:5.

  
Front yard
setbacks

8.6 ft. to livable; 20 ft. to garage from back of sidewalk
 

Side yard
setbacks

5 ft. and 5 ft.

Rear yard
setback

10 ft., designated lots in "Exhibit B" allow for single-story, attached patios to
encroach 5 ft. into 10 ft. setback

Preliminary Development Plan
Planning and Zoning Commission recommends the City Council approve the Preliminary Development
Plan, subject to the following conditions: 
  

Development shall be in substantial conformance with the Development Booklet, entitled “Serene
Estates” and kept on file in the City of Chandler Planning Division, in File No. PLH20-0052,
modified by such conditions included at the time the Booklet was approved by the Chandler City
Council and/or as thereafter amended, modified or supplemented by the Chandler City Council.

1.

  

The site shall be maintained in a clean and orderly manner.2.

  

The landscaping in all open-spaces shall be maintained by the property owner or property
owners' association, and shall be maintained at a level consistent with or better than at the time of
planting. 

3.

  

The landscaping in all rights-of-way shall be maintained by the adjacent property owner or
property owners' association.

4.

  

Landscaping plans (including for open spaces, rights-of-way, and street medians) and perimeter
walls shall be approved by the Planning Administrator.

5.



walls shall be approved by the Planning Administrator.

  

The covenants, conditions and restrictions (CC & R's) to be filed and recorded with the
subdivision shall mandate the installation of front yard landscaping within 180 days from the date
of occupancy with the homeowners' association responsible for monitoring and enforcement of
this requirement.

6.

  

Sign packages, including free-standing signs as well as wall-mounted signs, shall be designed in
coordination with landscape plans, planting materials, storm water retention requirements, and
utility pedestals, so as not to create problems with sign visibility or prompt the removal of required
landscape materials.

7.

  

Preliminary Development Plan approval does not constitute Final Development Plan approval;
compliance with the details required by all applicable codes and conditions of the City of Chandler
and this Preliminary Development Plan shall apply.

8.

  

All lots shall provide a cover patio in either the rear or side yard at the time of construction.9.

  

Add more articulation to roof such as a dormer to 2072 farmhouse plan.10.

  

Left elevation on both 1795 plans shall be enhanced to create more articulation.11.

  

The front elevation of the 1795 contemporary plan shall break up the horizontal element of the
porch roof to create vertical elements.

12.

  

Plan 2292 contemporary shall create more articulation on the rear to mimic the front elevation.13.

  

Monument signs shall be added to both entrances to be architecturally compatible with the
materials and colors of the homes.

14.

  

Same elevation shall not be built side by side.15.

Preliminary Plat
Planning and Zoning Commission recommends the City Council approve the Preliminary Plat, subject
to the following condition.
  

Approval by the City Engineer and Planning Administrator with regard to the details of all
submittals required by code or condition.

1.

Attachments



Attachments
Addendum Memo Additional Stipulation 
Ordinance No. 4967 
Vicinity Maps 
Development Booklet 
Letters from Neighbors 







ORDINANCE NO.  4967 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF CHANDLER, ARIZONA, AMENDING 
THE ZONING CODE AND MAP ATTACHED THERETO, BY REZONING 
PARCELS FROM NEIGHBORHOOD COMMERCIAL (C-1) TO PLANNED 
AREA DEVELOPMENT (PAD) FOR SINGLE-FAMILY AS REPRESENTED 
IN CASE PLH20-0052 (SERENE ESTATES) LOCATED NORTHEAST OF THE 
NORTHWEST CORNER OF GALVESTON AND HARTFORD STREETS 
WITHIN THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF CHANDLER, 
ARIZONA; PROVIDING FOR THE REPEAL OF CONFLICTING 
ORDINANCES; AND PROVIDING FOR PENALTIES. 

 
WHEREAS, the application for rezoning certain property within the corporate limits of Chandler, 
Arizona, has been filed in accordance with Article XXVI of the Chandler Zoning Code; and 
 
WHEREAS, the application has been published in a local newspaper with general circulation in 
the City of Chandler, giving fifteen (15) days’ notice of time, place and date of public hearing; and 
 
WHEREAS, a notice of such hearing was posted on the property at least seven (7) days prior to 
said public hearing; and 
 
WHEREAS, a public hearing was held by the Planning and Zoning Commission as required by 
the Zoning Code. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Chandler, Arizona, 
as follows: 
 
Section 1. Legal Description of Property: 
  As described in EXHIBIT ‘A’   
 

Said property is hereby rezoned from Neighborhood Commercial (C-1) to Planned Area 
Development (PAD) for single-family, subject to the following conditions: 
 
1. Development shall be in substantial conformance with the Development 

Booklet, entitled “Serene Estates” and kept on file in the City of Chandler 
Planning Division, in File No. PLH20-0052, modified by such conditions 
included at the time the Booklet was approved by the Chandler City Council 
and/or as thereafter amended, modified or supplemented by the Chandler City 
Council. 

 
2. Completion of the construction of all required off-site street improvements 

including but not limited to paving, landscaping, curb, gutter and sidewalks, 
median improvements and street lighting to achieve conformance with City 
codes, standard details, and design manuals. 
 



Ordinance No. 4967 
Page 2 

3. The developer shall be required to install landscaping in the arterial street 
median(s) adjoining this project. In the event that the landscaping already exists 
within such median(s) the developer shall be required to upgrade such 
landscaping to meet current City Standards.  

 
4. Right-of-way dedications to achieve full half-widths, including turn lanes and 

deceleration lanes, per the standards of the Chandler Transportation Plan. 
 
5. Minimum setbacks shall be as provided below and further detailed in the 

Development Booklet: 
Building setbacks (min.) 
              Front  
               
             Sides 
              Rear 

 
8.6 ft. to livable, 20 ft. to garage from back of 
sidewalk 
5 ft. & 5 ft.  
10 ft., with those designated lots depicted in 
“Exhibit B” allowing for a single-story, 
attached patio to encroach 5 ft. into 10 ft. 
setback. 

 
 
Section 2. The Planning Division of the City of Chandler is hereby directed to enter such 

changes and amendments as may be necessary upon the Zoning Map of said Zoning 
Code in compliance with this Ordinance.  

 
Section 3. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with the provisions of this 

Ordinance, or any parts hereof, are hereby repealed. 
 
Section 4. In any case, where any building, structure, or land is used in violation of this 

Ordinance, the Planning Division of the City of Chandler may institute an 
injunction or any other appropriate action in proceeding to prevent the use of such 
building, structure, or land.  

 
Section 5. If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase or portion of this Ordinance is 

for any reason held to be invalid or unconstitutional by the decision of any court of 
competent jurisdiction, then this entire ordinance is invalid and shall have no force 
or effect. 

 
Section 6. A violation of this Ordinance shall be a Class 1 misdemeanor subject to the 

enforcement and penalty provisions set forth in Section 1-8.3 of the Chandler City 
Code.  Each day a violation continues, or the failure to perform any act or duty 
required by this Ordinance or the Zoning Code, shall constitute a separate offense. 

 
  



Ordinance No. 4967 
Page 3 

INTRODUCED AND TENTATIVELY APPROVED by the City Council of the City of Chandler, 
Arizona, this ____ day of ______________, 2021. 
 
ATTEST: 
 
______________________________  ______________________________ 
CITY CLERK      MAYOR 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Chandler, Arizona, this _____ day 
of _______________, 2021. 
 
ATTEST: 
 
______________________________  _______________________________ 
CITY CLERK      MAYOR 
 

 
CERTIFICATION 

 
I HEREBY CERTIFY that the above and foregoing Ordinance No. 4967 was duly passed and 
adopted by the City Council of the City of Chandler, Arizona, at a regular meeting held on the 
____ day of _____________, 2021, and that a quorum was present thereat. 
 
      __________________________ 
       CITY CLERK 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
      
CITY ATTORNEY  
 
Published: 
 

 
 
 
 

 
  



Ordinance No. 4967 
Page 4 

EXHIBIT ‘A’ 
Legal Description 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance No. 4967 
Page 5 

“Exhibit B” 
BLACKED OUT LOTS (1,4,6,7,8,9,10, & 12) ALLOW FOR 5 FOOT ENCROACHMENT 

INTO REAR YARD SETBACK WITH ATTACHED, ONE-STORY PATIOS 
 

 



N 
IO

WA
 S

TN 
HA

RT
FO

RD
 S

T

W GALVESTON ST

W MONTEREY ST

W IVANHOE ST

W TULSA ST

W IVANHOE PL

W CARLA VISTA DR

W OAKLAND ST

W HARRISON ST

N 
VIN

E 
ST

N 
CH

ER
I L

YN
N 

DR

W DEL RIO ST

W LAREDO ST

N 
SU

NS
ET

 D
R

N 
EV

ER
GR

EE
N 

ST

W OAKLAND ST

W DEL RIO ST N 
SU

NS
ET

 D
R

N 
EV

ER
GR

EE
N 

ST

W HARRISON ST

City of Chandler Planning Division

Project Site

Ha
rtf

or
d S

t.

Proposed Project Details
REZONE/PDP
2.3acres
15 Lot Single Family
6.41 dwelling units per acre (du/ac)

chandleraz.gov/planning
For more information visit:

Galveston St.

https://gis.chandleraz.gov/planning

PLH20-0052/PLT20-0039 Serene Estates ´

^

C-1

MF-2

SF-8.5
Serene Homes

SCHOOL
Hartford Elementary

SF-8.5
Hoy Homes

SF-8.5
Thunderbird Park

SF-8.5
Thunderbird Park

SF-8.5
Tonopah Terrace

MF-2

SCHOOL
CHANDLER HIGH

SCHOOL
ST. MARY

BASHA
CATHOLIC
SCHOOL

MF-3

SF-8.5
Carla Vista

MF-2

SF-8.5
Hartford Estates

PARK
Navarrette

Park



N 
IO

WA
 S

TN 
HA

RT
FO

RD
 S

T

W GALVESTON ST

W MONTEREY ST

W IVANHOE ST

W TULSA ST

W IVANHOE PL

W CARLA VISTA DR

W OAKLAND ST

W HARRISON ST

N 
VIN

E 
ST

N 
CH

ER
I L

YN
N 

DR

W DEL RIO ST

W LAREDO ST

N 
SU

NS
ET

 D
R

N 
EV

ER
GR

EE
N 

ST

W OAKLAND ST

W DEL RIO ST N 
SU

NS
ET

 D
R

N 
EV

ER
GR

EE
N 

ST

W HARRISON ST

City of Chandler Planning Division

Project Site

Ha
rtf

or
d S

t.

Proposed Project Details
REZONE/PDP
2.3acres
15 Lot Single Family
6.41 dwelling units per acre (du/ac)

chandleraz.gov/planning
For more information visit:

Galveston St.

https://gis.chandleraz.gov/planning

PLH20-0052/PLT20-0039 Serene Estates ´

^

C-1

MF-2

SF-8.5
Serene Homes

SCHOOL
Hartford Elementary

SF-8.5
Hoy Homes

SF-8.5
Thunderbird Park

SF-8.5
Thunderbird Park

SF-8.5
Tonopah Terrace

MF-2

SCHOOL
CHANDLER HIGH

SCHOOL
ST. MARY

BASHA
CATHOLIC
SCHOOL

MF-3

SF-8.5
Carla Vista

MF-2

SF-8.5
Hartford Estates

PARK
Navarrette

Park



SERENE ESTATES 
 
REZONING AND PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT 

PLAN 
 

620 NORTH HARTFORD STREET 
APN: 302-50-098 

 
CASE #: PLH20-0052 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

P.O. BOX 1833, Tempe, Arizona 85280-1833  ª  T: (480) 921-2800  ª  E: charles@huellmantel.com 

  

& H UELLMANTEL 
A FFI LI A TES  



SUMMARY 
 

Capital Investments, LLC has owned the vacant land northwest of the northwest corner of 
Galveston Street and Hartford Street for a number of years and has been working with the City 
of Chandler to develop the land into single-family homes since 2018. The proposal, Serene 
Estates, received Preliminary Site Plan Technical Review comments from the City in June 2018 
(PRE18-0048) and this will be the first formal Rezoning and Preliminary Development Plan 
submittal for the site. 
 
Our proposal includes 15 single-family homes on approximately 2.34 acres (APN 302-50-098), 
designed around a through street – north Vine Street in the north/south direction and west Laredo 
Street in the east/west direction: 
 

 
 

The site is currently zoned C-1, Neighborhood Commercial District and consists of a vacant lot: 
 

 



We plan to rezone the site to PAD zoning, which will allow for the unique setbacks proposed 
based on the parcel layout, which surrounds an existing commercial use at the corner. 
 
  



REZONING 
 

We would like to rezone the site from C-1 to PAD to allow for the construction of fifteen single-
family residences on approximately 2.34 acres (6.41 dwelling units per acre). The site is located 
on the north side of Galveston Street and on the west side of Hartford Street (highlighted in blue 
below), surrounding a commercial use at the corner:   
 

 
 

The single-family residences will be built facing two newly created streets, north Vine Street, 
running north and south and west Laredo Street, running east and west. Five of the residences 
will be located southeast of Vine and Laredo Streets and the other ten residences will be located 
north and west of Vine and Laredo.  
 
Each residential lot will consist of one home, a front yard, side yards and a rear yard. The lots on 
the north and west sides of Vine and Laredo will back up to an existing alley. Three separate 
tracts have been dedicated on the site for retention. East residential lot will vary in size and the 
minimum proposed setbacks are as follows: Rear yard - 10 feet, Side yards - 5 feet, Front yard – 
8feet, 6 inches. Lots #1, #4, #6, #7, #8, #9, #10, and #12 will have a reduced rear yard setback of 
5 feet to allow homebuyers to build a rear yard patio. The maximum height proposed is 28 feet, 
with the minimum height of the homes 24 feet, 8 inches. All of the homes will have their own 
private attached garage, and additional parking will be allowed / provided on both sides of Vine 
and Laredo Streets. 
 



Per the City of Chandler Residential Development Standards guidelines for single-family 
development, our request of PAD zoning should be considered for our site despite the average lot 
size based on the following circumstances: 
 

1) An infill proposal involving a small or irregularly shaped parcel, located within a 
developed residential neighborhood and immediate contiguous to existing land uses and 
physical barriers, such as streets, canals, etc., which otherwise preclude expansion 
The subject site is considered infill development – the site is irregularly shaped, and 
located adjacent to an existing neighborhood, bordered by Hartford and Galveston Streets 
and the existing commercial use on the corner: 

 

 
 
These existing barriers preclude expansion of the site. Additionally, the proposed Serene 
Estates development will replace underutilized commercial property with aesthetically 
pleasing, vibrant housing which will activate the area.  
  

2) Parcels with boundaries limited only by ownership lines caused by lot splits and 
indiscriminate parcel divisions shall not be considered as infill 
The parcel of the subject site was not platted by Capital Investments, the property owner, 
and is not subject to indiscriminate parcel divisions. 
 

3) Geographically, such parcels are usually limited to developed areas located ½ mile north 
of the San Tan Freeway (nothing south of Pecos Road) and ½ mile east of Price Road, 
and generally range in size from one (1) to ten (10) acres. 
Although the site is located north or Pecos Road, it is not within ½ mile east of Price 
Road. The site is approximately 2.34 acres and surrounded by existing commercial and 
residential uses, which qualifies the land as infill.  
 

4) Minimum lot size, average lot size and lot range shall be determined in conjunction with 
the most diverse lot pattern possible under the circumstances.  
Our architecture team has designed the site to use the land in the most useful way 
possible, while including a through street for safe and convenient circulation for both fire 



and refuse. The lots are shaped to provide adequate room for the location of the residence 
while providing useful outdoor space in a variety of configurations – some home buyers 
may prefer smaller yards to keep up than other home buyers. As there will be parking 
opportunities provided on both sides of Vine and Laredo Streets, the lots are an adequate 
size and provide parking for one (or two cars) in attached garages and in each lot’s 
driveway. 
 

5) Finding that the proposed intensity, pattern, and quality meets or exceeds that of the 
surrounding environment. 
The majority of the surrounding homes were built from the late 1950s to the 1970s, 
which means that no newer home stock is offered in the neighborhood. The construction 
of Serene Estates will provide a new, quality home option for Chandler residents. 
Additionally, the site is located approximately 200 feet from the Hartford Sylvia Encinas 
Elementary School, less than ½ a mile from Blueprint High School and Arizona College 
Prep (Oakland Campus) and one block from Navarette Park– the proximity to these 
family-oriented services makes this an appropriate location for single-family homes.  

 
  



PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
 
The site is a vacant, undeveloped infill lot located on the east side of Hartford Street and the 
north side of Galveston Street, at 620 North Hartford Street: 
 
  Facing west from Hartford Street: 

 
 

  Facing north from Galveston Street: 

 
 
The parcel is located approximately 1.5 miles from Downtown Chandler, and in close proximity 
to commercial, residential and civic uses. Capital Investments would like to construct 15 single-
family residences on the approximately 2.34 acre site and provide three landscapes retention 
basins. The site is designed with a through street, Laredo Street going east and west and Vine 
Street going north and south, with ingress and egress on Hartford Street and Galveston Street. 
The lots on the north and west sides of Laredo and Vine will back onto an existing alley and the 
lots on the south and east sides of Laredo and Vine will be backed by new 6-foot CMU walls. 
  
The proposed residences will range from 1,795 to 2,292 square feet of living space, with two 
stories and enclosed garages. Buyers will have the opportunity to choose from three different 
models, in either a contemporary or farmhouse aesthetic. Each of the six elevation / model 
options will have three different color schemes to choose from. This variety of finish options will 



provide an assortment of home styles, creating an interesting and aesthetically appealing 
neighborhood without monotony. The elevations below are a sample of the 18 different possible 
elevation color and style combinations homeowners can choose from: 
 
 Elevation 1795 (Farmhouse):   Elevation 1795 (Contemporary): 

    
 
 Elevation 2072 (Farmhouse):   Elevation 2072 (Contemporary): 

    
 
 Elevation 2292 (Farmhouse):   Elevation 2292 (Contemporary): 

        
 
The building design schemes, “Contemporary” and “Farmhouse” will use different material 
palettes that include brick, shutters and sidings for the Farmhouse options and stucco in grey or 
white, blue, grey or brown color front doors and white painted window frames. The 
Contemporary homes will feature more angles, elongated windows and architecturally 
interesting front and garage doors.    
 



The proposed landscape palette for the site in the common areas includes Red Push Pistache, 
Willow Acacia, and Chitalpa trees, Green Cloud, Orange Jubilee bushes and Red Yucca, Desert 
Spoon, and Gold Mound plants: 

 

         
 

     
 

   
 
 
 
 
 



aerial map 
Serene Homes 
 
Name:   Serene Homes 
 
Location:  620 N. Hartford Street, Chandler, AZ (N.W.C. of Galveston and Hartford streets) 
 
APN #  302-50-098 
 

 
 

 

FIN
N

 a
rchite

cts, llc
 

1810 W
. Lo

e
m

a
n

n
 D

rive
, Q

u
e

e
n

 C
re

e
k, A

Z 85142 
 4
8
0
.2
0
6
.8
2
2
9
 / 4

8
0
.2
4
4
.0
2
6
9 

  w
w
w
.fin

n
a
rc
h
ite

c
ts.c

o
m

 



8'
' W

8'
' W

8'
' W

8'
' W

8'
' W

8'
' W

8'
' W

8'
' W

8'' W 8'' W 8'' W
8'' W

8'' W
8'' W

8'' W
8'' W 8'' W

X
X

X
X

8'' S 8'' S 8'' S 8'' S 8'' S 8'' S 8'' S 8'' S 8'' S 8'' S

8'
' S

8'
' S

8'
' S

8'
' S

8'
' S

8'
' S

8'
' W

8'
' W

8'
' W

8'
' W

8'
' W

8'
' W

8'
' W

8'
' W

8'' W 8'' W 8'' W
8'' W

8'' W
8'' W

8'' W
8'' W 8'' W

8'' S
8'' S

8'' S
8'' S

8'' S
8'' S

8'' S
8'' S

8'' S
8'' S

8'' S
8'' S

8'' S
8'' S

8'' S

6'
' S

6'
' S

6'
' S

6'
' S

6'
' S

6'
' S

6'
' S

6'
' S

6'
' S

S S

12
'' S

12
'' S

12
'' S

12
'' S

12
'' S

12
'' S

12
'' S

S

8'' W
8'' W

8'' W
8'' W

8'' W
8'' W

8'' W
8'' W

8'' W
8'' W

8'' W
8'' W

8'' W
8'' W

8'' W
8'' W

8'' W
8'' W

8'
' W

8'
' W

8'
' W

8'
' W

8'
' W

8'
' W

8'
' W

8'
' W

8'' W 8'' W 8'' W 8'' W 8'' W 8'' W 8'' W 8'' W 8'' W 8'' W

8'
' W

8'
' W

8'
' W

8'
' W

8'
' W

8'
' W

8'
' W

8'
' W

8'
' W

8'
' W

8'
' W

8'
' W

8'
' W

8'
' W

8'
' W

G
G

G
G

G
G

G
G

G
G

G
G

G
G

G
G

G
G

G
G

G
G

G
G

G
G

G
G

G

O
HE

O
HE

O
HE

O
HE

O
HE

O
HE

O
HE

O
HE

O
HE

OHE
OHE

OHE
OHE

OHE
OHE

OHE

OHE
OHE

OHE
OHE

OHE
OHE

OHE

OHE

OH

O
HE

O
HE

O
HE

O
HE

O
HE

O
HE

O
HE

O
HE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

UGE UGE UGE

SD SD SD SD SD SD SD SD SD SD SD SD

G
G

G
G

G
G

G
G

G
G

G

G G

T
T

T
T

T

N83°36'56"W - 379.74'

APN#302-50-099
ZONED: C-1

SUN GARDEN LLC

APN#302-50-085
ZONED: MF-2

LOT 83 - SERENE HOMES

APN#302-50-086
ZONED: SF-8.5

LOT 84 - SERENE HOMES

APN#302-50-087
ZONED: SF-8.5

LOT 85 - SERENE HOMES

APN#302-50-088
ZONED: SF-8.5

LOT 85 - SERENE HOMES

APN#302-50-089
ZONED: SF-8.5

LOT 87 - SERENE HOMES

APN#302-50-092
ZONED: SF-8.5

LOT 90 - SERENE HOMES

APN#302-50-093
ZONED: SF-8.5

LOT 91 - SERENE HOMES
APN#302-50-094

ZONED: SF-8.5
LOT 92 - SERENE HOMES APN#302-50-095

ZONED: SF-8.5
LOT 93 - SERENE HOMES APN#302-50-096

ZONED: SF-8.5
LOT 94 - SERENE HOMES

APN#302-50-097
ZONED: SF-8.5

LOT 95 - SERENE HOMES

A
PN

#
30

2-
55

-0
01

T
ZO

N
ED

: M
F-

2
W

ES
T 

G
A

LV
ES

TO
N

 L
LC

APN#302-54-123
ZONED: SF-8.5

LOT 57 - TONOPAH TERRACE

APN#302-54-124
ZONED: SF-8.5

LOT 58 - TONOPAH TERRACE

N47
°57

'44
"E

19
.91

'

N
00

°2
7'

37
"W

 - 
35

4.
69

'

S89°36'21"E - 196.87'

S89°36'21"W - 175.16'

N
00

°2
8'

41
"W

 - 
12

0.
07

'

S55°50'54"W
  123.79'

S89°29'40"W - 92.14'

N
00

°2
3'

39
"W

33
.0

0'

S0
0°

28
'4

1"
E 

- 1
34

.0
5'

S4
4°3

3'5
0"W

28
.26

'

N89°36'21"E

2262.79'
81.80' 115.07' 2687.86'

228.21'

N
00

°2
8'

41
"W

22
2.

08
'

N
00

°2
8'

41
"W

26
42

.8
0'

22
86

.5
7'

26
42

.8
0'

N
00

°2
8'

41
"W

 - 
13

4.
06

'

43.15'

78.99'

55.34'

56.85'

59.37'

60.85'

N
00

°2
8'

41
"W

 - 
61

.8
7'

25.18'

S0
0°

00
'0

0"
E 

- 6
2.

17
'

S0
0°

00
'0

0"
E 

- 6
2.

36
'

S0
0°

00
'0

0"
E 

- 6
7.

71
'

S0
0°

00
'0

0"
E 

- 7
3.

86
'

N24°48'54"W
 - 81.44'

N69°07'38"W - 70.79'

N90°00'00"W - 74.83'

N90°00'00"W - 74.41'

N90°00'00"W - 72.52'

N90°00'00"W - 61.66'

52
.5

6'
59

.3
1'

52
.0

0'
52

.0
0'

73
.8

6'
67

.2
6'

L29 80.01' L30

L2
8

C
6

C
7

L7

C
8

C
9

L8
L9

L1
0

C
10

C
11

C
12

C13

C14 L11 L12 L13 C15 C16

L14

 L15

C17 C18

L1
6

L2
7

80
.0

0'

L25

L2
6

C26

L24

C25C24L23L22

60.95'

62.84'

N
00

°0
0'

00
"E

 - 
10

2.
21

'

51
.2

1'
51

.0
0'

L2
1

L2
0

L1
9

C
23

N90°00'00"W - 72.75'

N90°00'00"W - 72.89'

N90°00'00"W - 78.81'

N89°36'21"E - 88.56'

51
.0

0'
51

.0
0'

C
22

C
21

L1
8

C
20

C
19

L17

L1
C

1

L2

C
2

L3

C3

L4 C4

L5

C5 L6

22
92

 P
LA

N
20

72
 P

LA
N

17
95

 P
LA

N
22

92
 P

LA
N

17
95

 P
LA

N20
72

 P
LA

N
22

92
 P

LA
N

20
72

 P
LA

N

17
95

 P
LA

N

22
92

 P
LA

N

17
95

 P
LA

N20
72

 P
LA

N

2292 PLA
N

2072 PLA
N

1795 PLA
N

2292 PLAN

1795 PLAN

2292 PLAN

1795 PLAN

2292 PLA
N

1795 PLA
N 2072 PLA

N

2292 PLA
N

2072 PLA
N

1795 PLA
N

2292 PLA
N

1795 PLA
N 2072 PLA

N

2072 PLAN

2072 PLA
N

2292 PLAN

1795 PLAN

2072 PLAN

1795 PLAN
1795 PLAN

1795 PLAN

site plan
scale: 1"-20'-0"

LEGEND

PROJECT DATA

VICINITY MAP
N.T.S.

W. RAY ROAD

W. GALVESTON ST.

W. CHANDLER BLVD

N
. A

LM
A

 S
C

HO
O

L 
RD

N
. A

RI
ZO

N
A

 A
V

EN
UE

THIS PROJECT

SCOPE: NEW SINGLE FAMILY SUBDIVISION
ADDRESS: 620 N. HARTFORD STREET, CHANDLER, AZ
APN: 302-50-098
SITE AREA: +/-102,068 S.F. (+/-2.34 AC.)
LOT DU/AC: 6.41 DU/AC
ZONING: C-1 - REZONE TO PAD
LOT COVERAGE: 50% MAX.
STORIES: (2) STORY
CONSTRUCTION TYPE: V-B
OCCUPANCY: RESIDENTIAL
BUILDING HEIGHT: 28'-0" MAX.
BUILDING SETBACKS:

FRONT:       8'-6" MINIMUM*
* see also driveway length requirement below
SIDE(S):    5'-0" MINIMUM
REAR: 10'-0" MINIMUM
REAR(a) only at lots per (a) below:     5'-0" MINIMUM **

*DRIVEWAY LENGTH: MIN. 20'-0" CLEAR FROM BACK OF
     SIDEWALK TO GARAGE ENTRY/DOOR

** REAR(a) AT LOTS 1, 4, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 12 ONLY - see plan for
designation as per

CENTERLINE

PROPERTY LINE

SETBACK LINE

EASEMENT LINE

EXISTING CURBCURB

PAINT STRIPING

CONCRETE
SIDEWALK

ACCESSIBLE ROUTE

10'x20' VISIBILITY
TRIANGLE

RAMP, VARIES SEE
PLAN

RIP RAP, VARIES SEE PLANS

BIKE
RACK

SITE WALL

EXISTING SITE WALL

SITE FENCING

EXISTING SITE
FENCING

FIRE HYDRANT
EXISTING FIRE
HYDRANT

FDC

FIRE RISER

UTILITY
TRANSFORMER

LIGHT POLE

EXISTING
LIGHT POLE

FR
O

N
T

R
EA

R

0 5 10 20 40

galveston street

vi
ne

st
re

et

ha
rtf

or
d

 st
re

et

al
le

y

alley

LOT #1

LOT #2

LOT #3

LOT #4

LOT #5

LOT #6

LOT #7 LOT #8 LOT #9

LOT #10

LOT #11
LOT #12

LOT #13

LOT #14

LOT #15

west laredo street

no
rth

 v
in

e 
st

re
et

25'-0" 25'-0"

25
'-0

"
25

'-0
"

EXISTING 33'-0" R/W8'-0"
PUE

EX
IS

TIN
G

 3
3'

-0
" R

/W
8'

-0
"

PU
E

34'-0" NEW DRIVE

34
'-0

" N
EW

 D
RI

V
E

10'-0"
S/B

8'-0"
PUE

10'-0"
S/B

10'-0"
S/B

8'
-0

"
PU

E

8'
-0

"
PU

E

20
'-0

"

20'-0"12
'-0

"
EA

SE
M

EN
T

10
'-0

"
S/

B

10'-0"
S/B

RETENTION BASIN
PER CIVIL

RETENTION BASIN
PER CIVIL

RETENTION BASIN
PER CIVIL

CMU SCREEN
WALL

CMU SCREEN
WALL

CMU SCREEN
WALL

CMU FENCE
BLOCK YARD
WALLS

CMU FENCE
BLOCK YARD
WALLS

CMU FENCE
BLOCK YARD
WALLS

CMU FENCE BLOCK
YARD WALLS

CMU SCREEN
WALL

NEW CURB, GUTTER
AND SIDEWALK PER
CIVIL

NEW ASHPALT
STREET PER CIVIL

NEW SEWER PER
CIVIL

EXISTING - NOT A PART

S.
 H

A
RT

FO
RD

 S
T.

single family residential
NET AREA:  ±102,068 S.F. ±2.343 AC.
LOT SIZE:        VARIES
NUMBER OF LOTS:     15
TOTAL:       15

25'-0"25'-0"

EXISTING ALLEY
TO REMAIN

EXISTING ALLEY
TO REMAIN

EXISTING - NOT A PART

EXISTING - NOT A PART

EXISTING
OVERHEAD
ELECTRIC LINES

WATER/SEWER STUB
TO LOTS PER CIVIL

WATER/SEWER STUB
TO LOTS PER CIVIL

PROPOSED
DRIVEWAYS, TYPICAL

 5
'-0

"
S/

B

 5
'-0

"
S/

B

 5'-0"
S/B

A B,        SCREEN WALLS - SEE A1.2

A

B

B

A

A

B BTYPICAL
BETWEEN

LOTS

B TYPICAL
BETWEEN

LOTS

A

B

A

A

BTYPICAL
BETWEEN

LOTS

PA
TIO

O
PT

IO
N

PA
TIO

O
PT

IO
N

PA
TIO

O
PT

IO
N

PA
TIO

O
PT

IO
N

PA
TIO

O
PT

IO
N

PATIO
OPTION

PATIO
OPTION

20
'-0

"

20
'-0

"

20
'-0

"

20'-0"

20'-0"

20'-0"

20'-0"

20'-0"

20'-0"

20'-0"

20'-0"

26'-6"

20
'-0

"

T
R

T
R T

R
T
R

T
R

T
R

T
R

T R

T R

T R

T R

T R

T R

R

T R

T

n.t.s.

street

20
'-0

" M
IN

. D
RI

V
EW

A
Y

LE
N

G
TH

 F
RO

M
 B

A
C

K
O

F 
SI

D
EW

A
LK

, T
YP

IC
A

L

10
'-0

"
RE

A
R

S/
B

5'-0" SIDE S/B

± 3,847.91 S.F.

± 3,844.59 S.F.

± 3,880.20 S.F.

± 4,253.50 S.F.

± 6,748.70 S.F.

± 4,332.35 S.F.

± 3,893.17 S.F. ± 3,655.06 S.F. ± 3,668.74 S.F.

± 3,774.08 S.F.

± 4,744.64 S.F.

± 3,612.83 S.F.

± 3,710.53 S.F.

± 3,832.46 S.F.

± 4,319.58 S.F.

13
'-6

"

13
'-6

"

8'-71
4"

13'-6"

17'-33
4"

11'-31
2"

16'-11"

11'-115
8"

13'-6"

22'-0"

14
'-1

5 8"

17'-10 1
2 "

14
'-6

7 8"

8'
-6

" M
IN

.
FR

O
N

T 
S/

B

sidewalk

d
riv

e
w

ay

PATIO
OPTION

PATIO
OPTION

PATIO
OPTION

PA
TIO

O
PT

IO
N

PA
TIO

O
PT

IO
N

PA
TIO

O
PT

IO
N

5'
-0

"
S/

B

5'
-0

"
RE

A
R(

a)
S/

B

5'
-0

"
S/

B

5'
-0

"
S/

B

5'
-0

"
S/

B

5'
-0

"
S/

B

5'-0"
S/B

10'-0"
S/B

10'-0"
S/B

10'-0"S/B

5'-0"
S/B

5'-0"
S/B

10'-0"
S/B

SIGHT VISIBILITY
LINE

20
'-0

"

20
'-0

"

PA
TIO

O
PT

IO
N

SI
D

E 
PA

TIO
O

PT
IO

N

PA
TIO

O
PT

IO
N

SIDE PATIO
OPTION

**

**

**

**

**
**

**

**

schematic design
august 21, 2020

PL
H2

0-
00

52

se
re

ne
 h

om
es

finnarchitects.com

62
0 

n.
 h

ar
tfo

rd
 st

re
et

,
ch

an
d

le
r, 

ar
izo

na

architects, llc
finnarchitects.com

the architectural design, conception
and data presented herein
represents an instrument of service
provided in connection with the
design build agreement for the
exclusive use of FINN architects, llc.
any other use or release or these
drawings may result in civil
damages.

this plan/site plan has been
prepared without the benefit of a
survey. depictions may not be
accurate or fully reflect all
dimensions, data, etc. which may
affect the design and usability of this
site. all design shown here is strictly
conceptual.

FINN
0 3 / 05/2 02

1

1810 west loemann drive, queen creek, arizona 85142        (480-206-8229)

design development
august 31, 2020

city submittal
september 04, 2020

site plan revisions
december 03, 2020

A1.1



** **
**

**
**

**

**

**



















FRONT ELEVATION 'A'
CONTEMPORARY SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"

REAR ELEVATION 'A'
CONTEMPORARY SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"

LEFT ELEVATION 'A'
CONTEMPORARY SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"

RIGHT ELEVATION 'A'
CONTEMPORARY SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"

1
DATE:

2

3

Rev.

PLOT DATE: 2-10-21

4

1795

SHEET NO.

PLAN #

M
O

U
N

TA
IN

 T
O

P 
BU

IL
D

ER
S,

 L
LC

16
21

1 
N

or
th

 S
co

tts
da

le
 R

oa
d,

 A
G

A 
60

5
Sc

ot
ts

da
le

, A
riz

on
a 

85
25

4
(6

02
) 4

66
-0

95
9

e
i

s
n

g

EX
TE

R
IO

R
 E

LE
VA

TI
O

N
 'A

'

A3



FRONT ELEVATION 'B'
FARMHOUSE SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"

REAR ELEVATION 'B'
FARMHOUSE SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"

LEFT ELEVATION 'B'
FARMHOUSE SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"

RIGHT ELEVATION 'B'
FARMHOUSE SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"

1
DATE:

2

3

Rev.

PLOT DATE: 2-10-21

4

1795

SHEET NO.

PLAN #

M
O

U
N

TA
IN

 T
O

P 
BU

IL
D

ER
S,

 L
LC

16
21

1 
N

or
th

 S
co

tts
da

le
 R

oa
d,

 A
G

A 
60

5
Sc

ot
ts

da
le

, A
riz

on
a 

85
25

4
(6

02
) 4

66
-0

95
9

e
i

s
n

g

EX
TE

R
IO

R
 E

LE
VA

TI
O

N
 'B

'

A3.1



FRONT ELEVATION 'A'
CONTEMPORARY SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"

REAR ELEVATION 'A'
CONTEMPORARY SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"

LEFT ELEVATION 'A'
CONTEMPORARY SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"

RIGHT ELEVATION 'A'
CONTEMPORARY SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"

1
DATE:

2

3

Rev.

PLOT DATE: 2-10-21

4

2072

SHEET NO.

PLAN #

M
O

U
N

TA
IN

 T
O

P 
BU

IL
D

ER
S,

 L
LC

16
21

1 
N

or
th

 S
co

tts
da

le
 R

oa
d,

 A
G

A 
60

5
Sc

ot
ts

da
le

, A
riz

on
a 

85
25

4
(6

02
) 4

66
-0

95
9

e
i

s
n

g

EX
TE

R
IO

R
 E

LE
VA

TI
O

N
 'A

'

A3



FRONT ELEVATION 'B'
FARMHOUSE SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"

REAR ELEVATION 'B'
FARMHOUSE SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"

LEFT ELEVATION 'B'
FARMHOUSE SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"

RIGHT ELEVATION 'B'
FARMHOUSE SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"

1
DATE:

2

3

Rev.

PLOT DATE: 2-10-21

4

2072

SHEET NO.

PLAN #

M
O

U
N

TA
IN

 T
O

P 
BU

IL
D

ER
S,

 L
LC

16
21

1 
N

or
th

 S
co

tts
da

le
 R

oa
d,

 A
G

A 
60

5
Sc

ot
ts

da
le

, A
riz

on
a 

85
25

4
(6

02
) 4

66
-0

95
9

e
i

s
n

g

EX
TE

R
IO

R
 E

LE
VA

TI
O

N
 'B

'

A3.1



FRONT ELEVATION 'A'
CONTEMPORARY SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"

REAR ELEVATION 'A'
CONTEMPORARY SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"

LEFT ELEVATION 'A'
CONTEMPORARY SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"

RIGHT ELEVATION 'A'
CONTEMPORARY SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"

1
DATE:

2

3

Rev.

PLOT DATE: 2-10-21

4

2292

SHEET NO.

PLAN #

M
O

U
N

TA
IN

 T
O

P 
BU

IL
D

ER
S,

 L
LC

16
21

1 
N

or
th

 S
co

tts
da

le
 R

oa
d,

 A
G

A 
60

5
Sc

ot
ts

da
le

, A
riz

on
a 

85
25

4
(6

02
) 4

66
-0

95
9

e
i

s
n

g

EX
TE

R
IO

R
 E

LE
VA

TI
O

N
 'A

'

A3



FRONT ELEVATION 'B'
FARMHOUSE SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"

REAR ELEVATION 'B'
FARMHOUSE SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"

LEFT ELEVATION 'B'
FARMHOUSE SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"

RIGHT ELEVATION 'B'
FARMHOUSE SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"

1
DATE:

2

3

Rev.

PLOT DATE: 2-10-21

4

2292

SHEET NO.

PLAN #

M
O

U
N

TA
IN

 T
O

P 
BU

IL
D

ER
S,

 L
LC

16
21

1 
N

or
th

 S
co

tts
da

le
 R

oa
d,

 A
G

A 
60

5
Sc

ot
ts

da
le

, A
riz

on
a 

85
25

4
(6

02
) 4

66
-0

95
9

e
i

s
n

g

EX
TE

R
IO

R
 E

LE
VA

TI
O

N
 'B

'

A3.1



1
DATE:

2

3

Rev.

PLOT DATE: 3-09-21

4

1795

SHEET NO.

PLAN #

M
O

U
N

TA
IN

 T
O

P 
BU

IL
D

ER
S,

 L
LC

16
21

1 
N

or
th

 S
co

tts
da

le
 R

oa
d,

 A
G

A 
60

5
Sc

ot
ts

da
le

, A
riz

on
a 

85
25

4
(6

02
) 4

66
-0

95
9

e
i

s
n

g

TOTAL FOOTPRINT/ROOF AREA

LIVABLE AREAS:
MAIN LIVABLE

COVERED AREAS:

GARAGE:

COVERED ENTRY

919 SQ.FT.

76 SQ.FT.

1,576 SQ.FT.

AREA CALC'S.

UPPER LIVABLE 876 SQ.FT.

2 CAR GARAGE 431 SQ.FT.

TOTAL LIVABLE 1,795 SQ.FT.

150 SQ.FT.REAR COVERED PATIO

TOTAL AREA 2,673 SQ.FT.

MAIN FLOOR PLAN
1/4"=1'-0"

FL
O

O
R

 P
LA

N
S

A1
UPPER FLOOR PLAN

1/4"=1'-0"

OPT. SIDE PATIO
1/4"=1'-0"



1
DATE:

2

3

Rev.

PLOT DATE: 3-09-21

4

2072

SHEET NO.

PLAN #

M
O

U
N

TA
IN

 T
O

P 
BU

IL
D

ER
S,

 L
LC

16
21

1 
N

or
th

 S
co

tts
da

le
 R

oa
d,

 A
G

A 
60

5
Sc

ot
ts

da
le

, A
riz

on
a 

85
25

4
(6

02
) 4

66
-0

95
9

e
i

s
n

g

TOTAL FOOTPRINT/ROOF AREA

LIVABLE AREAS:
MAIN LIVABLE

COVERED AREAS:

GARAGE:

COVERED ENTRY

951 SQ.FT.

24 SQ.FT.

1,552 SQ.FT.

AREA CALC'S.

UPPER LIVABLE 1,121 SQ.FT.

2 CAR GARAGE 427 SQ.FT.

TOTAL LIVABLE 2,072 SQ.FT.

150 SQ.FT.REAR COVERED PATIO

TOTAL AREA 2,673 SQ.FT.

MAIN FLOOR PLAN
1/4"=1'-0"

FL
O

O
R

 P
LA

N
S

A1
UPPER FLOOR PLAN

1/4"=1'-0"

OPT. SIDE PATIO
1/4"=1'-0"



1
DATE:

2

3

Rev.

PLOT DATE: 3-09-21

4

2292

SHEET NO.

PLAN #

M
O

U
N

TA
IN

 T
O

P 
BU

IL
D

ER
S,

 L
LC

16
21

1 
N

or
th

 S
co

tts
da

le
 R

oa
d,

 A
G

A 
60

5
Sc

ot
ts

da
le

, A
riz

on
a 

85
25

4
(6

02
) 4

66
-0

95
9

e
i

s
n

g

TOTAL FOOTPRINT/ROOF AREA

LIVABLE AREAS:
MAIN LIVABLE

COVERED AREAS:

GARAGE:

COVERED ENTRY

980 SQ.FT.

27 SQ.FT.

1,592 SQ.FT.

AREA CALC'S.

UPPER LIVABLE 1,312 SQ.FT.

2 CAR GARAGE 435 SQ.FT.

TOTAL LIVABLE 2,292 SQ.FT.

150 SQ.FT.REAR COVERED PATIO

TOTAL AREA 2,904 SQ.FT.

MAIN FLOOR PLAN
1/4"=1'-0"

FL
O

O
R

 P
LA

N
S

A1
UPPER FLOOR PLAN

1/4"=1'-0"

OPT. SIDE PATIO
1/4"=1'-0"



LEGAL DESCRIPTION



schematic design
august 21, 2020

se
re

ne
 h

om
es

finnarchitects.com

62
0 

n.
 h

ar
tfo

rd
 st

re
et

,
ch

an
d

le
r, 

ar
izo

na

architects, llc
finnarchitects.com

the architectural design, conception
and data presented herein
represents an instrument of service
provided in connection with the
design build agreement for the
exclusive use of FINN architects, llc.
any other use or release or these
drawings may result in civil
damages.

this plan/site plan has been
prepared without the benefit of a
survey. depictions may not be
accurate or fully reflect all
dimensions, data, etc. which may
affect the design and usability of this
site. all design shown here is strictly
conceptual.

FINN
0 9 /04 /2

02
0

1810 west loemann drive, queen creek, arizona 85142        (480-206-8229)

design development
august 31, 2020

city submittal
september 04, 2020

A1.2

1

SITE SCREEN WALL SCHEDULE
1/4" - 1'-0"

PARKING SCREEN WALLS ARE TO BE 36"/48"/72" AS OCCURS ABOVE
PAVED/LANDSCAPE AREA OR HIGHEST FINISHED GRADE OF
PARKING AREA OR STREET CURB, WHICHEVER IS HIGHER

CONTRACTOR TO COORDINATE STEPPED FOOTINGS WITH CIVIL
AND STRUCTURAL DRAWINGS, PROVIDE STEPS AT 2'-8" DECORATIVE
PIERS.

PROVIDE WEEPS, OPENINGS IN WALLS AS REQUIRED, SEE CIVIL
DRAWINGS

ALL CELLS BELOW GRADE TO BE GROUTED SOLID

SEE PLANS, CIVIL AND STRUCTURAL FOR STEPS, FOOTINGS, ETC.

WALL TYPE A WALL TYPE B

SITE SCREEN WALL NOTES

EXTERIOR SIDE
(STREET SIDE)

6'-0" WALL AT ENTRY 6'-0" FENCE BLOCK WALL

INTERIOR SIDE
(RESIDENTIAL
NEIGHBORHOOD)

10"x4"x16" SOLID CMU CAP
BLOCK WITH GROUT CAP

8"x4"x16" RUNNING BOND
CMU COURSE

ACCENT BAND 10"x8"x16"
JUMBO BLOCK

8"x8"x16" SMOOTH FACE
CMU, RUNNING BOND

INTERIOR SIDE TO BE
UNPAINTED  STANDARD
GREY BLOCK

EXTERIOR SIDE TO BE
SEALED AND PAINTED,
TWO COLORS

2

2FIELD
COLOR

ACCENT
COLOR

2" CAP BLOCK AT EACH PIER

CMU FENCE BLOCK WITH
PIERS, BLOCK TO BE
UNPAINTED, STANDARD
GREY BLOCK

site screen wall schedule
scale: 1/4" - 1'-0"





SCHEME # 1 2 3 4 5 6

BASE STUCCO
SW 7670

GRAY SHINGLE

SW 7757

HIGH REFLECTIVE

WHITE

SW 7627

WHITE HERON

SW 6003

PROPER GRAY

SW 7658

GRAY CLOUDS

SW7669

SUMMIT GRAY

POPOUTS, RECESSES, 
HEADERS, BEAMS

SW7028

INCREDIBLE WHITE

SW 9170

ACIER

SW 7505

MANOR HOUSE

SW 7019

GAUNTLET GRAY

SW7566

WESTHIGHLAND

WHITE

SW7674

PEPPERCORN

FASCIA, EAVES, GARAGE
SW7625

MOUNT ETNA

SW 7048

URBANE BRONZE

SW 7505

MANOR HOUSE

SW 7019

GAUNTLET GRAY

SW7566

WESTHIGHLAND

WHITE

SW7674

PEPPERCORN

SIDING N/A N/A N/A
SW 7665

WALL STREET

SW7566

WESTHIGHLAND

WHITE

SW7674

PEPPERCORN

SHUTTERS N/A N/A N/A
SW7615

SEA SERPENT

SW6251

OUTERSPACE

SW2837

AURORA BROWN

FRONT ENTRY DOOR
SW7625

MOUNT ETNA

SW 6515

LEISURE BLUE

SW 2803

ROOKWOOD

TERRA COTTA

SW7615

SEA SERPENT

SW6251

OUTERSPACE

SW2837

AURORA BROWN

TILE ROOF
4503

SIERRA MADRE

4595

DARK CHARCOAL

4503

SIERRA MADRE

5699

CHARCOAL RANGE

5503

SIERRA MADRE

5503

SIERRA MADRE

BRICK N/A N/A N/A
WIRECUT

WOLF GRAY

WIRECUT

WOLF GRAY

WIRECUT

WOLF GRAY

WINDOW FRAMES WHITE WHITE WHITE WHITE WHITE WHITE

SERENE ESTATES
COLOR SELECTION CHART

ORIGINAL: SEPTEMBER 21, 2020

SCHEMES 1‐3 'A' CONTEMPORARY SCHEMES 4‐6 'B' FARMHOUSE

ROOF: EAGLE (OR SIMILAR)

PAINT: SHERWIN WILLIAMS (OR SIMILAR)

STONE: CORONADO (OR SIMILAR)



‘A’ Elevations Only
Contemporary

SCHEME 1SERENE ESTATES
Chandler, Arizona
MOUNTAIN TOP BUILDERS, LLC
09/21/20  

ROOFING

POPOUTS, RECESSES,
HEADERS, BEAMS

BASE STUCCO
COLOR

FASCIA, EAVES, GARAGE

For exact color refer to manufacturer actual samples.

ENTRY DOOR



‘A’ Elevations Only
Contemporary

SCHEME 2SERENE ESTATES
Chandler, Arizona
MOUNTAIN TOP BUILDERS, LLC
09/21/20  

ROOFING

POPOUTS, RECESSES,
HEADERS, BEAMS

BASE STUCCO
COLOR

FASCIA, EAVES, GARAGE

For exact color refer to manufacturer actual samples.

ENTRY DOOR



‘A’ Elevations Only
Contemporary

SCHEME 3SERENE ESTATES
Chandler, Arizona
MOUNTAIN TOP BUILDERS, LLC
09/21/20  

ROOFING

POPOUTS, RECESSES,
HEADERS, BEAMS

BASE STUCCO
COLOR

FASCIA, EAVES, GARAGE

For exact color refer to manufacturer actual samples.

ENTRY DOOR



‘B’ Elevations Only
Farmhouse

SCHEME 4SERENE ESTATES
Chandler, Arizona
MOUNTAIN TOP BUILDERS, LLC
09/21/20  

ROOFING

POPOUTS, FASCIA, EAVES,
GARAGE, HEADERS, BEAMS

BASE STUCCO
COLOR

BRICK

For exact color refer to manufacturer actual samples.

ENTRY DOOR, SHUTTERS SIDING



‘B’ Elevations Only
Farmhouse

SCHEME 5SERENE ESTATES
Chandler, Arizona
MOUNTAIN TOP BUILDERS, LLC
09/21/20  

ROOFING

POPOUTS, FASCIA, EAVES,
GARAGE, HEADERS, BEAMS

BASE STUCCO
COLOR

BRICK

For exact color refer to manufacturer actual samples.

ENTRY DOOR, SHUTTERS SIDING



‘B’ Elevations Only
Farmhouse

SCHEME 6SERENE ESTATES
Chandler, Arizona
MOUNTAIN TOP BUILDERS, LLC
09/21/20  

ROOFING

POPOUTS, FASCIA, EAVES,
GARAGE, HEADERS, BEAMS

BASE STUCCO
COLOR

BRICK

For exact color refer to manufacturer actual samples.

ENTRY DOOR, SHUTTERS SIDING



1

3

14

4

2

13

5

7 8
9

10

11

6

12

15

VI
N

E 
ST

AL
LE

Y

ALLEY

H
AR

TF
O

R
D

 S
T

BASIN 1

BASIN 3

GALVESTON ST

BASIN 2

A
PG01

B
PG01

C
PG
01

VI
N

E 
ST

LAREDO ST

DRAINAGE
AREA 1

DRAINAGE
AREA 3

DRAINAGE
AREA 2

RETENTION CALCULATIONS:

V  = C P12 A  = 7,676 CF (10% INCREASE = 8,443 CF)R

C = 0.75
P = 1.20"
A = 102,341 SF
V  = 9,065 CFP

THIS PROJECT FALLS WITHIN THE
GALVESTON BASIN AREA FOR THE CITY OF
CHANDLER.  AS SUCH, THE RAINFALL
INTENSITY IS GIVEN BY C.O.C. TDM3 TABLE
6.8 TO BE 1.2".  THE REQUIRED RETENTION
VOLUME WAS DERIVED AS SHOWN IN THE
CALCULATIONS BELOW.

KEY MAP

RETENTION BASIN TABLE

DRAINAGE AREA AREA VOLUME REQUIRED BASIN DEPTH VOLUME PROVIDED

SECTION A-A
NTS

R/W CLPUE

SECTION B-B
NTS

R/W CLPL

R/W

SECTION C-C
NTS

PUE

schematic design
august 21, 2020

se
re

ne
 e

st
at

es

finnarchitects.com

62
0 

n.
 h

ar
tfo

rd
 st

re
et

,
ch

an
d

le
r, 

ar
izo

na

finnarchitects.com

the architectural design, conception
and data presented herein
represents an instrument of service
provided in connection with the
design build agreement for the
exclusive use of FINN architects, llc.
any other use or release or these
drawings may result in civil
damages.

this plan/site plan has been
prepared without the benefit of a
survey. depictions may not be
accurate or fully reflect all
dimensions, data, etc. which may
affect the design and usability of this
site. all design shown here is strictly
conceptual.

design development
august 31, 2020

FINN
1810 west loemann drive, queen creek, arizona 85142        (480-206-8229)

architects, llc

 PRELIMINARY FOR
BIDDING PROPOSES

ONLY.
NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION

PGD01

pr
el

im
in

ar
y 

gr
ad

in
g 

ex
hi

bi
t



1

3

14

4

2

13

5

7 8
9

10

11

6

12

15

PROPOSED 8"
SEWER MAIN

PROPOSED 8"
WATER MAIN

GALVESTON ST

VI
N

E 
ST

AL
LE

Y

ALLEY

H
AR

TF
O

R
D

 S
T

VI
N

E 
ST

LAREDO ST

PROPOSED 8"
WATER MAIN

PROPOSED WATER
METER (TYP.)

PROPOSED SEWER
SERVICE (TYP.)

PROPOSED SEWER
MANHOLE (TYP.)

EXISTING 12"
SEWER

EXISTING 8" WATER

EXISTING 8" WATER

17.5'
BC/CL

17.5'
BC/CL

35'

5'
S/W

5'
S/W

2.0% 2.0% 1.5%1.5%

VARIES (6' TYP.)

SEWER

8'
PUE

8'
PUE

1'
WATER

7.5'7.5'

TYPICAL LOCAL PRIVATE STEET
N.T.S

(LOOKING NORTH & EAST)

P/LP/L

4" ROLL CURB4" ROLL CURB

HORIZONTAL 1"=

0 15 6030

30'

LEGEND

TAPPING SLEEVE AND
VALVE

WATER VALVE

SANITARY SEWER MANHOLESS

schematic design
august 21, 2020

se
re

ne
 e

st
at

es

finnarchitects.com

62
0 

n.
 h

ar
tfo

rd
 st

re
et

,
ch

an
d

le
r, 

ar
izo

na

finnarchitects.com

the architectural design, conception
and data presented herein
represents an instrument of service
provided in connection with the
design build agreement for the
exclusive use of FINN architects, llc.
any other use or release or these
drawings may result in civil
damages.

this plan/site plan has been
prepared without the benefit of a
survey. depictions may not be
accurate or fully reflect all
dimensions, data, etc. which may
affect the design and usability of this
site. all design shown here is strictly
conceptual.

design development
august 31, 2020

FINN
1810 west loemann drive, queen creek, arizona 85142        (480-206-8229)

architects, llc

 PRELIMINARY FOR
BIDDING PROPOSES

ONLY.
NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION

UT01

pr
el

im
in

ar
y 

ut
ilit

y 
ex

hi
bi

t

WATER METER

SANITARY SEWER SERVICE



PHASE 1

PHASE 2

PHASE 3

D
W

G
.

SH
EE

T

C
H

AN
D

LE
R

, A
R

IZ
O

N
A

M
AR

IC
O

PA
 C

O
U

N
TY

R
EV

IS
IO

N
JO

B 
N

O
.:

C
H

EC
KE

D
:

N
O

.
D

AT
E

22
00

76
BY

JC

D
ES

IG
N

 B
Y:

M
ar

 1
0,

 2
02

1
J:

\2
02

0 
Jo

bs
\2

20
07

6 
- S

er
en

e 
H

om
es

 S
ub

di
vi

si
on

\C
AD

 F
ile

s\
Sh

ee
ts

\P
re

pl
at

\P
P-

01
.d

w
g

FI
LE

:
D

AT
E:

JB

D
R

AW
N

 B
Y:

JB

D
AT

E:
3/

10
/2

1

SE
R

EN
E 

ES
TA

TE
S 

SU
BD

IV
IS

IO
N

O
F

C
O

C
 L

O
G

 N
O

. P
LT

20
-0

03
9

SERENE ESTATES SUBDIVISION
A PORTION OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF THE NORTHWEST

QUARTER OF SECTION 28, TOWNSHIP 1 SOUTH , RANGE 5 EAST OF THE
GILA AND SALT RIVER MERIDIAN,
 MARICOPA COUNTY, ARIZONA

CHANDLER, ARIZONA

DEVELOPER/OWNER: ENGINEER / SURVEY

BENCHMARKS:

BASIS OF BEARING:

RITOCH-POWELL & ASSOCIATES
63 E MAIN ST, STE 502
MESA, AZ 85201
PHONE: 480-539-7497
ENGINEER: JOHN CATT, PE
PROJECT MGR: JOHN CATT, PE
EMAIL: JCATT@RPAENG.COM

VICINITY MAP
N.T.S.

FOR THIS PROJECT IS N00°13'19"W FOR THE WEST LINE OF
THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 28, TOWNSHIP 1
SOUTH, RANGE 5 EAST OF THE GILA & SALT RIVER MERIDIAN
AS CALCULATED FROM AN PLSS SUBDIVISION RECORD OF
SURVEY MARICOPA COUNTY GEODETIC  DENSIFICATION AND
CADASTRAL SURVEY RECORDED IN BOOK 669, PAGE 47,
MARICOPA COUNTY RECORDS.

BENCHMARK NO.1 - COC BM#28A
SECTION 28, T1S, R5E, CITY OF CHANDLER BRASS CAP FLUSH
AT THE INTERSECTION OF MONTEREY ST. AND IOWA ST.; ONE
HALF MILE NORTH OF CHANDLER BLVD. AND 2100' WEST OF
ARIZONA AVE.
(NAVD88) ELEVATION=1208.30

BENCHMARK NO.2 - COC BM#29
SECTION 29, T1S, R5E, 3" CITY OF CHANDLER BRASS CAP IN
CONCRETE FLUSH BETWEEN CHANDLER BLVD. AND RAY RD.;
510' WEST OF ALMA SCHOOL RD AT INTERSECTION OF
CHIPPEWA ST AND GALVESTON ST
(NAVD88) ELEVATON=1202.43

CAPITAL INVESTMENTS, LLC
OWNER: BLAKE JENSEN AND ROB HENKEL
ATTN: KELLY JENSEN
2857 E. SANDY COURT
GILBERT, ARIZONA  85297
PHONE: 480-459-0353
KJSELLSAZ@GMAIL.COM

FLOODPLAIN STATEMENT:
PER FEMA FLOOD INSURANCE RATE MAP NO. 04013C2730M, DATED
NOVEMBER 4, 2015, THE SUBJECT PROPERTY IS LOCATED IN ZONE X.
ZONE X IS DESCRIBED AS: AREAS OF 0.2% ANNUAL CHANCE OF FLOOD;
AREAS OF 1% ANNUAL CHANCE FLOOD WITH DEPTHS OF LESS THAN 1
FOOT OR WITH DRAINAGE AREAS LESS THAN 1 SQUARE MILE; AND
AREAS PROTECTED BY LEVEES FROM 1% ANNUAL CHANCE FLOOD.

PRELIMINARY PLAT

LAND USE TABLES
GROSS AREA 102,341.18 SF 2.349 AC
NET AREA 74,123.22 SF 1.702 AC
AREA OF TRACTS 12,004.88 SF 0.276 AC
AREA OF ROW 28,217.96 SF 0.648 AC
AREA OF LOTS 62,118.34 SF 1.426 AC
TOTAL NUMBER OF LOTS 15
AVERAGE AREA PER LOT 4,141.22 SF 0.095 AC
EXISTING ZONING C-1
MINIMUM LOT AREA 3612.83 SF 0.083 AC

TRACT USES
TRACT NAME AREA(SF) AREA (AC)   USE
TRACT A   3,063.88 0.070   DRAINAGE, LANDSCAPE, AND OPEN SPACE
TRACT B   2,237.86 0.051   DRAINAGE, LANDSCAPE, AND OPEN SPACE
TRACT C   5,181.61 0.119   DRAINAGE, LANDSCAPE, AND OPEN SPACE
TRACT D   1,521.53 0.035   LANDSCAPE, AND OPEN SPACE

UTILITY SERVICES
SEWER CITY OF CHANDLER
WATER CITY OF CHANDLER
GAS SOUTHWEST GAS
ELECTRICITY APS
TELEPHONE CENTURYLINK
POLICE CITY OF CHANDLER
FIRE CHANDLER FIRE DEPARTMENT
SOLID WASTE CITY OF CHANDLER

LEGAL DESCRIPTION

SHEET INDEX MAP

TYPICAL INTERIOR STREET

NOTES:
1. THE IMPROVEMENTS SHOWN ON THIS PLAT WILL NOT BE FULLY

APPROVED BY THE CITY AND THE CERITIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY
OR ACCEPTANCE WILL NOT BE ISSUED UNTIL THE OVERHEAD
UTILITY LINE UNDERGROUNDING REQUIREMENT HAS BEEN
SATISFIED.

2. THE IMPROVEMENTS SHOWN ON THE SET OF PLANS WILL NOT BE
FULLY APPROVED BY THE CITY AND THE CERTIFICATE OF
OCCUPANCY WILL NOT BE ISSUED UNTIL THE IRRIGATION
FACILITY UNDERGROUNDING REQUIREMENT HAS BEEN
SATISFIED.

3. THE FINAL PLAT FOR THIS SUBDIVISION WILL NOT BE APPROVED
OR RECORDED UNTIL A RECLAIMED WATER USE AGREEMENT IS
EXECUTED BY THE DEVELOPER AND APPROVED BY THE CITY.

4. VISIBILITY EASEMENT RESTRICTIONS: ANY OBJECT, WALL,
STRUCTURE, MOUND OR LANDSCAPING (MATURE) OVER 24" IN
HEIGHT IS NOT ALLOWED WITHIN THE EASEMENT EXCEPT TREES
TRIMMED TO NOT LESS THAN 6' ABOVE GROUND.  TREES SHALL
BE SPACED NOT LESS THAN 8' APART.

REQUIRED RETENTION:
THIS PROJECT FALLS WITHIN THE GALVESTON BASIN AREA FOR THE
CITY OF CHANDLER, AS SUCH, THE RAINFALL INTENSITY IS GIVEN BY
C.O.C. TDM3 TABLE 6.8 TO BE 1.2".  THE REQUIRED RETENTION VOLUME
WAS DERIVED AS SHOWN IN THE CALCULATIONS BELOW.

VR = C X P/12 X A = 7,676 CF (10% INCREASE = 8,443 CF)
WHERE: C=0.75

P=1.20"
A=102,341 SF

VP = 9,065 CF

PP
01 01

LEGEND

JB

SIGHT VISIBILITY EASEMENT DETAIL

TYPICAL LOT DETAIL



H
AR

TF
O

R
D

 S
T.

GALVESTON  ST.

VI
N

E
ST

.

W. LAREDO ST.

NOT A PART

N
.

CURVE TABLE

CURVE DELTA RADIUS LENGTH

LINE TABLE

LINE BEARING LENGTH

D
W

G
.

SH
EE

T

C
H

AN
D

LE
R

, A
R

IZ
O

N
A

M
AR

IC
O

PA
 C

O
U

N
TY

R
EV

IS
IO

N
JO

B 
N

O
.:

C
H

EC
KE

D
:

N
O

.
D

AT
E

22
00

76
BY

JC

D
ES

IG
N

 B
Y:

M
ar

 1
0,

 2
02

1
J:

\2
02

0 
Jo

bs
\2

20
07

6 
- S

er
en

e 
H

om
es

 S
ub

di
vi

si
on

\C
AD

 F
ile

s\
Sh

ee
ts

\P
re

pl
at

\P
P-

02
.d

w
g

FI
LE

:
D

AT
E:

JB

D
R

AW
N

 B
Y:

JB

D
AT

E:
3/

10
/2

1

SE
R

EN
E 

ES
TA

TE
S 

SU
BD

IV
IS

IO
N

O
F

C
O

C
 L

O
G

 N
O

. P
LT

20
-0

03
9

PP
02 02

LOT AREA



Request Detail Report 2/25/2021

12:04 PM

4808219935

Request #: 21-02-0576 Status: Completed

Phone Number:

As Of: 2/25/2021  12:04 PM

Requestor

Util Acct #:

Name:

Address:

X Street:

City, State   Zip:

Country:

Building Type:

Home Phone:

Phone 1:

420 N EVERGREEN ST  

Chandler AZ 85225

John Biewer

USA

4808219935

Business:

Parcel:

Email:

Work Phone:

Phone 2:

jbiewer2@hotmail.com

Category:

Cause:

Problem:

Priority:

Address:

Address2:

Gen Location:

City:

State:

Department:

Supervisor:

Affected Utility:

Follow-up Date:

Facility:

Parcel Number:

Zip Code: Country:

Building Type:

Location X:

Location Y:

Planning Admin

Citizen Input

Chandler

Five Day

Catherine Flores

2/24/2021

Scripts
Atten> Lauren Schumann.  I just listened to the meeting about Serene Estates.  I hope it is approved as is.  I have lived in the 

neighborhood for 20 years, the city for 45.  I also work at Hartford Elementary the past eight years, 20 with cusd.  We need to breathe 

new life and ideas into these older neighborhoods.  Contrary to some people, there are some two story homes in the neighborhood.  Not 

alot but some.  Plus some of there older homes are eyesores.  I think it is unrealistic to have new homes with similar lot sizes, etc.  Let's 

see new growth!  This project can only help and improve the neighborhood.  Thank you.

  Comments: 

Showed up in queue

Refer to Planning L.S.

Information passed on to Planner.

Page: 1











ITEM  8 

City Council Memorandum      City Clerk's Office  Memo No. 21-018
       

Date: April 8, 2021
To: Mayor  and Council
Thru: Joshua H. Wright, Acting City Manager

Debra Stapleton, Assistant City Manager 
Derek D. Horn, Development Services Director

From: Erica Barba, Assistant City Clerk 
Subject: PLH20-0054 BAR @118W
Request: Use Permit approval for bar and Entertainment Use Permit for speakers in an outside courtyard.  
Location: 118 W Boston St., approximately 500 feet west of Arizona Avenue, between Chandler Boulevard

and Frye Road  

Applicant: Yash Chaudhry, Arcore Group Inc  

Proposed Motion:
Move City Council approve Use Permit and Entertainment Use Permit, PLH20-0054 Bar @118W,
located at 118 W. Boston Street, subject to the conditions recommended by Planning and Zoning
Commission.

Background Data:
Zoned as City Center District (CCD).
Zoning Code requires Use Permit approval for bar or cocktail lounge in all zoning districts.
Zoning Code requires Entertainment Use Permit approval when outdoor speakers and/or live
entertainment is provided and the establishment is located within 1,320 feet of residential
property. The subject site is located approximately 292 feet east of existing residential properties.

Surrounding Land Use Data:

North Abandoned building (CCD) South Commercial stores and restaurants
(CCD)

East Eyelash extensions & offices
(CCD) West Chiropractic office (CCD)

Proposed Development:
Building/Suite
Area

757 sq. ft. building & 1,150 sq. ft. courtyard

# of employees 10-12 employees
Hours of
operation

10:00AM-2:00AM Daily



Hours of
entertainment

5 small outdoor speakers will provide background music
during hours of operation 10:00 AM-2:00 AM

No live entertainment will be provided
# of seats Approximately 29 indoor seats and 25 patio seats

Review and Recommendation:
Planning staff finds the use permit request for a bar compatible with the surrounding uses. The hours of
operation do conflict with the commercial and office uses. The omission of live entertainment will further
help the bar blend into the commercial/office strip.The entertainment use permit is for background
music only in their courtyard. The bar expects to be busier at night after 5:00 P.M., when the
commercial and office uses are closed for the night. The establishment shall provide a contact phone
number for a responsible person to any interested neighbors and property owners to resolve any noise
complaints that may occur.
 
Planning staff finds the proposal to be consistent with the goals of the General Plan and Area Plan and
Planning & Zoning Commission recommends approval subject to conditions.

General Plan and Area Plan Designations
  
2016 General Plan Neighborhood & Downtown Chandler Growth Area
Downtown - South Arizona Avenue Area Plan Urban commercial & Future Growth Area

Planning staff finds the proposal to be consistent with policies of the General Plan that call for a variety
of non-residential uses such as commercial, institutional, public facilities, and commercial offices. The
General Plan Downtown Chandler Growth Area is called out as a destination for arts, entertainment,
tourism, specialty retail, and special events. 
 
Planning staff also finds the proposal to be consistent with policies of the Downtown-South Arizona
Avenue Area Plan as urban commercial denotes areas that are appropriate for retail, restaurant, and
personal services. The future growth area denotes that the area is intended for future expansion of the
cultural and entertainment category, which includes support uses such as performing arts, art galleries,
hotels, retail, restaurant, dance clubs, cinemas, and amusement arcades.

Public / Neighborhood Notification
This request was noticed in accordance with the requirements of the Chandler Zoning Code.
A neighborhood meeting was held on March 3, 2021, via Zoom. There was one attendee.
One neighbor was concerned about live entertainment potentially being provided; the applicant
advised the neighbor that there will be none.
As of the writing of this memo, Planning staff is unaware of opposition to the request.

Planning and Zoning Commission Vote Report
Planning and Zoning Commission meeting March 17, 2021
Motion to Approve

In Favor: 4 Opposed: 0    Absent: 2 (Pekau & Rose)   

Recommended Conditions of Approval
Planning staff finds the request is in compliance with the General Plan and the Planning & Zoning



Planning staff finds the request is in compliance with the General Plan and the Planning & Zoning
Commission recommends approval of Use Permit for bar and Entertainment Use Permit for speakers
on outside courtyard, subject to the following conditions:
  

Substantial expansion or modification beyond the approved attachments (Floor Plan and
Narrative) shall void the Use Permit and require new Use Permit application and approval for a
bar.

1.

Substantial expansion or modification beyond the approved attachments (Floor Plan and
Narrative) shall void the Entertainment Use Permit and require new Entertainment Use Permit
application and approval.

2.

The Use Permit is non-transferable to any other location.3.
The Entertainment Use Permit is non-transferable to any other location.4.
The site shall be maintained in a clean and orderly manner.5.
No noise shall be emitted from external speakers or live entertainment in such a manner that
exceeds the general level of noise emitted by uses outside the premises of the business and
disturbs adjacent businesses and residential areas. 

6.

The establishment shall provide a contact phone number for a responsible person (i.e., bar owner
and/or manager) to any interested neighbors and property owners to resolve noise complaints
quickly and directly.

7.

The Use Permit for a bar shall remain in effect for two (2) years from the date of City Council
approval. Continuation of the Use Permit for a bar beyond the expiration date shall require
reapplication to and approval by the City of Chandler.

8.

The Entertainment Use Permit shall remain in effect for two (2) years from the date of City
Council approval. Continuation of the Entertainment Use Permit beyond the expiration date shall
require reapplication to and approval by the City of Chandler.

9.

Attachments
Vicinity Maps 
Narrative, Site Plan, Pictures 



W CHANDLER BL

N 
DA

KO
TA

 S
T

W BOSTON ST

N A
RI

ZO
NA

 AV

W BUFFALO ST

S D
AK

OT
A S

T

S A
RI

ZO
NA

 AV

W SA
N M

AR
CO

S D
R

N 
OR

EG
ON

 ST

W COMMONWEALTH AV

N 
CA

LIF
OR

NI
A S

T
S C

AL
IFO

RN
IA 

ST

S E
SS

EX
 ST

N 
PR

IVA
TE

S O
RE

GO
N 

ST

W PRIVATE

S S
AN

 M
AR

CO
S P

L
N 

SA
N 

MA
RC

OS
 PL

S NEBRASKA ST

N 
NE

BR
AS

KA
 S

T

City of Chandler Planning Division

Ar
izo

na
 A

ve
.

Proposed Project Details
118 W. Boston St.
Use Permit for a bar and an
Entertainment Use Permit for
outside speakers in a courtyard 

chandleraz.gov/planning
For more information visit:

Chandler Blvd.

https://gis.chandleraz.gov/planning

PLH20-0054 Bar @ 118W ´

^

PAD
Alta San Marcos

SF-10

PAD

MF-2
C-2

SF-8.5
Park Manors

PAD

PAD PAD

C-3SCHOOL
Chandler High School

PAD
PAD

San Marcos Commons

C-3

CCD/PAD

PAD
DC Heights

CC
D/

PA
D

CCD/PAD PAD

CCD

CCD

SF-10
San Marcos

PAD
San Marcos

CCDProject Site



W CHANDLER BL

N 
DA

KO
TA

 S
T

W BOSTON ST

N A
RI

ZO
NA

 AV

W BUFFALO ST

S D
AK

OT
A S

T

S A
RI

ZO
NA

 AV

W SA
N M

AR
CO

S D
R

N 
OR

EG
ON

 ST

W COMMONWEALTH AV

N 
CA

LIF
OR

NI
A S

T
S C

AL
IFO

RN
IA 

ST

S E
SS

EX
 ST

N 
PR

IVA
TE

S O
RE

GO
N 

ST

W PRIVATE

S S
AN

 M
AR

CO
S P

L
N 

SA
N 

MA
RC

OS
 PL

S NEBRASKA ST

N 
NE

BR
AS

KA
 S

T

City of Chandler Planning Division

Ar
izo

na
 A

ve
.

Proposed Project Details
118 W. Boston St.
Use Permit for a bar and an
Entertainment Use Permit for
outside speakers in a courtyard 

chandleraz.gov/planning
For more information visit:

Chandler Blvd.

https://gis.chandleraz.gov/planning

PLH20-0054 Bar @ 118W ´

^

PAD
Alta San Marcos

SF-10

PAD

MF-2
C-2

SF-8.5
Park Manors

PAD

PAD PAD

C-3SCHOOL
Chandler High School

PAD
PAD

San Marcos Commons

C-3

CCD/PAD

PAD
DC Heights

CC
D/

PA
D

CCD/PAD PAD

CCD

CCD

SF-10
San Marcos

PAD
San Marcos

CCDProject Site



Project: The Stanley, 118 W. Boston 
 
Narrative: 
The project is located in downtown Chandler at 118 W. Boston and is called “THE STANLEY”. 
The site is zoned as City Center District – CCD. We are requesting two use permits: one to 
operate a Bar and the other one is for outside entertainment/speakers at courtyard area. 
 
The site has three structures on it. The addresses of these three structures are 108 W. Boston, 
112 W. Boston and 118 W. Boston. The structure at 108 W. Boston is used as a beauty salon. 
112 W. Boston is a residential unit with potentially being used as a wedding venue in the future 
(not under this use permit). The use of structure at 118 W. Boston is under this use permit.  
Existing building area is 757sf. There is a roughly 1,150sf courtyard squeezed between 
buildings in front. There is 8’ high wall between buildings to the north and building in the south 
with a pass through door.  
 
The look and feel of existing building from outside will remain the same. Existing use of the 
building was office and the Owner wants to convert it to a Bar. This project involves renovating 
the inside of the building to suit the needs for a Bar use. It will have small Bar area along with 
seating for 10 at the counter and 19 on tables and chairs. The courtyard area has a small trellis 
structure and a big mature tree and will be used for outdoor seating for Bar. The outdoor area 
will have roughly seating for 35 on tables and chairs. This area will not be covered and will have 
natural setting with tree and trellis providing shade. The inside area and outdoor seating area 
will have speakers for music but will not have any live band playing. The courtyard area will 
have maximum of 5 small outdoor speakers but will have no television. The north end of the 
building will have folding aluminum door so indoor space can be extended to outside. Also, on 
the east side, there is a counter which opens onto the courtyard area. 
 
There is on-street surface parking available along Boston Street and City of Chandler’s Oregon 
Street Parking Garage within walking distance of the property. There is plenty of free City of 
Chandler parking in the neighborhood. 
 
Proposed hours of operation will be from 10AM to 2AM daily. The business will employ 10-12 
employees including all shifts. 
 
The downtown area is currently served by a variety of bars and restaurants, and this business is 
consistent with the surrounding commercial businesses. This business use is consistent with the 
goals and objectives of downtown district and will not contribute negatively to the neighborhood 
but will be an asset to the surrounding area by providing another unique dining experience. 
 
We feel that this use fits the neighborhood. The granting of Use Permit will not cause any 
significant vehicular or pedestrian traffic in adjacent areas. This Bar will cater to the business 
and residential crowd already in the downtown walkable area and therefore will not cause any 
significant traffic. 
 
The granting of Use permit to allow a bar will not result in any disruptive behavior which might 
create a nuisance to the surrounding area or general public. The staff will be well trained at 
identifying the types of behavior that may become disruptive and have policies in place to 
prevent disruptive behavior from occurring and creating a nuisance to the surrounding area. 
 
No smoking will be permitted inside and in courtyard area of the establishment and will have 
appropriate signage for that, thus complying with Smoke-Free Arizona Act. 







 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 



 

 

 



ITEM  9 

City Council Memorandum      City Clerk's Office  Memo No. 21-019
       

Date: April 8, 2021
To: Mayor  and Council
Thru: Joshua H, Wright, Acting City Manager

Debra Stapleton, Assistant City Manager
Derek D. Horn, Development Services Director

From: Erica Barba, Assistant City Clerk 
Subject: PLH20-0067 The Johnathan
Request: Preliminary Development Plan approval to amend a comprehensive sign plan for an existing

office/retail building  

Location: 55 N. Arizona Place, generally located east of the southeast corner of Arizona Avenue and Buffalo
Street  

Applicant: Julie Kulka - Airpark Signs & Graphics  

Proposed Motion:
Move City Council approve Preliminary Development Plan, PLH20-0067 The Johnathan, located at 55
N. Arizona Place, subject to the conditions as recommended by Planning and Zoning Commission.

Background Data:
38,400 Square Foot Site, 105,000 Square Foot Building
Subject site zoned Planned Area Development (PAD) for Office, Retail and Parking Garage
Development in 1997
The original Preliminary Development Plan (PL98-0142 Chandler Office Center) for signage was
approved in 1999

Surrounding Land Use Data:

North Across Buffalo Street: Vacant lot  zoned
CCD South Across Commonwealth Avenue:  Existing

building zoned PAD

East City Facilities including Library and
Development Services Building West Across Arizona Place: City Park Zoned

CCD

Proposed Development:
Signage 

 
Existing

(PL98-0142)
 

Proposed



Type of signage

Major Tenant: 
17,500 square feet of leased space or

more

Minor Tenant:
First-floor occupancy and 5,000 square

feet or more of leased space

Major Tenant:
15,000 square feet of leased

space or more

Minor Tenant:
 15,000 square feet or less of

leased space

Retail Sign:
Retail Tenants

Center ID Sign: 
The Johnathan

Entry Wall Sign: 
The Johnathan

Maximum number of
signs allowed per

tenant

Major Tenant:
Two (2)

Minor Tenant:
One (1)

 

Major Tenant:
Two (2)

Minor Tenant:
One (1)

Retail Tenant:
One (1)

Center ID Sign:
One (1)

Entry Wall Sign:
One (1)

Maximum number of
signs allowed on the
building concurrently

Four (4)

Major Tenant:
Four (4)

Minor Tenant:
Four (4)

Retail:
Six(6)

Center ID:
One (1)

Entry Wall:
One (1)

Major Tenant:
-Between 2nd and 3rd floor & above the

Major Tenant:
Above the 5th floor

 
Minor Tenant:

Above 2nd floor (If a minor tenant
is located on the 3rd floor, their
sign may be placed on the upper

sign band)



Signage type location 5th floor
 

Minor Tenant:
Between 2nd and 3rd floor

 
Retail Sign:

Above colonnade
 

Center ID Sign:
Above first-floor entry wall

 
Entry Wall Sign:

Mounted on entry block wall 
 

Maximum Sign
Dimensions

Major Tenant & Minor Tenant:
-Minimum letter height of 24’’ and
maximum letter height of 36’’

-Maximum sign width varies by sign band
location

Major Tenant:
36’’ x 504’’

Minor Tenant:
24’’ x 301.6’’

Retail Tenant:
20’’ x 176.3’’

Center ID Sign:
20’’ x 216.8’’

Entry Wall Sign:
18’’ x 81’’

Sign Material & Finish

Major Tenant:
-Non-illuminated letters to fabricated from

a brush stainless steel  reverse pan
channel letter/logo with 5’’ deep returns

 
-Illuminated letters Logo with brushed
stainless steel returns and ¾’’ stainless

steel trim caps

-Letter style and logo are subject to
landlord approval

 
Minor Tenant:

-5’’ deep-pan channel letters

-Logo with brushed
stainless steel returns and ¾’’ stainless

steel trim caps

-Letter style and logo are subject to
landlord approval

 

Major Tenant:
3’’ deep individual pan channel

letters

Letter style and logo are subject
to the landlord

Minor Tenant:
3’’ deep individual pan channel

letters

Letter style and logo are subject
to the landlord

Retail Tenant:
3’’ deep individual pan channel
letters with finished backs

Letter style and logo are subject
to the landlord

Center ID Sign:
3’’ deep, panel channel lettering.
Returns finished backs and thin

trim retailer painted white

Entry Wall Sign:
1/4’’ thick flat cut out aluminum

lettering painted black



Illumination

Signs located above the 5th floor are to
be non-illuminated & Signs located

between the 2nd and 3rd floor are to be
illuminated

 
Major Tenant:

Internal illumination (white neon)

Minor Tenant:
Internal illumination (white neon)

Major Tenant:
Halo illuminated with white LED

Minor Tenant:
Halo illuminated with white LED

Retail Tenant:
Non illuminated

Center ID Sign:
Face illuminated with white LED

Entry Wall Sign:
Non illuminated

Review and Recommendation:
Changes to the signage have not occurred since originally approved in 1999. The Preliminary
Development Plan (PDP) to amend the existing sign plan comes at a time when the building is being
updated to provide a more modern look.
 
Planning staff finds that the request for the amendment to the existing Comprehensive Sign Plan meets
the intent of the Sign Code and the proposed signage is architecturally integrated with the building and
provides an updated appearance that is harmonious with the building's remodel.
 

Public / Neighborhood Notification
The request was noticed in accordance with the requirements of the Chandler Zoning Code
A neighborhood meeting was held on March 9, 2021. No neighbors were in attendance.
Planning staff received one (1) comment in support of the request.
As of the writing of this memo, Planning staff is not aware of any opposition to the request.

Planning and Zoning Commission Vote Report
Planning and Zoning Commission meeting March 17, 2021
Motion to Approve

In Favor: 5 Opposed: 0 Absent: 2 (Rose & Pekau)

Recommended Conditions of Approval
Planning staff finds the request is in compliance with the General Plan and the Planning and Zoning
Commission recommends approval of the Preliminary Development Plan, subject to the following
conditions: 

Signage shall be in substantial conformance with the elevations, entitled Exhibits and kept on file
in the City of Chandler Planning Division, in File No. PLH20-0067, modified by such conditions
included at the time the exhibit was approved by the Chandler City Council and/or as thereafter
amended, modified or supplemented by the Chandler City Council.

1.

Signs shall be designed in coordination with landscape plans, planting materials, storm water
retention requirements, and utility pedestals, so as not to create problems with sign visibility or
prompt the removal of required landscape materials.

2.

Attachments



Vicinity Maps 
Narrative 
Comprehensive Sign Plan 



N A
RI

ZO
NA

 AV

N 
OR

EG
ON

 ST

E BUFFALO ST

E CHANDLER BL

W BUFFALO ST

N 
PR

IVA
TE

N 
WA

SH
IN

GT
ON

 S
T

W CHANDLER BL

N A
RI

ZO
NA

 P
L

E COMMONWEALTH AVW COMMONWEALTH AV

N 
SA

N 
MA

RC
OS

 PL

W PRIVATE

S A
RI

ZO
NA

 P
L

S A
RI

ZO
NA

 AV

E PRIVATE

S S
AN

 M
AR

CO
S P

L

E PRIVATE

E PRIVATE

City of Chandler Planning Division

Project SiteAr
izo

na
 A

ve
.

Proposed Project Details
55 N. Arizona Pl.
Preliminary Development Plan

chandleraz.gov/planning
For more information visit:

Chandler Blvd.

https://gis.chandleraz.gov/planning

PAD

PLH20-0067 The Johnathan ´

^

CCD

CCD/PAD

PAD

PAD

PAD

CCD

PAD

C-3

C-3

SCHOOL
Chandler High School

MF-1
PAD

PAD
123 Washington

PAD
San Marcos
Commons

C-3C-3

CCD
CCD/PAD

CCD

C-2



N A
RI

ZO
NA

 AV

N 
OR

EG
ON

 ST

E BUFFALO ST

E CHANDLER BL

W BUFFALO ST

N 
PR

IVA
TE

N 
WA

SH
IN

GT
ON

 S
T

W CHANDLER BL

N A
RI

ZO
NA

 P
L

E COMMONWEALTH AVW COMMONWEALTH AV

N 
SA

N 
MA

RC
OS

 PL

W PRIVATE

S A
RI

ZO
NA

 P
L

S A
RI

ZO
NA

 AV

E PRIVATE

S S
AN

 M
AR

CO
S P

L

E PRIVATE

E PRIVATE

City of Chandler Planning Division

Project SiteAr
izo

na
 A

ve
.

Proposed Project Details
55 N. Arizona Pl.
Preliminary Development Plan

chandleraz.gov/planning
For more information visit:

Chandler Blvd.

https://gis.chandleraz.gov/planning

PAD

PLH20-0067 The Johnathan ´

^

CCD

CCD/PAD

PAD

PAD

PAD

CCD

PAD

C-3

C-3

SCHOOL
Chandler High School

MF-1
PAD

PAD
123 Washington

PAD
San Marcos
Commons

C-3C-3

CCD
CCD/PAD

CCD

C-2



December 3, 2020 

City of Chandler 
Development Services Department 
250 W. Buffalo Street 
Chandler, Arizona 85225 

Narrative for Amendment to CSP 

To Whom It May Concern, 

Our request is to amend the existing Comprehensive Sign Plan (CSP) for 55 North Arizona 
Place, Chandler, AZ 85225. The property was purchased by new owners in 2019 and is 
undergoing remodeling. As a result of this purchase, the new Ownership has renamed the 
building as The Johnathan and as part of their effort to modernize and update the 
property we present the proposed changes to the CSP. 

Along with The Johnathan, the new owners have also purchased the property to the 
south located at 25 North Arizona Place, known as The Alexander. Together the two 
properties will have a similar contemporary look and feel to create a cohesive presence in 
Downtown Chandler.  

The existing CSP calls out for a total of eight sign bands on the building: two each on the 
north and south elevations, and four on the west elevation. Ownership of The Johnathan 
would like to maintain the current sign band locations, but with the criteria change that a 
Major Tenant will be tenants that occupy 15,000 SF or more of leased space and may be 
allowed a maximum of two (2) building mounted signs, while Minor Tenants will apply to 
tenants with first floor occupancy and 7,500 SF or more of leased space. Minor tenants 
shall be allowed a maximum of one (1) sign. Major Tenant Sign bands shall measure 3’ (h) 
x 36’ (w) and a maximum of 108 SF. Minor Tenant sign bands shall measure 2’ (h) x 24’ (w) 
and a maximum of 84 SF.  

Also proposed in the updated CSP are two Building Identification signs to the main entry 
similar to that of The Alexander. One Building Identification sign shall be a single faced 
sign of individual letters post mounted to the entry surround, and shall be face 
illuminated with white LED. The second Building Identification sign shall consist of flat-cut-
out letters mounted to a planter on the ground at the building entrance and shall be non-
illuminated.  

In addition to the two new Building Identification signs, we also propose to add retail 
tenant signage to the canopy in front of the building for retail tenants. The retail 
sign bands will match the same canopy retail signage on The Johnathan’s sister property 
to the south, maintaining continuity between the buildings. Like that of The 
Alexander, The Johnathan’s retail tenant signage shall be reserved for retail tenants 
only, and shall consist of non-illuminated individual reverse pan channel letters with 
finished backs mounted on top of the existing canopy. Retail tenant sign locations are 
limited to proposed sign band locations, measuring 1’-8” (h) x 20’ (w) and a maximum 
of 30 SF each., with corporate logos allowed. Total retail signage allowed is not to 
exceed 180 SF.  



Building signage has become an important factor for prospective tenants looking to locate 
in downtown Chandler. At the present time, the building lacks any sort of freestanding 
signage, thus tenant identification is limited to building mounted signage. The proposed 
updates to the CSP gives Ownership options to give existing and prospective tenants 
adequate identification to visitors to the Downtown Chandler area. All signage would 
remain adherent to any other criteria set forth in the CSP and the City of Chandler Sign 
Ordinance.  

In our effort to meet the expectations of the ownership of The Johnathan, we 
respectfully request the approval of our proposed amendment to the Comprehensive Sign 
Plan. Thank you for considering our proposal, and feel free to contact us with any 
questions or concerns you may have. 

Respectfully, 

Julie Kulka 
Applicant/Owner’s Representative 



COMPREHENSIVE SIGN PLAN | THE JOHNATHAN

55 N. ARIZONA CHANDLER, AZ 85225PLACE

UPDATED

03 16 1. .202



TABLE OF CONTENTS

3.

4.

Project Information

Tenant Signage

55 N. ARIZONA CHANDLER, AZ 85225PLACE Page 2

5. General Specifications

6. Door Lettering Criteria

7.

8.

9.

1 .1

10.

1 .2

Center ID Sign

Entry Wall Sign

Major Tenant Design Criteria

Minor Tenant Design Criteria

Minor Tenant Sign Example

1 .3

1 .4

Major Tenant Sign Example

Retail Sign Example

Retail Design Criteria

1 .5 Sign Band Elevations

1 .6 Site Plan



PROJECT INFORMATION

Project Name and Location:

The Johnathan
55 North Arizona Place
Chandler, AZ 85225

Landlord Information:

George Oliver
7525 E. Camelback Rd. #203
Scottsdale, AZ 85251

Page 3

Zoning:

PAD

Land Use:

Commercial / Institutional

Maricopa County Assessor Parcel Number:

303-06-138

Building Height:

5 Floors, 167'-0"

55 N. ARIZONA PLACE CHANDLER, AZ 85225



Page 4

Tenant Signage

The Johnathan has been designed to create and maintain a prestigious atmosphere, which blends with
and compliments the historic architecture of downtown Chandler. Criteria have been established to
maintain this quality for the City of Chandler and the benefit of the entire center’s tenants. To this end,
strict conformance is required.

Tenant signage at The Johnathan should identify the tenant name and/or logo and contribute to the
aesthetics of the project. The design, materials and construction of all tenant signage must be reviewed
and approved by the Landlord according to procedures outlined in the attached requirements.

Signing may occur, within the limits of the signage areas as noted on the attached elevations.

The Landlord will only consider signage designs and materials outlined in the attached Tenant Signage
Narrative, and reserves the right to reject any signing that, in its sole and absolute discretion, is
detrimental to The Johnathan.

55 N. ARIZONA PLACE CHANDLER, AZ 85225



Page 5

Tenant shall be responsible for the fulfillment of all requirements and specifications.

Any contracted signage design services shall be at tenant’s expense. All signs shall be reviewed for conformance with
the criteria stated and the overall design quality. Approval or disapproval of sign submittals based on aesthetics of
design shall remain the sole right of the Landlord.

All signs are to be installed under the direction of the Landlord or Landlord’s representative. Signs installed without
written approval of the Landlord may be subject to removal and reinstallation at tenant’s expense.

All signage and their installation shall comply with all local building and zoning codes. Nothing in these criteria shall
imply a waiver of requirements by local authorities.

The tenant or his representative shall obtain all permits for signs and their installation.

Tenant shall be responsible for the installation and maintenance of all signs.

No signmaker’s labels or other identification shall be permitted on the exposed surface of the signs, except those required
by local ordinance. If required by local ordinance, such as labels and other identification shall be in an inconspicuous location.

When tenant is required to remove its sign, tenant shall patch and repair any damage to the building to Landlord’s satisfaction.

Tenant’s sign contractor shall repair any damage caused by said contractor’s work, or by its agents or employees and tenant
shall be liable for the operations of the tenant’s sign contractor.

No animated, flashing or audible signs shall be permitted.

No exposed lamps or tubing shall be permitted.

No exposed raceways, crossovers or conduit shall be permitted.

All cabinets, conductors, transformers and other equipment shall be concealed.

on the ground floor is permitted for 1st. floor tenant’s only with exclusive pedestrian entrance from theDoor/Window Vinyl
building exterior.

GENERAL SPECIFICATIONS

55 N. ARIZONA PLACE CHANDLER, AZ 85225



Page 6

This criteria applied to tenants with first floor occupancy, not of any minimum size of leased space, who have exclusive
pedestrian entrance for direct access to their premises from the building exterior.

DOOR LETTERING CRITERIA

First surface vinyl lettering applied to glass entrance door window. Logos are not permitted.

TYPE OF SIGN

Gerber #220-10 ‘White’ vinyl.

CONSTRUCTION MATERIALS
LETTERS

All letter styles are subject to Landlord approval.

LETTER STYLE

Letter height not to exceed 4".

LETTER HEIGHT

55 N. ARIZONA PLACE CHANDLER, AZ 85225



Page 7

CENTER ID SIGN

scale: " = 1'-0"3/8

CENTER ID

216.8"

11"

20"

2.75"
3"

SIDE

VIEW

3"

Single faced sign of individual letters post mounted to entry surround. Face illuminated
with white LED.

TYPE OF SIGN

CONSTRUCTION MATERIALS

3" deep, face illuminated, “thin trim” pan channel lettering. Returns finished backs
and thin trim retailer painted ‘white’.

LETTERS

Post mounted to 3" × 3" aluminum raceway. Mechanically fastened to top of entry
surround. Posts and raceway painted ‘black’.

INSTALLATION

ILLUMINATED SIGN AT NIGHT

West Elevation | scale: 1/16" = 1'-0"

55 N. ARIZONA PLACE CHANDLER, AZ 85225



Page 8

ENTRY WALL SIGN

scale: " = 1'-0"3/4

CENTER ID

81"

9"

18"

SIDE

VIEW

1/4"

Single faced sign of individual flat cut out letters mounted flush to entry .stud wall

TYPE OF SIGN

CONSTRUCTION MATERIALS

1/4" thick flat cut out aluminum lettering painted black.

LETTERS

Stud mounted flush to CMU wall.

INSTALLATION

55 N. ARIZONA PLACE CHANDLER, AZ 85225

4.5"

West Elevation | scale: 1/16" = 1'-0"



Page 9

This criteria applies to tenants with 1 , 00 square feet or more of leased space. Major tenants are allowed a maximum of two (2) signs.5 0
Signs may be non-contiguous to the tenant's leasehold.

MAJOR TENANT DESIGN CRITERIA

Single faced sign of individual letters on existing building wall in established sign band. Letters/Logo may be either halo illuminated
with white LED, or non illuminated. Logo details may be routed out and backed in white acrylic for visibility as needed.

TYPE OF SIGN

Existing Drivit

CONSTRUCTION MATERIALS
WALLS

Non illuminated letters to be 3" deep individual reverse pan channel letters painted to contrast with facade colors.DET611 ‘Iron-ic

Halo illuminated letters to be 3" - 4" deep individual reverse pan channel letters painted DET611 ‘Iron-ic to contrast with facade colors.
Halo illuminated with white LED.

LETTERS

Major tenant’s letters styles and logos are subject to Landlord approval.

LETTER STYLE AND LOGOS

Letters to be a minimum height of 18" and a maximum height of 36". Business names containing upper and lower case
characters may extend above and below the 36" sign band a maximum of 12" but no character shall exceed 36".

LETTER HEIGHT

55 N. ARIZONA PLACE CHANDLER, AZ 85225



Page 10

This criteria applies to any tenants with less than 15,000 square feet of leased space. Minor tenants are allowed a maximum or one (1) sign.
Signs may be non-contiguous to the tenant's leasehold.

MINOR TENANT DESIGN CRITERIA

Single faced sign of individual letters on existing building wall in established sign band.
Letters to be non illuminated or halo illuminated with white LED. Logos are not permitted.

TYPE OF SIGN

Existing Drivit

CONSTRUCTION MATERIALS
WALLS

3" deep individual reverse pan channel letters painted Swiss Coffee OC-45 for signs located on the lower sign band and DET611 ‘Iron-ic
for signs located on the upper sign band to contrast with facade colors. Halo illuminated with white LED.

LETTERS

Minor tenant’s letter styles are subject to Landlord approval.

LETTER STYLE

Letters to be a minimum height of 12" and a maximum height of 24". Business names containing upper and lower case
characters may extend above and below the 24" sign band a maximum of 12" but no character shall exceed 24".

LETTER HEIGHT

55 N. ARIZONA PLACE CHANDLER, AZ 85225



Page 11

This criteria applies to retail tenants.

RETAIL DESIGN CRITERIA

Single faced sign of individual letters on existing canopy in established sign band. Letters to be non illuminated.
Logos are permitted.

TYPE OF SIGN

Steel beam

CONSTRUCTION MATERIALS
CANOPY

3" deep individual reverse pan channel letters with finished backs.
Non illuminated.

LETTERS

Retail tenant’s letter styles are subject to Landlord approval. Retail tenants are allowed a maximum of one (1) sign.

LETTER STYLE

Letters to be a maximum height of 20".

LETTER HEIGHT

55 N. ARIZONA PLACE CHANDLER, AZ 85225



Page 12

MAJOR TENANT BUILDING MOUNTED LETTERING

This sign is intended to be installed in accordance with the requirements of

article600ofthenationalelectricalcodeand/orotherapplicable localcodes.

This includes proper grounding and bonding of the sign. The location of the

disconnectswitchafterinstallationshallcomplywithArticle600.6(A)(1)ofthe

National Electrical Code. All signs fabricated as per 2008 N.E.C. Standards.

AluminumFace

AluminumReturn

ExistingWall

AluminumAngle

AnchorTBDinField

LowVoltageWire

ClearLexanBack

LEDModule

AluminumFace

12VPowerSupply

DisconnectSwitch

AluminumSpacer

1/4”ØWeepHole

withLightShield

PowertoDisconnect

SwitchProvidedbyOthers

AluminumReturn

ExistingWall

AluminumAngle

AnchorTBDinField

scale: nts

TYP. HALO ILLUMINATED LETTER SECTION

scale: nts

TYP. NON ILLUMINATED LETTER SECTION

Major Tenant Sign

504"

36"

scale: " = 1'-0"3/16

HALO ILLUMINATED SIGN

36"

scale: " = 1'-0"3/16

NON ILLUMINATED SIGN

5" - 3"

1 1/2" FLOAT

FACE: .08 ALUMINUM

RETURNS: .04 ALUMINUM

BACKS: 3/16" CLEAR LEXAN

MOUNTING: STUD MOUNTED

WITH 1 1/2" SPACERS

FACE: .08 ALUMINUM

RETURNS: .04 ALUMINUM ILLUMINATION: NONE

MOUNTING: STUD MOUNTED FLUSH

Major Tenant Sign

504"

Major Tenant

POWER SUPPLY: REMOTECOLOR: DET611 ‘IRON-IC’

West Elevation | scale: 12" = 25'

ILLUMINATION: WHITE LED

COLOR: DET611 ‘IRON-IC’

55 N. ARIZONA PLACE CHANDLER, AZ 85225



Page 13

MINOR TENANT BUILDING MOUNTED LETTERING

This sign is intended to be installed in accordance with the requirements of

article600ofthenationalelectricalcodeand/orotherapplicable localcodes.

This includes proper grounding and bonding of the sign. The location of the

disconnectswitchafterinstallationshallcomplywithArticle600.6(A)(1)ofthe

National Electrical Code. All signs fabricated as per 2008 N.E.C. Standards.

AluminumFace

AluminumReturn

ExistingWall

AluminumAngle

AnchorTBDinField

LowVoltageWire

ClearLexanBack

LEDModule

AluminumFace

12VPowerSupply

DisconnectSwitch

AluminumSpacer

1/4”ØWeepHole

withLightShield

PowertoDisconnect

SwitchProvidedbyOthers

AluminumReturn

ExistingWall

AluminumAngle

AnchorTBDinField

scale: nts

TYP. HALO ILLUMINATED LETTER SECTION

scale: nts

TYP. NON ILLUMINATED LETTER SECTION

West Elevation | scale: 12" = 25'

Minor Tenant Sign

301.6"

24"

Minor Tenant Sign24"

scale: " = 1'-0"3/16

NON ILLUMINATED SIGN FACE: .08 ALUMINUM

RETURNS: .04 ALUMINUM ILLUMINATION: NONE

MOUNTING: STUD MOUNTED FLUSH

5" - 3"

1 1/2" FLOAT

scale: " = 1'-0"3/16

HALO ILLUMINATED SIGN FACE: .08 ALUMINUM

RETURNS: .04 ALUMINUM ILLUMINATION: WHITE LEDMOUNTING: STUD MOUNTED

W 1 1/2" SPACERS

POWER SUPPLY: REMOTE

301.6"

BACKS: 3/16" CLEAR LEXAN

COLOR: SWISS COFFEE’ OC-45

COLOR: SWISS COFFEE’ OC-45

55 N. ARIZONA PLACE CHANDLER, AZ 85225



Page 14

RETAIL CANOPY MOUNTED LETTERING

176.3"

3"

3"

scale: " = 1'-0"3/8

CANOPY SIGN FACE: .08 ALUMINUM

RETURNS: .04 ALUMINUM ILLUMINATION: NONE

MOUNTING: MECHANICALLY FASTENED TO EXISTING CANOPY

USING 3" ALUMINUM ANGLE, PAINTED TO MATCH CANOPY COLOR

West Elevation | scale: 12" = 25'

Retail Sign

Retail Sign

scale: nts

TYP. CANOPY LETTER SECTION

AluminumFace

AluminumReturn

AluminumBack

AluminumAngle

AnchorTBDinField

ExistingCanopy

AluminumAngle

MountingBracket

BACKS: .08 ALUMINUM

20"

3"

55 N. ARIZONA PLACE CHANDLER, AZ 85225



Page 15

SIGN BAND ELEVATIONS

West Elevation | scale: 12" = 25'

North 12" = 25'Elevation | scale: South 12" = 25'Elevation | scale:

MAJOR TENANTS:

3'H × 36'W, 108 S.F.

MAJOR TENANTS: 3'H × 36'W, 108 S.F.

MAJOR TENANTS:

3'H × 36'W, 108 S.F.

MINOR TENANTS:

2'H × 36'W, 72 S.F.

MINOR TENANTS:

2'H × 36'W, 72 S.F.

MINOR TENANTS: 2'H × 36'W, 72 S.F.

RETAIL TENANTS: 1'-8"H × 20'W, 30 S.F.

Note: Sign bands are shown in approximate locations.

55 N. ARIZONA PLACE CHANDLER, AZ 85225



Page 16

SITE PLAN

P
R
O
P
E
R
T
Y

L
IN

E

2
8
'-0

3
/4

"

P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

L
I N

E

2
8
0
' -
0

7
/8

"

P
R
O
P
E
R
T
Y

L
IN

E

2
8
'-6

"

P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

L
I N

E

1
6
0
' -
0

3
/4

"

PROPERTY LINE

112'-9 5/8"

N
.
A

R
IZ

O
N

A
P

L
.
(R

.O
.W

.)

E. COMMONWEALTH AVE. (R.O.W.)

E. BUFFALO ST. (R.O.W.)

E
X

IS
T

I N
G

C
O

L
L
O

N
A

D
E

T
O

R
E

M
A

IN

PROPERTY LINE

350'-7 3/8"

P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

L
IN

E

1
6
0
' -1

1
/8

"

PROPERTY LINE

463'-4 1/8"

UP EDATED HARDSCAP /

LANDSCAPE

UP EDATED HARDSCAP /

LANDSCAPE

CCD PAD

PAD

Site Plan 1/64" = 1'-0"| scale:

MAJOR TENANTS:

3'H × 42'W, 126 S.F.

MINOR TENANTS:

2'H × 24'W, 84 S.F.

RETAIL TENANTS:

1'-8"H × 20'W, 30 S.F.

55 N. ARIZONA PLACE CHANDLER, AZ 85225



ITEM  10 

City Council Memorandum      City Clerk's Office  Memo No. ED21-006
       

Date: April 8, 2021
To: Mayor  and Council
Thru: Joshua H. Wright, Acting City Manager

Debra Stapleton, Assistant City Manager
Micah Miranda, Economic Development Director
 

From: Erica Barba, Assistant City Clerk 
Subject: Resolution No. 5458, authorizing support for a Foreign Trade Zone application for Viavi Solutions, Inc.;

authorizing support for a property tax reclassification from class one to class six for all new personal
property; authorizing a development agreement between Viavi and the City of Chandler; authorizing
the execution of an Intergovernmental Agreement between the City of Chandler and the City of
Phoenix; and authorizing the Mayor to sign the Resolution and related documents as approved by the
City Attorney.

Proposed Motion:
Move to approve Resolution No. 5458, authorizing support for a Foreign Trade Zone application for
Viavi Solutions, Inc.; manufacturing facility to be located at 3455 South McQueen Road; authorizing
support for a property tax reclassification from class one to class six for all new personal property;
authorizing a development agreement between Viavi and the City of Chandler; authorizing the
execution of an Intergovernmental Agreement between the City of Chandler and the City of Phoenix;
and authorizing the Mayor to sign the Resolution and related documents as approved by the City
Attorney.

Background/Discussion:
Viavi is a manufacturer of network testing, measurement, assurance and light management and optical
coatings products and technologies. Viavi has more than 50 locations throughout the world and over
3,600 employees. The company generated more than $1 billion in revenue during its last fiscal year
and is listed on the Nasdaq under ticker symbol "VIAV."  In late 2020, the City's Economic
Development Division began engaging with Viavi regarding two separate projects: a new
manufacturing operation and a headquarters relocation out of San Jose, California.

Viavi has undertaken a competitive site selection process to evaluate multiple metropolitan areas
outside of Arizona and multiple cities within Metro Phoenix. The company has short-listed an existing
industrial building in Chandler, located at 3455 South McQueen Road. The building is under
consideration for both the manufacturing project and the headquarters project. Over the next three
years, these two combined projects have the potential to bring 233 jobs to Chandler at an average
salary of $139,820. In addition, Viavi anticipates making a capital investment of $96,311,609.

Viavi has expressed that obtaining Foreign Trade Zone (FTZ) status for the property is a primary factor
in its site selection process. FTZ status confers certain benefits to exporters, including paying reduced
duty rates on manufactured products. Within Arizona, activated FTZ sites also are eligible for a property



tax reclassification benefit. Real and personal property can be reclassified from class one to class six
property, which carries a lower assessment ratio (5% instead of 18%).

Viavi has requested City support to obtain FTZ status and the property tax reclassification benefit. In
consideration of this support, the company has agreed to only pursue reclassification for new personal
property that would be located within its Chandler FTZ site. Additionally, the development agreement
stipulates that Viavi’s headquarters must be located in Chandler for a minimum of five years.

To obtain the property tax reclassification benefit, the company must provide concurrence letters from
each taxing jurisdiction that would be affected by the reclassification. Viavi’s FTZ consultant is
responsible for requesting these concurrence letters and this process has begun. The consultant has
received a concurrence letter from Chandler Unified School District stating their support for this
property tax reclassification. The resolution included with this Council item would serve as the City of
Chandler's concurrence letter. 

To obtain FTZ status, an application must eventually be submitted to the federal Foreign Trade Zones
Board. The application would first be submitted to the City of Phoenix, which serves as grantee for FTZ
No. 75, covering Chandler and other areas in Metro Phoenix. If Chandler City Council approves this
resolution with authorization to enter into an intergovernmental agreement with the City of Phoenix, the
next step would be for the City of Phoenix to submit Viavi's application to the Foreign Trade Zones
Board requesting the designation of an FTZ subzone at the site under consideration in Chandler. 

Financial Implications:
Property tax reclassification from class one to class six for all new personal property. This is a statutory
benefit available in Arizona for companies that receive Foreign Trade Zone status. 

Attachments
Resolution No. 5458 
Development Agreement with Viavi 
Intergovernmental Agreement with City of Phoenix 



RESOLUTION NO. 5458 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CHANDLER, 
ARIZONA, AUTHORIZING SUPPORT FOR A FOREIGN TRADE ZONE 
APPLICATION FOR THE VIAVI SOLUTIONS INC. MANUFACTURING 
FACILITY TO BE LOCATED AT 3455 SOUTH MCQUEEN ROAD; 
AUTHORIZING SUPPORT FOR A PROPERTY TAX RECLASSIFICATION 
FROM CLASS ONE TO CLASS SIX FOR ALL NEW PERSONAL PROPERTY 
AT THE SITE; AUTHORIZING A DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
VIAVI SOLUTIONS INC. AND THE CITY OF CHANDLER; AND 
AUTHORIZING AN INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
THE CITY OF CHANDLER AND THE CITY OF PHOENIX. 
 

WHEREAS, Viavi Solutions Inc. (“Viavi”) is a leading manufacturer of network testing, 
measurement, assurance and light management and optical coatings products and technologies, 
and is evaluating locations within the metropolitan Phoenix area and outside of Arizona to 
establish a new manufacturing facility and headquarters; and 
 
WHEREAS, Viavi has agreed to establish its new manufacturing facility and relocate its 
corporate headquarters to the City of Chandler in exchange for the City’s cooperation and 
support in seeking a Foreign Trade Zone (“FTZ”) designation for its facility; and 
 
WHEREAS, Viavi is in escrow to purchase an industrial facility at 3455 South McQueen Road, 
Chandler, Arizona (“Site”); and  

 
WHEREAS, without receiving FTZ designation for its industrial facility and a property tax 
reclassification from class one to class six for all new personal property, Viavi is put at a 
competitive disadvantage, which is detrimental to the economy of the City of Chandler, as well as 
the State of Arizona; and 

 
WHEREAS, Chandler desires to support Viavi in applying for FTZ Operator status at the Site 
under FTZ No. 75, provided that Viavi agrees to not pursue reclassification of any real property at 
the Site to class six; and 

 
WHEREAS, Viavi is agreeable to such limitation on state tax treatment; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Phoenix has received a grant from the federal Foreign-Trade Zones Board 
to establish Foreign Trade Zone No. 75 and Chandler does not have any such grant of authority; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, Phoenix is willing to submit an application to the Foreign-Trade Zones Board on 
behalf of Viavi for the property at the Site to be established, operated, and maintained as a foreign-
trade zone usage driven site. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Chandler, Arizona, 
as follows: 



 
Section 1. Authorizes support for a Foreign Trade Zone application for the Viavi 

manufacturing facility to be located at 3455 South McQueen Road, and 
authorizes the Acting City Manager or designee to submit such documents 
or statements as may be necessary to establish Chandler’s support of Viavi’s 
application. 

 
Section 2. Authorizes support for a property tax reclassification from class one to class 

six for all new personal property at the Site, and authorizes the Acting City 
Manager or designee to submit such documents or statements as may be 
necessary to establish Chandler’s support of the tax reclassification for new 
personal property at the Site. 

 
Section 3. Authorizes the Mayor to execute a development agreement between 

Chandler and Viavi, a copy of which is attached as Exhibit A to this 
Resolution. 

 
Section 4. Authorizes the Mayor to execute an Intergovernmental Agreement between 

Chandler and Phoenix to memorialize the agreement of the two cities to 
work together to assist Viavi in its efforts to obtain FTZ Operator status for 
the Site, a copy of which is attached to this Resolution as Exhibit B. 

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Chandler, Arizona, this _____ day 
of April, 2021. 
 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________   _________________________ 
CITY CLERK      MAYOR 
 
 CERTIFICATION 
 
I HEREBY CERTIFY that the above and foregoing Resolution No. 5458  was duly passed and 
adopted by the City Council of the City of Chandler, Arizona, at a regular meeting held on the 
_____ day of April, 2021, and that a quorum was present thereat. 
 
 

___________________________________ 
CITY CLERK 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
_____________________ 
CITY ATTORNEY   
 

 



Exhibit A 

Development Agreement 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



1 
 

 
WHEN RECORDED RETURN TO: 
 
City Clerk’s Office 
City of Chandler 
MS 606 
P. O. Box 4008 
Chandler, Arizona 85244-4008 

 
 
 
 
 
 

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 
 

This development agreement (the “Agreement”) is entered into effective as of April 8, 
2021, (the “Effective Date”), by and between the City of Chandler, an Arizona municipal 
corporation (“City”), and Viavi Solutions Inc., a Delaware corporation (“Viavi”).  City and 
Viavi are each a “Party” to this Agreement and may be referred to collectively in this 
Agreement as “Parties.” 
 

1. Recitals.  As background to this Agreement, the Parties recite, acknowledge 
and confirm the following, each of which shall be a material term and provision of this 
Agreement: 

1.1 Viavi is a manufacturer of network testing, measurement, assurance and 
light management and optical coatings products and technologies. Viavi conducted a 
competitive site selection process for a new manufacturing operation and headquarters location 
(the “Project”). City desires to assist Viavi to obtain foreign trade zone status and related 
personal property tax benefits as provided by state law.  City acknowledges that the 
unavailability of such benefits to Viavi would create a significant risk that Viavi would locate 
the Project in a competing state or another Metro Phoenix municipality. 

1.2 The Project is expected to include the purchase of 104,300 square feet 
of industrial space in Chandler (the “Premises”) within a building located at 3455 South 
McQueen Road, Chandler, AZ 85286, also described as parcel number 303-49-982 in the 
records of the Maricopa County Recorder’s Office (the “Property”). The Project is also 
anticipated to create up to 233 new jobs by January 1, 2025 with average annualized 
compensation of $139,820.  Average annualized compensation shall be inclusive of base salary 
and any incentive compensation received for W-2 purposes (including bonuses, commissions, 
vesting of restricted stock or restricted stock units, etc.).  

1.3 City is entering into this Agreement recognizing the importance of 
continued economic growth and expansion, particularly in the manufacturing industry, which 
provides quality jobs, and in turn stimulates local economic activity and generates tax revenues 
and other income for City. 



2 
 

1.4 Viavi, under no obligation or other compulsion to do so, and in reliance 
upon the promises and performance of City as set forth in this Agreement, has agreed to move 
its corporate headquarters to Chandler in accordance with this Agreement, which will 
constitute legal, bargained-for contractual consideration provided by Viavi to City. 

1.5 Viavi anticipates that Viavi will have entered into a purchase and/or 
other binding commitments for its manufacturing and headquarters location by the Effective 
Date or will enter into a purchase and/or other binding contractual commitments for its 
manufacturing and headquarters location within one (1) year after the Effective Date.  Viavi 
expects to invest $96,311,609 in connection with its manufacturing and headquarters location 
in City, including land, building, tenant improvements, machinery and equipment, information 
technology infrastructure, and purchases of furniture, fixtures, and equipment. Viavi expects 
to create and fill up to 233 new jobs in Chandler by January 1, 2025. 

1.6 City has found and determined that Viavi’s (i) capital investment at the 
Premises, together with (ii) Viavi’s creation of up to 233 new jobs in Chandler, will enhance 
the economic vitality and quality of life of Chandler by, among other things, enhancing 
employment opportunities and increasing tax revenues. 

1.7 City and Viavi are entering into this Agreement under 
A.R.S. § 9-500.05 to facilitate development within the City of Chandler.  

1.8 City, by Resolution No. 5458, adopted on April 8, 2021, has authorized 
the execution and performance of this Agreement and has otherwise taken all action required 
by law to enter into this Agreement and make it binding upon City. 

2. Agreements.  City and Viavi agree as follows: 

2.1 City will support the creation of a foreign trade zone applicable to the 
Property, including support for the reduction of certain personal property taxes applicable at 
the Property under Arizona state law. City will issue a City Council resolution and take other 
actions necessary to indicate this support. 

2.2 Viavi will not seek property tax reclassification under A.R.S. § 42-
12006 for existing real property in Chandler. 

2.3 On or before June 30, 2022, Viavi will officially move its headquarters 
to a location within the City of Chandler. Viavi will update its website to indicate the Chandler 
location of its headquarters, and Viavi will list Chandler, Arizona as its headquarters location 
in all United States Securities and Exchange Commission filings.  

2.4 Viavi will maintain its headquarters in Chandler until at least July 1, 
2027.  

2.5 Viavi agrees that it will make reasonable efforts to utilize hotel and 
lodging facilities within Chandler to the extent such facilities are compatible with Viavi’s 
needs, including banquets, conferences, training, hospitality, and similar events to further 



3 
 

support Chandler’s economy. City’s tourism staff shall assist Viavi in facilitating the 
provisions of this Section. 

3. Term.  The term of this Agreement shall begin on the Effective Date and shall 
continue until the earlier of July 1, 2027, unless terminated earlier. 

4. Notices.  Unless otherwise specifically provided herein, or unless written notice 
of a change of address has been previously given pursuant hereto, all notices, demands or other 
communication given hereunder shall be in writing and shall be deemed to have been duly 
delivered upon (i) personal delivery, (ii) delivery by a recognized overnight courier (e.g., 
FedEx, UPS) for next business day delivery, or (iii) as of the fifth (5th) business day after 
mailing by United States certified mail, postage prepaid, addressed as follows: 

To Viavi:  Viavi Solutions Inc. 
   7047 E Greenway Pkwy Suite 250 

 Scottsdale, Arizona 85254  
 
 

With a copy to: Viavi Solutions Inc. 
General Counsel 
Attn:  Kevin Siebert 
20250 Century Blvd, 5th Floor  
Germantown, MD 20874 
 

To City:  Economic Development Director  
City of Chandler 
Mail Stop 416 
P.O. Box 4008 
Chandler, AZ 85244-4008 
Phone:  (480) 782-3035 
 

With a copy to: Chandler City Attorney 
Mail Stop 602 
P.O. Box 4008 
Chandler, AZ 85244-4008 
Phone:  (480) 782-4640 

 
5. Remedies. 

5.1 In the event that either Party fails to perform any of its obligations under 
this Agreement and does not cure any such failure within thirty (30) days after Notice from the 
other Party, such Party shall have the right to pursue all legal and equitable remedies available 
to it at law or under this Agreement. Additionally, if Viavi does not maintain its headquarters 
within the City of Chandler during the Term of this Agreement, City may take such actions 
necessary to withdraw its support for the Property’s state tax benefits available in conjunction 
with the site’s foreign trade sub-zone.  



4 
 

6. Assignment. Viavi shall not assign any obligation in this Agreement other than to a 
subsidiary or affiliate of Viavi, without City’s express written consent, which shall not be 
unreasonably withheld, conditioned, or delayed provided, however, that no such express 
written consent shall be required in connection with any assignment in connection with a 
Change of Control of Viavi.  In order to be effective, any such assignment must contain an 
express written agreement and assumption by the assignee agreeing to be liable for the 
assigning Party’s obligations contained herein.  Any such assignment shall not relieve the 
assigning Party of its obligations in this Agreement except that if there is a Change of Control 
of Viavi, the requirements of maintaining headquarters in City shall terminate upon such 
change of control so long as the successor to Viavi shall comply with the other terms and 
conditions of this Agreement.   “Change of Control”  means (a) any transaction or series of 
related transactions as a result of which any person or group of persons within the meaning of 
Section 13(d)(3) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 becomes the beneficial owner, directly 
or indirectly, of 50% or more of the outstanding common stock (measured by either voting 
power or economic interests) of Viavi, (b) any sale or lease or exchange, transfer, license or 
disposition of a business, deposits or assets that constitute 50% or more of the consolidated 
assets, business, revenues, net income or assets of Viavi or (c) a merger, consolidation, 
recapitalization or reorganization of Viavi with or into a third party that results in the inability 
of the stockholders of Viavi prior to such transaction to designate or elect a majority of the 
board of directors (or its equivalent) of the resulting entity or its parent company.  

 
7. Additional Matters. 

7.1 This Agreement shall be governed by and construed under the laws of 
the State of Arizona.  This Agreement is subject to the provisions of A.R.S. § 38-511.  This 
Agreement shall be deemed made and entered into in Maricopa County, Arizona. 

7.2 The failure of any Party to exercise any right, power, or remedy given 
to it under this Agreement, or to insist upon strict compliance with it, shall not constitute a 
waiver of the terms and conditions of this Agreement with respect to any other or subsequent 
breach, nor a waiver by either Party of its rights at any time to require exact and strict 
compliance with all of the terms of this Agreement.  The rights or remedies under this 
Agreement are exclusive of any other rights or remedies which may be granted by law. 

7.3 This Agreement constitutes the entire Agreement between City and 
Viavi with respect to its subject matter, and all agreements, oral or written, entered into prior 
to this Agreement are revoked and superseded by this Agreement.  This Agreement may not 
be changed, modified, or amended, except in writing, signed by all Parties, and any attempt at 
oral modification of this Agreement shall be void and of no effect.  This Agreement may be 
executed in any number of counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, and all of 
which, when taken together, shall constitute one and the same instrument. 

7.4 It is not intended by this Agreement to, and nothing contained in this 
Agreement shall, create any partnership, joint venture or other arrangement between Viavi and 
City.  No term or provision of this Agreement is intended to, or shall, be for the benefit of any 



5 
 

person, firm, organization, or corporation not a Party hereto, and no such other person, firm, 
organization, or corporation shall have any right or cause of action hereunder. 

7.5  Each of the Parties hereto represents and warrants to the other that the 
individual executing this Agreement on behalf of their respective Parties is authorized and 
empowered to bind the Party on whose behalf such individual is signing, and that this 
Agreement shall be binding upon such Parties.  No later than ten (10) days after the Effective 
Date, City will record this Agreement in the Records of Maricopa County, Arizona at City’s 
sole cost and expense. 

 
 

[SIGNATURES FOLLOW ON NEXT PAGES] 



6 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Agreement through their 
representatives duly authorized to execute this Agreement and to bind their respective entities 
to the terms and obligations of same. 

 
ATTEST: CITY OF CHANDLER, an Arizona 

municipal corporation 
 
 
 
_________________________________  By______________________________ 
City Clerk           Mayor Kevin Hartke 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
_________________________________ 
City Attorney 
 
 
STATE OF ARIZONA ) 
    ) ss. 
County of Maricopa  ) 
 
 The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ____ day of _________, 
2021, by Kevin Hartke, Mayor of the City of Chandler, an Arizona municipal corporation. 
 
 
 
       _________________________________ 
       Notary Public 
 
[SEAL] 
 
  





Exhibit B 

Intergovernmental Agreement 



INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN 

THE CITY OF CHANDLER, ARIZONA 
AND 

THE CITY OF PHOENIX, ARIZONA 
 

 
This Intergovernmental Agreement (“Agreement”) is entered into this _____ day 

of __________, 2021 by and between the City of Chandler, Arizona, a municipal corporation 
(“Chandler”) and the City of Phoenix, Arizona, a municipal corporation (“Phoenix”). 

 
I. RECITALS:  
 
  A. Pursuant to A.R.S. §11-952, as amended, Chandler is empowered to enter 
into this intergovernmental agreement and has, by resolution, a copy of which is attached hereto 
as Exhibit A and incorporated herein by this reference, authorized the undersigned to execute 
this Agreement on behalf of Chandler.  

 
B. Pursuant to A.R.S. §11-952, as amended, Phoenix is empowered to enter 

into this intergovernmental agreement and has, by resolution, a copy of which is attached hereto 
as Exhibit B and incorporated herein by this reference, authorized the undersigned to execute this 
Agreement on behalf of Phoenix. 

 
C. Phoenix has received a Grant (Board Order 185, dated March 25, 1982) 

from the Foreign-Trade Zones Board (the “Board”) to establish FTZ No. 75, and the alternative 
site framework format for FTZ No. 75 was approved by the Board in a notice published on 
October 20, 2010 in 75 Fed. Reg. 64708. 

 
D. Chandler does not have a grant of authority to establish a new Foreign-

Trade Zone. 
 
E.  Concurrently with the approval of this Agreement, the Chandler City 

Council voted to approve a usage-driven site as part of FTZ No. 75 for Viavi Solutions Inc. 
(“Viavi”). 

 
F. Viavi is under contract to purchase certain real property within the City of 

Chandler located at 3455 South McQueen Road, Chandler, AZ 85286 and desires to have such 
real property designated as a usage-driven site (the “Zone Site”). The Zone Site is more 
specifically described in the Development Agreement referenced in Section 2.3 below. 

 
G. Chandler desires to assist Viavi in obtaining approval from the Board to 

establish, operate, and maintain a usage-driven site at the Zone Site. 
 
H. Phoenix is willing to submit an application to the Board on behalf of Viavi 

(the “Application”) for a minor boundary modification to establish, operate, and maintain a 



2 

usage-driven site at the Zone Site to demonstrate its interest in a cooperative regional effort to 
encourage the retention and expansion of business in the greater metropolitan area. 

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the promises and mutual agreements 

contained and described herein, the parties agree as follows:   
 

II. AGREEMENTS: 
   

1. PURPOSE 
 
1.1 The purpose of this Agreement is to memorialize Chandler’s and Phoenix’s 

agreement to work together to assist Viavi in its efforts to have the Zone Site designated as a 
usage-driven site and to assure Phoenix that the establishment, operation, and maintenance of a 
usage-driven site at the Zone Site, including any unsuccessful efforts made in respect thereto, 
shall be accomplished without any cost or liability whatsoever to Phoenix.   

 
2. CHANDLER RESPONSIBILITIES 
 
2.1 To facilitate the negotiation and execution of a Foreign-Trade Zone Operating 

Agreement (“Operating Agreement”) between the City of Phoenix and Viavi. 
 
2.2 To perform research, lobbying, or other support activities as required to expedite 

the Application process. 
 
2.3 To provide in a development agreement with Viavi (“Development Agreement”) 

that, unless previously agreed to by Chandler pursuant to the Development Agreement, Viavi 
shall not seek or obtain property tax classification under Arizona Revised Statutes § 42-12006(2) 
for the real property and improvements at the Zone Site. Nothing in this section prevents Viavi 
from seeking personal property tax classification under Arizona Revised Statutes § 42-12006(2) 
for all manufacturing equipment installed at the Zone Site.  

 
2.4 To notify Phoenix if Chandler desires that Phoenix enforce its right to terminate 

the Operating Agreement and seek revocation of Viavi’s usage-driven site, after notice and a 30-
day cure period (or longer period as is reasonable in the event that Viavi chooses to appeal the 
reclassification as provided for in the Development Agreement), if any one or more of the 
following occurs without prior approval of Chandler pursuant to a development agreement: 

 
a. Viavi, in breach of the Development Agreement and Operating 

Agreement, seeks or obtains property tax classification under A.R.S. § 42-12006(2) for the real 
property at the Zone Site; or  

 
b. Such reclassification is made regardless of the lack of a request by Viavi 

and Viavi refuses to either seek a revision to the classification or to provide for a corresponding 
payment to Chandler compensating for the reduction to tax revenue as agreed in the 
Development Agreement; or 

 



3 

c. Viavi otherwise materially breaches the Development Agreement. 
 

2.5 To notify Phoenix if Chandler desires that Phoenix enforce its right to seek revocation of 
Viavi’s personal property tax classification under Arizona Revised Statutes § 42-12006(2) for all 
manufacturing equipment or other personal property installed at the Zone Site if Viavi, after 
notice and a 30-day cure period (or longer period as is reasonable in the event that Viavi chooses 
to appeal the reclassification as provided for in the Development Agreement) fails to maintain its 
corporate headquarters in Chandler during the duration of the Development Agreement. 
Chandler will provide Phoenix with a letter stating its desire to rescind support along with a copy 
of the Development Agreement to be provided to the Maricopa County Assessor’s Office. 

 
2.6 To take all action requested by Phoenix related to the enforcement of the 

provisions referred to in Sections 2.4 and 2.5, above, and to indemnify, defend, and hold 
Phoenix, its departments, agents, officers, or employees harmless from and against any loss, 
expense, damage, or claim resulting from or arising out of the performance or enforcement of 
any condition in the Operating Agreement as required under Section 3.4, below.  

 
3. PHOENIX RESPONSIBILITIES 
 
3.1 To conduct its operations in good faith with Viavi. 
 
3.2 After filing the Application for the Viavi Zone Site, to enter into an Operating 

Agreement with Viavi for the operation of the Zone Site. 
 
3.3 To provide in the Operating Agreement that Viavi shall be responsible for all 

costs related to the Zone Site that are incurred by Phoenix and/or Chandler.  
 
3.4 To provide in the Operating Agreement that Phoenix may terminate the Operating 

Agreement and seek revocation of Viavi’s usage-driven site if Phoenix is advised by Chandler 
that Viavi has sought or obtained real property tax classification under A.R.S. §42-12006(2) for 
the Zone Site without prior approval of Chandler pursuant to a Development Agreement. 

 
3.5 To provide in the Operating Agreement that Phoenix may seek revocation of 

Viavi’s personal property tax classification under Arizona Revised Statutes § 42-12006(2) if 
Phoenix is advised by Chandler that Viavi has failed to maintain its corporate headquarters in 
Chandler. 

 
 
4. ADDITIONAL AGREEMENTS 
 
4.1 The Parties acknowledge that 15 C.F.R §400.49 provides for monitoring and 

reviews of foreign trade zone operations and activity.  Section 400.49(c) provides that the Board 
or the Commerce Department’s Assistant Secretary for Import Administration may restrict or 
prohibit zone activity that it finds is no longer in the public interest and, pursuant to 14 C.F.R. § 
400.61, the Board has the authority to revoke a grant of authority to operate a zone, for cause. 

 



4 

4.2  Chandler and Viavi have determined that if Viavi seeks or otherwise obtains real 
property tax classification under Arizona Revised Statutes § 42-12006(2) for the Zone Site, such 
action would be in violation of the Development Agreement between Viavi and Chandler and 
would be detrimental to the public interest. Nothing in this section prevents Viavi from seeking 
personal property tax classification under Arizona Revised Statutes § 42-12006(2) for all 
manufacturing equipment installed at the Zone Site. 

 
5. INDEMNIFICATION 

5.1 To the extent permitted by law, each party will indemnify and save the other party 
harmless, including any of the parties’ departments, agencies, officers, employees, elected 
officials or agents, from and against all loss, expense, damage, or claim of any nature whatsoever 
which is caused by any activity, condition, or event arising out of the performance or non-
performance by the indemnifying party of any of the provisions of this Agreement.   

 
5.2 Each party, in all instances, shall be indemnified against all liability, losses, and 

damages of any nature for or on account of any injuries or death of persons or damages to or 
destruction of property arising out of or in any way connected with the performance or non-
performance of this Agreement by the other party, except such injury or damage as shall have 
been occasioned by the negligence of that other party.  The damages incurred by the other party, 
their department, agencies, officers, employees, elected officers, or agents shall include in the 
event of any action, court costs, expenses for litigation, and reasonable attorneys’ fees. 

 
6. DURATION    
 
6.1 Term.  The term of this Agreement shall begin on the date executed and approved 

by both parties and shall remain in effect for the same term as the Operating Agreement, unless 
terminated sooner pursuant to the terms of this Agreement.   

 
7. GENERAL PROVISIONS 
 
7.1 Conflict of Interest.  This Agreement is subject to cancellation pursuant to the 

provisions of A.R.S. § 38-511. 
 
7.2 Immigration Law Compliance Warranty.  As required by A.R.S. § 41-4401, each 

party hereby warrants its compliance with all federal immigration laws and regulations that relate 
to its employees and A.R.S. § 23-214(A).  Each party further warrants that after hiring an 
employee, it verifies the employment eligibility of the employee through the E-Verify program.  
If either party uses any subcontractors in performance of the Agreement, subcontractors shall 
warrant their compliance with all federal immigration laws and regulations that relate to its 
employees and A.R.S. § 23-214(A), and subcontractors shall further warrant that after hiring an 
employee, such subcontractor verifies the employment eligibility of the employee through the E-
Verify program.  A breach of this warranty shall be deemed a material breach of the Agreement 
subject to penalties up to and including termination.  A party shall not be deemed in material 
breach if it and/or its subcontractors establish compliance with the employment verification 
provisions of Sections 274A and 274B of the federal Immigration and Nationality Act and the E-
Verify requirements contained in A.R.S. § 23-214(A).  Each party retains the legal right to 



5 

inspect the papers of the other party and/or its subcontractor engaged in performance of this 
Agreement to ensure that the other party and/or its subcontractor is complying with the warranty.   
Any inspection will be conducted after reasonable notice and at reasonable times.   If state law is 
amended, the parties may modify this paragraph consistent with state law.   

 
7.3 Notices.  All notices, demands and communications given or to be given, by 

either party to the other, shall be given in writing, by certified mail or email with confirmation of 
receipt, and shall be addressed to the parties at the addresses hereinafter set forth, or at such other 
address as the parties may by written notice hereafter designate.  All notices shall be deemed 
received upon actual receipt or three (3) business days after deposit in the United States mail, 
whichever date is earlier.  Notices shall be addressed as follows: 

 
Phoenix:  Director 
   Community and Economic Development Department 
   200 West Washington Street, 20th Floor 
   Phoenix, Arizona 85003-1611 
   
   and 
 
   City Clerk 
   City of Phoenix 
   200 West Washington Street, 15th Floor 
   Phoenix, Arizona 85003-1611 
 
Chandler:  City Manager 
   City of Chandler 

    175 South Arizona Avenue 
    Chandler, Arizona 85225 
 
    and 
 

   City Attorney 
   City of Chandler 

    175 South Arizona Avenue 
    Chandler, Arizona 85225 
 
 
 7.4 Construction.  Paragraph headings and captions appearing with this Agreement 
are for convenient reference only and in no respect define, limit or describe the scope or intent of 
this Agreement or the provisions of such sections.  
 
 7.5 Binding Effect.  All terms, provisions and conditions hereof shall be binding upon 
and inure to the benefit of all parties hereto and their respective heirs, personal representatives, 
successors and assigns. 
 



6 

 7.6 Severability.  In the event any term or provision of this Agreement is held to be 
invalid or unenforceable, the validity of the other provisions shall not be affected, and the 
Agreement shall be construed and enforced as if it did not contain the particular term or 
provision that is deemed to be invalid or unenforceable.   
 
 7.7 Governing Law.  This Agreement will be governed by the laws of the State of 
Arizona, both as to interpretation and performance.   
 
 7.8 Modification.  This Agreement may be modified only by mutual written 
agreement of the parties. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement on the date first 

written above.   
 
FOR CHANDLER:     FOR PHOENIX: 
       ED ZUERCHER, CITY MANAGER 
   
 
 
_____________________________   ______________________________ 
By: Kevin Hartke     By: Christine Mackay, Director 
       Mayor             Community & Economic Development 

 
Date:________________________   Date:__________________________ 
 
 
 
ATTEST:        ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________   ______________________________ 

        
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



7 

ATTORNEY DETERMINATION 
 

In accordance with the requirements of A.R.S. § 11-952(D), each of the 
undersigned attorneys acknowledge that (1) they have reviewed the above Agreement on behalf 
of their respective client(s) and (2) as to their respective client(s) only, each attorney has 
determined that this Agreement is in proper form and is within the powers and authority granted 
under the laws of the State of Arizona. 
     
 
 
_____________________________  ______________________________ 
Kelly Schwab      By: Deryck R. Lavelle          
City Attorney, City of Chandler   Assistant Chief Counsel, City of Phoenix   
  
 
Date: ______________________  Date: ____________________ 







ITEM  11 

City Council Memorandum      City Clerk's Office  Memo No. N/A
       

Date: April 8, 2021
To: Mayor  and Council
Thru: Joshua H. Wright, Acting City Manager

Debra Stapleton, Assistant City Manager 
Sandip Dholakia, Chief Information Officer

From:
Subject: Agreement No. IT8-920-3889, Amendment No. 3, for Annual Application Support Services

Proposed Motion:
Move City Council approve Agreement No. IT8-920-3889, Amendment No. 3, with Neudesic, LLC, for
annual application support services, in the amount of $123,000, for the period of May 1, 2021, through
April 30, 2022.

Background/Discussion:
The Capital Projects Division manages approximately $900 million in Capital Improvement Projects
(CIP).  In 2018, the division implemented a computerized project management system to leverage
project information for transparency, more efficient management and automated reporting.

Phase 1 consisted of developing the Core Portal, where all projects have high-level reports within a
system dashboard that displays the status of each project's life-cycle.  Phase 2 leveraged the contract
fee schedules for streamlined and automated payments to consultants and contractors.  Phase 3 and
Phase 4 are planned for the future and will allow automated data entry and creation of documents
including document sharing, team communication and integrated project calendars.  

Neudesic, LLC is the vendor that provides application support and maintenance for this system.

Evaluation:
On March 22, 2018, City Council approved an agreement with Neudesic, LLC, for annual application
support services, for a one-year period, with the option of up to three one-year extensions.  The
Contractor has agreed to extend for the final year at the same terms, conditions and pricing.

Staff recommends the final extension of this Agreement for the term of May 1, 2021, through April 30,
2022.

Fiscal Impact
Account No. Fund Name Program Name Dollar Amount CIP Funded Y/N
101.1200.5419 General Fund N/A $123,000 N



Attachments
Neudesic Agreement Amendment 3 







ITEM  12 

City Council Memorandum      City Clerk's Office  Memo No. N/A
       

Date: April 8, 2021
To: Mayor  and Council
Thru: Joshua H. Wright, Acting City Manager

Debra Stapleton, Assistant City Manager
Sandip Dholakia, Chief Information Officer

From:
Subject: Purchase of Microsoft Software Licenses

Proposed Motion:
Move City Council approve the purchase of Microsoft software licenses, from CDW-G, using the Omnia
Partners Contract No. 2018011-01 in an amount not to exceed $723,139.

Background/Discussion:
The Information Technology Department is seeking the renewal of the Enterprise Agreement with
Microsoft, which includes licensing for Citywide subscriptions for 365, SQL licensing for critical
application services, Biztalk licenses for application integrations, Windows 10 licensing
for desktop/laptop computers, Windows Server licensing for Infrastructure and Applications, and
Sharepoint licensing for departmental applications.

Evaluation:
Omnia Partners competitively solicited and awarded a contract for Information Technology Solutions
and Services to CDW-G.  The City has a current Intergovernmental Agreement with Omnia Partners
allowing for the cooperative use of their contracts.  

Staff recommends cooperative use of this contract because of the benefit of higher discounts due to the
combined large volume purchases.  The term of the Omnia Partner's contract is valid through February
23, 2023.

Fiscal Impact
Account No. Fund Name Program Name Dollar

Amount
CIP Funded
Y/N

101.1200.5419 General Fund N/A $28,645 N
101.1280.6316 General Fund N/A $538,336 N
401.1287.6316.0.6IT093 General Government

Capital Projects
User Productivity
Improvements

$57,625 Y

403.1290.5419 Technology Replacement N/A $52,263 N
101.2065.5419 General Fund N/A $10,726 N



101.1280.5419 General Fund N/A $35,544 N



ITEM  13 

City Council Memorandum      City Clerk's Office  Memo No. 21-046
       

Date: April 8, 2021
To: Mayor  and Council
Thru: Joshua H. Wright, Acting City Manager

Dawn Lang, Management Services Director
From: Erica Barba, Assistant City Clerk 
Subject: License Series 11, Hotel/Motel Liquor License application for Andrea Dahlman Lewkowitz, Agent,

Sonesta International Hotels Corporation, dba Sonesta Select Phoenix Chandler

Proposed Motion:
Move for recommendation to the State Department of Liquor Licenses and Control for approval of the
State Liquor Job No. 135943, a Series 11, Hotel/Motel Liquor License, for Andrea Dahlman Lewkowitz,
Agent, Sonesta International Hotels Corporation, dba Sonesta Select Phoenix Chandler, located at 920
N. 54th Street, and approval of the City of Chandler Series 11, Hotel/Motel Liquor License
No. 300649 L11.

Discussion:
This application for a liquor license was posted for hearing on April 8, 2021.

The Police Department reports no objections to the issuance of this license, and no written protests
pursuant to A.R.S. 4-201(B) have been received. With a Series 11, Hotel/Motel Liquor License, the
business may sell all alcoholic beverages for on-premise consumption only.

The property was previously known as Courtyard by Marriott Phoenix Chandler.

Attachments
A-Map 
B-Floor Plan 















ITEM  14 

City Council Memorandum      City Clerk's Office  Memo No. RE21-095
       

Date: April 8, 2021
To: Mayor  and Council
Thru: Joshua H. Wright, Acting City Manager

Debra Stapleton, Assistant City Manager
John Knudson, Public Works & Utilities Director
Andrew Goh, Capital Projects Manager

From: Erica Barba, Assistant City Clerk 
Subject: Final Adoption of Ordinance No. 4964 Authorizing the Sale of a Parcel of City-Owned Land at the

Southwest Corner of McQueen Road and Pecos Road to WNDG, LLC, an Arizona Limited Liability
Company

Proposed Motion:
Move City Council approve final adoption of Ordinance No. 4964 authorizing the sale of a parcel of
City-owned land at southwest corner of McQueen Road and Pecos Road to WNDG, LLC, an Arizona
Limited Liability Company.

Background:
WNDG, LLC, is developing a retail center at the southwest corner of McQueen and Pecos roads.
Consideration of the applicant's rezoning appears as a separate item on this City Council agenda.
There is a small City-owned parcel at this location that was previously used as a wastewater lift station.
WNDG, LLC, has offered to pay the City five hundred dollars ($500.00) for the parcel so that it can be
added into their development. This amount is a typical value the City pays for remnant parcels when
acquiring portions within existing roadways. This parcel is an uneconomic remnant of little value and
must be maintained by the City at the expense of its citizens. WNDG, LLC, will landscape the parcel
and maintain it in the future.                                                                   

Staff has reviewed and approved the legal description and recommends City Council approve the sale
of the property to WNDG, LLC.

This Ordinance was introduced and tentatively adopted on March 25, 2021.

Attachments
Location Map 
Ordinance No. 4964 



ELLIOT RD

WARNER RD

RAY RD

CHANDLER BL

PECOS RD

GERMANN RD

QUEEN CREEK RD

OCOTILLO RD

CHANDLER HEIGHTS RD

RIGGS RD

HUNT HWVAL VISTA DR

LINDSAY RD

GILBERT RD

COOPER RD

MCQUEEN RD

ARIZONA AV

ALMA SCHOOL RD

DOBSON RD

PRICE RD

MCCLINTOCK DR

RURAL RD

KYRENE RD

56TH ST

SALE OF A PAR CEL OF CITY OWNED LAND AT
THE SOUTHWEST COR NER  OF MCQUEEN R OAD
AND PECOS R OAD, ASSESSOR ’S PAR CEL NUMBER
303-28-252D, TO WNDG, L.L.C., IN CONSIDER ATION

FOR  THE PAYMENT OF FIVE HUNDR ED ($500.00) DOLLAR S

°
NTS

PECOS R D

MC
QU
EE
N 
RD

PARCEL

MEMO NO. R E21-095
OR DINANCE 4964

F:\ENGINEER\GENSERV\_ArcMap_Shared\Map Requests\Real Estate\RE21-095 ORDINANCE 4964\RE21-095 ORDINANCE 4964.mxd 2/5/2021 RANDYE





















ITEM  15 

City Council Memorandum      City Clerk's Office  Memo No. CP21-106
       

Date: April 8, 2021
To: Mayor  and Council
Thru: Joshua H. Wright, Acting City Manager

Debra Stapleton, Assistant City Manager
John Knudson, Public Works and Utilities Director
Andrew Goh, Capital Projects Manager

From:
Subject: Project Agreement No. WW2003.401, with Garney Companies, Inc., Pursuant to Job Order Contract

No. JOC1914.401, for the Airport Water Reclamation Facility Headworks Drain Piping

Proposed Motion:
Move City Council award Project Agreement No. WW2003.401 to Garney Companies, Inc., Pursuant to
Job Order Contract No. JOC1914.401, for the Airport Water Reclamation Facility Headworks Drain
Piping, in an amount not to exceed $391,070.

Background/Discussion:
The Airport Water Reclamation Facility (AWRF), located at 905 E. Queen Creek Road, has been in
operation since 1997. As wastewater enters the headworks building, it passes through filter screens to
remove large debris utilizing a network of concrete channels. These channels are designed to be
periodically drained to fully access the filter screens for maintenance and repair. However, the valves
and piping associated with this drain system are in poor condition, and City staff is limited in their
maintenance activities on the filter screens.

The project scope of work consists of removal and replacement of valves, piping, and appurtenances
associated with the channel drainage system in the AWRF headworks building. The work will be
coordinated with AWRF staff to minimize disruption to the treatment process. The contract completion
time is 180 calendar days following Notice to Proceed.

A related Professional Services Agreement with Brown and Caldwell, Inc., for the Airport Water
Reclamation Facility Headworks Drain Piping Construction Management Services, is also scheduled for
this City Council meeting.

Evaluation:
The selection process was conducted in accordance with City policy and procedure and State law. The
costs proposed for this project have been evaluated by staff and determined to be reasonable. 

Fiscal Impact
Account No. Fund Name Program Name Dollar

Amount
CIP Funded
Y/N



611.3910.6817.6WW621 Wastewater Bonds Water Reclamation Facility
Imprvmnt

$301,000 Y

615.3910.6814.6WW621 Wastewater
Operating

Water Reclamation Facility
Imprvmnt

$90,070 Y

Attachments
Location Map 
Agreement 



ELLIOT RD

WARNER RD

RAY RD

CHANDLER BL

PECOS RD

GERMANN RD

QUEEN CREEK RD

OCOTILLO RD

CHANDLER HEIGHTS RD

RIGGS RD

HUNT HWVAL VISTA DR

LINDSAY RD

GILBERT RD

COOPER RD

MCQUEEN RD

ARIZONA AV

ALMA SCHOOL RD

DOBSON RD

PRICE RD

MCCLINTOCK DR

RURAL RD

KYRENE RD

56TH ST

AWRF HEADWORKS DRAIN PIPING
PROJECT NO. WW2003.401

°
NTS

MC
QU

EE
N R

D

QUEEN CREEK RD

APPLEBY RD

JADE DR

AIR
PO

RT
 BL

CAROB PLCAROB DR

LOCUST DR

INDIGO DR

DE
LA

WA
RE

 ST

JES
SE

 ST

SE
NA

TE
 PL

SP
RIN

GS
 DR

WI
ND

ST
RE

AM
 PL

CO
LO

RA
DO

 ST

APPLEBY RD

LOCUST DR

SP
RIN

GS
 DR

JADE DR

PROJECT SITE

MEMO NO. CP21-106

F:\ENGINEER\GENSERV\_ArcMap_Shared\Map Requests\Capital Projects\CP21-106 AWRF HEADWORKS DRAIN PIPING\CP21-106.mxd 3/1/2021 MARICELAH



City of Chandler Job Order Project Agreement A-1 
Public Works & Utilities Department, Capital Projects Division  
Project Name: AIRPORT WATER RECLAMATION FACILITY HEADWORKS DRAIN PIPING 
Project No.: WW2003.401 
Rev. 9/18/2020 

 
 

CITY OF CHANDLER 
JOB ORDER PROJECT AGREEMENT  

 
Project Name: AIRPORT WATER RECLAMATION FACILITY HEADWORKS DRAIN PIPING 

Project No. WW2003.401 
 
This JOB ORDER PROJECT AGREEMENT (”Job Order”) is made this ________ day of _________ 2021 (“Effective 
Date”), by and between the City of Chandler, an Arizona municipal corporation, (“City”) and Garney 
Companies, Inc., a Missouri corporation, (“JOC Contractor”) and is entered into pursuant to Job Order 
Master Agreement No. JOC1914.401 (“JOC Master Agreement”). City and JOC Contractor may be referred to 
individually as “Party” or collectively as “Parties”). 
 
City and JOC Contractor, in consideration of the mutual covenants herein set forth, agree as follows:   

 
RECITALS 

 
A. On or about December 17, 2019, the Parties entered into the JOC Master Agreement, which terms and 
conditions are made a part of and incorporated into this Job Order Project Agreement by this reference. 
 
B. City proposes to engage JOC Contractor to provide headworks drain piping at the Airport Water 
Reclamation Facility as more fully described in Exhibit "A", which is attached to and made a part of this 
Job Order by this reference. 
 
C. JOC Contractor is ready, willing, and able to provide the services described in Exhibit “A” for the 
compensation and fees set forth and as described in Exhibit ”B”, which is attached to and made a part of 
this Agreement by this reference. 
 
ARTICLE 1.  DESCRIPTION OF WORK 
 
The Parties enter into this Job Order Project Agreement for the AIRPORT WATER RECLAMATION 
FACILITY HEADWORKS DRAIN PIPING, Project Number WW2003.401.  The scope of work consists of 
providing headworks drain piping at the Airport Water Reclamation Facility, all as more particularly set 
forth in Exhibit “A” attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference. 
 
The JOC Contractor will not accept any change of scope, or change in contract provisions, unless issued in 
writing, as a contract amendment or change order and signed by the authorized signatories for each 
party. 
 
Performance and Payment Bonds, as set forth in Exhibit “C” and Exhibit “D” respectively attached hereto 
and incorporated herein by reference, will be due prior to execution of each Job Order Project Agreement 
in the full amount of each Job Order. 



City of Chandler Job Order Project Agreement A-1
Public Works & Utilities Department, Capital Projects Division  
Project Name: AIRPORT WATER RECLAMATION FACILITY HEADWORKS DRAIN PIPING 
Project No.: WW2003.401 
Rev. 9/18/2020 

At project completion, JOC Contractor must complete Contractor's Affidavit Regarding Settlement of 
Claims and Certificate of Completion, as set forth in Exhibit “E” and Exhibit “F” respectively attached 
hereto and incorporated herein by reference. 

ARTICLE 2.  PROJECT PRICE 

City will pay JOC Contractor for completion of the Work in accordance with the JOC Master Agreement a 
fee not to exceed the Guaranteed Maximum Price of $391,070 Dollars determined and payable as set 
forth in JOC Master Agreement and Exhibit “B” attached hereto and made a part hereof by reference.  

ARTICLE 3.  CONTRACT TIME & SCHEDULE 

JOC Contractor agrees to complete all Construction within 180 calendar days from the Notice to Proceed 
(NTP) Date.  

ARTICLE 4.  PARTICIPANTS 

CITY: Construction Project Manager:  Paul Ahlas 
Phone: 480-782-3328
Email: paul.ahlas@chandleraz.gov 

JOC CONTRACTOR: Garney Companies, Inc. 
4435 E. Holmes Ave., Ste. 102 
Mesa, AZ  85206 
JOC Contractor Representative:  Shane O’Brien 

Phone: 720-375-0988
Email: sobrien@garney.com 

SIGNATURE PAGE TO FOLLOW 



Joel Heimbuck

Director of Operations

Assistant Secretary

3/10/2021



City of Chandler Job Order Project Agreement A-1
Public Works & Utilities Department, Capital Projects Division  
Project Name: AIRPORT WATER RECLAMATION FACILITY HEADWORKS DRAIN PIPING 
Project No.: WW2003.401 
Rev. 9/18/2020 

EXHIBIT A 
SCOPE OF WORK 



 4435 E. Holmes Ave, Suite 102, Mesa AZ 85206 
 Phone: 602.470.0001 
 Fax: 602.470.0025 
 www.garney.com 

 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 

Exhibit A 

 

Scope 
JOC WW2003.401 – Airport WRF Headworks Drain 

 

 

 

1. JOC must perform the following project tasks per Brown and Caldwell plans and specs dated December 

22, 2020 and as modified below:  

a. Mobilize to site 

b. Excavate and Backfill new drain piping, tie-in into existing lift station and restore landscaping to 

existing condition. 

i. Proposal assumes that routing to be modified in the field based on existing 

pipe/supports impeding route. Garney to maintain adequate fall as necessary. 

ii. Proposal assumes that connecting drain lines can be offline during installation/tie-in and 

no temporary bypass pumping is included. 

iii. Proposal assumes use of ½ Sack CLSM in lieu of native backfill material. 

iv. Proposal assumes that existing drain line to be abandoned in place in lieu of removal. 

c. Investigate condition of existing pipe penetrations 

d. Temporary installation of Owner supplied stop logs and additional temporary bulkheads, 

nuisance pumping and cleaning of existing channel per the MOPO noted in the documents. 

i. Temporary bypass pumping of the plant influent is not included nor required. 

ii. OSHA safety standards require H2S to be at 5 PPM which is lower than current readings. 

Proposal includes standard push/pull fan system in order to obtain/maintain safe 

working levels. If standard fan system is not adequate to obtain/maintain safe working 

levels, Garney assumes that additional equipment and delays are to be paid by Owner’s 

Allowance. 

e. Demo and dispose of existing mud valves, pipe penetration, flanges, and appurtenances. 

i. Proposal assumes use of owner supplied stop logs to isolate headworks channels as 

needed. 

f. Demo/dispose existing exposed drain piping and install new exposed Drain Piping, mud valves, 

supports and penetrations as shown on the drawings 

i. Proposal includes the use/acceptance of Victaulic fittings and couplings in lieu of flange 

fittings. Grooved ends on straight pipe to be completed in the field. 

ii. Proposal includes painting the exterior pipe as needed. 

iii. Proposal includes use of Armorlok PVC liner boots as submitted by Sonco as the Ameron 

PVC T-Lock is no longer available. 

g. Install new SST drip tray and supports, 2” PVC drain piping, modify electrical Unistrut as 

necessary and wall coating 

h. Test Pipe as necessary  

2. Allowances included in this Proposal: City Allowance - $45,000 

3. Schedule is based on 3 months for procurement/delivery of material and 2 months for construction 

4. Specifically excluded from this proposal are: Building Permits, Engineering (including professional 

engineered design of pipe system and supports), remediation of contamination and hazardous material 

handling. 



EXHIBIT B 
FEE SCHEDULE 

City of Chandler Job Order Project Agreement B-1
Public Works & Utilities Department, Capital Projects Division  
Project Name: AIRPORT WATER RECLAMATION FACILITY HEADWORKS DRAIN PIPING 
Project No.: WW2003.401 
Rev. 9/18/2020 



4435 E. Holmes Ave, Suite 102, Mesa AZ 85206

Phone: 602.470.0001

Fax: 602.470.0025

www.garney.com

WW2003.401 AIRPORT WATER RECLAMATION FACILITY HEADWORKS DRAIN

Negotiated Prices

56,338$  

SUBTOTAL (NEGOTIATED PRICES): 56,338$  

Unit Prices

224,099$  

SUBTOTAL (NEGOTIATED PRICES): 224,099$  

0.08 22,435$  

SUBTOTAL (NEGOTIATED PRICES + OVERHEAD AND PROFIT): 302,872$  

Sales Tax Percentage (Current Tax Rate) 5.07% 15,356$  

General Liability Insurance Percentage (Actual Cost per Job Order) 1.35% 4,089$  

Builder's Risk Insurance Percentage (Actual Cost per Job Order) 0.343% 1,039$  

Payment Bond (Actual Cost per Job Order) 7.5% 22,715$  

Performance Bond (Actual Cost per Job Order) included -$  

SUBTOTAL (INSURANCE, BONDS, & TAXES): 43,199$  

SUBTOTAL (NEGOTIATED PRICES + OVERHEAD AND PROFIT + INSURANCE, BONDS, & TAXES): 346,070$  

City's Allowance 45,000$  

TOTAL JOB ORDER: 391,070$  

Overhead and Profit (Coefficient per Job Order Master Agreement)

Insurance, Bonds, & Taxes

Per the Job Order Master Agreement - This Fee Table includes all fees, costs, insurance and bond premiums, allowances, 

construction contingency, and taxes of any type necessary to fully, propertly and timely perform and construct the Work.  Also per 

the Job Order Master Agreement - For any portion of the Work which, either through this Contract, Change Order or otherwise, is 

performed and paid for on a cost, or time and materials basis, the costs may be reimbursed to JOC Contractor and chargeable 

against the Contract Price will be determined as set forth in MAG 109.5.

Unit Price (Per Unit Price Attachment)

EXHIBIT "B-1"

Job Order Cost Proposal

Summary Sheet

General Conditions



4435 E. Holmes Ave, Suite 102, Mesa AZ 85206

Phone: 602.470.0001

Fax: 602.470.0025

www.garney.com

UNIT PRICE ATTACHMENT

No. Description
Est. Qty.

Unit
Extended Price

1 Mobilization 1 LS  $                      7,921 

2 Piping Excavation and Backfill 1 LS  $                    28,407 

3 Landscaping/Gravel Replacement 1 LS  $                      3,695 

4
Investigate Existing Condition of Pipe Penetrations

1 LS  $                         557 

5
Demolish Drain Piping, Fittings, Couplings, Pipe 

Supports, and Appurtenances.

Provide Disposal of Demolished Materials.

1 LS  $                    13,246 

6
Demolish Mud Valves, Pipe Penetrations, Flanges, 

and Appurtenances. Provide Disposal of 

Demolished Materials

1 LS  $                    13,723 

7
Purchase and Install Pipe Penetrations in Concrete 

Floor
1 LS  $                    11,302 

8
Purchase and Install Mud Valves, Pipe Boots, and 

Appurtenances
1 LS  $                    23,569 

9
Purchase and Install Exposed Pipe, Fittings 

Couplings, Flanges, and Appurtenances
1 LS  $                    90,464 

10
Purchase and Install Buried Pipe, Fittings 

Couplings, Flanges, and Appurtenances
1 LS  $                    14,505 

11
Purchase and Install Pipe Hangers/ Supports

1 LS  $                      5,316 

12
Purchase and Install Drip Tray and Appurtenances

1 LS  $                      5,039 

13 Testing 1 LS  $                      6,354 

 $             5,039 

 $             6,354 

BASE BID (Items 1- 13 inclusive)                                                   $                                224,099 

(In Numbers)

 $            13,723 

 $            11,302 

 $            23,569 

 $            90,464 

 $            14,505 

 $             5,316 

Unit Price

 $             7,921 

 $            28,407 

 $             3,695 

 $                557 

 $            13,246 



 
EXHIBIT C 

 

City of Chandler Job Order Project Agreement C-1 
Public Works & Utilities Department, Capital Projects Division  
Project Name: AIRPORT WATER RECLAMATION FACILITY HEADWORKS DRAIN PIPING 
Project No.: WW2003.401 
Rev. 9/18/2020 

PERFORMANCE BOND 
ARIZONA STATUTORY PERFORMANCE BOND 

PURSUANT TO TITLES 28, 34, AND 41, ARIZONA REVISED STATUTES 
(Penalty of this bond must be 100% of the Contract amount) 

 
KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS THAT:___________________________________________________ 
(hereinafter "Principal"), and __________________________________________________________ (hereinafter "Surety"), a 
corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of ______________ with its principal office in the City of 
_____________________________, holding a certificate of authority to transact surety business in Arizona issued by the 
Director of Insurance pursuant to Title 20, Chapter 2, Article 1, as Surety, are held and firmly bound unto 
__________________________(hereinafter "Obligee") in the amount of ________________________________________________ 
(Dollars) ($___________), for the payment whereof, Principal and Surety bind themselves, and their heirs, 
administrators, executors, successors and assigns, jointly and severally, firmly by these presents. 
 

WHEREAS, the Principal has entered into a certain written contract with the Obligee, dated  
 
the ____________ day of _______________________, 20___ for construction of AIRPORT WATER RECLAMATION FACILITY 
HEADWORKS DRAIN PIPING, WW2003.401 which contract is hereby referred to and made a part hereof as fully and 
to the same extent as if copies at length herein. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CONDITION OF THIS OBLIGATION IS SUCH, that if the Principal faithfully performs and 
fulfills all the undertakings, covenants, terms, conditions and agreements of the contract during the original term of 
the contract and any extension of the contract, with or without notice of the Surety, and during the life of any 
guaranty required under the contract, and also performs and fulfills all the undertakings, covenants, terms, 
conditions, and agreements of all duly authorized modifications of the contract that may hereafter be made, notice of 
which modifications to the Surety being hereby waived, the above obligation is void.  Otherwise it remains in full force 
and effect. 
 

PROVIDED, HOWEVER that this bond is executed pursuant to the provisions of Title 34, Chapter 2, Article 2, 
Arizona Revised Statutes, and all liabilities on this bond will be determined in accordance with the provisions of Title 
34, Chapter 2, Article 2, Arizona Revised Statutes, to the same extent as if it were copied at length in this Contract. 
 

The prevailing party in a suit on this bond may recover as part of the judgment reasonable attorney fees that 
may be fixed by a judge of the court. 
 

Witness our hands this ________________ day of ____________________, 20__. 
  

 
 
 
____________________________________ 
PRINCIPAL          SEAL 

___________________________________ 
              AGENT OF RECORD 

  

 
By _________________________________ 
 
 
____________________________________ 
SURETY   SEAL 

 
___________________________________ 
                AGENT ADDRESS 
 

 

  
 

 



 
EXHIBIT D 

 

City of Chandler Job Order Project Agreement D-1 
Public Works & Utilities Department, Capital Projects Division  
Project Name: AIRPORT WATER RECLAMATION FACILITY HEADWORKS DRAIN PIPING 
Project No.: WW2003.401 
Rev. 9/18/2020 

PAYMENT BOND 
ARIZONA STATUTORY PAYMENT BOND 

PURSUANT TO TITLES 28, 34, AND 41, OF THE ARIZONA REVISED STATUTES 
(Penalty of this Bond must be 100% of the Contract amount) 

 
KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS THAT:________________________________________________  
 
(hereinafter "Principal"), as Principal, and _________________________________________(hereinafter "Surety"), a corporation 
organized and existing under the laws of the State of __________________   with its principal office in the City of 
__________________, holding a certificate of authority to transact surety business in Arizona issued by the Director of the 
Department of Insurance pursuant to Title 20, Chapter 2, Article 1, as Surety, are held and firmly bound unto 
________________________  (hereinafter "Obligee") in the amount of ________________________________________________ 
(Dollars) ($___________), for the payment whereof, the Principal and Surety bind themselves, and their heirs, 
administrators, executors, successors and assigns, jointly and severally, firmly by these presents. 
 
WHEREAS, the Principal has entered into a certain written contract with the Obligee, dated the _________ day of 
_______________________, 20___ for construction of AIRPORT WATER RECLAMATION FACILITY HEADWORKS DRAIN 
PIPING, WW2003.401 which contract is hereby referred to and made a part hereof as fully and to the same extent as 
if copied at length herein. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CONDITION OF THIS OBLIGATION IS SUCH, that if the Principal promptly pays all 
moneys due to all persons supplying labor or materials to the Principal or the Principal's subcontractors in the 
prosecution of the work provided for in said contract, this obligation is void. Otherwise it remains in full force and 
effect. 
 

PROVIDED, HOWEVER that this bond is executed pursuant to the provisions of Title 34, Chapter 2, Article 2 
Arizona Revised Statutes, and all liabilities on this bond will be determined in accordance with the provisions, 
conditions and limitations of Title 34, Chapter 2, Article 2, Arizona Revised Statutes, to the same extent as if it were 
copied at length in this Contract. 
 

The prevailing party in a suit on this bond may recover as part of the judgment reasonable attorney fees that 
may be fixed by a judge of the court. 
 

Witness our hands this ________________ day of ____________________, 20__. 
   

 
____________________________________ 
PRINCIPAL          SEAL 

___________________________________ 
                  AGENT OF RECORD 

  
 
By _________________________________ 
 
 
____________________________________ 
SURETY   SEAL 

 
___________________________________ 
                   AGENT ADDRESS 

  
 

 



 
EXHIBIT E 

 

City of Chandler Job Order Project Agreement E-1 
Public Works & Utilities Department, Capital Projects Division  
Project Name: AIRPORT WATER RECLAMATION FACILITY HEADWORKS DRAIN PIPING 
Project No.: WW2003.401 
Rev. 9/18/2020 

CONTRACTOR'S AFFIDAVIT REGARDING SETTLEMENT OF CLAIMS 
 

________________________, Arizona 
 

Date ____________________________ 
Project Name: AIRPORT WATER RECLAMATION FACILITY HEADWORKS DRAIN PIPING 
Project No.:  WW2003.401 

To the City of Chandler, Arizona 

Gentlemen: 

This is to certify that all lawful claims for materials, rental of equipment and labor used in connection with 
the construction of the above project, whether by subcontractor or claimant in person, have been duly 
discharged. 
 
The undersigned, for the consideration of $________________________, as set out in the final pay estimate, as 
full and complete payment under the terms of the contract, hereby waives and relinquishes any and all 
further claims or right of lien under, in connection with, or as a result of the above described project.  The 
undersigned further agrees to indemnify and save harmless the City of Chandler against any and all liens, 
claims or liens, suits, actions, damages, charges and expenses whatsoever, which said City may suffer 
arising out of the failure of the undersigned to pay for all labor performances and materials furnished for 
the performance of said installation. 
 
Signed and dated at ________________, this _________ day of _______________ 20_____. 
 
 

__________________________________ 
                       CONTRACTOR 

 
By _______________________________ 

STATE OF ARIZONA  ) 
) SS 

COUNTY OF MARICOPA ) 
 
The foregoing instrument was subscribed and sworn to before me this __________ day of __________________ 
20 _________. 
 

___________________________________ 
                              Notary Public 
 

                                                                         
 ___________________________________ 

                              My Commission Expires



 
EXHIBIT F 

 

City of Chandler Job Order Project Agreement F-1 
Public Works & Utilities Department, Capital Projects Division  
Project Name: AIRPORT WATER RECLAMATION FACILITY HEADWORKS DRAIN PIPING 
Project No.: WW2003.401 
Rev. 9/18/2020 
 

CERTIFICATE OF COMPLETION 
 
Project: AIRPORT WATER RECLAMATION FACILITY HEADWORKS DRAIN PIPING   
Project No.: WW2003.401 
 
 (TO BE COMPLETED BY CONTRACTOR) 
 
I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT ALL GOODS AND/OR SERVICES REQUIRED BY CITY OF CHANDLER PROJECT NO. 
WW2003.401 HAVE BEEN DELIVERED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE CONTRACT DOCUMENTS AND BID 
SPECIFICATIONS AND ALL ACTIVITIES REQUIRED BY THE CONTRACTOR UNDER THE CONTRACT HAVE BEEN 
COMPLETED AS OF ____________________________. 
                         (Date) 
FIRM NAME: ________________________________ 
 
PRINCIPAL: ________________________________ 

         (Name) 
 

________________________________ 
      (Signature) 

 
________________________________ DATE: ___________________ 

          (Title) 
 
CERTIFIED BY ENGINEER/CONSULTANT (IF APPLICABLE): 
 
_________________________________  DATE: ____________________ 

      (Signature) 
 
_________________________________  

        (Firm Name) 
  
PROJECT ACCEPTED BY USER DEPARTMENT 
 
_________________________________  DATE: ____________________ 

         (Signature) 
 
_________________________________  

          (Dept. /Div.) 
_______________ Date of Final Walk-Through 
 
_______________ Date As-Built Received 
 
_______________ City As-Built Number 

 
 
 
 



ITEM  16 

City Council Memorandum      City Clerk's Office  Memo No. CP21-107
       

Date: April 8, 2021
To: Mayor  and Council
Thru: Joshua H. Wright, Acting City Manager

Debra Stapleton, Assistant City Manager
John Knudson, Public Works and Utilities Director
Andrew Goh, Capital Projects Manager

From:
Subject: Professional Services Agreement No. WW2003.451, with Brown and Caldwell, Inc., for the Airport

Water Reclamation Facility Headworks Drain Piping Construction Management Services

Proposed Motion:
Move City Council award Professional Services Agreement No. WW2003.451, to Brown and Caldwell,
Inc., for the Airport Water Reclamation Facility Headworks Drain Piping Construction Management
Services, in an amount not to exceed $55,050.

Background/Discussion:
The Airport Water Reclamation Facility (AWRF), located at 905 E. Queen Creek Road, has been in
operation since 1997. As wastewater enters the headworks building, it passes through filter screens to
remove large debris utilizing a network of concrete channels. These channels are designed to be
periodically drained to fully access the filter screens for maintenance and repair. However, the valves
and piping associated with this drain system are in poor condition, and City staff is limited in their
maintenance activities on the filter screens.

The project scope of work consists of contractor oversight, construction administration and inspection,
AWRF staff coordination, schedule review, construction meetings, shop drawings and submittals,
preparation of final as-built drawings, and project close-out. The contract completion time is 210
calendar days following Notice to Proceed.

A related Construction Contract with Garney Companies, Inc., for the Airport Water Reclamation
Facility Headworks Drain Piping, is also scheduled for this City Council meeting.

Evaluation:
The selection process was conducted in accordance with City policy and procedure and State law. This
project is being performed under the On-Call Consultant Pre-Qualified List for Water and Wastewater
Services. Staff recommends approval of this agreement with Brown and Caldwell, Inc., based on
qualifications, relevant firm experience, team experience, project understanding, and project approach. 

Fiscal Impact
Account No. Fund Name Program Name Dollar CIP Funded



Account No. Fund Name Program Name Dollar
Amount

CIP Funded
Y/N

615.3910.6814.6WW621 Wastewater
Operating

Water Reclamation Facility
Imprvmnt

$55,050 Y

Attachments
Location Map 
Agreement 



ELLIOT RD

WARNER RD

RAY RD

CHANDLER BL

PECOS RD

GERMANN RD

QUEEN CREEK RD

OCOTILLO RD

CHANDLER HEIGHTS RD

RIGGS RD

HUNT HWVAL VISTA DR

LINDSAY RD

GILBERT RD

COOPER RD

MCQUEEN RD

ARIZONA AV

ALMA SCHOOL RD

DOBSON RD

PRICE RD

MCCLINTOCK DR

RURAL RD

KYRENE RD

56TH ST

AWRF HEADWORKS DRAIN PIPING
PROJECT NO. WW2003.451

°
NTS

MC
QU

EE
N R

D

QUEEN CREEK RD

APPLEBY RD

JADE DR

AIR
PO

RT
 BL

CAROB PLCAROB DR

LOCUST DR

INDIGO DR

DE
LA

WA
RE

 ST

JES
SE

 ST

SE
NA

TE
 PL

SP
RIN

GS
 DR

WI
ND

ST
RE

AM
 PL

CO
LO

RA
DO

 ST

APPLEBY RD

LOCUST DR

SP
RIN

GS
 DR

JADE DR

PROJECT SITE

MEMO NO. CP21-107

F:\ENGINEER\GENSERV\_ArcMap_Shared\Map Requests\Capital Projects\CP21-107 AWRF HEADWORKS DRAIN PIPING\CP21-107.mxd 3/1/2021 MARICELAH



  
City of Chandler Professional Services Agreement   Page 1  
Public Works & Utilities Department, Capital Projects Division  
Project Name: AIRPORT WATER RECLAMATION FACILITY HEADWORKS DRAIN PIPING 
Project No.: WW2003.451 
 Rev. 3/2/2021  
 

 
 

 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
Construction Management Services 

AIRPORT WATER RECLAMATION FACILITY HEADWORKS DRAIN PIPING 

Project No. WW2003.451 

Council Date: April 8, 2021   Item No.  
 

THIS AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made and entered into on the ______ day of_________________, 
2021 (“Effective Date”), by and between City of Chandler, an Arizona municipal corporation, 
("City''), and Brown and Caldwell, Inc., a California corporation, ("Consultant") (City and 
Consultant may individually be referred to as “Party” and collectively referred to as 
“Parties”). 
 

RECITALS 
 
A. City proposes to engage Consultant to provide Construction Management Services for 
AIRPORT WATER RECLAMATION FACILITY HEADWORKS DRAIN PIPING project as more fully 
described in Exhibit "A", which is attached to and made a part of this Agreement by this 
reference. 
 
B. Consultant is ready, willing, and able to provide the services described in Exhibit “A” for 
the compensation and fees set forth and as described in Exhibit ”B”, which is attached to 
and made a part of this Agreement by this reference. 
 
C. City desires to contract with Consultant to provide these services under the terms and 
conditions set forth in this Agreement. 
 

AGREEMENT 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and the mutual promises contained in this 
Agreement, City and Consultant agree as follows: 
 
SECTION I--CONSULTANT’S SERVICES 
 
Consultant must perform the services described in Exhibit “A” to City’s satisfaction within 
the terms and conditions of this Agreement and within the care and skill that a person who 
provides similar services in Chandler, Arizona exercises under similar conditions. All work or 
services furnished by Consultant under this Agreement must be performed in a skilled and 
workmanlike manner.  All fixtures, furnishings, and equipment furnished by Consultant as 
part of the work or services under this Agreement must be new, or the latest model, and of 



  
City of Chandler Professional Services Agreement   Page 2  
Public Works & Utilities Department, Capital Projects Division  
Project Name: AIRPORT WATER RECLAMATION FACILITY HEADWORKS DRAIN PIPING 
Project No.: WW2003.451 
 Rev. 3/2/2021  
 

the most suitable grade and quality for the intended purpose of the work or service.  
 
SECTION II--PERIOD OF SERVICE 
 
Consultant must perform the services described in Exhibit “A” for the term of this 
Agreement.  Unless amended in writing by the Parties, the Agreement term expires 210 
calendar days after the Notice to Proceed (NTP) Date. 
 
SECTION III--PAYMENT OF COMPENSATION AND FEES 
 
Unless amended in writing by the Parties, Consultant’s compensation and fees as more fully 
described in Exhibit “B” for performance of the services approved and accepted by City 
under this Agreement must not exceed $55,050 for the full term of the Agreement. 
Consultant may not increase any compensation or fees under this Agreement without the 
City’s prior written consent. Consultant must submit monthly requests for payment of 
services approved and accepted during the previous billing period and must include, as 
applicable, detailed invoices and receipts, a narrative description of the tasks accomplished 
during the billing period, a list of any deliverables submitted, and any subconsultant’s or 
supplier’s actual requests for payment plus similar narrative and listing of their work. 
Consultant must submit an Application and Certification for Payment Sheet with the 
monthly request for payment to: CapitalProjects.Payables@chandleraz.gov. Payment for 
those services negotiated as a lump sum will be made in accordance with the percentage of 
the work completed during the preceding billing period. Services negotiated as a not-to-
exceed fee will be paid in accordance with the work effort expended on the service during 
the preceding month. All requests for payment must be submitted to City for review and 
approval. City will make payment for approved and accepted services within 30 calendar 
days of City’s receipt of the request for payment. Consultant bears all responsibility and 
liability for any and all tax obligations that result from Consultant’s performance under this 
Agreement.  
 
SECTION IV--CITY'S OBLIGATIONS 
 
As part of Consultant’s services under this Agreement, City will provide furnished items, 
services, or obligations as detailed in Exhibit “D”. 
 
SECTION V--GENERAL CONDITIONS 
 
5.1 Notices. Unless otherwise provided herein, demands under this Agreement must be in 
writing and will be deemed to have been duly given and received either (a) on the date of 
service if personally served on the party to whom notice is to be given, or (b) on the third 
day after the date of the postmark of deposit by first class United States mail, registered or 
certified, postage prepaid and properly addressed as follows: 
 



City of Chandler Professional Services Agreement   Page 3 
Public Works & Utilities Department, Capital Projects Division  
Project Name: AIRPORT WATER RECLAMATION FACILITY HEADWORKS DRAIN PIPING 
Project No.: WW2003.451
 Rev. 3/2/2021 
 

To City: City of Chandler 
Public Works & Utilities Department 
Attn:  CIP City Engineer 
P.O. Box 4008, Mail Stop 407 
Chandler, AZ 85244-4008 
 With a Copy to: Construction Project Manager: Paul Ahlas
City of Chandler 
Public Works & Utilities Department P.O. 
Box 4008, Mail Stop 407 Chandler, AZ 
85244-4008 

To Consultant: Ms. Tracy Moraca 
Brown and Caldwell, Inc. 
2 N. Central Ave., Ste. 1600 
Phoenix, AZ  85004 

5.2 Records/Audit. Records of Consultant’s direct personnel payroll, reimbursable expenses 
pertaining to this Agreement and records of accounts between City and Consultant must be 
kept on the basis of generally accepted accounting principles and must be made available 
to City and its auditors for up to three years following City’s final acceptance of the services 
under this Agreement (this requirement is increased to five years if construction of this 
project is federally funded). City, its authorized representative, or any federal agency, 
reserves the right to audit Consultant’s records to verify the accuracy and appropriateness 
of all cost and pricing data, including data used to negotiate this Agreement and any 
amendments. City reserves the right to decrease the total amount of Agreement price or 
payments made under this Agreement or request reimbursement from Consultant 
following final contract payment on this Agreement if, upon audit of Consultant’s records, 
the audit discloses Consultant has provided false, misleading, or inaccurate cost and pricing 
data. Consultant will include a similar provision in all of its contracts with subconsultants 
who provide services under the Agreement to ensure that City, its authorized 
representative, or the appropriate federal agency, has access to the subconsultants’ records 
to verify the accuracy of all cost and pricing data. City reserves the right to decrease 
Contract price or payments made on this Agreement or request reimbursement from 
Consultant following final payment on this Agreement if the above provision is not included 
in subconsultant agreements, and one or more subconsultants refuse to allow City to audit 
their records to verify the accuracy and appropriateness of all cost and pricing data. If, 
following an audit of this Agreement, the audit discloses Consultant has provided false, 
misleading, or inaccurate cost and pricing data, and the cost discrepancies exceed 1% of the 
total Agreement billings, Consultant will be liable for reimbursement of the reasonable, 
actual cost of the audit. 

5.3 Alteration in Character of Work. Whenever an alteration in the character of work results 
in a substantial change in this Agreement, thereby materially increasing or decreasing the 
scope of services, cost of performance, or Project schedule, the work will be performed as 
directed by City. However, before any modified work is started, a written amendment must 
be approved and executed by City and Consultant. Such amendment must not be effective 
until approved by City. Additions to, modifications, or deletions from this Agreement as 



  
City of Chandler Professional Services Agreement   Page 4  
Public Works & Utilities Department, Capital Projects Division  
Project Name: AIRPORT WATER RECLAMATION FACILITY HEADWORKS DRAIN PIPING 
Project No.: WW2003.451 
 Rev. 3/2/2021  
 

provided herein may be made, and the compensation to be paid to Consultant may 
accordingly be adjusted by mutual agreement of the Parties. It is distinctly understood and 
agreed that no claim for extra services or materials furnished by Consultant will be allowed 
by City except as provided herein, nor must Consultant do any work or furnish any 
materials not covered by this Agreement unless such work is first authorized in writing. Any 
such work or materials furnished by Consultant without prior written authorization will be 
at Consultant’s own risk, cost, and expense, and Consultant hereby agrees that without 
written authorization Consultant will make no claim for compensation for such work or 
materials furnished. 
 
5.4 Termination. City and Consultant hereby agree to the full performance of the covenants 
contained herein, except that City reserves the right, at its discretion and without cause, to 
terminate or abandon any service provided for in this Agreement, or abandon any portion 
of the Project for which services have been performed by Consultant. In the event City 
abandons or suspends the services, or any part of the services as provided in this 
Agreement, City will notify Consultant in writing and immediately after receiving such notice, 
Consultant must discontinue advancing the work specified under this Agreement. Upon 
such termination, abandonment, or suspension, Consultant must deliver to City all 
drawings, plans, specifications, special provisions, estimates and other work entirely or 
partially completed, together with all unused materials supplied by City. Consultant must 
appraise the work Consultant has completed and submit Consultant’s appraisal to City for 
evaluation. City may inspect Consultant’s work to appraise the work completed. Consultant 
will receive compensation in full for services performed to the date of such termination. The 
fee will be paid in accordance with Section Ill of this Agreement, and as mutually agreed 
upon by Consultant and City. If there is no mutual agreement on payment, the final 
determination will be made in accordance with the "Disputes" provision in this Agreement. 
However, in no event may the fee exceed the fee set forth in Section Ill of this Agreement 
nor as amended in accordance with Section "Alteration in Character of Work." City will make 
the final payment within 60 days after Consultant has delivered the last of the partially 
completed items and the Parties agree on the final fee. If City is found to have improperly 
terminated the Agreement for cause or default, the termination will be converted to a 
termination for convenience in accordance with the provisions of this Agreement. 
 
5.5 Indemnification. To the extent permitted by law, the Consultant ("lndemnitor") must 
indemnify, save and hold harmless City and its officers, officials, agents and employees 
("lndemnitee") from any and all claims, actions, liabilities, damages, losses or expenses 
(including court costs, attorneys' fees and costs of claim processing, investigation and 
litigation) ("Claims") caused or alleged to be caused, in whole or in part, by the wrongful, 
negligent or willful acts, or errors or omissions of Consultant or any of its owners, officers, 
directors, agents, employees, or subconsultants in connection with this Agreement. This 
indemnity includes any claim or amount arising out of or recovered under workers' 
compensation law or on account of the failure of Consultant to conform to any federal, 
state or local law, statute, ordinance, rule, regulation or court decree. Consultant must 
indemnify lndemnitee from and against any and all Claims, except those arising solely from 
lndemnitee's own negligent or willful acts or omissions. Consultant is responsible for 
primary loss investigation, defense and judgment costs where this indemnification applies. 
In consideration of the award of this Agreement, Consultant agrees to waive all rights of 



  
City of Chandler Professional Services Agreement   Page 5  
Public Works & Utilities Department, Capital Projects Division  
Project Name: AIRPORT WATER RECLAMATION FACILITY HEADWORKS DRAIN PIPING 
Project No.: WW2003.451 
 Rev. 3/2/2021  
 

subrogation against lndemnitee for losses arising from or related to this Agreement. The 
obligations of Consultant under this provision survive the termination or expiration of this 
Agreement. 
 
5.6 Insurance Requirements. Consultant must procure insurance under the terms and 
conditions and for the amounts of coverage set forth in Exhibit “C” against claims that may 
arise from or relate to performance of the work under this Agreement by Consultant and its 
agents, representatives, employees, and subconsultants. Consultant and any subconsultant 
must maintain this insurance until all of their obligations have been discharged, including 
any warranty periods under this Agreement. These insurance requirements are minimum 
requirements for this Agreement and in no way limit the indemnity covenants contained in 
this Agreement. City in no way warrants that the minimum limits stated in Exhibit “C” are 
sufficient to protect Consultant from liabilities that might arise out of the performance of 
the work under this Agreement by Consultant, Consultant’s agents, representatives, 
employees, or subconsultants. Consultant is free to purchase such additional insurance as 
may be determined necessary. 
 
5.7 Cooperation and Further Documentation. Consultant agrees to provide City such other 
duly executed documents as may be reasonably requested by City to implement the intent 
of this Agreement. 
 
5.8 Successors and Assigns. City and Consultant each bind itself, its partners, successors, 
assigns, and legal representatives to the other party to this Agreement and to the partners, 
successors, assigns, and legal representatives of such other party in respect to all covenants 
of this Agreement. Neither City nor Consultant may assign, sublet, or transfer its interest in 
this Agreement without the written consent of the other party. In no event may any 
contractual relation be created between any third party and City. 
 
5.9 Disputes. In any dispute arising out of an interpretation of this Agreement or the duties 
required not disposed of by agreement between Consultant and City, the final 
determination at the administrative level will be made by City Engineer. 
 
5.10 Completeness and Accuracy of Consultant’s Work. Consultant must be responsible for 
the completeness and accuracy of Consultant’s services, data, and other work prepared or 
compiled under Consultant’s obligation under this Agreement and must correct, at 
Consultant’s expense, all willful or negligent errors, omissions, or acts that may be 
discovered.  Correction of errors disclosed and determined to exist during any construction of 
the project on architectural or engineering drawings and specifications must be accomplished by 
Consultant.  The cost of the design necessary to correct those errors attributable to Consultant 
and any damage incurred by City as a result of additional construction costs caused by such 
engineering or architectural errors will be chargeable to Consultant and will not be considered a 
cost of the Work.  The fact that City has accepted or approved Consultant’s work will in no 
way relieve Consultant of any of Consultant’s responsibilities. 
 
5.11 Reporting. Written monthly reports, along with updated work schedules, will be made by 
Consultant in the format prescribed by City.  These reports will be delivered to City per schedule.  
When requested by City, Consultant will attend Council meetings and provide finished 



  
City of Chandler Professional Services Agreement   Page 6  
Public Works & Utilities Department, Capital Projects Division  
Project Name: AIRPORT WATER RECLAMATION FACILITY HEADWORKS DRAIN PIPING 
Project No.: WW2003.451 
 Rev. 3/2/2021  
 

documents including correspondence for Council action, supporting charts, graphs, drawings 
and colored slides of same. 
 
5.12 Withholding Payment. City reserves the right to withhold funds from Consultant’s 
payments up to the amount equal to the claims City may have against Consultant until such 
time that a settlement on those claims has been reached. 
 
5.13 City's Right of Cancellation. The Parties acknowledge that this Agreement is subject to 
cancellation by City under the provisions of Section 38-511, Arizona Revised Statutes (A.R.S.). 
 
5.14 Independent Consultant. For this Agreement Consultant constitutes an independent 
contractor. Any provisions in this Agreement that may appear to give City the right to direct 
Consultant as to the details of accomplishing the work or to exercise a measure of control 
over the work means that Consultant must follow the wishes of City as to the results of the 
work only. These results must comply with all applicable laws and ordinances. 
 
5.15 Project Staffing. Prior to the start of any work under this Agreement, Consultant must 
submit to City detailed resumes of key personnel that will be involved in performing 
services prescribed in the Agreement. City hereby acknowledges its acceptance of such 
personnel to perform services under this Agreement. At any time hereafter that Consultant 
desires to change key personnel while performing under the Agreement, Consultant must 
submit the qualifications of the new personnel to City for prior approval. Key personnel 
include, but are not limited to, principals-in-charge, project manager, and project 
Consultant. Consultant will maintain an adequate and competent staff of qualified persons, 
as may be determined by City, throughout the performance of this Agreement to ensure 
acceptable and timely completion of the Scope of Services. If City objects, with reasonable 
cause, to any of Consultant’s staff, Consultant must take prompt corrective action 
acceptable to City and, if required, remove such personnel from the Project and replace 
with new personnel agreed to by City. 
 
5.16 Consultants or Subconsultants. Prior to beginning the work, Consultant must furnish 
City for approval the names of consultants or subconsultants to be used under this 
Agreement. Any subsequent changes are subject to City’s written prior approval. 
 
5.17 Force Majeure. If either party is delayed or prevented from the performance of any act 
required under this Agreement by reason of acts of God or other cause beyond the control 
and without fault of the Party (financial inability excepted), performance of that act may be 
excused, but only for the period of the delay, if the Party provides written notice to the 
other Party within ten days of such act. The time for performance of the act may be 
extended for a period equivalent to the period of delay from the date written notice is 
received by the other Party. 
 
5.18 Compliance with Federal Laws. Consultant understands and acknowledges the 
applicability of the Americans with Disabilities Act, the Immigration Reform and Control Act 
of 1986 and the Drug Free Workplace Act of 1989 to it. Consultant agrees to comply with 
these laws in performing this Agreement and to permit City to verify such compliance. 
 



  
City of Chandler Professional Services Agreement   Page 7  
Public Works & Utilities Department, Capital Projects Division  
Project Name: AIRPORT WATER RECLAMATION FACILITY HEADWORKS DRAIN PIPING 
Project No.: WW2003.451 
 Rev. 3/2/2021  
 

5.19 No Israel Boycott. By entering into this Agreement, Consultant certifies that Consultant 
is not currently engaged in, and agrees for the duration of the Agreement, not to engage in 
a boycott of Israel as defined by state statute. 
 
5.20 Legal Worker Requirements. A.R.S. § 41-4401 prohibits City from awarding a contract to 
any consultant who fails, or whose subconsultants fail, to comply with A.R.S. § 23-214(A). 
Therefore, Consultant agrees Consultant and each subconsultant it uses warrants their 
compliance with all federal immigration laws and regulations that relate to their employees 
and their compliance with § 23-214, subsection A. A breach of this warranty will be deemed 
a material breach of the Agreement and may be subject to penalties up to and including 
termination of the Agreement. City retains the legal right to inspect the papers of any 
Consultant’s or subconsultant’s employee who provides services under this Agreement to 
ensure that Consultant and subconsultants comply with the warranty under this provision. 
 
5.21 Lawful Presence Requirement. A.R.S. §§ 1-501 and 1-502 prohibit City from awarding a 
contract to any natural person who cannot establish that such person is lawfully present in 
the United States. To establish lawful presence, a person must produce qualifying 
identification and sign a City-provided affidavit affirming that the identification provided is 
genuine. This requirement will be imposed at the time of contract award. This requirement 
does not apply to business organizations such as corporations, partnerships, or limited 
liability companies. 
 
5.22 Covenant Against Contingent Fees. Consultant warrants that no person has been 
employed or retained to solicit or secure this Agreement upon an agreement or 
understanding for a commission, percentage, brokerage, or contingent fee, and that no 
member of the Chandler City Council, or any City employee has any interest, financially, or 
otherwise, in Consultant’s firm. For breach or violation of this warrant, City may annul this 
Agreement without liability or, at its discretion, to deduct from the Agreement price or 
consideration, the full amount of such commission, percentage, brokerage, or contingent 
fee. 
 
5.23 Non-Waiver Provision. The failure of either Party to enforce any of the provisions of 
this Agreement or to require performance of the other Party of any of the provisions hereof 
must not be construed to be a waiver of such provisions, nor must it affect the validity of 
this Agreement or any part thereof, or the right of either Party to thereafter enforce each 
and every provision. 
 
5.24 Disclosure of Information Adverse to City’s Interests. To evaluate and avoid potential 
conflicts of interest, Consultant must provide written notice to City, as set forth in this 
Section, of any work or services performed by Consultant for third parties that may involve 
or be associated with any real property or personal property owned or leased by City. Such 
notice must be given 7 business days prior to commencement of the services by Consultant 
for a third party, or 7 business days prior to an adverse action as defined below. Written 
notice and disclosure must be sent in accordance with Section 6.7 above.  An adverse action 
under this Agreement includes, but is not limited to: (a) using data as defined in the 
Agreement acquired in connection with this Agreement to assist a third party in pursuing 
administrative or judicial action against City; or (b) testifying or providing evidence on behalf 



  
City of Chandler Professional Services Agreement   Page 8  
Public Works & Utilities Department, Capital Projects Division  
Project Name: AIRPORT WATER RECLAMATION FACILITY HEADWORKS DRAIN PIPING 
Project No.: WW2003.451 
 Rev. 3/2/2021  
 

of any person in connection with an administrative or judicial action against City; or (c) using 
data to produce income for Consultant or its employees independently of performing the 
services under this Agreement, without the prior written consent of City. Consultant 
represents that except for those persons, entities, and projects identified to City, the 
services performed by Consultant under this Agreement are not expected to create an 
interest with any person, entity, or third party project that is or may be adverse to City’s 
interests. Consultant’s failure to provide a written notice and disclosure of the information 
as set forth in this Section constitute a material breach of this Agreement. 
 
5.25 Data Confidentiality and Data Security. As used in the Agreement, "data" means all 
information, whether written or verbal, including plans, photographs, studies, 
investigations, audits, analyses, samples, reports, calculations, internal memos, meeting 
minutes, data field notes, work product, proposals, correspondence and any other similar 
documents or information prepared by, obtained by, or transmitted to Consultant or its 
subconsultants in the performance of this Agreement. The Parties agree that all data, 
regardless of form, including originals, images, and reproductions, prepared by, obtained 
by, or transmitted to Consultant or its subconsultants in connection with Consultant’s or its 
subconsultant’s performance of this Agreement is confidential and proprietary information 
belonging to City. Except as specifically provided in this Agreement, Consultant or its 
subconsultants must not divulge data to any third party without City’s prior written consent. 
Consultant or its subconsultants must not use the data for any purposes except to perform 
the services required under this Agreement. These prohibitions do not apply to the 
following data provided to Consultant or its subconsultants have first given the required 
notice to City: (a) data which was known to Consultant or its subconsultants prior to its 
performance under this Consultant or its subconsultants by a third party, who to the best of 
Consultant’s or its subconsultants’ knowledge and belief, had the legal right to make such 
disclosure and Consultant or its subconsultants are not otherwise required to hold such 
data in confidence; or (c) data which is required to be disclosed by virtue of law, regulation, 
or court order, to which Consultant or its subconsultants are subject. In the event 
Consultant or its subconsultants are required or requested to disclose data to a third party, 
or any other information to which Consultant or its subconsultants became privy as a result 
of any other contract with City, Consultant must first notify City as set forth in this Section of 
the request or demand for the data. Consultant or its subconsultants must give City 
sufficient facts so that City can be given an opportunity to first give its consent or take such 
action that City may deem appropriate to protect such data or other information from 
disclosure. All data must continue to be subject to the confidentiality agreements of this 
Agreement. Consultant or its subconsultants assume all liability to maintain the 
confidentiality of the data in its possession and agrees to compensate City if any of the 
provisions of this Section are violated by Consultant, its employees, agents or 
subconsultants. Solely for the purposes of seeking injunctive relief, it is agreed that a breach 
of this Section must be deemed to cause irreparable harm that justifies injunctive relief in 
court. Consultant agrees that the requirements of this Section must be incorporated into all 
subagreements entered into by Consultant. A violation of this Section may result in 
immediate termination of this Agreement without notice. 
 
5.26 Personal Identifying Information-Data Security. Personal identifying information, 
financial account information, or restricted City information, whether electronic format or 



  
City of Chandler Professional Services Agreement   Page 9  
Public Works & Utilities Department, Capital Projects Division  
Project Name: AIRPORT WATER RECLAMATION FACILITY HEADWORKS DRAIN PIPING 
Project No.: WW2003.451 
 Rev. 3/2/2021  
 

hard copy, must be secured and protected at all times by Consultant or its subconsultants. 
At a minimum, Consultant or its subconsultants must encrypt or password-protect 
electronic files. This includes data saved to laptop computers, computerized devices, or 
removable storage devices. When personal identifying information, financial account 
information, or restricted City information, regardless of its format, is no longer necessary, 
the information must be redacted or destroyed through appropriate and secure methods 
that ensure the information cannot be viewed, accessed, or reconstructed. In the event that 
data collected or obtained by Consultant or its subconsultants in connection with this 
Agreement is believed to have been compromised, Consultant or its subconsultants must 
immediately notify City contact. Consultant agrees to reimburse City for any costs incurred 
by City to investigate potential breaches of this data and, where applicable, the cost of 
notifying individuals who may be impacted by the breach. Consultant agrees that the 
requirements of this Section must be incorporated into all subcontracts entered into by 
Consultant. It is further agreed that a violation of this Section must be deemed to cause 
irreparable harm that justifies injunctive relief in court. A violation of this Section may result 
in immediate termination of this Agreement without notice. The obligations of Consultant 
or its subconsultants under this Section must survive the termination of this Agreement. 
 
5.27 Jurisdiction and Venue. This Agreement is made under, and must be construed in 
accordance with and governed by the laws of the State of Arizona without regard to the 
conflicts or choice of law provisions thereof. Any action to enforce any provision of this 
Agreement or to obtain any remedy with respect hereto must be brought in the courts 
located in Maricopa County, Arizona, and for this purpose, each Party hereby expressly and 
irrevocably consents to the jurisdiction and venue of such court. 
 
5.28 Survival. All warranties, representations, and indemnifications by Consultant must 
survive the completion or termination of this Agreement. 
 
5.29 Modification. Except as expressly provided herein to the contrary, no supplement, 
modification, or amendment of any term of this Agreement will be deemed binding or 
effective unless in writing and signed by the Parties.  
 
5.30 Severability. If any provision of this Agreement or the application to any person or 
circumstance may be invalid, illegal or unenforceable to any extent, the remainder of this 
Agreement and the application will not be affected and will be enforceable to the fullest 
extent permitted by law. 
 
5.31 Integration. This Agreement contains the full agreement of the Parties. Any prior or 
contemporaneous written or oral agreement between the Parties regarding the subject 
matter is merged and superseded. 
 
5.32 Time is of the Essence. Time of each of the terms, covenants, and conditions of this 
Agreement is hereby expressly made of the essence. 
 
5.33 Date of Performance. If the date of performance of any obligation or the last day of any 
time period provided for should fall on a Saturday, Sunday, or holiday for City, the 
obligation will be due and owing, and the time period will expire, on the first day after which 



  
City of Chandler Professional Services Agreement   Page 10  
Public Works & Utilities Department, Capital Projects Division  
Project Name: AIRPORT WATER RECLAMATION FACILITY HEADWORKS DRAIN PIPING 
Project No.: WW2003.451 
 Rev. 3/2/2021  
 

is not a Saturday, Sunday or legal City holiday. Except as may otherwise be set forth in this 
Agreement, any performance provided for herein will be timely made if completed no later 
than 5:00 p.m. (Chandler time) on the day of performance. 
 
5.34 Third Party Beneficiary. Nothing under this Agreement will be construed to give any 
rights or benefits in the Agreement to anyone other than City and Consultant, and all duties 
and responsibilities undertaken pursuant to this Agreement will be for the sole and 
exclusive benefit of City and Consultant and not for the benefit of any other party. 
 
5.35 Conflict in Language. All work performed must conform to all applicable City of 
Chandler codes, ordinances, and requirements as outlined in this Agreement. If there is a 
conflict in interpretation between provisions in this Agreement and those in Exhibit "A", the 
provisions in this Agreement prevail. 
 
5.36 Document/Information Release. Documents and materials released to Consultant, 
which are identified by City as sensitive and confidential, are City’s property. The 
document/material must be issued by and returned to City upon completion of the services 
under this Agreement. Consultant secondary distribution, disclosure, copying, or 
duplication in any manner is prohibited without City’s prior written approval. The 
document/material must be kept secure at all times. This directive applies to all City 
documents, whether in photographic, printed, or electronic data format.  
 
5.37 Exhibits. The following exhibits are made a part of this Agreement and are 
incorporated by reference: 
 
    Exhibit A - Scope of Services / Schedule 

Exhibit B - Compensation and Fees 
Exhibit C - Insurance Requirements 
Exhibit D - Special Conditions 
Exhibit E – Federal Requirements (if applicable)  
 

5.38 Special Conditions. As part of the services Consultant provides under this Agreement, 
Consultant agrees to comply with and fully perform the special terms and conditions set 
forth in Exhibit “D”, which is attached to and made a part of this Agreement. 
 
5.39 Non-Discrimination and Anti-Harassment Laws. Consultant must comply with all 
applicable City, state, and federal non-discrimination and anti-harassment laws, rules, and 
regulations. 
 
5.40 Licenses and Permits. Beginning with the Effective Date and for the full term of this 
Agreement, Consultant must maintain all applicable City, state, and federal licenses and 
permits required to fully perform Consultant’s services under this Agreement. 
 
5.41 Warranties. Consultant must furnish a one-year warranty on all work and services 
performed under this Agreement. Consultant must furnish, or cause to be furnished, a two-
year warranty on all fixtures, furnishings, and equipment furnished by Consultant, 
subconsultants or suppliers under this Agreement. Any defects in design, workmanship, or 



  
City of Chandler Professional Services Agreement   Page 11  
Public Works & Utilities Department, Capital Projects Division  
Project Name: AIRPORT WATER RECLAMATION FACILITY HEADWORKS DRAIN PIPING 
Project No.: WW2003.451 
 Rev. 3/2/2021  
 

materials that do not comply with this Agreement must be corrected by Consultant 
(including, but not limited to, all parts and labor) at Consultant’s sole cost and expense. All 
written warranties and redlines for as-built conditions must be delivered to City on or 
before City’s final acceptance of Consultant’s services under this Agreement.  
 
5.42 Cooperative Purchasing Agreement (S.A.V.E. – Strategic Alliance for Volume 
Expenditures).  In addition to City of Chandler and with the approval of Consultant, this 
Agreement may be extended for use by other municipalities, school districts, and 
government agencies of the State.  Any such usage by other entities must be in accordance 
with the ordinance, charter, or procurement rules and regulations of the respective political 
entity.   
 
5.43 Budget Approval into Next Fiscal Year.  This Agreement will commence on the Effective 
Date and continue in full force and effect until it is terminated or expires in accordance with 
the provisions of this Agreement.  The Parties recognize that the continuation of this 
Agreement after the close of the City's fiscal year, which ends on June 30 of each year, is 
subject to the City Council's approval of a budget that includes an appropriation for this 
item as an expenditure.  The City does not represent that this budget item will be actually 
adopted. This determination is solely made by the City Council. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SIGNATURE PAGE TO FOLLOW 
 
 
  





 

 
City of Chandler Professional Services Agreement – Exhibit “A” Page A-1  
Public Works & Utilities Department, Capital Projects Division  
Project Name: AIRPORT WATER RECLAMATION FACILITY HEADWORKS DRAIN PIPING  
Project No.: WW2003.451 
Rev. 3/2/2021  
 

EXHIBIT “A” 
SCOPE OF SERVICES/SCHEDULE 

 
 



1 
 

EXHIBIT “A1” 
 

AWRF DRAIN PIPE CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT 
SCOPE OF SERVICES 

WW2003.451 
 
PROJECT TASKS 
 
1. PRE-CONSTRUCTION ASSISTANCE 

A. Task 1.1 Preconstruction Assistance  
i. Consultant must attend the pre-construction meeting. Consultant assumes 

CM, Inspector and Engineer (3 total) will attend virtual meeting. 
 

2. CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT  
A. Task 2.1 Weekly Construction Meetings 

i. Consultant must conduct bi-weekly construction meetings based on 2 month 
construction schedule.  Each meeting includes agenda and minutes; Request 
for Information (RFI); Shop Drawing; Request for Information (RFI); Field 
Directive (FD); Material Certification; and Allowance Logs, site walkthroughs 
and coordination with field inspector. Consultant assumes 4 bi-weekly 
meetings will be held in person at the construction site. 

B. Task 2.2 CPM Schedule 
i. Consultant must review and evaluate Contractor’s initial CPM schedule and 

provide recommendations for acceptance. Consultant assumes 1 review of 
initial CPM schedule 

ii. Consultant must review Contractor’s monthly CPM schedule updates 
submitted with each payment application, identify CPM tasks behind 
schedule that may affect critical path items, project substantial and final 
completion dates and initiate correspondence to City regarding those tasks. 
Consultant assumes 2 reviews of updated CPM schedule.  

C. Task 2.3 Requests for Information (RFI’s) 
i. Consultant must review, evaluate, and respond to Contractor Requests for 

Information (RFI’s); and prepare and maintain a submittal log of all RFI’s. 
Consultant assumes a maximum of 10 RFI responses.  

D. Task 2.4 Shop Drawing Submittals 
i. Consultant must review, evaluate, and respond to Contractor shop drawing 

submittals; and prepare and maintain a submittal log of all shop drawing 
submittals. Consultant assumes a maximum of 15 reviews including 
resubmittals.  

E. Task 2.5 Requests for Proposal (RFP) 
i. Consultant must prepare Requests for Proposal (RFP) documents detailing 

requested additional work tasks; review and evaluate Contractor RFP 
responses (cost derivations) with approval recommendations; and prepare 
and maintain a submittal log list of all RFP’s. Consultant assumes 2 RFPs.   

F.  Task 2.6 Field Directives (FD’s) 
i. Consultant must prepare Field Directive (FD) documents detailing requested 

additional work tasks; review and evaluate Contractor FD responses with 
approval recommendations; and prepare and maintain a submittal log list of 
all FD’s. Consultant assumes 2 FD’s.   



2 
 

G. Task 2.7 Contractor Payment Applications 
i. Consultant must review and evaluate Contractor monthly payment 

applications and make recommendation for payment; maintain a weekly 
record of constructed pay quantities during construction and monthly 
records during other periods and compile monthly totals; and coordinate 
payment application with the City quantity report and the inspectors’ daily 
logs. Consultant assumes a maximum of 6 monthly payment applications, 
with 12 reviews total. Daily logs generated when inspector is on site. 

H. Task 2.8 Construction Management 
i. Consultant will provide construction (project) management services during 

the seven (7) month project duration including procurement, construction, 
and closeout periods; review and develop monthly invoices; provide monthly 
internal project reviews; provide and maintain field work safety plan; 
maintain client communication for project status and address project 
performance/schedule; provide QA/QC of Consultant deliverables associated 
with Tasks 2.1 - 2.7, Tasks 3.1 – 3.3 and Task 4.1; and monitor CM and 
Inspection activities. 

 
3. CONSTRUCTION INSPECTION 

A. Task 3.1 Inspection Services 
i. Consultant must provide weekly construction inspection to verify materials 

and installations conform to construction documents; prepare daily 
inspection reports documenting Contractor construction activities and 
progress during field inspection visits. Consultant assumes 1 inspector 8 
hours per week with minimum 4 hours per trip, and 1 hour per week 
document management for a 2 month construction schedule. 

B. Task 3.2 Engineering Inspection Services 
i. Consultant must provide periodic construction inspection to verify materials 

and installations conform to construction documents. Consultant assumes 3 
Engineer inspections 4 hours per inspection. 

C. Task 3.3 Project Closeout    
i. Consultant must compile non-conformance list prior to Substantial 

Completion; schedule and conduct Substantial Completion inspection; 
prepare Substantial Completion punch list generated from Substantial 
Completion inspection; track items on punch list and note completed items; 
and complete and distribute Substantial Completion certificates. Consultant 
assumes CM and Inspector (2 total) will attend meeting in person at the 
construction site. 

ii. Consultant must schedule and conduct Final Completion inspection; and 
complete and distribute Final Completion certificates. Consultant assumes 
CM, Inspector and Engineer (3 total) will attend inspection. 

 
4. RECORD DRAWINGS  

A. Task 6.1 Record Drawings 
i. Create record drawings based on contractor’s weekly updates on red-line 

drawing set. 
ii. Provide engineer stamp on record drawings cover sheet. Ensure all required 

signatures on the cover sheet. 
iii. Provide and deliver record drawings in mylar, paper and digital pdf format to 

the City as required for as-built submittal process at city permit counter.  

  



3 
 

5. OWNER ALLOWANCES  
A. Project Allowance 

i. A 10 percent Owner Allowance is included for additional construction services as 
required or requested by the City. These services shall be negotiated and 
approved by the City before work is executed. 
 

ASSUMPTION, CLARIFICATIONS, AND EXCLUSIONS 
1. Application fees for City reviews and permits will be paid by CITY. 

2. The Owner’s Allowance will only be utilized with prior written approval from the City 

representative. 

3. The Direct Expense Allowance will be used for normal reimbursable expenses on the 

project.  Items must be billed at cost and backup must be provided with pay applications. 

4. Total project duration 7 months 

a. 3 months procurement 

b. 2 months construction 

c. 1 month closeout 

d. 1 month post closeout to complete billing cycle 



 

 
City of Chandler Professional Services Agreement – Exhibit “B” Page B-1 
Public Works & Utilities Department, Capital Projects Division  
Project Name: AIRPORT WATER RECLAMATION FACILITY HEADWORKS DRAIN PIPING  
Project No.: WW2003.451 
Rev. 3/2/2021  
 

EXHIBIT “B” 
COMPENSATION AND FEES 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



Task Cost

1
1.1 950.00$                    

950.00$                    

2
2.1 3,096.00$                 

2.2 1,216.00$                 

2.3 4,460.00$                 

2.4 6,492.00$                 

2.5 2,144.00$                 

2.6 2,830.00$                 

2.7 3,270.00$                 

2.8 4,808.00$                 
28,316.00$              

3
3.1 7,920.00$                 

3.2 2,124.00$                 

3.3 6,100.00$                 

16,144.00$              

4
4.1 $3,540

$3,540

$1,200
$4,900

6,100.00$                

55,050.00$       

Contractor Payment Applications: 22 hours

Owner's Allowance (10%)

SUBTOTAL TASK 3:

Project Closeout: 40 hrs

RECORD DRAWINGS
Record Drawings:  24 hours

Engineering Inspection Services: 12 hrs

PRE-CONSTRUCTION ASSISTANCE

CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT

SUBTOTAL TASK 1:

EXHIBIT "B1"
CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT - WW2003.451

SCOPE OF SERVICES
FEE SCHEDULE

Description

Pre-Construction Assistance: 6 hours

Bi-Weekly Construction Meetings: 20 hours

Inspection Services: 72 hrs

Construction Management: 30 hours

CONSTRUCTION INSPECTION

SUBTOTAL TASK 2:

Requests for Proposal (RFP) 12 hours

CPM Schedule: 8 hours

Requests for Information (RFI): 30 hours

Shop Drawing Submittals: 42 hours

Field Directive (FD): 18 hours

SUBTOTAL ALLOWANCES:

PROJECT TOTAL:

SUBTOTAL TASK 6:

ALLOWANCES
Direct Expense Allowance: $125/wk at 8 weeks + $200 Reproduction



 

 
City of Chandler Professional Services Agreement – Exhibit “C” Page C-1 
Public Works & Utilities Department, Capital Projects Division  
Project Name: AIRPORT WATER RECLAMATION FACILITY HEADWORKS DRAIN PIPING 
Project No.: WW2003.451 
Rev. 3/2/2021  
 

EXHIBIT “C” 
INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 

 
1. General. 
 
1.1 At the same time as execution of this Agreement, Consultant must furnish City a certificate 

of insurance on a standard insurance industry ACORD form.  The ACORD form must be 
issued by an insurance company authorized to transact business in the State of Arizona 
possessing a current A.M. Best, Inc. rating of A-7, or better and legally authorized to do 
business in the State of Arizona with policies and forms satisfactory to City.  Provided, 
however, the A.M. Best rating requirement will not be deemed to apply to required 
Workers’ Compensation coverage.  

 
1.2 Consultant and any of its subconsultants must procure and maintain, until all of their 

obligations have been discharged, including any warranty periods under this Agreement 
are satisfied, the insurances set forth below. 

 
1.3 The insurance requirements set forth below are minimum requirements for this 

Agreement and in no way limit the indemnity covenants contained in this Agreement. 
 
1.4 City in no way warrants that the minimum insurance limits contained in this Agreement are 

sufficient to protect Consultant from liabilities that might arise out of the performance of 
the Agreement services under this Agreement by Consultant, its agents, representatives, 
employees, subconsultants, and Consultant is free to purchase any additional insurance as 
may be determined necessary. 

 
1.5 Failure to demand evidence of full compliance with the insurance requirements in this 

Agreement or failure to identify any insurance deficiency will not relieve Consultant from, 
nor will it be considered a waiver of its obligation to maintain the required insurance at all 
times during the performance of this Agreement. 

 
1.6 Use of subconsultants:  If any work is subcontracted in any way, Consultant must execute a 

written contract with subconsultant containing the same Indemnification Clause and 
Insurance Requirements as City requires of Consultant in this Agreement. Consultant is 
responsible for executing the Agreement with the subconsultant and obtaining Certificates 
of Insurance and verifying the insurance requirements. 

 
2. Minimum Scope and Limits of Insurance.  Consultant must provide coverage with limits of 

liability not less than those stated below. 
 
2.1 Professional Liability.  If the Agreement is the subject of any professional services or work 

performed by Consultant, or if Consultant engages in any professional services or work 
adjunct or residual to performing the work under this Agreement, Consultant must 
maintain Professional Liability insurance covering errors and omissions arising out of the 
work or services performed by Consultant, or anyone employed by Consultant, or anyone 
whose acts, mistakes, errors and omissions Consultant is legally liable, with a liability limit 
of $1,000,000 each claim and $2,000,000 all claims.  In the event the Professional Liability 



 

 
City of Chandler Professional Services Agreement – Exhibit “C” Page C-2 
Public Works & Utilities Department, Capital Projects Division  
Project Name: AIRPORT WATER RECLAMATION FACILITY HEADWORKS DRAIN PIPING 
Project No.: WW2003.451 
Rev. 3/2/2021  
 

insurance policy is written on a “claims made” basis, coverage must extend for 3 years past 
completion and acceptance of the work or services, and Consultant, or its selected Design 
Professional will submit Certificates of Insurance as evidence the required coverage is in 
effect.  The Design Professional must annually submit Certificates of Insurance citing that 
the applicable coverage is in force and contains the required provisions for a 3 year period. 

 
2.2 Commercial General Liability-Occurrence Form.  Consultant must maintain “occurrence” form 

Commercial General Liability insurance with a limit of not less than $2,000,000 for each 
occurrence, $4,000,000 aggregate.    Said insurance must also include coverage for 
products and completed operations, independent contractors, personal injury and 
advertising injury. If any Excess insurance is utilized to fulfill the requirements of this 
paragraph, the Excess insurance must be “follow form” equal or broader in coverage scope 
than underlying insurance. 

 
2.3 Automobile Liability-Any Auto or Owned, Hired and Non-Owned Vehicles  
 Vehicle Liability:  Consultant must maintain Business/Automobile Liability insurance with a 

limit of $1,000,000 each accident on Consultant owned, hired, and non-owned vehicles 
assigned to or used in the performance of Consultant’s work or services under this 
Agreement.  If any Excess or Umbrella insurance is utilized to fulfill the requirements of this 
paragraph, the Excess  or Umbrella insurance must be “follow form” equal or broader in 
coverage scope than underlying insurance. 

 
2.4 Workers Compensation and Employers Liability Insurance:  Consultant must maintain Workers 

Compensation insurance to cover obligations imposed by federal and state statutes having 
jurisdiction of Consultant employees engaged in the performance of work or services 
under this Agreement and must also maintain Employers’ Liability insurance of not less 
than $1,000,000 for each accident and $1,000,000 disease for each employee. 
 

3. Additional Policy Provisions Required. 
 
3.1 Self-Insured Retentions or Deductibles.  Any self-insured retentions and deductibles must be 

declared and approved by City.  If not approved, City may require that the insurer reduce 
or eliminate any deductible or self-insured retentions with respect to City, its officers, 
officials, agents, employees, and volunteers. 

 
3.1.1. Consultant’s insurance must contain broad form contractual liability coverage. 
 
3.1.2. Consultant’s insurance coverage must be primary insurance with respect to City, its 

officers, officials, agents, and employees.  Any insurance or self-insurance 
maintained by City, its officers, officials, agents, and employees will be in excess of 
the coverage provided by Consultant and must not contribute to it. 

 
3.1.3. Consultant’s insurance must apply separately to each insured against whom claim is 

made or suit is brought, except with respect to the limits of the insurer's liability. 
 



 

 
City of Chandler Professional Services Agreement – Exhibit “C” Page C-3 
Public Works & Utilities Department, Capital Projects Division  
Project Name: AIRPORT WATER RECLAMATION FACILITY HEADWORKS DRAIN PIPING 
Project No.: WW2003.451 
Rev. 3/2/2021  
 

3.1.4. Coverage provided by Consultant must not be limited to the liability assumed under 
the indemnification provisions of this Agreement. 

 
3.1.5. The policies must contain a severability of interest clause and waiver of subrogation 

against City, its officers, officials, agents, and employees, for losses arising from 
Work performed by Consultant for City. 

 
3.1.6. Consultant, its successors and or assigns, are required to maintain Commercial 

General Liability insurance as specified in this Agreement for a minimum period of 3 
years following completion and acceptance of the Work.  Consultant must submit a 
Certificate of Insurance evidencing Commercial General Liability insurance during 
this 3 year period containing all the Agreement insurance requirements, including 
naming City of Chandler, its agents, representatives, officers, directors, officials and 
employees as Additional Insured as required. 

 
3.1.7. If a Certificate of Insurance is submitted as verification of coverage, City will 

reasonably rely upon the Certificate of Insurance as evidence of coverage but this 
acceptance and reliance will not waive or alter in any way the insurance 
requirements or obligations of this Agreement.   

 
3.2.  Insurance Cancellation During Term of Contract/Agreement.  

3.2.1. If any of the required policies expire during the life of this Agreement, Consultant 
must forward renewal or replacement Certificates to City within 10 days after the 
renewal date containing all the required insurance provisions. 

 
3.2.2. Each insurance policy required by the insurance provisions of this Agreement must 

provide the required coverage and must not be suspended, voided or canceled 
except after thirty (30) days prior written notice has been given to City, except when 
cancellation is for non-payment of premium, then ten (10) days prior notice may be 
given.  Such notice must be sent directly to Chandler Law-Risk Management 
Department, Post Office Box 4008, Mailstop 628, Chandler, Arizona  85225. If any 
insurance company refuses to provide the required notice, Consultant or its 
insurance broker must notify City of any cancellation, suspension, non-renewal of 
any insurance within seven (7) days of receipt of insurers’ notification to that effect.  

 
3.3 City as Additional Insured.  The policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the 

following provisions: 

3.3.1. The Commercial General Liability and Automobile Liability policies are to contain, or 
be endorsed to contain, the following provisions:  City, its officers, officials, agents, 
and employees are additional insureds with respect to liability arising out of 
activities performed by, or on behalf of, Consultant including City's general 
supervision of Consultant; Products and Completed operations of Consultant; and 
automobiles owned, leased, hired, or borrowed by Consultant. 

 



 

 
City of Chandler Professional Services Agreement – Exhibit “C” Page C-4 
Public Works & Utilities Department, Capital Projects Division  
Project Name: AIRPORT WATER RECLAMATION FACILITY HEADWORKS DRAIN PIPING 
Project No.: WW2003.451 
Rev. 3/2/2021  
 

3.3.2. City, its officers, officials, agents, and employees must be additional insureds to the 
full limits of liability purchased by Consultant even if those limits of liability are in 
excess of those required by this Agreement. 



 

 
City of Chandler Professional Services Agreement – Affidavit of Lawful Presence Page AFF-1 
Public Works & Utilities Department, Capital Projects Division  
Project Name: AIRPORT WATER RECLAMATION FACILITY HEADWORKS DRAIN PIPING 
Project No.: WW2003.451 
Rev. 11/1/19  
 

EXHIBIT “D” 
SPECIAL CONDITIONS 

 
 

N/A 



ITEM  18 

City Council Memorandum      City Clerk's Office  Memo No. N/A
       

Date: April 8, 2021
To: Mayor  and Council
From: Development Services Department
Subject: Study Session & Regular Meeting Minutes of March 3, 2021, Planning and Zoning Commission

Attachments
March 3, 2021 Study Session Minutes 
March 3, 2021 Regular Meeting Minutes 
















































	Agenda
	1__Resolution No. 5452 Authorizing Grant Agreements Federal Aviation Administration
	       ATT_Resolution 5452
	2__March 2021 Meeting Minutes
	       ATT_March 22, 2021 Study Session Minutes
	       ATT_March 22, 2021 Regular Meeting Minutes
	       ATT_March 25, 2021 Regular Meeting Minutes
	       ATT_March 25, 2021 Work Session - Budget Workshop Minutes
	3__Board and Commission Appointments
	4__One-time Employee Exceptional Performance Award
	5__Ordinance No. 4961,  PLH20-0023 Pecos McQueen Retail
	       ATT_Ordinance No. 4961
	       ATT_Vicinity Maps
	       ATT_Development Booklet, Exhibit A
	SWC Pecos & McQueen - PDP Project Narrative (2-24-21).pdf
	INTRODUCTION
	REQUESTS
	SITE CONDITIONS AND SURROUNDING PROPERTIES
	PROJECT DESCRIPTION
	Proposed Uses
	Circulation
	Phasing
	Parking
	Architecture
	Landscape and Open Space
	Hours of Operation
	Signage
	Neighborhood Outreach

	DEVELOPMENT STANDARD DEVIATIONS
	GENERAL PLAN CONFORMANCE
	PAD REZONING ANALYSIS
	CONCLUSION

	Pecos  McQueen - Pecos Corner - PDP R7.pdf
	Index.pdf
	Pecos & McQueen - PDP R3.pdf
	West Elevation.pdf
	Pecos & McQueen - PDP R2.pdf
	Pad B East Elevation
	Pad B North Elevation
	Pad B South Elevation
	Pad B West Elevation
	Pad C East Elevation
	Pad C North Elevation
	Pad C South Elevation
	Pecos & McQueen - PDP R2
	Colors & Materials
	Cover Page
	East Elevation
	Location
	North Elevation
	Pad A Floor Plan
	Pad B Floor Plan
	Pad C Floor Plan
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4
	Sign Type 1
	Sign Type 2
	Site Map
	South Elevation
	Table of Contents





	6__Ordinance No. 4968 PLH20-0063/PLT21-0008 McKinley Glenn 
	       ATT_Vicinity Maps
	7__Ordinance No. 4967 PLH20-0052/PLT20-0039 Serene Estates 
	       ATT_Addendum Memo Additional Stipulation
	       ATT_Ordinance No. 4967
	ORDINANCE NO.  4967

	       ATT_Vicinity Maps
	       ATT_Development Booklet 
	       ATT_Letters from Neighbors
	8__PLH20-0054 BAR @118W
	       ATT_Vicinity Maps
	       ATT_Narrative, Site Plan, Pictures
	9__PLH20-0067 The Johnathan
	       ATT_Vicinity Maps
	Narrative P 1
	Narrative P 2
	CSP_Pg 1
	CSP_Pg 2
	CSP_Pg 3
	CSP_Pg 4
	CSP_Pg 5
	CSP_Pg 6
	CSP_Pg 7
	CSP_Pg 8
	CSP_Pg 9
	CSP_Pg 10
	CSP_Pg 11
	CSP_Pg 12
	CSP_Pg 13
	CSP_Pg 14
	CSP_Pg 15
	CSP_Pg 16
	CSP_Pg 1
	CSP_Pg 2
	CSP_Pg 3
	CSP_Pg 4
	CSP_Pg 5
	CSP_Pg 6
	CSP_Pg 7
	CSP_Pg 8
	CSP_Pg 9
	CSP_Pg 10
	CSP_Pg 11
	CSP_Pg 12
	CSP_Pg 13
	CSP_Pg 14
	CSP_Pg 15
	CSP_Pg 16

	       ATT_Narrative
	Narrative P 1
	Narrative P 2
	CSP_Pg 1
	CSP_Pg 2
	CSP_Pg 3
	CSP_Pg 4
	CSP_Pg 5
	CSP_Pg 6
	CSP_Pg 7
	CSP_Pg 8
	CSP_Pg 9
	CSP_Pg 10
	CSP_Pg 11
	CSP_Pg 12
	CSP_Pg 13
	CSP_Pg 14
	CSP_Pg 15
	CSP_Pg 16
	CSP_Pg 1
	CSP_Pg 2
	CSP_Pg 3
	CSP_Pg 4
	CSP_Pg 5
	CSP_Pg 6
	CSP_Pg 7
	CSP_Pg 8
	CSP_Pg 9
	CSP_Pg 10
	CSP_Pg 11
	CSP_Pg 12
	CSP_Pg 13
	CSP_Pg 14
	CSP_Pg 15
	CSP_Pg 16

	       ATT_Comprehensive Sign Plan
	CSP_Pg 1
	CSP_Pg 2
	CSP_Pg 3
	CSP_Pg 4
	CSP_Pg 5
	CSP_Pg 6
	CSP_Pg 7
	CSP_Pg 8
	CSP_Pg 9
	CSP_Pg 10
	CSP_Pg 11
	CSP_Pg 12
	CSP_Pg 13
	CSP_Pg 14
	CSP_Pg 15
	CSP_Pg 16

	10__Resolution 5458 Foreign Trade Zone Viavi
	       ATT_Resolution No. 5458
	       ATT_Development Agreement with Viavi
	1. Recitals.  As background to this Agreement, the Parties recite, acknowledge and confirm the following, each of which shall be a material term and provision of this Agreement:
	1.1 Viavi is a manufacturer of network testing, measurement, assurance and light management and optical coatings products and technologies. Viavi conducted a competitive site selection process for a new manufacturing operation and headquarters locatio...
	1.2 The Project is expected to include the purchase of 104,300 square feet of industrial space in Chandler (the “Premises”) within a building located at 3455 South McQueen Road, Chandler, AZ 85286, also described as parcel number 303-49-982 in the rec...
	1.3 City is entering into this Agreement recognizing the importance of continued economic growth and expansion, particularly in the manufacturing industry, which provides quality jobs, and in turn stimulates local economic activity and generates tax r...
	1.4 Viavi, under no obligation or other compulsion to do so, and in reliance upon the promises and performance of City as set forth in this Agreement, has agreed to move its corporate headquarters to Chandler in accordance with this Agreement, which w...
	1.5 Viavi anticipates that Viavi will have entered into a purchase and/or other binding commitments for its manufacturing and headquarters location by the Effective Date or will enter into a purchase and/or other binding contractual commitments for it...
	1.6 City has found and determined that Viavi’s (i) capital investment at the Premises, together with (ii) Viavi’s creation of up to 233 new jobs in Chandler, will enhance the economic vitality and quality of life of Chandler by, among other things, en...
	1.7 City and Viavi are entering into this Agreement under A.R.S. § 9-500.05 to facilitate development within the City of Chandler.
	1.8 City, by Resolution No. 5458, adopted on April 8, 2021, has authorized the execution and performance of this Agreement and has otherwise taken all action required by law to enter into this Agreement and make it binding upon City.

	2. Agreements.  City and Viavi agree as follows:
	2.1 City will support the creation of a foreign trade zone applicable to the Property, including support for the reduction of certain personal property taxes applicable at the Property under Arizona state law. City will issue a City Council resolution...
	2.2 Viavi will not seek property tax reclassification under A.R.S. § 42-12006 for existing real property in Chandler.
	2.3 On or before June 30, 2022, Viavi will officially move its headquarters to a location within the City of Chandler. Viavi will update its website to indicate the Chandler location of its headquarters, and Viavi will list Chandler, Arizona as its he...
	2.4 Viavi will maintain its headquarters in Chandler until at least July 1, 2027.
	2.5 Viavi agrees that it will make reasonable efforts to utilize hotel and lodging facilities within Chandler to the extent such facilities are compatible with Viavi’s needs, including banquets, conferences, training, hospitality, and similar events t...

	3. Term.  The term of this Agreement shall begin on the Effective Date and shall continue until the earlier of July 1, 2027, unless terminated earlier.
	4. Notices.  Unless otherwise specifically provided herein, or unless written notice of a change of address has been previously given pursuant hereto, all notices, demands or other communication given hereunder shall be in writing and shall be deemed ...
	5. Remedies.
	5.1 In the event that either Party fails to perform any of its obligations under this Agreement and does not cure any such failure within thirty (30) days after Notice from the other Party, such Party shall have the right to pursue all legal and equit...

	6. Assignment. Viavi shall not assign any obligation in this Agreement other than to a subsidiary or affiliate of Viavi, without City’s express written consent, which shall not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned, or delayed provided, however, that ...
	7. Additional Matters.
	7.1 This Agreement shall be governed by and construed under the laws of the State of Arizona.  This Agreement is subject to the provisions of A.R.S. § 38-511.  This Agreement shall be deemed made and entered into in Maricopa County, Arizona.
	7.2 The failure of any Party to exercise any right, power, or remedy given to it under this Agreement, or to insist upon strict compliance with it, shall not constitute a waiver of the terms and conditions of this Agreement with respect to any other o...
	7.3 This Agreement constitutes the entire Agreement between City and Viavi with respect to its subject matter, and all agreements, oral or written, entered into prior to this Agreement are revoked and superseded by this Agreement.  This Agreement may ...
	7.4 It is not intended by this Agreement to, and nothing contained in this Agreement shall, create any partnership, joint venture or other arrangement between Viavi and City.  No term or provision of this Agreement is intended to, or shall, be for the...
	7.5  Each of the Parties hereto represents and warrants to the other that the individual executing this Agreement on behalf of their respective Parties is authorized and empowered to bind the Party on whose behalf such individual is signing, and that ...


	       ATT_Intergovernmental Agreement with City of Phoenix
	11__Agreement IT8-920-3889 Amendment 3 Neudesic Annual Application Support Services
	       ATT_Neudesic Agreement Amendment 3
	12__Purchase Microsoft Software Licenses CDW-G
	13__Liquor License Series 11 Sonesta International Hotels Corporation Sonesta Select Phoenix Chandler
	       ATT_A-Map
	       ATT_B-Floor Plan
	14__RE21-095
	       ATT_Location Map
	       ATT_Ordinance No. 4964
	15__WW2003.401 – AWRF Headworks Drain Piping - Garney Companies, Inc. (MO Corp) – JOC1914.401
	       ATT_Location Map
	       ATT_Agreement
	Project No. WW2003.401
	PERFORMANCE BOND
	PAYMENT BOND
	CONTRACTOR'S AFFIDAVIT REGARDING SETTLEMENT OF CLAIMS
	CERTIFICATE OF COMPLETION
	Exhibit B.pdf
	01 - Exhibit A
	02 -Exhibit B-1
	02 Exhibit B-2 Cover
	02A - Exhibit B-2 Back-up
	03 Crew Sheets
	03A - Chandler JOC Crew Rate Sheet
	04 - Back-up Quotes
	01 - HERC - Scissor Lifts
	02 - A-Core - Core Drill
	05 - OLT - Drip Pan
	09 - Murphy - Coatings_0
	09 - Sonco - PVC Liner Repair
	15 - Ferguson -Pipe Rev1
	15 - CB - Pipe_0
	Worksheets
	TEMP
	Sheet1


	15 - Core n Main - Pipe



	16__WW2003.451 – AWRF Headworks Drain Pipe - Brown and Caldwell Inc. – Construction Management
	       ATT_Location Map
	       ATT_Agreement
	PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT Construction Management Services
	Project No. WW2003.451
	Council Date: April 8, 2021   Item No.
	RECITALS
	AGREEMENT
	CM - LOCAL (Exhibit A).pdf
	1. PRE-CONSTRUCTION ASSISTANCE
	A. Task 1.1 Preconstruction Assistance
	i. Consultant must attend the pre-construction meeting. Consultant assumes CM, Inspector and Engineer (3 total) will attend virtual meeting.
	2. CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT
	A. Task 2.1 Weekly Construction Meetings
	i. Consultant must conduct bi-weekly construction meetings based on 2 month construction schedule.  Each meeting includes agenda and minutes; Request for Information (RFI); Shop Drawing; Request for Information (RFI); Field Directive (FD); Material Ce...
	B. Task 2.2 CPM Schedule
	i. Consultant must review and evaluate Contractor’s initial CPM schedule and provide recommendations for acceptance. Consultant assumes 1 review of initial CPM schedule
	ii. Consultant must review Contractor’s monthly CPM schedule updates submitted with each payment application, identify CPM tasks behind schedule that may affect critical path items, project substantial and final completion dates and initiate correspon...
	C. Task 2.3 Requests for Information (RFI’s)
	i. Consultant must review, evaluate, and respond to Contractor Requests for Information (RFI’s); and prepare and maintain a submittal log of all RFI’s. Consultant assumes a maximum of 10 RFI responses.
	D. Task 2.4 Shop Drawing Submittals
	i. Consultant must review, evaluate, and respond to Contractor shop drawing submittals; and prepare and maintain a submittal log of all shop drawing submittals. Consultant assumes a maximum of 15 reviews including resubmittals.
	E. Task 2.5 Requests for Proposal (RFP)
	i. Consultant must prepare Requests for Proposal (RFP) documents detailing requested additional work tasks; review and evaluate Contractor RFP responses (cost derivations) with approval recommendations; and prepare and maintain a submittal log list of...
	F.  Task 2.6 Field Directives (FD’s)
	i. Consultant must prepare Field Directive (FD) documents detailing requested additional work tasks; review and evaluate Contractor FD responses with approval recommendations; and prepare and maintain a submittal log list of all FD’s. Consultant assum...
	ii. Consultant must review and evaluate Contractor monthly payment applications and make recommendation for payment; maintain a weekly record of constructed pay quantities during construction and monthly records during other periods and compile monthl...
	3. CONSTRUCTION INSPECTION
	A. Task 3.1 Inspection Services
	i. Consultant must provide weekly construction inspection to verify materials and installations conform to construction documents; prepare daily inspection reports documenting Contractor construction activities and progress during field inspection vis...
	B. Task 3.2 Engineering Inspection Services
	i. Consultant must provide periodic construction inspection to verify materials and installations conform to construction documents. Consultant assumes 1 Engineer will 4 hours per month for 4 months.
	C. Task 3.3 Project Closeout
	i. Consultant must compile non-conformance list prior to Substantial Completion; schedule and conduct Substantial Completion inspection; prepare Substantial Completion punch list generated from Substantial Completion inspection; track items on punch l...
	ii. Consultant must schedule and conduct Final Completion inspection; and complete and distribute Final Completion certificates. Consultant assumes CM, Inspector and Engineer (3 total) will attend inspection.
	4. RECORD DRAWINGS
	A. Task 6.1 Record Drawings
	i. Create record drawings based on contractor’s weekly updates on red-line drawing set.
	ii. Provide engineer stamp on record drawings cover sheet. Ensure all required signatures on the cover sheet.
	iii. Provide and deliver record drawings in mylar, paper and digital pdf format to the City as required for as-built submittal process at city permit counter.
	5. OWNER ALLOWANCES
	A. Project Allowance

	CM - Local (EXHIBIT B1).pdf
	Exhibit B - CM Fee Schedule

	CM Services (EXHIBIT B2).pdf
	Table B2 - Hours and Rates

	6.7.6 Scope of Services - CM - LOCAL (Exhibit A1).pdf
	1. PRE-CONSTRUCTION ASSISTANCE
	A. Task 1.1 Preconstruction Assistance
	i. Consultant must attend the pre-construction meeting. Consultant assumes CM, Inspector and Engineer (3 total) will attend virtual meeting.
	2. CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT
	A. Task 2.1 Weekly Construction Meetings
	i. Consultant must conduct bi-weekly construction meetings based on 2 month construction schedule.  Each meeting includes agenda and minutes; Request for Information (RFI); Shop Drawing; Request for Information (RFI); Field Directive (FD); Material Ce...
	B. Task 2.2 CPM Schedule
	i. Consultant must review and evaluate Contractor’s initial CPM schedule and provide recommendations for acceptance. Consultant assumes 1 review of initial CPM schedule
	ii. Consultant must review Contractor’s monthly CPM schedule updates submitted with each payment application, identify CPM tasks behind schedule that may affect critical path items, project substantial and final completion dates and initiate correspon...
	C. Task 2.3 Requests for Information (RFI’s)
	i. Consultant must review, evaluate, and respond to Contractor Requests for Information (RFI’s); and prepare and maintain a submittal log of all RFI’s. Consultant assumes a maximum of 10 RFI responses.
	D. Task 2.4 Shop Drawing Submittals
	i. Consultant must review, evaluate, and respond to Contractor shop drawing submittals; and prepare and maintain a submittal log of all shop drawing submittals. Consultant assumes a maximum of 15 reviews including resubmittals.
	E. Task 2.5 Requests for Proposal (RFP)
	i. Consultant must prepare Requests for Proposal (RFP) documents detailing requested additional work tasks; review and evaluate Contractor RFP responses (cost derivations) with approval recommendations; and prepare and maintain a submittal log list of...
	F.  Task 2.6 Field Directives (FD’s)
	i. Consultant must prepare Field Directive (FD) documents detailing requested additional work tasks; review and evaluate Contractor FD responses with approval recommendations; and prepare and maintain a submittal log list of all FD’s. Consultant assum...
	i. Consultant must review and evaluate Contractor monthly payment applications and make recommendation for payment; maintain a weekly record of constructed pay quantities during construction and monthly records during other periods and compile monthly...
	i. Consultant will provide construction (project) management services during the seven (7) month project duration including procurement, construction, and closeout periods; review and develop monthly invoices; provide monthly internal project reviews;...
	3. CONSTRUCTION INSPECTION
	A. Task 3.1 Inspection Services
	i. Consultant must provide weekly construction inspection to verify materials and installations conform to construction documents; prepare daily inspection reports documenting Contractor construction activities and progress during field inspection vis...
	B. Task 3.2 Engineering Inspection Services
	i. Consultant must provide periodic construction inspection to verify materials and installations conform to construction documents. Consultant assumes 3 Engineer inspections 4 hours per inspection.
	C. Task 3.3 Project Closeout
	i. Consultant must compile non-conformance list prior to Substantial Completion; schedule and conduct Substantial Completion inspection; prepare Substantial Completion punch list generated from Substantial Completion inspection; track items on punch l...
	ii. Consultant must schedule and conduct Final Completion inspection; and complete and distribute Final Completion certificates. Consultant assumes CM, Inspector and Engineer (3 total) will attend inspection.
	4. RECORD DRAWINGS
	A. Task 6.1 Record Drawings
	i. Create record drawings based on contractor’s weekly updates on red-line drawing set.
	ii. Provide engineer stamp on record drawings cover sheet. Ensure all required signatures on the cover sheet.
	iii. Provide and deliver record drawings in mylar, paper and digital pdf format to the City as required for as-built submittal process at city permit counter.
	5. OWNER ALLOWANCES
	A. Project Allowance

	6.7.9.2 Fee Schedule - CM - Local (EXHIBIT B1).pdf
	Exhibit B - CM Fee Schedule


	18__ March 2021 Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting Minutes
	       ATT_March 3, 2021 Study Session Minutes
	       ATT_March 3, 2021 Regular Meeting Minutes

